# PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN

1111 1870

Volume 53 Number 15 Saturday, April 15, 2023 • Harrisburg, PA Pages 2027—2154

> Agencies in this issue The Courts Department of Aging Department of Agriculture Department of Banking and Securities Department of Environmental Protection Department of General Services Department of Health Department of Revenue Department of Transportation Environmental Hearing Board Fish and Boat Commission Insurance Department Legislative Reference Bureau Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Philadelphia Parking Authority Detailed list of contents appears inside.





Latest Pennsylvania Code Reporter (Master Transmittal Sheet): No. 581, April 2023	CUT ON DOTTED LINES AND ENCLOSE IN AN ENVELOPE <b>CHANGE NOTICE/NEW SUBSCRIPTION</b> If information on mailing label is incorrect, please email changes to info@pabulletin.com or mail to: FRY COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Atthn: Pennsy/Vania Bulletin 800 W. Church Rd. Mechanicsburg, PA 17055-3198	CUSTOMER NUMBER (6 digit number above name on mailing label) NAME OF INDIVIDUAL OFFICE NAME—TITLE OFFICE NAME—TITLE ADDRESS (Number and Street) (City) (State) (Zip Code) TYPE OR PRINT LEGIBLY

# PENNSYLVANIA



# BULLETIN

(ISSN 0162-2137)

Postmaster send address changes to:

FRY COMMUNICATIONS, Inc. Attn: Pennsylvania Bulletin 800 West Church Road Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania 17055-3198 (717) 766-0211 ext. 2340 (800) 334-1429 ext. 2340 (toll free, out-of-State) (800) 524-3232 ext. 2340 (toll free, in State) The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is published weekly by Fry Communications, Inc. for the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Legislative Reference Bureau, 641 Main Capitol Building, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17120, under the policy supervision and direction of the Joint Committee on Documents under 45 Pa.C.S. Part II (relating to publication and effectiveness of Commonwealth documents). The subscription rate is \$87.00 per year, postpaid to points in the United States. Individual copies are \$2.50. Checks for subscriptions and individual copies should be made payable to "Fry Communications, Inc." Periodicals postage paid at Harrisburg, Pennsylvania.

Orders for subscriptions and other circulation matters should be sent to:

Fry Communications, Inc. Attn: *Pennsylvania Bulletin* 800 West Church Road Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania 17055-3198

Copyright © 2023 Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Editorial preparation, composition, printing and distribution of the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is effected on behalf of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania by FRY COMMUNICATIONS, Inc., 800 West Church Road, Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania 17055-3198.

# CONTENTS

# THE COURTS

#### **ALLEGHENY COUNTY RULES**

Civil division local rules of the Court of Common Pleas; No. AD-2023-86-PJ rules docket ..... 2041

#### **DISCIPLINARY BOARD OF THE SUPREME COURT**

Notice of disbarment (2 documents) ...... 2045

#### JUDICIAL CONDUCT

Order amending Rule 104 of the Pennsylvania Rules of the Judicial Ethics Advisory Board; No. 

#### JUDICIAL SYSTEM GENERAL PROVISIONS

Case records public access policy of the Unified Judicial System of Pennsylvania ..... 2035

#### JUVENILE RULES

Proposed amendments of Pa.R.J.C.P. 1187..... 2039

#### LOCAL COURT RULES

#### **Clinton County**

Crime Victim's Compensation Fund, victim witness services; No. AD-4-2018; correction ...... 2045

# EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT AGENCIES

#### DEPARTMENT OF AGING

#### Notices

Pennsylvania Long-Term Care Council April meeting location update ...... 2050

#### DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

#### Notices

Agricultural research grant applications	0
Bureau of Ride and Measurement Standards 205	2

#### DEPARTMENT OF BANKING AND SECURITIES

#### Notices

Actions on applications	2054
Maximum lawful rate of interest for residential	
mortgages for the month of May 2023	2055

# DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

#### Notices

Totloc5
Applications, actions and special notices
Availability of technical guidance
Federal consistency under the Coastal Zone Man-
agement Act; City of Erie and Erie Sewer Author-
ity, Mill Creek channel wall rehabilitation 2122
Planning grant award under section 901 of the
Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste
Reduction Act, Act 101 of 1988 2123
Proposed State Implementation Plan revision; at-
tainment demonstration for the Indiana, PA
nonattainment area for the 2010 sulfur dioxide
National ambient air quality standard; public
hearing
Radiation Protection Advisory Committee meet-
ing

#### DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

Notices			
Real estate for s	ale	 	2124

#### DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

#### Notices

Ambulatory surgical facilities; requests for excep-	
tions	24
Decisions on requests for exceptions to health care	
facility regulations 212	
Hospitals; requests for exceptions 212	27
Long-term care nursing facilities; requests for ex-	
ception	29
Organ Donation Advisory Committee meeting 212	29
Special Pharmaceutical Benefits Program Advisory	
Council public meeting 212	29
Traumatic Brain Injury Advisory Board meet-	
ing	30

#### DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

#### Notices

Pennsylvania 4 X 4 Payout instant lottery game	
1636 21	30
Pennsylvania \$20,000 for \$2 instant lottery game	
$1638\ldots\ldots 21$	.36
Pennsylvania \$1 Million? Seriously instant lottery	
game 1634 21	.38
Pennsylvania Crossword Multiplier instant lottery	
game 1637 21	42
Pennsylvania King of Dads instant lottery game	
$1635\ldots\ldots 21$	46

#### **DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION**

#### Notices

Automated Red Light Enforcement Transportation Enhancement Grants Program applications...... 2149

#### **ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD**

#### Notices

Liberty Township and CEASRA, Inc. v. Department	
of Environmental Protection and Tri-County Land-	
fill, permittee; EHB doc. No. 2023-036-L	2150

#### FISH AND BOAT COMMISSION Proposed Rulemaking

Proposed Rulemaking
Fishing; general fishing regulations 2048
Notices
Lake Erie commercial fishing—2023 2150
Lake Erie creel limits for walleye and yellow
perch—2023
Public hearing
INSURANCE DEPARTMENT
Proposed Rulemaking
Preparation of forms 2046
Notices
Appeal of Jenni R. Malloy under the Quality Health

Care Accountability and Protection Article; Highmark Wholecare; doc. No. HC23-03-021..... 2150

### Available Online at http://www.pacodeandbulletin.gov

#### 2030

Application	for	approval	to	acquire	$\operatorname{control}$	of	
Rockwood	Casu	alty Insur	ance	e Compan	y and So	m-	
erset Casu	alty	Insurance	Con	npany	•••••		2151

#### LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU

#### Notices

Documents filed but not published ...... 2151

### PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

#### Notices

Natural gas service	2152
Service of notice of motor carrier applications	2152

#### PHILADELPHIA PARKING AUTHORITY Notices

# READER'S GUIDE TO THE PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN AND THE PENNSYLVANIA CODE

### Pennsylvania Bulletin

The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is the official gazette of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. It is published weekly. A cumulative subject matter index is published quarterly.

The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* serves several purposes. It is the temporary supplement to the *Pennsylvania Code*, which is the official codification of agency rules and regulations, Statewide court rules, and other statutorily authorized documents. Changes in the codified text, whether by adoption, amendment, rescission, repeal or emergency action, must be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

The following documents are published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*: Governor's Executive Orders; Summaries of Enacted Statutes; Statewide and Local Court Rules; Attorney General Opinions; Motor Carrier Applications before the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission; Applications and Actions before the Department of Environmental Protection; Orders of the Independent Regulatory Review Commission; and other documents authorized by law.

The text of certain documents published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is the only valid and enforceable text. Courts are required to take judicial notice of the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

#### Adoption, Amendment or Repeal of Regulations

Generally an agency wishing to adopt, amend or rescind regulations must first publish in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* a Proposed Rulemaking. There are limited instances when the agency may omit the proposal step; it still must publish the adopted version.

The Proposed Rulemaking contains the full text of the change, the agency contact person, a fiscal note required by law and background for the action.

The agency then allows sufficient time for public comment before taking final action. A Final Rulemaking must be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* before the changes can take effect. If the agency wishes to adopt changes to the Proposed Rulemaking to enlarge the scope, it must repropose.

### Citation to the Pennsylvania Bulletin

Cite material in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* by volume number, a page number and date. Example: Volume 1, *Pennsylvania Bulletin*, page 801, January 9, 1971 (short form: 1 Pa.B. 801 (January 9, 1971)).

### Pennsylvania Code

The *Pennsylvania Code* is the official codification of rules and regulations issued by Commonwealth agencies, Statewide court rules and other statutorily authorized documents. The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is the temporary supplement to the *Pennsylvania Code*, printing changes when they are adopted. These changes are then permanently codified by the *Pennsylvania Code Reporter*, a monthly, loose-leaf supplement.

The *Pennsylvania Code* is cited by title number and section number. Example: Title 10 *Pennsylvania Code* § 1.1 (short form: 10 Pa. Code § 1.1).

Under the *Pennsylvania Code* codification system, each regulation is assigned a unique number by title and section. Titles roughly parallel the organization of Commonwealth government.

### How to Find Rules and Regulations

Search for your area of interest in the *Pennsylvania Code*. The *Pennsylvania Code* is available at www.pacodeandbulletin.gov.

Source Notes give the history of regulations. To see if there have been recent changes not yet codified, check the List of *Pennsylvania Code* Chapters Affected in the most recent issue of the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

A chronological table of the history of *Pennsylvania Code* sections may be found at www.legis.state. pa.us/cfdocs/legis/CH/Public/pcde\_index.cfm.

A quarterly List of *Pennsylvania Code* Sections Affected lists the regulations in numerical order, followed by the citation to the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* in which the change occurred.

The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is available at www. pacodeandbulletin.gov.

### Subscription Information: (717) 766-0211 General Information and Finding Aids: (717) 783-1530

#### **Printing Format**

Rules, Regulations and Statements of Policy in Titles 1-107 of the Pennsylvania Code

Text proposed to be added is printed in **underscored bold face**. Text proposed to be deleted is enclosed in brackets [ ] and printed in **bold face**.

Proposed new chapters and sections are printed in regular type to enhance readability. Final rulemakings and statements of policy are printed in regular type.

Ellipses, a series of five asterisks, indicate text that is not amended.

In Proposed Rulemakings and proposed Statements of Policy, existing text corresponds to the official codified text in the *Pennsylvania Code*.

Court Rules in Titles 201–246 of the Pennsylvania Code

Added text in proposed and adopted court rules is printed in <u>underscored bold face</u>. Deleted text in proposed and adopted court rules is enclosed in brackets [ ] and printed in **bold face**.

Proposed new chapters and rules are printed in regular type to enhance readability.

Ellipses, a series of five asterisks, indicate text that is not amended.

#### **Fiscal Notes**

Section 612 of The Administrative Code of 1929 (71 P. S. § 232) requires the Governor's Budget Office to prepare a fiscal note for regulatory actions and administrative procedures of the administrative departments, boards, commissions and authorities receiving money from the State Treasury. The fiscal note states whether the action or procedure causes a loss of revenue or an increase in the cost of programs for the Commonwealth or its political subdivisions. The fiscal note is required to be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* at the same time as the change is advertised.

A fiscal note provides the following information: (1) the designation of the fund out of which the appropriation providing for expenditures under the action or procedure shall be made; (2) the probable cost for the fiscal year the program is implemented; (3) projected cost estimate of the program for each of the 5 succeeding fiscal years; (4) fiscal history of the program for which expenditures are to be made; (5) probable loss of revenue for the fiscal year of its implementation; (6) projected loss of revenue from the program for each of the 5 succeeding fiscal years; (7) line item, if any, of the General Appropriation Act or other appropriation act out of which expenditures or losses of Commonwealth funds shall occur as a result of the action or procedures; and (8) recommendation, if any, of the Secretary of the Budget and the reasons therefor.

The omission of an item indicates that the agency text of the fiscal note states that there is no information available with respect thereto. In items (3) and (6) information is set forth for the first through fifth fiscal years, following the year the program is implemented, which is stated. In item (4) information is set forth for the current and two immediately preceding years. In item (8) the recommendation, if any, made by the Secretary of the Budget is published with the fiscal note. "No fiscal impact" means no additional cost or revenue loss to the Commonwealth or its local political subdivision is intended. See 4 Pa. Code Chapter 7, Subchapter R (relating to fiscal notes).

#### **Reproduction, Dissemination or Publication of Information**

Third parties may not take information from the *Pennsylvania Code* and *Pennsylvania Bulletin* and reproduce, disseminate or publish information except as provided by 1 Pa. Code § 3.44:

#### § 3.44. General permission to reproduce content of Code and Bulletin.

Information published under this part, which information includes, but is not limited to, cross references, tables of cases, notes of decisions, tables of contents, indexes, source notes, authority notes, numerical lists and codification guides, other than the actual text of rules or regulations may be reproduced only with the written consent of the [Legislative Reference] Bureau. The information which appears on the same leaf with the text of a rule or regulation, however, may be incidentally reproduced in connection with the reproduction of the rule or regulation, if the reproduction is for the private use of a subscriber and not for resale. There are no other restrictions on the reproduction of information published under this part, and the Common-wealth hereby consents to a reproduction.

The following numerical guide is a list of the chapters of each title of the *Pennsylvania Code* affected by documents published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* during 2023.

4 Pa. Code (Administration) Adopted Rules
1
<b>Statements of Policy</b> 9 611, 1177, 1511, 1946
12 Pa. Code (Commerce, Trade and Local Government)Adopted Rules145145
25 Pa. Code (Environmental Protection) Adopted Rules
109
28 Pa. Code (Health and Safety) Adopted Rules
1113       1275         1141       1275         1141a       1275         1151       1275         1151a       1275         1161       1275         1161a       1275         1171a       1275         1181a       1275         1191       1275         1191a       1275         1211a       1275         1213a       1275         1211a       1275         1230a       1275         1179       31 Pa. Code (Insurance)         Proposed Rules       Proposed Rules
89
Statements of Policy         20
40 Pa. Code (Liquor)Adopted Rules13501
49 Pa. Code (Professional and Vocational Standards) Adopted Rules
16       14         17       14         18       16, 713         19       370

<b>Statements of Policy</b> 21
<b>55 Pa. Code (Human Services)</b> <b>Adopted Rules</b> 1101
58 Pa. Code (Recreation) Adoptped Rules
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
204 Pa. Code (Judicial System General Provisions)Adopted Rules332132035
Proposed Rules         125           303a         256           307a         256           311         260, 321
207 Pa. Code (Judicial Conduct) Adopted Rules 1
210 Pa. Code (Appellate Procedure) Adopted Rules 69
225 Pa. Code (Rules of Evidence) Adopted Rules Art. II
231 Pa. Code (Rules of Civil Procedure)         Adopted Rules         200       322         1915       824         1920       1161         Part II       1052
Proposed Rules         1160
234 Pa. Code (Rules of Criminal Procedure) Adopted Rules
1 1053

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 53, NO. 15, APRIL 15, 2023

#### 2034

#### **Proposed Rules**

1	 $\dots 1790$
6	 1660

### 237 Pa. Code (Juvenile Rules)

### **Adopted Rules**

1 1055
11 1055, 1791
12
13
14
15 1791
16
Proposed Rules
11 2039

# Title 204—JUDICIAL SYSTEM GENERAL PROVISIONS

PART VII. ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF PENNSYLVANIA COURTS

#### [204 PA. CODE CH. 213]

#### Case Records Public Access Policy of the Unified Judicial System of Pennsylvania

Commentary to Section 9.0 of the *Case Records Public* Access Policy of the Unified Judicial System provides in part that, "[t]he Administrative Office of Pennsylvania Courts [AOPC] shall from time to time publish a list of applicable authorities that restrict public access to court records or information. This list shall be published on the Unified Judicial System's website and in the Pennsylvania Bulletin." In accordance with this directive, the AOPC has updated the attached *Limits on Public Access to* Unified Judicial System Case Records. The entire policy, including this amendment and other related information, can be found on the Unified Judicial System's public records webpage located at http:// www.pacourts.us.

Filed in the Administrative Office of Pennsylvania Courts on March 31, 2023.

GEOFF MOULTON,

Court Administrator of Pennsylvania

Annex A

#### TITLE 204. JUDICIAL SYSTEM GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### PART VII. ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF PENNSYLVANIA COURTS

#### CHAPTER 213. COURT RECORDS POLICIES Subchapter D. CASE RECORDS PUBLIC ACCESS POLICY OF THE UNIFIED JUDICIAL SYSTEM OF PENNSYLVANIA

(*Editor's Note*: The list which appears in 204 Pa. Code pages 213-56—213-65, serial pages (407010) and (404375)—(404383), is replaced with the following list.)

Subject Area	Record Description	Accessibility	Authority
Civil	Jurors Notes.	No Public Access. Collected and destroyed post-trial.	Pa.R.C.P. 223.2.
Civil	Complaints filed in magisterial district courts.	No Public Access to the minor's name in a complaint. Minors shall be designated by the initials of their first and last name.	Pa.R.C.P.M.D.J. 803.
Commonwealth Court	Child Line Registry Cases.	No Public Access to documents in the case except Orders and Opinions wherein the court shall use initials of the minor child involved rather than full name.	Admin. Order No. 126 Misc. Docket No. 3 (February 8, 2013).
Criminal	Juror's Address.	No Public Access.	Commonwealth v. Long, 922 A.2d 892 (Pa. 2007).
Criminal	Sealed affidavit of probable cause for a search warrant.	No Public Access while sealed. The affidavit may not be sealed for more than 60 days unless an extension is received. Extensions may not be longer than 30 days, but an unlimited number of extensions are available. Public may access the affidavit after it has been unsealed.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 211.
Criminal	Unexecuted Search Warrant.	No Public Access until warrant is executed.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 212(A).
Criminal	Arrest Warrant Information.	A court may delay public access for good cause for up to 72 hours. In addition, a court may seal arrest warrant information for a longer period of time.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 513(C), Pa.R.Crim.P. 513.1.

#### LIMITS ON PUBLIC ACCESS TO UNIFIED JUDICIAL SYSTEM CASE RECORDS

Subject Area	Record Description	Accessibility	Authority
Criminal	Information obtained from or concerning the defendant by a bail agency.	No public access. Information only accessible by the defendant, counsel for the defendant, the issuing authority or judge setting bail, the attorney for the Commonwealth, and the department of probation or parole preparing a presentence report regarding the defendant.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 530(C).
Criminal	Motion filed by attorney for the Commonwealth to present the matter to an indicting grand jury and subsequent order.	No Public Access—the motion and order are sealed.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 556.2.
Criminal	All indicting grand jury proceedings and related documents.	No Public Access. Disclosure may be granted to attorney for the Commonwealth, defendant in a criminal case, witnesses, law enforcement personnel, and upon motion when necessary.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 556.10.
Criminal	Sealed indictments.	No Public Access.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 556.11(E).
Criminal	Sealed records concerning mental health experts.	No Public Access.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 569.
Criminal	Sealed written statements pertaining to protective orders.	No Public Access. The entire text of the statement shall be sealed and preserved in the records of the court to be made available to the appellate court(s) in the event of an appeal.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 573(F).
Criminal	Sealed plea agreement.	No Public Access.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 590.
Criminal	Juror qualification forms.	No Public Access.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 625(A)(3).
Criminal	Juror information questionnaires.	No Public Access. Questionnaires are retained in a sealed file and shall be destroyed upon completion of the jurors' service, unless otherwise ordered by the trial judge.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 632.
Criminal	Sealed verdict.	No Public Access.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 649.
Criminal	Notes taken by jurors.	No Public Access.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 644(B)(7).
Criminal	Pre-sentence reports and related psychiatric psychological reports.	No Public Access.	Pa.R.Crim.P. 703(A).
Criminal	Records revealing the names of human trafficking victims.	No Public Access, unless otherwise ordered by a court in a prosecution involving a victim of human trafficking.	18 Pa.C.S. § 3019(a).
Criminal	Wiretap applications, final reports and orders.	No Public Access except upon showing of good cause before a court of competent jurisdiction.	18 Pa.C.S. § 5715.
Criminal	Names of minor victims of sexual or physical abuse.	No Public Access. Records revealing a victim's name are sealed. A minor victim who is 18 years of age or older at the time of the commencement of the prosecution may waive this protection and allow the court to release the name of the minor victim.	42 Pa.C.S. § 5988.

Subject Area	Record Description	Accessibility	Authority
Criminal*	Any criminal history record information related to the convictions of certain offenses graded as a misdemeanor of the first, second or third degree, or summary more than 10 years old, or dispositions that are non-convictions, and convictions for which a pardon was granted.	No public access. The court shall not release the information to an individual, noncriminal justice agency or an internet website.	18 Pa.C.S. §§ 9121, 9122.1, and § 9122.2.
Domestic Relations	Information regarding the registration, filing of a petition for, or issuance of a protection from abuse order in either the issuing or enforcing State.	No Public Access via internet publication, if such publication would be likely to publicly reveal the identity or location of the protected party.	18 U.S.C. § 2265(d)(3).
Domestic Relations	Social security number of any individual subject to a divorce decree, support order, paternity determination, or acknowledgement of paternity, which is required in all records of those matters.	No Public Access.	23 Pa.C.S. § 4304.1(a)(3).
Domestic Relations	Child Support Records.	No Public Access, except for PACSES dockets, court orders and opinions.	42 U.S.C. §§ 654(26)(A), 654a(d)(1)(A); 45 CFR §§ 303.21(c)-(d), 307.13(a)(1); 23 Pa.C.S. § 4304.1(d); Sections 2.4 and 3.4 of the Cooperative Agreement.
Domestic Relations	<ul> <li>(a) Subject to any inconsistent general rules and to the supervision and direction of the court, the domestic relations section shall have the power and duty to</li> <li>(10) Implement safeguards applicable to all confidential information received by the domestic relations section in order to protect the privacy rights of the parties, including (ii) prohibitions against the release of information on the whereabouts of one party or the child to another party against whom a protective order with respect to the former party or the child has been entered; and (iii) prohibitions against the release of information on the whereabouts of one party or the child to another party against moment against the release of information on the whereabouts of one party or the child to another person if the domestic relations section has reason to believe that the release of the information may result in physical or emotional harm to the party or the child.</li> </ul>	No Public Access.	23 Pa.C.S. § 4305 (a)(10)(ii)-(iii).
Domestic Relations	List of weapons ordered to be relinquished by the defendant in an action for protection from abuse.	No Public Access, except (A) upon an order of the court granted upon cause shown; (B) as necessary, by law enforcement and court personnel; or (C) after redaction of information listing any firearm, other weapons or ammunition.	23 Pa.C.S. § 6108(a)(7)(v); 18 Pa.C.S. § 6105.2(f); see also 18 Pa.C.S. § 6128(e).

Subject Area	Record Description	Accessibility	Authority
Domestic Relations	All records pertaining to a confidential address for individuals participating in the Office of Victim Advocate's Address Confidentiality Program.	No Public Access, except for the substitute address provided by the Office of Victim Advocate.	23 Pa.C.S. § 6703(d); see also 23 Pa.C.S. § 5336(b)(1).
Domestic Relations*	Written reports of a guardian <i>ad</i> <i>litem</i> that include specific recommendations relating to the child's best interest and a party's filed response to the report.	No Public Access.	Pa.R.Civ.P. 1915.11-2(d)(3).
Juvenile Court	Juvenile Dependency and Delinquency records.	No Public Access; except as set forth in 42 Pa.C.S. § 6307, Pa.R.J.C.P. 160 and/or 1160, including with leave of court.	42 Pa.C.S. § 6307; Pa.R.J.C.P. 160, 1160.
Landlord-Tenant	Domestic Violence Affidavit filed with the court to stay the execution of an order of possession.	No Public Access to the Domestic Violence Affidavit.	Pa.R.C.P.M.D.J. 514.1.
Orphans' Court	Proceedings related to appointment of guardianship for incapacitated persons.	Shall be closed to the public upon request of the alleged incapacitated person or his counsel. After the individual's death his/her estate may access the record of the guardianship proceedings.	20 Pa.C.S. § 5511(a); In re Estate of duPont, 2 A.3d 516 (Pa. 2010).
Orphans' Court	Records required for foreign adoption decrees.	No Public Access unless a court order is granted upon good cause.	23 Pa.C.S. § 2908(F); Pa.O.C.R. 15.21.
Orphans' Court	Adoption records.	No Public Access unless otherwise ordered.	23 Pa.C.S. § 2915; see also 23 Pa.C.S. § 2906; Pa.O.C.R. 15.21.
Superior Court	The Court may order that parties' names in captions for appeals from divorce, equitable distribution, custody, visitation, or child support decisions be initialized.	No Public Access to the names in the caption. This does not apply to the text of a circulation or order of the Court.	210 Pa. Code § 65.44.
Orphans' Court (Family Court in Philadelphia County or Juvenile Court Section of Family Division in Allegheny County Pa.R.J.A. 2157)	Applications of a minor for judicial approval of decision to have an abortion, under the Abortion Control Act, as well as proceedings and the name of the minor.	No Public Access; sealed dockets, and documents shall be maintained in a closed file marked "confidential" and identified by case number only.	18 Pa.C.S. § 3206(f); Pa.O.C.R. 16.2 and 16.6. Note also Pa.R.J.A. 2157 and Pa.R.A.P. 3801.
General	Records concerning persons in treatment under the Mental Health Procedures Act.	Limited Public Access in compliance with the Mental Health Procedures Act and controlling case law.	50 P.S. § 7111.
General	Court documents, rules, or orders in Gaming Law proceedings.	Any party may request proceeding and record to be sealed if in best interest of any person or Commonwealth.	4 Pa.C.S. § 1518.2(b).
General	Proceedings and records involving juveniles charged with a summary offense before the minor judiciary, the Philadelphia Municipal Court or a Court of Common Pleas.	No Public Access.	42 Pa.C.S. §§ 6303(c), 6307(c), and 6336(g).

Subject Area	Record Description	Accessibility	Authority
General	Transcript of proceedings in the judicial districts within the Unified Judicial System.	A court may order the person preparing the transcript to redact confidential, personal and/or financial data and other identifiers and information listed in Section 7.0 of the Case Records Public Access Policy of the Unified Judicial System.	Pa.R.J.A. 4014.

Note: this may not be a complete listing; the public and court staff are directed to consult federal and state statutes, court rules or case law.

\*New or amended material

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-483. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# Title 207—JUDICIAL CONDUCT

#### PART V. JUDICIAL ETHICS ADVISORY BOARD

#### [207 PA. CODE CH. 1]

#### Order Amending Rule 104 of the Pennsylvania Rules of the Judicial Ethics Advisory Board; No. 591 Judicial Administration Docket

#### Order

#### Per Curiam

And Now, this 31st day of March, 2023, pursuant to Article V, Section 10 of the Constitution of Pennsylvania, It Is Ordered that:

Rule 104 of the Pennsylvania Rules of the Judicial Ethics Advisory Board is amended in the attached form.

This *Order* shall be processed in accordance with Pa.R.J.A. 103(b) and shall be effective immediately.

Additions to the rules are shown in bold and are underlined.

Deletions from the rules are shown in bold and in brackets.

#### Annex A

#### TITLE 207. JUDICIAL CONDUCT

#### PART V. JUDICIAL ETHICS ADVISORY BOARD

#### CHAPTER 1. RULES OF THE JUDICIAL ETHICS ADVISORY BOARD

#### Subchapter A. PRELIMINARY PROVISIONS

# Rule 104. Pennsylvania Judicial Ethics Advisory Board.

(a) General Rule. The Supreme Court shall appoint a board to be known as the "Pennsylvania Judicial Ethics Advisory Board" ("the Board")<sub>2</sub> which shall consist of [nine] thirteen members: one judge of the Superior Court; one judge of the Commonwealth Court; [three] four judges of the courts of common pleas; one judge of the Philadelphia Municipal Court; [two] four magisterial district judges who must be members of the Pennsylvania bar; [and] one member of the Pennsylvania bar who is not a judicial officer; and one retired judge from any level of the judiciary. A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum; action of the Board shall be by majority vote of members attending. No member of the Board or the Court of Judicial Discipline. The Supreme

Court shall designate one member to serve as Chair and another to serve as Vice-Chair.

(b) Submissions from Representative Courts and Judicial Organizations. The President Judges of the Superior and Commonwealth Courts shall submit to the Chief Justice the names of three candidates for each Board position to be filled by a judge of their respective courts. The PCSTJ shall submit to the Chief Justice the names of three candidates for each Board position to be filled by a judge of a common pleas court or a judge of the Philadelphia Municipal Court. The SCJAP shall submit to the Chief Justice the names of three candidates for each Board position to be filled by a magisterial district judge. The Supreme Court shall select appointees for those positions from the names submitted. In the absence of submissions, the Supreme Court shall proceed to fill the Board positions.

(c) Terms and Vacancies. The first nine appointments to the Board shall be for staggered terms as follows: three members appointed for six years, three members for four years, and three members for two years. The four members appointed to expand the Board to thirteen members will be appointed to staggered terms as follows: one member for six years, two members for four years, and one member for two years. Thereafter, a new appointment to the Board shall be for a single six-year term. A vacancy shall be filled from the same membership category using the same process from which the vacating member was appointed. Appointments to fill a vacancy shall be for the balance of the term vacated.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-484. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

### Title 237—JUVENILE RULES

#### PART I. RULES

[ 237 PA. CODE CH. 11 ]

#### Proposed Amendment of Pa.R.J.C.P. 1187

The Juvenile Court Procedural Rules Committee is considering proposing to the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania the amendment of Pennsylvania Rule of Juvenile Court Procedure 1187 governing the authority of juvenile court hearing officers for the reasons set forth in the accompanying publication report. Pursuant to Pa.R.J.A.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 53, NO. 15, APRIL 15, 2023

103(a)(1), the proposal is being published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* for comments, suggestions, or objections prior to submission to the Supreme Court.

Any report accompanying this proposal was prepared by the Committee to indicate the rationale for the proposed rulemaking. It will neither constitute a part of the rules nor be adopted by the Supreme Court.

The Committee invites all interested persons to submit comments, suggestions, or objections in writing to:

Daniel A. Durst, Chief Counsel Juvenile Court Procedural Rules Committee Supreme Court of Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Judicial Center P.O. Box 62635 Harrisburg, PA 17106-2635 FAX: 717-231-9541 juvenilerules@pacourts.us

All communications in reference to the proposal should be received by May 26, 2023. E-mail is the preferred method for submitting comments, suggestions, or objections; any e-mailed submission need not be reproduced and resubmitted via mail. The Committee will acknowledge receipt of all submissions.

By the Juvenile Court

Procedural Rules Committee

THE HONORABLE ALICE BECK DUBOW,

#### Annex A

# TITLE 237. JUVENILE RULES

### PART I. RULES

#### Subpart B. DEPENDENCY MATTERS CHAPTER 11. GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### PART D. JUVENILE COURT HEARING OFFICERS

Rule 1187. Authority of Juvenile Court Hearing Officer.

[A.] (a) No [ authority ] <u>Authority</u>. A juvenile court hearing officer shall not have the authority to:

1) preside over:

[a)] (i) termination of parental rights hearings;

**[ b) ] (ii)** adoptions;

**[ c) ]** (iii) any hearing in which any party seeks to establish a permanency goal of adoption or change the permanency goal to adoption;

2) enter orders for [emergency or] protective custody pursuant to [Rules 1200 and 1210] <u>Rule</u> 1202(A)(2) or Rule 1210;

3) issue warrants; and

4) issue contempt orders.

#### **[B.]** (b) Right to **[hearing before judge]** <u>Hearing</u> Before Judge.

1) Prior to the commencement of any proceeding, the juvenile court hearing officer shall inform all parties of the right to have the matter heard by a judge. If a party objects to having the matter heard by the juvenile court hearing officer, the case shall proceed before the judge.

2) If a party objects to having the matter heard by the juvenile court hearing officer pursuant to [paragraph (B)(1)] subdivision (b)(1), the juvenile court hearing

officer or the court's designee for scheduling cases shall immediately schedule a hearing before the judge. The time requirements of these rules shall apply.

#### Comment

A juvenile court hearing officer's authority is limited under this rule. To implement this rule, Rule 1800 suspends 42 Pa.C.S. § 6305(b) only to the extent that juvenile court hearing officers may not hear all classes of cases.

[Under paragraph (A)(1)(c)] <u>Pursuant to subdivi</u>sion (a)(1)(iii), once the permanency goal has been approved for adoption by a judge, all subsequent reviews or hearings may be heard by the juvenile court hearing officer unless a party objects pursuant to [paragraph (B)] subdivision (b).

Subdivision (a)(2) is not intended to limit the juvenile court hearing officer's ability to recommend to the court that an order for protective custody be issued during any proceeding, including a permanency review hearing, if witnesses are available to provide sufficient evidence to a judge at the time of the recommendation.

[Under paragraph (A)(3), nothing] <u>Subdivision</u> (a)(3) is <u>not</u> intended to limit the juvenile court hearing officer's ability, in a proper case before the juvenile court hearing officer, to recommend to the court that a warrant be issued. This includes arrest, bench, and search warrants.

Concerning the provisions of [ paragraph (B) ] <u>subdi</u>vision (b), see 42 Pa.C.S. § 6305(b).

[Under paragraph (B)(2)] Pursuant to subdivision (b)(2), it should be determined whenever possible before the date of the hearing whether there will be an objection to having the matter heard before a juvenile court hearing officer. If it is anticipated [that] there will be an objection, the case [is to] should be scheduled in front of [the] <u>a</u> judge, rather than the juvenile court hearing officer, to prevent continuances and delays in the case.

See Rule 1127 for recording of proceedings before a juvenile court hearing officer.

[*Official Note*: Rule 1187 adopted August 21, 2006, effective February 1, 2007. Amended April 6, 2017, effective September 1, 2017.

#### **Committee Explanatory Reports:**

Final Report explaining the provisions of Rule 1187 published with the Court's Order at 36 Pa.B. 5599 (September 2, 2006).

Final Report explaining the amendments to Rule 1187 published with the Court's Order at 47 Pa.B. 2313 (April 22, 2017).]

#### SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA

#### JUVENILE COURT PROCEDURAL RULES COMMITTEE

#### **PUBLICATION REPORT**

#### Proposed Amendment of Pa.R.J.C.P. 1187

The Juvenile Court Procedural Rules Committee ("Committee") proposes to amend Rule 1187 of the Pennsylvania Rules of Juvenile Court Procedure to clarify that a juvenile court hearing officer (JCHO) is not prohibited from recommending an order for protective custody. The Committee has discussed the merits of rulemaking that would permit a JCHO to seek a protective custody order during a permanency hearing. The genesis of these discussions is the occasion when a JCHO hears evidence during a permanency review hearing that would indicate the necessity for an order for protective custody. Cf. 1606. When those circumstances arise, the Committee believes the JCHO should be able to immediately contact a judge and recommend such an order provided witnesses are available to the judge at the time of the recommendation. While such an ability may be implicit under Pa.R.J.C.P. 1187, a majority of the Committee favored amending the commentary to clarify the authority of the JCHO.

The Committee invites all comments, concerns, and suggestions regarding this rulemaking proposal.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-485. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# Title 252—ALLEGHENY COUNTY RULES

#### **ALLEGHENY COUNTY**

Civil Division Local Rules of the Court of Common Pleas; No. AD-2023-86-PJ Rules Docket

#### **Order of Court**

And Now, this 4th day of April, 2023, it is hereby Ordered that the following local rules of the Court of Common Pleas of Allegheny County, Pennsylvania, Civil Division, adopted by the Board of Judges, shall be effective thirty (30) days after publication in the Pennsylvania Bulletin.

By the Court

#### KIM BERKELEY CLARK, President Judge

#### Rules Governing Abandoned and Blighted Properties Conservatorship Act under Title 68 P.S. § 1101 et seq.

#### Rule 701. Initiation of Conservatorship Action.

(1) A conservatorship action is commenced and assigned a CS docket number by the filing of a Petition for the Appointment of a Conservator ("Petition") with the Department of Court Records and payment of the applicable filing fee.

(2) The petitioner must file a notice of filing of the petition with the Department of Court Records after filing the petition for appointment of a conservator. (See Form 703, Notice of Filing of a Petition for the Appointment of a Conservator.)

(3) The petitioner must file a practice for lis pendens with the Department of Court Records for indexing against the property, and a lis pendens with the Department of Real Estate. *Note*: The Judge has the discretion to remove the lis pendens.

(4) A copy of the petition filed with the Department of Court Records must be submitted to conservatorship calendar@alleghenycourts.us to receive a hearing date.

(5) The petition must be filed by an eligible "party in interest" as defined in 68 P.S. § 1103 of the Abandoned and Blighted Properties Conservatorship Act, 68 P.S. § 1101 et seq. ("the Act"). *Note*: The Abandoned and Blighted Property Conservatorship Act provides a mechanism to transform abandoned and blighted properties into productive reuse by authorizing the filing of a petition with the Court of Common Pleas by certain named interested parties seeking the appointment of a Conservator who will be authorized to take possession of the property, undertake its rehabilitation, and as appropriate, ultimately sell the premises unless reclaimed by the owner(s).

# Rule 702. Contents of Petition for Appointment of Conservator.

(1) The petition must name as respondent(s) the owner(s) of the property at issue.

*Note*: The petitioner must undertake a substantial examination of the public record to determine all parties who may be deemed an owner and not merely rely on the last recorded deed.

(2) The petition must contain the following:

(a) The identity and addresses of all lienholders and other secured creditors of the owners, including judgment creditors of owners;

(b) Street address of the property, including ZIP Code, extended ZIP Code, and tax parcel ID (block and lot number);

(c) Proof that the proposed conservator is entitled to appointment pursuant to sections 1103, 1105(e), and 1111 of the Act;

*Note*: The Court may request but is not limited to the following: a copy of the title report; a copy of any citations for municipal code violations; a copy of any citations declaring the structure a public nuisance; an affidavit supporting the petitioner's qualifications as a "party in interest"; an affidavit of one or more neighbors on their firsthand knowledge of the vacancy and physical condition of the property; an affidavit outlining the petitioner's intent with the property, including whether the property will be designated for affordable housing; and/or an affidavit of one or more neighbors on whether appointment of a conservator would benefit the property.

(d) A sworn statement that, to the best of the petitioner's knowledge, the property meets the conditions for conservatorship set forth within Section 1105(d) of the Act;

(e) A proposed Order of Court; and

(f) A notice of filing of a petition for the appointment of a conservator. (See Form 703, Notice of Filing of a Petition for the Appointment of a Conservator.)

(3) In addition to the items identified in subparagraph (2) of this Rule, a non-profit acting as petitioner shall attach the following:

(a) Proof that the nonprofit is operated within Allegheny County;

(b) Proof that the nonprofit is eligible to receive a Certificate of Good Standing from the Pennsylvania Department of State; and

(c) Proof that the nonprofit has passed a resolution authorizing the filing of the petition, and if seeking to serve as conservator, proof that it is authorized to perform all of the duties required of a conservator

(4) A petitioner (other than a nonprofit corporation acting as a petitioner) shall attach proof that the petitioner is located within the 2,000 feet of the subject property.

#### Rule 703. Notification and Service of the Petition.

(1) The petitioner shall conspicuously post the Notice of the Filing of the Petition, including the Allegheny County docket number, the Order and the hearing date, on the subject property pursuant to Section 1104(d)(1) of the Act. The Notice of the Filing of the Petition shall be substantially in the form set forth below (See FORM 703).

(2) A copy of the Notice and Petition, including all exhibits, shall be served pursuant to the Act on the following individuals and entities:

(a) The owner(s) of the subject property;

(b) The solicitor of the municipality (political subdivision) in which the subject property is located;

(c) The Allegheny County Law Department (445 Fort Pitt Blvd # 300, Pittsburgh PA 15219);

(d) All municipal authorities known to have provided service to the subject property; and

(e) All lienholders.

v.

(3) Except as set forth in subsection (a) below, service shall be made by registered or certified mail to each of the above individuals and entities at their last known address. If service cannot be completed by registered or certified mail, service must be completed in accordance with Section 1104(d)(2-5) of the Act.

(a) Service may be effectuated by email upon any entity or individual that has agreed to accept service by email.

(4) Proof of service of the Notice and Petition shall be filed with the Department of Court Records. Proof of service shall include an executed affidavit of service by posting and one of the following:

(a) a signed return receipt of the certified or registered mail attached to an Affidavit of Service, or

(b) an executed affidavit of personal service if service is completed by personal service, or

(c) an affidavit filed by the serving party evidencing service by email pursuant to 3(a), or

 $\left( d\right)$  by a filed acceptance of service by the party served, or

(e) If service is made by alternative means pursuant to Order of Court, then proof of service shall be made pursuant to Pa.R.C.P. 430.

(5) FORM 703—Notice of Filing of a Petition for the Appointment of a Conservator

#### IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF ALLEGHENY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA CIVIL DIVISION

Petitioner,

No.: CS

Respondent.

#### NOTICE OF FILING OF

#### A PETITION FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF A CONSERVATOR

A petition has been filed under the Abandoned and Blighted Property Conservatorship Act, 68 P.S. §§ 1101—1111 (2008), for appointment of a Conservator to take possession of and rehabilitate the property located at:

\_ Block & Lot No.

A hearing on the Petition for the Appointment of a Conservator will be scheduled by the Court. As required by local rule, the Petitioner shall serve or mail a copy of this Notice, the Petition for the Appointment of a Conservator together with all exhibits, and a copy of the court order scheduling a hearing. A copy of this Notice (without the Petition for the Appointment of a Conservator, exhibits or court order) will also be posted at the property.

# YOU ARE RECEIVING THIS NOTICE BECAUSE PUBLIC RECORDS REVEAL THAT YOU MAY BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

Owner of Property at issue. If you are the record owner or an owner claiming a right to title to the premises and want to be heard in this matter, you must file an answer and appear at the hearing. If you do not file an answer, the court may proceed without you and you may lose your rights to the property. A conservator may be appointed to take possession of the property, incur expenses that will be a lien against the property, and sell the property. You will still be responsible for your obligations as the owner, including expenses incurred by the conservator.

Lienholder/Secured Creditors. If you are a lien holder or other secured creditor and want to be heard in this matter, you must file a petition to intervene and you may seek to be appointed as Conservator. If you do not file an answer, the court may proceed without you and you may lose your rights to the property. A conservator may be appointed to take possession of the property, incur expenses that will be a lien against the property, and sell the property. The conservator lien may have priority over your lien or other rights.

Allegheny County/ Political Subdivision/ Municipality. As a political subdivision in which the property is located, you may file a petition to intervene may seek to be appointed as the conservator.

You should take this paper to your lawyer at once. If you do not have a lawyer or cannot afford one, go to or telephone the office below to find out where you can get legal help.

Lawyer Referral Service Allegheny County Bar Association 400 Koppers Building 436 Seventh Avenue Pittsburgh, PA 15219 Telephone: (412) 261-5555 https://www.getapittsburghlawyer.com/

Lleve esta demanda a un abogado immediatamente. Si no tiene abogado o si tiene el dinero suficiente de pagar tal servicio, vaya en persona o llame por telefono a la oficina cuya direccionencuentra escrita abajo para averiguardonde se puede conseguir asistencia legal.

> El Servicio de la Referencia del abogado Asociación de Barra de Condado de Allegheny 400 Koppers Building 436 Seventh Avenue Pittsburgh, PA 15219 Telefónico: (412) 261-5555 https://www.getapittsburghlawyer.com/

*Note*: The above Notice of Filing should be conspicuously posted on the property, prominently displayed on the property using a sign affixed to a stake that is no less than four (4) feet in height and displayed prominently on the front of the physical dwelling if such a building exists.

# Rule 704. Answer to Petition and Petition to Intervene.

(1) A respondent may file an answer to the petition.

(2) A "party in interest" as defined by Section 1103 of the Act, seeking to intervene pursuant to Section 1105 of the Act, shall either file and serve a petition to intervene prior to the hearing date or attend the hearing.

(3) A party in interest may file a motion to schedule an expedited pretrial conference to address the facts at issue with the parties and the Court. The assigned Judge may schedule a pretrial conference prior to the scheduled hearing if the conference will not disrupt the scheduled conservatorship hearing date.

(4) A practice of appearance shall be filed and served on all parties for any attorney who intends to appear for or on behalf of a respondent or party in interest prior to the hearing for the appointment of the conservator.

#### Rule 705. Process for Scheduling a Hearing.

(1) To obtain a hearing date on a Conservatorship case, the requesting party must do the following:

(a) File a Motion to Obtain a Hearing with the Department of Court Records, and

(b) Submit the Motion to Obtain a Hearing to conservatorshipcalendar@alleghenycourts.us.

*Note:* The Motion to Obtain a Hearing will not need to be presented and argued unless oral argument is requested by any party in interest; it will be at the Court's discretion whether or not the hearing requested will be scheduled. If the Court has not acted on the Motion to Obtain a Hearing within twenty one (21) days, the Moving party is encouraged to email the conservatorshipcalendar@allegheny courts.us email inbox requesting that the Motion be ruled upon.

(2) This rule applies to any hearings related to the Act requested by any party in interest.

(3) Any Motion to Obtain a Hearing shall state clearly whether it is contested to the best of the filing party's knowledge at the time of the filing. *Note*: Identifying whether the Motion to Obtain a Hearing is contested may assist in determining whether a status conference or Rule to Show Cause hearing is necessary.

(4) An Order scheduling a Status Conference or Rule to Show Cause hearing following the filing and submission of the Motion to Obtain a Hearing will be filed with the Department of Court Records, and the Department of Court Records shall serve the Order upon the parties pursuant to Pa.R.C.P. 236.

(5) Any Motion to Obtain a Hearing filed pursuant to this Rule shall be served pursuant to Local Rule 703.

(6) Any Motion for Alternative Service shall be presented to the General Motions Judge pursuant to the procedures set forth in Local Rule 208.3(a). The Motion shall substantially include the following, consistent with Pa.R.C.P. 430:

(a) An affidavit stating the nature and extent of the investigation made to determine the whereabouts of the defendant and the reasons why service cannot be made. The affidavit shall set forth the movant's good faith effort to locate the respondent(s); good faith efforts include

i. Inquiries of postal authorities including inquiries pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, 39 C.F.R. Part 265;

ii. Inquiries of relatives, neighbors, friends, and employers of the respondent(s);

iii. Examinations of local telephone directories, courthouse records, voter registration records, local tax records, local assessment records, and motor vehicle records,

iv. A reasonable internet search;

v. Lexis Public Records search;

vi. Examination of the Allegheny County Orphan's Court/Registry of Wills for any estates filed on behalf of Respondent; and

vii. Search for any obituaries of respondent.

(b) A proposed order with the relief requested which includes posting and publication.

#### Rule 706. Hearing on Petition.

(1) The petitioner must produce the following evidence at the hearing:

(a) That the property meets the conditions for conservatorship set forth in Section 1105(d) of the Act;

(b) Evidence of standing;

 $(b)\ Proof of service that complies with these Local Rules, and$ 

(c) Schedule of encumbrances for certification under Section 11105(e)(1) of the Act.

(2) Any party in interest who appears at the hearing may be permitted to present evidence to support or contest the petition.

(3) The Court has discretion to permit a party in interest who has not filed an answer or other responsive pleading, including a petition to intervene, to do so or to postpone the hearing or permit said party in interest to participate in the hearing.

# Rule 707. Conditional Relief. Respondent's Request for Period to Abate Conditions.

If conditional relief is granted to permit the owner(s) a specified amount of time to remedy or remedy the conditions, the owner(s) must post a straight bond with the Allegheny County Department of Court Records per Section 1105(f)(3) of the Act in the amount of the estimated costs of repair outlined within the petition for appointment of conservator, unless the Court orders otherwise.

#### Rule 708. Appointment of a Conservator.

If a conservator is appointed, the Order may set forth the powers, duties and obligations of the conservator, including requirements which must be met before the conservator may exercise any authorized powers and duties, such as securing any necessary bond and/or insurance and may also require the conservator, and any other individual(s) who must enter the premises to assist with the preparation of the final plan, to execute right of entry authorizations and provide certificates of additional insurance.

#### Rule 709. Declining Appointment as Conservator. Removal of Conservator.

(1) At any time, the conservator may decline the appointment as conservator, and the petitioner may propose another competent entity to be appointed as the new conservator by submitting a Motion to Remove and Replace Conservator to the assigned Judge. The Court will schedule a hearing on the motion to determine whether the proposed conservator meets the definition of a "competent entity" pursuant to Section 1103 of the Act.

(2) A conservator may be removed by the Court at any time upon the request of the conservator, or upon a motion by a party in interest alleging that the conservator is not carrying out its responsibilities.

(3) After a hearing, the Court may find the conservator to be incompetent and appoint a competent entity as conservator or the Court may terminate the conservatorship.

#### Rule 710. Filing of Final Plan.

(1) The petitioner may attach a proposed Final Plan for Abatement to the petition in lieu of a preliminary plan and the conservator may present the same at the initial conservatorship hearing.

(2) The Final Plan for Abatement must fully comply with Section 1106(b) of the Act and shall specifically set forth the scope of work to be performed, financing details, and other relevant terms.

(3) The Final Plan for Abatement may include a request to grant a lien or security interest with priority per Section 1108(b) of the Act and may also include a request to borrow funds to implement the Final Plan for Abatement.

*Note*: Although petitioners may attach a proposed Final Plan for Abatement to the petition in lieu of a preliminary plan, and may present that Final Plan for Abatement at the initial conservatorship hearing, such methods may not allow adequate time for interested parties, heirs and others to object, interplead, and/or participate in the litigation. Rarely will it be appropriate for a petitioner to request the entry of the Final Plan of Abatement at the initial conservatorship hearing due to the extreme relief the petitioner is seeking, which may be to terminate the property rights of another who may not yet have notice of the petition.

# Rule 711. Hearing on Final Plan and Court Approval.

(1) If a Final Plan for Abatement is not presented at the initial conservatorship hearing, the conservator shall file with the Department of Court Records and serve on the parties a Final Plan for Abatement no less than thirty (30) days prior to the Final Plan for Abatement hearing date.

(2) The conservator shall file a motion for a hearing on the Final Plan for Abatement with the Department of Court Records and serve said documents on all parties.

(3) To obtain a hearing date on the Final Plan for Abatement, the conservator shall follow the procedures set forth in Local Rule 705.

(4) If the proposed Final Plan for Abatement is denied, the conservator shall file an Amended Final Plan for Abatement, and comply with subsections (2) and (3) of this Local Rule to obtain a new hearing date. Once the Final Plan for Abatement is approved, no changes may be made unless authorized by the Court.

#### Rule 712. Status Reports.

The Court may require status reports at least annually from the date of the appointment of a conservator.

#### Rule 713. Filing of an Account.

Upon completion of the rehabilitation or demolition of the subject property, the conservator shall file a full account of all funds expended by the conservator. The account shall include a summary of actions taken by the conservator, and a detailed report verifying each of the items in the scope of work approved by the court was in fact completed and if it was not completed, the conservator shall provide sufficient justification for non-completion.

#### Rule 714. Conservator's Lien.

(1) The conservator shall file a motion to obtain a hearing on the conservator's lien with the Department of Court Records and serve said motion on all parties.

(2) To obtain a hearing date on the conservator's lien, the conservator shall follow the procedure set forth in Local Rule 705.

# Rule 715. Sale of Subject Property. Distribution of Proceeds.

(1) The conservator shall seek an Order to sell the property by submitting for an application for sale to the assigned Judge.

(a) The conservator is required to obtain at least one (1) fair market value appraisal of the subject property.

(b) The conservator must provide notice of the hearing in accordance with Local Rule 705.

(2) The conservator shall follow the procedures set forth in Local Rule 705 to obtain a hearing date on the application for sale.

#### Rule 716. Request for Special Relief.

(1) Any party in interest may request special relief during the pendency of a conservatorship action by filing a motion setting forth the special relief requested and following the procedures set forth in Local Rule 705.

#### Rule 717. Termination of Conservatorship.

(1) To terminate a conservatorship, a conservator or any party in interest may petition the Court pursuant to Local Rule 705.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-486. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# Title 255—LOCAL COURT RULES

#### **CLINTON COUNTY**

#### Crime Victim's Compensation Fund, Victim Witness Services; No. AD-4-2018; Correction

This notice corrects a Clinton County Court order previously published at 53 Pa.B. 1664 (March 25, 2023).

Paragraph 2 of the document was published incorrectly. Paragraph 2 should read as follows:

2. The assessment of the Crime Victim Services and Compensation Fee which was previously known as the Crime Victim's Compensation Fund and the Victim Witness Services Fund shall increase to a total of Two Hundred and 00/100 (\$200.00) Dollars unless otherwise ordered by this Court.

The remainder of the order is accurate as published. [Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-487. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DISCIPLINARY BOARD OF THE SUPREME COURT

#### Notice of Disbarment

Notice is hereby given that Steven B. Fabrizio, (# 64656), having been disbarred in the District of Columbia Court of Appeals, the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania issued an Order March 31, 2023, disbarring Steven B. Fabrizio, from the Bar of this Commonwealth, effective April 30, 2023.

In accordance with Rule 217(f), Pa.R.D.E., since this formerly admitted attorney resides outside of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, this notice is published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

MARCEE D. SLOAN, Board Prothonotary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-488. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DISCIPLINARY BOARD OF THE SUPREME COURT

#### Notice of Disbarment

Notice is hereby given that Jeffery R. Price, (# 55707), having been disbarred in the State of Utah, the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania issued an Order March 31, 2023, disbarring Jeffery R. Price, from the Bar of this Commonwealth, effective April 30, 2023.

In accordance with Rule 217(f), Pa.R.D.E., since this formerly admitted attorney resides outside of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, this notice is published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

#### MARCEE D. SLOAN, Board Prothonotary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-489. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# **PROPOSED RULEMAKING**

# **INSURANCE DEPARTMENT**

#### [31 PA. CODE CH. 89]

#### Preparation of Forms

The Insurance Department (Department) proposes to amend Chapter 89 (relating to approval of life, accident and health insurance) to read as set forth in Annex A. This rulemaking is proposed under the Department's general rulemaking authority as set forth in sections 206, 506, 1501 and 1502 of The Administrative Code of 1929 (71 P.S. §§ 66, 186, 411 and 412), section 314 of the Accident and Health Filing Reform Act (40 P.S. § 3801.314) and the Department's rulemaking authority under the Unfair Insurance Practices Act (40 P.S. §§ 1171.1—1171.15). See *PALU v. Insurance Department*, 371 A.2d 564 (Pa. Cmwlth. 1977) (further explaining the Insurance Commissioner's authority to promulgate regulations under the Unfair Insurance Practices Act).

#### Background and Purpose

This proposed rulemaking, as set forth in Annex A, will allow for the voluntary collection of demographic data, including questions related to race and ethnicity when certain criteria are met. Specifically, the proposed amendment to § 89.12 (relating to application forms) will allow insurers to collect data that will help them develop better tools to address inequities in life, accident and health insurance coverage. Moreover, this proposed amendment will be consistent with Federal and State efforts to address equity issues across society generally. For example, at the Federal level, the 2023 Notice of Benefit and Payment Parameters takes significant steps toward requiring health insurers to collect race and ethnicity data; beginning with the 2025 benefit year, health insurers will be required to collect it. Amending § 89.12(e) will allow the Commonwealth's health insurers to comply with this upcoming Federal requirement and remove an inconsistency between Federal and State provisions.

The provision, as currently written in § 89.12(e), addresses the inequities that were the focus of the landmark Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 2000a— 2000h-6), which prohibited "discrimination or segregation on the ground of race, color, religion or national origin." Following that National precedent, on July 1, 1969, the Department issued § 89.12 for application forms, including: "Questions as to race or color are not permitted on the application." See § 89.12(e).

In the 54 years since the 1969 issuance, society has continued to grapple with racial and ethnic equity issues. More recently, society has recognized that inequities can only be addressed if they are adequately identified. To identify those issues and measure improvement in addressing them, data is necessary. This proposed amendment will allow insurers to collect that data, if they choose, while continuing to prohibit insurers from using that data in an unfairly discriminatory manner. This is consistent with ongoing Federal initiatives outlined the 2023 Notice of Benefit and Payment Parameters and will allow the Commonwealth's regulations to remain consistent with Federal law.

#### Explanation of Regulatory Requirements

Proposed § 89.12(e) allows an insurer to include questions as to demographic factors, including race and ethnicity, on an application. Proposed § 89.12(e)(1) requires an application to clearly state that the disclosure is voluntary.

Proposed § 89.12(e)(2) requires any questions as to the data to include the following options verbatim: (i) Prefer Not to Answer; (ii) Other.

Proposed § 89.12(e)(3) requires an insurer to provide, at the time of application or when the data is collected, the prospective insured with a written statement including that the data will be maintained as private, that the data may not be used by the insurer for eligibility determinations, underwriting or rating purposes, and that the insurer may not deny an application based on the applicant's refusal to answer the questions related to demographic data on the application.

Proposed § 89.12(e)(4) requires an insurer to provide to the insured a written explanation as to why the data is being requested by the insurer and how the data will be used to support efforts to provide equitable coverage.

Proposed § 89.12(e)(5) requires the insurer to provide written attestation to the Department that the application, collection and use of demographic data meets Federal and State laws regarding unfair discrimination, including that the data is maintained as private, the data may not be used for eligibility determinations, underwriting or rating purposes, and that the insurer may not deny an application based on the applicant's refusal to answer the question related to demographic data on the application.

Proposed § 89.12(e)(6) requires the insurer to submit the written attestation set forth in proposed § 89.12(e)(5)by 180 days after the effective date of the final-form rulemaking, the date the product is filed or the date that there is a material change to the data collection process even if no filing is required.

Proposed § 89.12(f) states that an insurer is not required to collect demographic information, including race and ethnicity at the time of application or otherwise.

#### External Comments

The Department circulated an exposure draft similar to this proposed rulemaking to several industry participants including the Insurance Federation of Pennsylvania, Inc., the Pennsylvania Association of Mutual Insurance Companies and several health insurers. The exposure draft was circulated on October 11, 2022. The Department has also discussed this topic informally with industry members over approximately the last year. The Department considered all comments, responded to several questions and incorporated revisions to this proposed rulemaking based upon stakeholder feedback.

#### Affected Parties

This proposed rulemaking will affect foreign and domestic insurers that issue individual and group life, accident and health insurance contracts in this Commonwealth.

#### Fiscal Impact

#### State government

There will not be any fiscal impact to the Department as a result of this proposed rulemaking.

#### General public

This proposed rulemaking will have no fiscal impact upon the general public.

#### Political subdivisions

This proposed rulemaking will have no fiscal impact upon political subdivisions.

#### Private sector

This proposed rulemaking will have no fiscal impact upon the private sector, except for a possible minimal impact to the regulated entities who choose to collect the data.

#### Paperwork

This proposed rulemaking would impose minimal additional paperwork on the Department because it would be reviewing attestations and related information submitted by insurers choosing to collect the demographic data. The Department does not anticipate that this additional review will materially impact its regulatory activities.

#### Effective Date/Sunset Date

This proposed rulemaking will become effective immediately upon final-form publication in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. The Department continues to monitor the effectiveness of regulations on a triennial basis; therefore, no sunset date has been assigned.

#### Contact Person

Questions or comments regarding this proposed rulemaking may be addressed in writing to Eric Carlisle, Regulatory Coordinator, Insurance Department, 1341 Strawberry Square, Harrisburg, PA 17120, within 30 days following the publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. Questions and comments may also be e-mailed to ercarlisle@pa.gov or faxed to (717) 772-1969.

#### Regulatory Review

Under Section 5(a) of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5(a)), on April 4, 2023, the Department submitted a copy of this proposed rulemaking and a copy of a Regulatory Analysis Form to the Independent Regulatory Review Commission (IRRC) and to the Chairpersons of the House Insurance Committee and the Senate Banking and Insurance Committee. A copy of this material is available to the public upon request.

Under section 5(g) of the Regulatory Review Act, IRRC may convey any comments, recommendations or objections to the proposed rulemaking within 30 days of the close of the public comment period. The comments, recommendations or objections must specify the regulatory review criteria in section 5.2 of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5b) which have not been met. The Regulatory Review Act specifies detailed procedures for review, prior to final delivery of the rulemaking by the Department, the General Assembly and the Governor.

#### MICHAEL HUMPHREYS, Acting Insurance Commissioner

Fiscal Note: 11-261. No fiscal impact; recommends adoption.

#### Annex A

#### **TITLE 31. INSURANCE**

#### PART IV. LIFE INSURANCE

CHAPTER 89. APPROVAL OF LIFE, ACCIDENT AND HEALTH INSURANCE

#### Subchapter A. REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL POLICIES AND FORMS

#### PREPARATION OF FORMS

#### § 89.12. Application forms.

(a) When submitting a policy form to which a copy of the application will be attached when the policy is issued,

a copy of the application shall be attached to the policy form. If the form of the application has already been approved, the form number and date of approval shall be shown either on the form or in the transmittal letter.

(b) If it is the practice of the insurer to attach a reduced size reproduction of the application to a form when issued, the application should be attached to each copy of the form submitted. The application should be legibly reproduced in the size to be used in the contract.

(c) An application which includes a provision for home office endorsements or corrections may not be approved for use unless it is specifically stipulated therein that a change may not be made in the amount of insurance, the age at issue, the plan of insurance or benefits applied for by the endorsements or corrections. This subsection does not apply to group applications.

(d) Applications shall contain clear and direct questions by the insurer permitting answers by the applicant only in the form of direct statements of known facts. Applications may not contain questions or representations based on indefinite or ambiguous terms or which are inconsistent with policy provisions and may not require the making of warranties by the applicant.

(e) [Questions as to race or color are not permitted on the application.] <u>An insurer may include</u> <u>questions as to demographic factors, including race</u> <u>and ethnicity, on an application subject to all of the</u> following:

(1) The application clearly states that the disclosure of the data is voluntary.

(2) Questions as to the data include the following answer options verbatim:

(i) Prefer Not to Answer.

(ii) Other.

(3) At the time of application or when the data is collected, the insurer provides to the insured a written statement that contains the following information:

(i) The data will be maintained as private.

(ii) The data may not be used by the insurer for eligibility determinations, underwriting or rating purposes.

(iii) The insurer may not deny an application based on the applicant's refusal to answer the questions related to demographic data on the application.

(4) At the time of application or when the data is collected, the insurer provides a written explanation to the insured regarding all of the following:

(i) Why the data is being requested by the insurer.

(ii) How the data will support efforts to provide equitable coverage.

(5) The insurer provides a written attestation to the Department that the insurer's application, collection and use of data meets Federal and State law regarding unfair discrimination, including all of the following:

(i) The insured's data is maintained as private.

(ii) The insured's data may not be used by the insurer for eligibility determinations, underwriting or rating purposes. (iii) The insurer may not deny an application based on the applicant's refusal to answer the questions related to demographic data on the application.

(6) The insurer shall provide the written attestation in paragraph (5) for each product by the following dates:

(i) (The blank refers to the date 180 days following the effective date of the final-form rulemaking), for products in existence as of the effective date of this regulation.

(ii) The date the product is filed.

(iii) The date that there is a material change to the application or data collection process, even if not required to be filed.

(f) Nothing in this subsection may be construed to require an insurer to collect demographic information, including race and ethnicity data, at the time of application or otherwise.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-490. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# FISH AND BOAT COMMISSION

#### [ 58 PA. CODE CH. 63 ]

#### Fishing; General Fishing Regulations

The Fish and Boat Commission (Commission) proposes to amend Chapter 63 (relating to general fishing regulations). The Commission is publishing this proposed rulemaking under the authority of 30 Pa.C.S. (relating to Fish and Boat Code) (code). The proposed amendment updates the Commission's regulations pertaining to the fees of fishing licenses and permits.

#### A. Effective Date

This proposed rulemaking, if approved on final-form rulemaking, will go into effect on December 1, 2023.

#### B. Contact Person

For further information on this proposed rulemaking, contact Robert T. Caccese, Esq., P.O. Box 67000, Harrisburg, PA 17106-7000, (717) 705-7810. This proposed rulemaking is available on the Commission's web site at www.fishandboat.com.

#### C. Statutory Authority

The proposed amendment to § 63.57 (relating to license, permit and issuing agent fees) is published under the statutory authority of section 322.1 of the code (relating to power to set fees).

#### D. Purpose and Background

The specific purpose and background of the proposed amendment is described in more detail under the summary of proposal.

#### E. Summary of Proposal

The Commonwealth's fishing and boating programs are paid for by anglers and boaters through the User pays, User Benefits Model, primarily from the sale of fishing licenses, permits and boat registrations.

The Commission has two legislatively authorized special funds: the Fish Fund and Boat Fund. These funds receive money mainly from fishing license and permit fees, boat registration fees, fines and penalties, tax refunds of motorboat fuel and Federal funds.

By far, the largest source of revenue for the Fish Fund is from fishing license and permit fees, and these fees account for more than 67% of Fish Fund revenues.

Commission staff regularly monitor the status and fiscal health of the Fish Fund to ensure that adequate funds are available to maintain and support programs designed to meet the expectations of anglers and other users of this Commonwealth's aquatic resources.

An adjustment to the fees for fishing licenses and permits is needed to cope with inflationary pressures, maintain and improve existing programs, and to address and meet anglers and boaters' desires for:

• Strategic and timely fisheries management to protect, conserve and enhance the aquatic resources of this Commonwealth.

• Critical infrastructure improvements and maintenance efforts for State fish hatcheries, hazardous dams, boat launch access areas and ramps, and other Commission-owned facilities to improve and maintain fishing opportunities.

• Upgrades and replacement of equipment, vehicles and watercraft for customer and employee safety and for sustained service delivery.

• Aquatic resource field and classroom education and angler information programs.

• Conservation law enforcement.

• Maintaining operations and offsetting inflationary and supply chain constraint costs.

If new revenues are not in place for the 2024 license year, the Commission will not be able to maintain adequate levels of services to this Commonwealth's anglers, let alone respond to anglers' desires for expanded efforts in many program areas.

To maintain adequate funding to sustain these important programs and invest in the future, the Commission is seeking a modest fee increase for all fishing license and permit categories as shown in the following table:

	Fee		
License Category	Current	Charge	Proposed
Resident Annual	\$23.50	\$2.50	\$26
Nonresident Annual	\$55	\$4	\$59
Senior Resident Annual	\$11.25	\$1.25	\$12.50
Senior Resident Lifetime	\$75	\$10	\$85

	Fee		
License Category	Current	Charge	Proposed
3-Day Tourist	\$27.50	\$2.50	\$30
7-Day Tourist	\$35	\$2.50	\$37.50
1-Day Resident	\$11.25	\$1.25	\$12.50
1-Day Tourist	\$27.50	\$2.50	\$30
Trout Permit	\$10.50	\$2.50	\$13
Trout/Lake Erie Permit	\$16.50	\$2.50	\$19

#### F. Paperwork

This proposed rulemaking will not increase paperwork and will not create new paperwork requirements.

#### G. Fiscal Impact

This proposed rulemaking will have no adverse fiscal impact on the Commonwealth or its political subdivisions. This proposed rulemaking will increase fees for license and permit buyers as outlined in the summary of proposal.

#### H. Public Comments

Interested persons are invited to submit written comments, objections or suggestions about this proposed rulemaking to the Executive Director, Fish and Boat Commission, P.O. Box 67000, Harrisburg, PA 17106-7000, within 30 days after publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. Comments submitted by facsimile will not be accepted.

Comments also may be submitted electronically to RA-pfbcregulations@pa.gov. Electronic comments submitted in any other manner will not be accepted.

TIMOTHY D. SCHAEFFER, Executive Director

(*Editor's Note*: See 53 Pa.B. 2150 (April 15, 2023) for a notice relating to this proposed rulemaking.)

**Fiscal Note:** 48A-343. No fiscal impact; recommends adoption.

### Annex A TITLE 58. RECREATION PART II. FISH AND BOAT COMMISSION

#### Subpart B. FISHING

#### **CHAPTER 63. GENERAL FISHING REGULATIONS**

#### § 63.57. License, permit and issuing agent fees.

(a) *License fees.* The following fees apply to fishing licenses issued under this chapter and shall be paid into the Fish Fund:

(1) Resident Annual Fishing License, [\$23.50] \$26.

(2) Senior Resident Annual Fishing License, [ \$11.25 ] \$12.50.

(3) Senior Resident Lifetime Fishing License, [ \$75 ] \$85.

(4) Nonresident Annual Fishing License, [\$55] \$59.

(5) Seven-Day Tourist Fishing License, [ \$35 ] \$37.50.

(6) Three-Day Tourist Fishing License, [ \$27.50 ] \$30.

(7) One-Day Resident Fishing License, [ \$11.25 ] \$12.50.

(8) One-Day Tourist Fishing License, [\$27.50] \$30.

(b) *Permit fees.* The following fees apply to permits issued under this chapter and shall be paid into the Fish Fund:

(1) Trout permits, **[ \$10.50 ]** <u>\$13</u>.

(2) Combination trout permit and Lake Erie permit, **[ \$16.50 ]** <u>\$19</u>.

(c) *Effective date*. The fees imposed under subsections (a) and (b) are effective beginning December [ **31, 2022** ] **1, 2023**.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-491. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# **DEPARTMENT OF AGING**

#### Pennsylvania Long-Term Care Council April Meeting Location Update

The Pennsylvania Long-Term Care Council's meetings for 2023 will be held as a hybrid option at the Office of Administration, Health and Human Services Delivery Center, 2525 North 7th Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110. The start time will remain at 10 a.m. Persons wishing to attend the meetings are asked to contact Sasha Santana, Executive Secretary, (717) 787-3368, ra-ailtcc@pa.gov. The 2023 dates are as follows:

April 13, 2023 June 8, 2023 August 10, 2023 October 12, 2023 December 14, 2023

Individuals in need of accommodations as provided for in the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 should contact Sasha Santana, Executive Secretary, (717) 787-3368, ra-ailtcc@pa.gov.

> JASON KAVULICH, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-492. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

#### **Agricultural Research Grant Applications**

The Department of Agriculture (Department) is soliciting applications to conduct agricultural research on one or more of the following research topic areas, with the research to be conducted from July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2025, with the possibility, but not the assurance, of extending that research into subsequent years. Funding is contingent upon 2023-2024 budget appropriations. This notice establishes the procedures by which grant applications will be solicited and reviewed, and by which grants will be awarded.

1. *Grant Solicitation*. The Department will accept grant applications for the purposes, in the form and according to the schedule set forth as follows. Following publication, additional publication and dissemination of this notice shall be made to applicants who have previously submitted grant applications to or received grants from the Department, as well as any individuals or entities who have requested notification from the Department of grant availability.

2. *Research Topic Areas*. Though not exclusive of original research topics, the Department is particularly interested in funding projects in the following areas:

a. Ongoing multiyear research projects. The Department has, in previous years, provided funding for various multiyear research projects that might be continued or extended to complete research the Department identifies as addressing continued priorities of the agricultural industry, such as:

• Examining the economic impact of pest infestations like Phorid Flies and Spotted Lanternflies and identifying mitigating measures.

• Measuring the impacts on the Chesapeake Bay of farm management practices that have not received Federal or State government cost-sharing assistance.

• Implementing Chapter 5 of the Pennsylvania Pollinator Protection Plan (see https://ento.psu.edu/pollinators/ pollin-spotlight-items/the-pennsylvania-pollinatorprotection-plan-p4).

b. Natural resource conservation, climate and the quality of our soil, water and air. The Department is seeking new proposals that address agriculture's role in stewarding natural resources and innovations in combatting and adapting to climate change. Specifically, the Department requests applications for projects that:

• Provide ongoing water quality monitoring in highpriority streams identified in version 3 of the Chesapeake Bay Watershed Implementation Plan.

• Provide ongoing air quality monitoring around highpriority production areas, particularly mushroom facilities in Chester and Berks Counties.

• Quantify the benefits to soil health, carbon sequestration and climate change resiliency from best management practices in conservation. (For example, functional buffers, cover crops, no-till and the like.)

• Quantify economic benefits and reductions in carbon emissions through on-farm energy efficiency measures.

• Identify opportunities with Agrivoltaics such as gaps, barriers, implementation of panels modified to support agriculture in this Commonwealth.

• Integrate silvopasture and other agro-forestry revenue streams into dairy, livestock or poultry farms.

• Identify soil testing and remediation strategies for urban agriculture, particularly how these strategies can be operationalized, their benefits measured and the cost of implementation.

• Assess the adoption and implementation of best management practices by farmers that are part of conservation plans to ensure compliance and appropriate credit is received.

• Identify and determine the applicability and effectiveness of nutrient management technologies to assist the Commonwealth in assessing the utility of various approaches.

• Assess relationships among reclaimed land, biosolid applications and water quality.

• Identify strategies for invasive species management.

• Manure Treatment Technology impact and options for increasing manure mitigation or other revenue opportunities.

• Assess alterative methods to preserving prime agricultural lands in this Commonwealth.

• Development of sustainable methods for production of nursery and greenhouse plants.

c. *Human resources in agriculture*. The Department is interested in further scientific study in areas such as:

• Assessing the availability, success and outlook for apprenticeships, preapprenticeships and other on-the-job training opportunities within agriculture.

• Assessing the quantity and quality of available onfarm and off-farm housing for agricultural workers, including farm owners.

d. *Consumer-focused research*. The Department seeks applications that study consumer focused research in:

• Biodegradable packaging and other environmental factors in selecting food and beverage products.

• Pharmaceutical or industrial uses for milk proteins or other milk components.

• The Emergency Food Assistance Program analysis.

• Food product manufacturing and processing industry.

• Economic impact of agriculture trade in this Commonwealth and opportunities for agriculture.

• Economic opportunities for Hard Cider in this Commonwealth.

• Barriers to land access, particularly for Black, Indigenous and people of color farmers and in rural communities.

• Economic impact of county and local fairs in this Commonwealth.

• *PA Preferred*—Marketing strategic analysis to determine best practices, strengths and weaknesses in efforts to promote to consumers and potential members.

e. Animals and agriculture. The Department seeks applications that address animal health concerns, such as:

• One Health—Proposals that promote humans, the environment, animals, living together harmoniously.

• Animal Health—Proposals that improve or seek to understand aspects of animal health important to agriculture in this Commonwealth.

• *Diagnosis of Animal Diseases*—Proposals that promote the diagnosis of animal diseases that are important to Commonwealth animal agriculture.

• Animal Productivity—Proposals that seek to improve the productivity of agricultural animals in this Commonwealth.

• Animal Welfare—Proposals that seek to improve the welfare of agricultural animals in this Commonwealth.

• Assess the status of High Path Avian Influenza vaccine development and deployment on the poultry industry in this Commonwealth.

• Review and recommend Federal Milk Marketing Order recommendations that would be most beneficial to the dairy industry in this Commonwealth.

• Review and recommend collection and distribution changes to the Milk Marketing Board Over Order Premium that would be most adventitious to the dairy industry in this Commonwealth.

• Chronic Wasting Disease strategy development to reduce incidents or live animal test development, or both.

f. Technology and innovation.

• Assess the application and deployment of augmented reality on animal and plant industries in this Common-wealth.

3. Application Delivery and Deadline. Interested applicants must submit a complete electronic research project proposal and grant application using the Department of Community and Economic Development's Electronic Single Application web site at https://www.esa.dced.state. pa.us/Login.aspx by Monday, May 15, 2023, at 5 p.m. Questions regarding this online application process may be directed to Morgan Sheffield, Grants Coordinator for the Department of Agriculture, at (717) 787-3568.

4. Scoring of Applications. The Department will evaluate each complete and timely-filed project proposal and grant application it receives, using a 100-point scale assessing:

• Up to 15 points for the research project needs statement.

• Up to 15 points for the impact of research outcomes, including enhancement of diversity, equity and inclusion.

• Up to 30 points for the research methodology.

• Up to 10 points for project evaluation and replicability.

• Up to 20 points for support and participation from industry.

• Up to 10 points for diversity of the research team.

5. *Scores.* Upon completion of evaluations, the Department will prepare a record identifying each complete and timely-filed project proposal and grant application received and the numerical score assigned to each. The Department shall award grants based upon its evaluation and scoring.

6. Multiyear Projects or Extensions. The Department may award grant funding for multiyear projects or provide an extension of time to complete an ongoing project, if the Department identifies that a multiyear term or an extension advances the Department's objectives and the grant's likelihood of achieving its stated goals. Requests for extensions of ongoing projects shall be made, evaluated and processed in accordance with all the requirements of this notice.

7. *Notice of Award*. Applicants shall be notified by mail of the decision on their grant applications by the Department. Best efforts will be made to do so within 60 days of the application deadline.

8. Grant Agreement. With the mailed grant award notice, the Department will provide applicants with a grant agreement for execution and return within 30 days or instructions as to finalizing the grant agreement electronically. The Department will obtain the required Commonwealth signatures on the grant agreements and return a copy of the fully-executed grant agreement to the applicant. The grant agreement is not effective, and work should not begin until all required signatures have been applied to the grant agreement. Among the terms of the grant agreement shall be a requirement that the grant recipient provide the Department full and complete access to all records relating to the performance of the project and submit such information as the Department may require.

9. Nonmatching Cost-Reimbursable Grant. Grants made hereunder do not require the applicant secure or devote a matching sum to the project, but outside funding may be considered as an evaluation criterion under section 5 of this solicitation. Payment of grant funds will occur on a reimbursement basis, with the possibility upon the written submission of justification and subsequent approval of the Department of an advance payment option.

10. Allowable Indirect Cost Reimbursement. Grants made hereunder are subject to an indirect cost cap of 15% of total direct project costs. For the purpose of this research grant funding solicitation, indirect costs shall include administrative salaries and benefits, office supplies and equipment, facility related cost including maintenance and repairs, telephones, memberships/dues, freight/postage cost and any consultant related costs associated with the administration of this research grant.

11. Reporting Requirements. Upon completion of research projects funded through this program, grant recipients will submit to the Department within 60 days a final report detailing the nature of the questions under study, an explanation of the research design and methods, findings of the research and recommendations for future study.

RUSSELL REDDING,

Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-493. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

#### **Bureau of Ride and Measurement Standards**

#### Order

Section 1. Purpose; Authority; Duration.

This Order is a temporary order establishing training and certification requirements and procedures for persons seeking to become certified parking meter inspectors. The Pennsylvania Department of Agriculture has lawful authority to issue a temporary order under Section 4415(b) of the Consolidated Weights and Measures Act (3 Pa.C.S. § 4115(b)).

This Order is effective as of April 25, 2023 and shall remain in effect until April 25, 2024.

Section 2. Definitions.

The following word and terms, when used in this order, have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

Act—The Consolidated Weights and Measures Act, 3 Pa.C.S. §§ 4101—4194.

*Certified parking meter inspector* or *CPMI*—An individual who is certified by the Department of Agriculture to inspect and certify the accuracy of parking meters.

Department—The Department of Agriculture of the Commonwealth.

Section 3. Certified parking meter inspector.

(a) *General.* A person may apply to the Department to be designated a certified parking meter inspector ("CPMI") for purposes of the Act and this order.

(b) Authority. A CPMI may inspect and certify the accuracy of parking meters as required by the Act.

(c) *Fees.* A CPMI may charge a fee for inspection and testing services.

#### Section 4. Certification standards.

A person seeking a CPMI certificate from the Department shall do the following:

(1) Successfully complete an approved training course as described in Section 5 (relating to training courses).

(2) Pass a Department-administered or Departmentapproved written test by a score of at least 70%. (3) Possess or have access to field standards and test equipment as necessary to inspect, determine and certify the accuracy of parking meters, as required under the Act.

(4) Comply with the application requirements described in Section 7 (relating to applying for CPMI certification) and other requirements of this order.

(5) Be at least 18 years of age.

#### Section 5. Training courses.

(a) Department-administered courses and Departmentapproved courses. The Department-administered parking meter certification training course meets the requirements of subsection (b) and is an approved training course. The Department will approve additional parking meter certification training courses that meet the application and course-content requirements of this Section.

(b) *Training course; hours and content.* A Departmentapproved parking meter certification training course shall consist of a minimum of four (4) hours of instruction, with at least two (2) hours of classroom training and at least two (2) hours of hands-on training. The training course shall cover the following topics:

 $\left(1\right)$  Basic operation of mechanical and digital parking meters.

 $\left(2\right)$  Determination and use of appropriate field standards.

(3) Familiarization with documentation requirements.

(4) Inspection and testing procedures.

(5) Noting deficiencies and reporting results.

(c) Application for approval by Department. A person seeking the Department's approval of a parking meter certification training course shall apply in writing to the Department and provide the following:

(1) A course outline.

(2) A description of the subject matter to be addressed in each component of the course, addressing the course topic requirements set forth in subsection (a).

(3) The name and background information of each course instructor, a description of the subject matter to be addressed by that instructor and information to demonstrate the familiarity of the instructor with that subject matter.

(4) A list of the dates, times and locations at which the training course is to be presented.

(5) A copy of the proposed written test, together with a copy of the answer key.

(6) Verification that the person conducting the course shall issue a certificate of completion to any person who successfully completes the course, and shall promptly report the results of the testing required under Section 4, Paragraph (2) (relating to certification standards), above, in writing to the Department.

(7) Such other information as the Department may reasonably require.

(d) Obtaining the list of current approved training courses. The Department will provide a current list of approved training courses upon request, and will maintain a copy of the current list on its internet website at www.agriculture.pa.gov.

(e) *Effect of addition of a course to list of courses.* If a training course is added to the list described in subsection (d), a person who has successfully completed that course

within six (6) months preceding the date the Department approved the course will be deemed to have successfully completed an approved training course as described in Section 4, Paragraph 1 (relating to certification standards). That person must also meet the requirements of Section 4, Paragraphs (2), (3), (4) and (5) in order to be designated a CPMI.

#### Section 6. Audit by Department.

The Department may attend and audit an approved training course to ascertain whether the course is conducted in accordance with the Act and this order. A person offering or conducting an approved training course shall, at least 7 days in advance of conducting the course, mail or deliver to the Department written notification of the date, time and location of the training course. A person offering or conducting an approved training course shall allow the Department's auditors entry to the program and provide copies of course materials.

#### Section 7. Applying for CPMI certification.

(a) Application required. A person who has successfully completed a Department-administered or Departmentapproved parking meter certification training course may apply to the Department for a CPMI certificate. Certification is granted through issuance of the certificate described in Section 8 (relating to CPMI certificate).

(b) Form of application. A person seeking certification under the Act may obtain an application form from the Department using the contact information provided in Section 14 (relating to contacting the Department). The applicant shall complete the form and return it to that same address. The application form shall require the following information:

(1) The name, mailing address and birth date of the person seeking a certificate.

(2) The name, location and date of completion of any approved training course completed by the person seeking a certificate.

(3) A copy of any certificate of completion with respect to the approved training course.

(4) A detailed description of the equipment the person seeking the CPMI certificate will use in conducting parking meter inspections, including applicable verifications of accuracy, inspection records and other documentation demonstrating the equipment is accurate and in working order.

(5) The date of the application.

(6) Other information the Department might reasonably require.

(c) Departmental action on application. The Department will, within 30 days of receiving an application, mail the applicant a certificate, a disapproval notice or a request for additional clarification or documentation. If the Department requests additional clarification or documentation, its review and consideration of the application will cease until the requested material is received, from which time the 30-day review period shall begin again.

#### Section 8. CPMI certificate.

(a) *CPMI certificate*. The Department will provide a CPMI a CPMI certificate.

(b) *Contents of CPMI certificate*. A CPMI certificate will bear the following information:

(1) The name of the person to whom it is issued.

(2) The date of issuance.

(3) A unique identification number.

(4) A statement that the Department has determined the person identified on the certificate to be a "CPMI" with respect to parking meters.

(5) Other information the Department might reasonably include.

(c) *Ownership of CPMI certificate*. A CPMI certificate issued by the Department will remain the property of the Department. A CPMI or other person having physical possession of a certified parking meter certificate shall, upon written notice from the Department, surrender and return the certificate to the Department.

(d) Obligation to produce CPMI certificate for inspection. A CPMI shall produce the CPMI certificate for inspection upon demand by the Department or any person on whose behalf the CPMI is performing the inspection or test.

#### Section 9. Expiration of CPMI certificate.

A CPMI certificate will remain valid unless or until five (5) years or more elapse between consecutive parking meter inspections by the CPMI to whom the CPMI certificate is issued, or unless the CPMI certificate is suspended or revoked in accordance with the procedures in Section 12 (relating to suspension or revocation of certification).

#### Section 10. Obtaining a new CPMI certificate.

(a) No renewals: new certificate required. The Department will not renew a CPMI certificate or extend the expiration date of a certificate. A person shall, instead, apply for and obtain a new CPMI certificate in accordance with Section 7 (relating to applying for CPMI certification) to be issued a successor CPMI certificate.

(b) *Training course*. A person who is applying for a CPMI certificate shall have successfully completed a training course as described in Section 5 (relating to training courses) within six (6) months of the date of the application form.

#### Section 11. Inspection and testing by the Department.

(a) Random inspection and testing. The Department may conduct random inspection and testing of parking meters that have been inspected and tested by a CPMI to determine whether the CPMI conducted the inspection and testing in accordance with the Act and this order.

(b) *Inspections generally*. In addition to the random inspection and testing described in subsection (a), the Department may conduct inspection and testing of any parking meter that has been inspected and tested by a CPMI.

(c) *Time lapse affecting results*. In evaluating the inspection and testing performed by the CPMI, the Department will consider any lapse of time between an inspection performed by the Department and the inspection performed by the CPMI.

(d) *Reporting of results*. Within 30 days following a random inspection, the Department will mail the CPMI written notice of the inspection and the results of that inspection.

(e) Use of results. The Department may use the results of its inspection and testing to suspend or revoke the certificate of a CPMI in accordance with Section 12 (relating to suspension or revocation of certification), or as the basis for a warning or instruction directed to the CPMI.

#### Section 12. Suspension or revocation of certification.

(a) *Basis for action*. The Department may suspend or revoke a CPMI certificate if the CPMI does one or more of the following:

- (1) Violates a provision of this order.
- (2) Violates a provision of the Act.

(3) Intentionally or fraudulently reports inaccurate information on an inspection report form.

(4) Is found, following inspection and testing by the Department in accordance with Section 11 (relating to inspection and testing by the Department), to have inaccurately, improperly or incompetently performed testing and inspections of parking meters issued.

(b) *Notice*. The Department will provide a CPMI with written notice of its intention to suspend or revoke certification, which will afford the CPMI notice and opportunity for an administrative hearing before the Department prior to the effective date of the suspension or revocation.

(c) *Delivery of notice*. The Department will deliver the notice described in subsection (b) to the affected CPMI by personal service or by regular mail to the address provided by the CPMI on his application for a certificate under Section 7 (relating to applying for CPMI certification), or to the address most recently provided to the Department in writing by the CPMI as the address to which notices should be sent.

#### Section 13. CPMI list.

(a) *CPMI list to be maintained.* The Department will maintain a current CPMI list containing the following information with respect to each CPMI:

- (1) Name and address.
- (2) Telephone number.
- (3) Fax number (if available).

 $\left(4\right)$  The unique identification number of the CPMI's certificate.

(b) *Distribution of copies*. The Department will provide a copy of the current CPMI list upon request.

Section 14. Contacting the Department.

For purposes of this order, a person may contact the Department at the following address:

Department of Agriculture Bureau of Ride and Measurement Standards 2301 North Cameron Street Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17110-9408 Telephone Number: (717) 787-9089 FAX Number: (717) 783-4158

This Order shall be effective April 25, 2023.

RUSSELL REDDING,

Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-494. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF BANKING AND SECURITIES

#### Actions on Applications

The Department of Banking and Securities (Department), under the authority in the Banking Code of 1965 (7 P.S. §§ 101—2204), the Department of Banking and Securities Code (71 P.S. §§ 733-1—733-1203) and 17 Pa.C.S. (relating to Credit Union Code), has taken the following actions on applications received for the week ending April 4, 2023.

Under section 503.E of the Department of Banking and Securities Code (71 P.S. § 733-503.E), any person wishing to comment on the following applications, with the exception of branch applications, may file comments in writing with the Department of Banking and Securities, Bank Supervision or Credit Union and Trust Supervision (as applicable), 17 North Second Street, Suite 1300, Harrisburg, PA 17101-2290. Comments must be received no later than 30 days from the date notice regarding receipt of the application is published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. The nonconfidential portions of the applications are on file at the Department, for banks (717) 783-8240 and for credit unions and trust companies (717) 783-2253. Photocopies of the nonconfidential portions of the applications may be requested consistent with the Department's Right-to-Know Law Records Request policy.

#### **BANKING INSTITUTIONS**

#### **Consolidations, Mergers and Absorptions**

Date Name and Location of Applicant

04-04-2023 The Juniata Valley Bank Mifflintown

Juniata County

Application for approval to purchase assets and assume liabilities of one branch of Orrstown Bank, Shippensburg, PA, located at:

> 16400 Path Valley Road Spring Run Franklin County

Action Approved

# Branch Applications

**De Novo Branches** 

Date	Name and Location of Applicant	Location of Branch	Action	
03-01-2023	Bank of Bird-in-Hand Bird-in-Hand Lancaster County	7180 Bernville Road Bernville Berks County (Mobile)	Opened	
03-30-2023	First Keystone Community Bank Berwick Columbia County	1503 Linden Street Bethlehem Northampton County	Opened	
	Branch Discontin	uances		
Date	Name and Location of Applicant	Location of Branch	Action	
03-31-2023	Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank Dunmore Lackawanna County	781 Airport Road Hazle Township Luzerne County	Closed	
CREDIT UNIONS				

No activity.

The Department's web site at www.dobs.pa.gov includes public notices for more recently filed applications.

SARAH HAMMER, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-495. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF BANKING AND SECURITIES

#### Maximum Lawful Rate of Interest for Residential Mortgages for the Month of May 2023

The Department of Banking and Securities (Department), under the authority contained in section 301 of the act of January 30, 1974 (P.L. 13, No. 6) (41 P.S. § 301), determines that the maximum lawful rate of interest for residential mortgages for the month of May 2023, is 6 1/4%.

The interest rate limitations under the Commonwealth's usury statute were pre-empted to a great extent by Federal law, the Depository Institutions Deregulation and Monetary Control Act of 1980 (Pub.L. No. 96-221). Further pre-emption was instituted with the signing of Pub.L. No. 96-399, which overrode State interest rate limitations on any individual who finances the sale or exchange of residential real property which the individual owns and which the individual occupies or has occupied as his principal residence.

Each month the Department is required by State law to compute and announce the ceiling rate on residential mortgages in this Commonwealth. This maximum rate is determined by adding 2.50 percentage points to the yield rate on long-term government bonds as published by the Federal Reserve Board or the United States Treasury, or both. The latest yield rate on long-term government securities is 3.79 to which was added 2.50 percentage points for a total of 6.29 that by law is rounded off to the nearest quarter at 6 1/4%.

SARAH HAMMER,

Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-496. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

**Applications, Actions and Special Notices** 

#### APPLICATIONS

# THE PENNSYLVANIA CLEAN STREAMS LAW AND THE FEDERAL CLEAN WATER ACT

#### APPLICATIONS FOR NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) PERMITS AND WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT (WQM) PERMITS UNDER THE CLEAN STREAMS LAW AND FEDERAL CLEAN WATER ACT

This notice provides information about persons who have applied to the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) for a new, renewed, or amended NPDES or WQM permit, or a permit waiver for certain stormwater discharges, or have submitted a Notice of Intent (NOI) for coverage under a General Permit. The applications and NOIs concern, but are not limited to, effluent discharges from sewage treatment facilities and industrial facilities to surface waters or groundwater; stormwater discharges associated with industrial activity (industrial stormwater), construction activity (construction

stormwater), and municipal separate storm sewer systems (MS4s); the application of pesticides; the operation of Concentrated Animal Feeding Operations (CAFOs); and the construction of sewage, industrial waste, and manure storage, collection and treatment facilities. This notice is provided in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapters 91 and 92a and 40 CFR Part 122, implementing The Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1—691.1001) and the Federal Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1251—1376). More information on the types of NPDES and WQM permits that are available can be found on DEP's website (visit www.dep.pa.gov and select Businesses, Water, Bureau of Clean Water, Wastewater Management, and NPDES and WQM Permitting Programs).

Section Category

- I Individual and General WQM Permit Applications/NOIs Received, General NPDES Permit NOIs Received, and All Transfer and Minor Amendment Applications/NOIs Received
- II Individual NPDES Permits—New, Renewal, and Major Amendment Applications and Draft Permits for Discharges Relating to Sewage, Industrial Waste, Industrial Stormwater, MS4s, Pesticides and CAFOs
- III Individual NPDES Permit Applications for Discharges of Stormwater Associated with Construction Activity

Section I identifies the following applications and NOIs that have been received by DEP:

• Individual and General WQM Permit Applications Received—DEP provides a 15-day public comment period for Individual WQM Permit Applications for new and reissued permits. There is no public comment period for General WQM Permit NOIs.

• General Chapter 92a NPDES Permit NOIs Received—There is no public comment period for General NPDES NOIs received.

• All Transfer and Minor Amendment Applications/NOIs Received—Transfer and Minor Amendment Applications/NOIs received for Individual and General WQM Permits and Individual and General NPDES Permits, excluding PAG-01 and PAG-02, are identified but do not have public comment periods. DEP provides a 15-day public comment period for Individual WQM Permit Applications for amendments.

Additional information on these applications and NOIs may be reviewed by generating the "Applications and NOIs without Comment Periods Report" or, for Individual WQM Permit Applications, the "Applications Received with Comment Periods Report" on DEP's website at www.dep.pa.gov/CWPublicNotice.

Section II identifies individual NPDES permit applications received and draft permits indicating DEP's tentative determination relating to sewage, industrial waste, industrial stormwater, MS4s, pesticides and CAFOs. A 30-day public comment period applies to these applications and draft permits, except when a site-specific water quality criterion is used to establish effluent limitations, in which case a 45-day public comment period applies. The period for comment may be extended at the discretion of DEP for one additional 15-day period. Additional information, including links to draft permits and fact sheets that explain the basis for DEP's tentative determinations may be reviewed by generating the "Applications Received with Comment Periods Report" on DEP's website at www.dep.pa.gov/CWPublicNotice. Notification of 15-day extensions for comment will be provided in the "Applications Received with Comment Periods Report" (Comments column).

Section III identifies individual NPDES permit applications received and draft permits indicating DEP's tentative determination relating to stormwater discharges associated with construction activities. A 30-day public comment period applies to these applications and draft permits. The period for comment may be extended at the discretion of the Department for one additional 15-day period. Additional information may be reviewed by generating the "Applications Received with Comment Periods Report" on DEP's website at www.dep.pa.gov/CWPublicNotice.

Applications, NOIs and draft permits, where applicable, may be reviewed at the DEP office that received the application or NOI. Members of the public are encouraged to use DEP's website to obtain additional information as discussed previously.

Comments received within the appropriate comment periods for WQM and NPDES permit applications will be retained by DEP and considered in the final determinations regarding the applications. A comment submittal should include the name, address and telephone number of the writer and a concise statement to inform DEP of the exact basis of a comment and the relevant facts upon which it is based.

DEP office contact information to review applications and NOIs and to submit comments for those applications, when applicable, is as follows:

DEP Southeast Regional Office (SERO)—2 E. Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401-4915. File Review Coordinator: 484-250-5910. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_SERO@pa.gov for permits in Sections I & II; RA-EPWW-SERO@pa.gov for permits in Section III.

DEP Northeast Regional Office (NERO)—2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915. File Review Coordinator: 570-826-5472. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_NERO@pa.gov for permits in Sections I & II; RA-EPWW-NERO@pa.gov for permits in Section III.

DEP Southcentral Regional Office (SCRO)—909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110. File Review Coordinator: 717-705-4732. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_SCRO@pa.gov for permits in Sections I & II; RA-EPWW-SCRO@pa.gov for permits in Section III.

DEP Northcentral Regional Office (NCRO)—208 W. Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701. File Review Coordinator: 570-327-3693. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_NCRO@pa.gov for permits in Sections I & II; RA-EPWW-NCRO@ pa.gov for permits in Section III.

#### 2056

DEP Southwest Regional Office (SWRO)—400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222. File Review Coordinator: 412-442-4286. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_SWRO@pa.gov for permits in Sections I & II; RA-EPWW-SWRO@pa.gov for permits in Section III.

DEP Northwest Regional Office (NWRO)—230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335. File Review Coordinator: 814-332-6340. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_NWRO@pa.gov for permits in Sections I & II; RA-EPWW-NWRO@pa.gov for permits in Section III.

DEP Bureau of Clean Water (BCW)—400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17105. File Review Coordinator: 717-787-5017. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_Permits@pa.gov.

DEP Regional Permit Coordination Office (RPCO)—400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17105. File Review Coordinator: 717-772-5987. Email: RA-EPREGIONALPERMIT@pa.gov.

DEP will also accept requests or petitions for public hearings on applications. The request or petition must indicate the interest of the party filing and the reasons why a hearing is warranted. A hearing will be held if DEP determines that there is a significant public interest. If a hearing is scheduled, a notice of the hearing will be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* and a newspaper of general circulation within the relevant geographical area. DEP will postpone its final determination until after a public hearing is held.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

# I. Individual and General WQM Permit Applications/NOIs Received, General NPDES Permit NOIs Received, and All Transfer and Minor Amendment Applications/NOIs Received.

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
0623802	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	New	Wolfe Timothy 4282 Hunters Run Boulevard Reading, PA 19606-9018	Exeter Township Berks County	SCRO
0913806	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Renewal	Briarwood Day Camp 1380 Creek Road Furlong, PA 18925-1344	Buckingham Township Bucks County	SERO
0913892	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Renewal	Eastburn Rodman 110 Short Road Doylestown, PA 18901-3215	Doylestown Borough Bucks County	SERO
0914807	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Renewal	Reserve at Newtown Community Assoc P.O. Box 650858 Dallas, TX 75265-0858	Newtown Township Bucks County	SERO
0918810	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Renewal	Shaw Donna 1915 Sweetbriar Road Ottsville, PA 18942	Tinicum Township Bucks County	SERO
1023806	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	New	Mark Kosick 266 Roenigk Road Boyers, PA 16020-1318	Cherry Township Butler County	NWRO
1023808	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	New	Robert Hodek 105 Hidden Hill Road Sarver, PA 16055-8908	Clinton Township Butler County	NWRO
1513852	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Renewal	Porter Scott 133 Center Mill Road Chadds Ford, PA 19317-9212	Kennett Township Chester County	SERO
2019811	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Amendment	Jeffery Scott Lang 21489 German Road Meadville, PA 16335	Woodcock Township Crawford County	NWRO
3323801	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	New	Robert Love 106 Dusty Rose Court Simi Valley, CA 93065-7349	Union Township Jefferson County	NWRO
2517201	Land Application and Reuse of Industrial Waste Individual WQM Permit	Renewal	AAAG PA LLC 12141 Route 6 Corry, PA 16407-9542	Concord Township Erie County	NWRO
4885426	Major Sewage Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Amendment	Bangor Borough Authority Northampton County 197 Pennsylvania Avenue Bangor, PA 18013	Washington Township Northampton County	NERO

#### 2058

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PA0001759	Minor Industrial Waste Facility with ELG Individual NPDES Permit	Transfer	Omnova North American Inc. 1175 Harrelson Boulevard Myrtle Beach, SC 29577-4894	Jeannette City Westmoreland County	SWRO
PA0210803	Minor Sewage Facility < 0.05 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Transfer	Star Route Holdings LLC 420 S Round Lake Drive Caledonia, MI 49316-9632	East Mead Township Crawford County	NWRO
46614	Minor and Non-NPDES Industrial Waste Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Transfer	Omnova North American Inc. 1175 Harrelson Boulevard Myrtle Beach, SC 29577-4894	Jeannette City Westmoreland County	SWRO
2093405	Minor and Non-NPDES Sewage Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Transfer	Star Route Holdings LLC 420 S Round Lake Drive Caledonia, MI 49316-9632	East Mead Township Crawford County	NWRO
09159-S	Minor and Non-NPDES Sewage Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Amendment	Mon River Sewer Corp 1428 Delberts Drive Monongahela, PA 15063-9752	Forward Township Allegheny County	SWRO
NOEXNC154	No Exposure Certification	Renewal	Fedex Ground Pkg System Inc. 1000 Fedex Drive Moon Township, PA 15108-9373	Sandy Township Clearfield County	NCRO
NOEXNW006	No Exposure Certification	Renewal	Erie Plating Co. 656 W 12th Street Erie, PA 16501-1509	Erie City Erie County	NWRO
PAG030027	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Covanta Metals Market LLC 445 South Street Morristown, NJ 07960	Falls Township Bucks County	SERO
PAG030037	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Cork Ind., Inc. 500 Kaiser Drive Folcroft, PA 19032-2108	Folcroft Borough Delaware County	SERO
PAG030043	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Consolidated Rail Corp 330 Fellowship Road Mt. Laurel, NJ 08054	Trainer Borough Delaware County	SERO
PAG030044	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Consolidated Rail Corp 330 Fellowship Road Mt. Laurel, NJ 08054	Philadelphia City Philadelphia County	SERO
PAG030045	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Consolidated Rail Corp 330 Fellowship Road Mount Laurel, NJ 08054-1207	Falls Township Bucks County	SERO
PAG030048	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Harris Fuels Inc. 206 Otter Street Bristol, PA 19007	Newtown Borough Bucks County	SERO
PAG030067	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Shipley Energy Co. 415 Norway Street York, PA 17403	East Pikeland Township Chester County	SERO

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG030105	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Simsmetal East LLC 300 S Steel Road Morrisville, PA 19067	Falls Township Bucks County	SERO
PAG030157	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Waste Management of PA Inc. 3605 Greys Ferry Avenue Philadelphia, PA 19146	Philadelphia City Philadelphia County	SERO
PAG030169	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Simsmetal East LLC 300 South Steel Road Morrisville, PA 19067	Falls Township Bucks County	SERO
PAG030170	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Philadelphia Gas Works 800 W Montgomery Avenue Philadelphia, PA 19122-2806	Philadelphia City Philadelphia County	SERO
PAG030172	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Bottling Group LLC 11701 Roosevelt Boulevard Philadelphia, PA 19154-2108	Philadelphia City Philadelphia County	SERO
PAG030174	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Chemalloy Co. LLC 1301 Conshohocken Road Conshohocken, PA 19428-1032	Plymouth Township Montgomery County	SERO
PAG030183	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Danaher Motion Co. dba Portescap 110 Westtown Road West Chester, PA 19382-4978	West Goshen Township Chester County	SERO
PAG030185	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	SD Richman Sons Inc. 2435 Wheatsheaf Lane Philadelphia, PA 19137	Philadelphia City Philadelphia County	SERO
PAG030188	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Covanta Delaware Valley LP 10 Highland Avenue Chester, PA 19013-2231	Chester City Delaware County	SERO
PAG030194	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Silgan Plastics Corp 121 Wheeler Court Langhorne, PA 19047-1701	Middletown Township Bucks County	SERO
PAG032238	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Diaz Stone & Pallet Inc. 7686 SR 167 Kingsley, PA 18826	Brooklyn Township Susquehanna County	NERO
PAG032244	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Susquehanna Transfer LLC 7686 State Route 167 Kingsley, PA 18826-6966	Bridgewater Township Susquehanna County	NERO
PAG032280	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	General Dynamics OTS (Wilkes-Barre) LLC 1500 Highway 315 Wilkes-Barre, PA 18702	Plains Township Luzerne County	NERO
PAG032291	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Reynmil Inc. 194 Summer Hill Road Schuylkill Haven, PA 17972-9083	Wayne Township Schuylkill County	NERO
PAG032296	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Graham Pkg Co. LP 73 Jaycee Drive West Hazleton, PA 18202-1143	West Hazleton Borough Luzerne County	NERO

#### 2060

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG032316	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Rolling Frito Lay Sales LP 7701 Legacy Drive # 4c-83 Plano, TX 75024-4002	Palmer Township Northampton County	NERO
PAG032321	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Sauerwine Auto Parts 3148 Spring Valley Road Slatington, PA 18080-3219	Washington Township Lehigh County	NERO
PAG032324	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Monarch Concrete LLC 425 N Dauphin Street Allentown, PA 18109-2146	Allentown City Lehigh County	NERO
PAG032329	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Weiner Iron & Metal Corp 1056 Route 61 Highway S P.O. Box 359 Pottsville, PA 17901-8405	North Manheim Township Schuylkill County	NERO
PAG032332	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Cargill Cocoa & Chocolate Inc. 400 Stoney Creek Road Hazle Township, PA 18202-9722	Hazle Township Luzerne County	NERO
PAG033503	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Sysco Central PA LLC 3905 Corey Road Harrisburg, PA 17109-5930	Susquehanna Township Dauphin County	SCRO
PAG033506	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	JRCJ Royalton Recycling 3 Hollendale Street Royalton, PA 17057	Royalton Borough Dauphin County	SCRO
PAG033518	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Franklin Storage LP 900 Kriner Road Chambersburg, PA 17202	Guilford Township Franklin County	SCRO
PAG033519	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Red Lion Salvage LLC 350 Craley Road Red Lion, PA 17356-8932	Windsor Township York County	SCRO
PAG033532	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Big Valley Concrete 629 E Rolling Ridge Drive Bellefonte, PA 16823-8135	Brady Township Huntingdon County	SCRO
PAG033549	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Tait Towers Manu LLC 401 W Lincoln Avenue Lititz, PA 17543-8701	Lititz Borough Lancaster County	SCRO
PAG033567	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Perdue Agribusiness LLC P.O. Box 460 Lewiston-Woodville, NC 27849	Conoy Township Lancaster County	SCRO
PAG033580	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Monarch Products Co. Inc. 385 Sipe Road York Haven, PA 17370-9219	Conewago Township York County	SCRO
PAG033585	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Monarch Products Co. Inc. 385 Sipe Road York Haven, PA 17370-9219	Newberry Township York County	SCRO
PAG033589	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Conestoga St Development LLC 2200 Adams Avenue Philadelphia, PA 19124-4704	Lancaster City Lancaster County	SCRO

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG033602	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	BWI 299 Mulberry Drive Mechanicsburg, PA 17050	Mechanicsburg Borough Cumberland County	SCRO
PAG033603	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Giorgio Foods Inc. 3721 Pottsville Pike Reading, PA 19605-1721	Muhlenberg Township Berks County	SCRO
PAG033642	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Blaw-Knox Corp 1280 Superior Avenue Chambersburg, PA 17201-7839	Greene Township Franklin County	SCRO
PAG033689	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	The Ames Co. Inc. 1500 S Cameron Street Harrisburg, PA 17104-3143	Harrisburg City Dauphin County	SCRO
PAG033734	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	UPS Inc. 1821 S 19th Street Harrisburg, PA 17104-3206	West Manchester Township York County	SCRO
PAG033737	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Danzer Lumber North American Inc. P.O. Box 111 22510 Croghan Pike Shade Gap, PA 17255-0111	Dublin Township Huntingdon County	SCRO
PAG033749	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	DLA Susquehanna Installation Management 5730 3rd Street Building 750 New Cumberland, PA 17070-5076	Fairview Township York County	SCRO
PAG033750	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Bally Block Co. 30 S 7th Street Bally, PA 19503-9665	Bally Borough Berks County	SCRO
PAG033754	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	IFS Ind Inc. P.O. Box 1053 Reading, PA 19603-1053	Reading City Berks County	SCRO
PAG033755	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	New	Myerstown Real Estate LLC 33 Glenola Drive Leola, PA 17540-1902	Jackson Township Lebanon County	SCRO
PAG033756	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Dart Container Corp of PA P.O. Box 546 Leola, PA 17540-0546	Upper Leacock Township Lancaster County	SCRO
PAG033757	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Waste Management PA Inc. 1586 Old 6th Avenue Road Altoona, PA 16601-8887	Logan Township Blair County	SCRO
PAG033758	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Waste Management of PA Inc. 120 Forgas Lane Altoona, PA 16601-7924	Allegheny Township Blair County	SCRO
PAG033759	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	New Enterprise Stone & Lime Co. Inc. 3912 Brumbaugh Road New Enterprise, PA 16664-9137	Guilford Township Franklin County	SCRO

#### 2062

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG033760	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Oldcastle Apg Northeast Inc. 1 Church Road Emigsville, PA 17318	Manchester Township York County	SCRO
PAG033761	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Mars Wrigley US LLC 295 S Brown Street Elizabethtown, PA 17022-2127	Elizabethtown Borough Lancaster County	SCRO
PAG033762	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Village Motors Inc. 53 Walnuttown Road Fleetwood, PA 19522-8327	Richmond Township Berks County	SCRO
PAG033763	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Laurel Recycling (Ephrata Recycling) 339 E Fulton Street Ephrata, PA 17522-2421	Ephrata Township Lancaster County	SCRO
PAG033764	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Staiman Recycling Hanover 201 Hepburn Street Williamsport, PA 17701-6501	Hanover Borough York County	SCRO
PAG033765	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	LKQ Northeast Inc. 2956 Lincoln Way W Chambersburg, PA 17202-8694	Hamilton Township Franklin County	SCRO
PAG033771	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Can Corp of American 326 June Avenue Blandon, PA 19510-9566	Maidencreek Township Berks County	SCRO
PAG033772	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	MI Windows & Doors LLC 1010 54th Avenue East Tacoma, WA 98424	Upper Paxton Township Dauphin County	SCRO
PAG033773	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Dieffenbachs Potato Chip Inc. 51 Host Road Womelsdorf, PA 19567-9421	Tulpehocken Township Berks County	SCRO
PAG033774	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Rolling Frito Lay Sales LP 22 Beethoven Street Binghamton, NY 13905-4232	Muhlenberg Township Berks County	SCRO
PAG033775	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	E & H Recycling Co. Inc. 454 E Princess Street P.O. Box 291 York, PA 17403-2461	York City York County	SCRO
PAG033776	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Spring Valley Mulch LLC 2470 Mill Creek Road Dover, PA 17315-2075	Conewago Township York County	SCRO
PAG033777	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Allegheny Towing & Salvage Co. 475 Poplar Neck Road Birdsboro, PA 19508-8300	Cumru Township Berks County	SCRO
PAG033782	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Ecore International 76 Acco Drive York, PA 17403	York Township York County	SCRO
PAG033783	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Esab Group Inc. 801 Wilson Avenue Hanover, PA 17331-7948	Penn Township York County	SCRO

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG033785	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Fabral Inc. P.O. Box 4608 Lancaster, PA 17604-4608	East Hempfield Township Lancaster County	SCRO
PAG033786	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	JLG Ind Inc. 1 JLG Drive McConnelsburg, PA 17233	Bedford Township Bedford County	SCRO
PAG033787	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	JF Rohrbaugh & Co. Inc. 1030 Wilson Avenue Hanover, PA 17331-7961	Penn Township York County	SCRO
PAG033788	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	PA Precision Cast Parts Inc. P.O. Box 1429 Lebanon, PA 17042-1429	Lebanon City Lebanon County	SCRO
PAG033789	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Daedalus Investment LLC dba Tech Cast Limited 1126 Ridgeview Avenue Dayton, OH 45409-1229	Myerstown Borough Lebanon County	SCRO
PAG033790	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	TE Connectivity Corp P.O. Box 3608 M S 106-019 Harrisburg, PA 17105-3608	Lower Swatara Township Dauphin County	SCRO
PAG033826	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Tyrone Auto Salvage 5053 E Pleasant Valley Boulevard Tyrone, PA 16686-8543	Snyder Township Blair County	SCRO
PAG033828	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	BPG—USA 100 N Miller Street Fairfield, PA 17320-9707	Fairfield Borough Adams County	SCRO
PAG033829	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	The Ames Co. Inc. 465 Railroad Avenue Camp Hill, PA 17011-5611	Hampden Township Cumberland County	SCRO
PAG033830	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Rossman Auto Salvage 10 Morning Glory Lane Lewistown, PA 17044-7141	Decatur Township Mifflin County	SCRO
PAG033831	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	A Z U Pull It Used Auto Parts Inc. 194 Ridge Road Shoemakersville, PA 19555-8913	Perry Township Berks County	SCRO
PAG033832	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Arkema Inc. 1112 Lincoln Road Birdsboro, PA 19508-1804	Exeter Township Berks County	SCRO
PAG033840	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Yuasa Battery Inc. 2901 Montrose Avenue Laureldale, PA 19605-2752	Laureldale Borough Berks County	SCRO
PAG033874	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	JLG Ind Inc. 1 JLG Drive McConnellsburg, PA 17233	Ayr Township Fulton County	SCRO
PAG033875	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	JLG Ind Inc. 1 JLG Drive McConnellsburg, PA 17233	Ayr Township Fulton County	SCRO

## 2064

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG033876	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	First Student Inc. 600 Vine Street Suite 1400 Cincinnati, OH 45202-2426	Middletown Borough Dauphin County	SCRO
PAG033916	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	LKQ Northeast Inc. 269 River Road P.O. Box 97 York Haven, PA 17370-9009	Newberry Township York County	SCRO
PAG033918	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Rolling Frito Lay Sales LP 23 Beethoven Street Binghamton, NY 13905-4250	Swatara Township Dauphin County	SCRO
PAG033919	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Rolling Frito Lay Sales LP 23 Beethoven Street Binghamton, NY 13905-4250	East Lampeter Township Lancaster County	SCRO
PAG033920	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Lloyd R Bricker P.O. Box 174 5849 Front Street Marion, PA 17235	Guilford Township Franklin County	SCRO
PAG033921	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Fullerton Terminals De LLC 5125 Simpson Ferry Road Mechanicsburg, PA 17050-3708	Allegheny Township Blair County	SCRO
PAG033922	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Blue Ridge Landfill Co. P.O. Box 399 Scotland, PA 17254-0399	Greene Township Franklin County	SCRO
PAG033923	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Elk Corp Of Texas 401 Weavertown Road Myerstown, PA 17067-2401	Jackson Township Lebanon County	SCRO
PAG033934	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	JLG Ind Inc. 1 JLG Drive McConnellsburg, PA 17233	Bedford Township Bedford County	SCRO
PAG034803	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Bishop Bros Const Co. Inc. 1376 Leisure Drive Towanda, PA 18848-9271	Wysox Township Bradford County	NCRO
PAG034809	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Koppers Inc. 50 Koppers Lane Montgomery, PA 17752-9606	Clinton Township Lycoming County	NCRO
PAG034810	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Playworld Inc. 1000 Buffalo Road Lewisburg, PA 17837-9702	New Berlin Borough Union County	NCRO
PAG034825	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Keister Miller Investments, LLC 204 Miller Road Mahaffey, PA 15757-7231	Bell Township Clearfield County	NCRO
PAG034828	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	St Engineering Hackney Inc. 914 Saegers Station Road Montgomery, PA 17752-8501	Montgomery Borough Lycoming County	NCRO
PAG034848	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	S & J Recycling Inc. 3576 Old Route 15 New Columbia, PA 17856-9369	White Deer Township Union County	NCRO

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG034852	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Patriot Metal Products 1005 N Vine Street Berwick, PA 18603-2026	Berwick Borough Columbia County	NCRO
PAG034860	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Under Pressure Connections LLC 825 US Highway 15 South Williamsport, PA 17702-8501	Armstrong Township Lycoming County	NCRO
PAG034866	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Falcon Flowback LLC 1635 SE 29th Street Oklahoma City, OK 73129-7619	Asylum Township Bradford County	NCRO
PAG034877	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Russell Stone Products Inc. 2640 Greenville Pike Grampian, PA 16838-9201	Pike Township Clearfield County	NCRO
PAG034919	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Bestway Service Garage Inc. P.O. Box 614 Milesburg, PA 16853-0614	Boggs Township Centre County	NCRO
PAG034924	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	APEX Homes of PA LLC 7172 Route 522 Middleburg, PA 17842-9488	Middleburg Borough Snyder County	NCRO
PAG034927	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Sensus USA Inc. 805 Liberty Boulevard DuBois, PA 15801-2421	DuBois City Clearfield County	NCRO
PAG034930	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Wabtec US Rail Inc. 55 S Pine Street Emporium, PA 15834-1529	Emporium Borough Cameron County	NCRO
PAG034933	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Pine Hill Inc. P.O. Box 62 Blossburg, PA 16912-0062	Ward Township Tioga County	NCRO
PAG034935	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Oak Hill Veneer Inc. P.O. Box 304 Troy, PA 16947-0304	Troy Township Bradford County	NCRO
PAG034937	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Young Ind Inc. 16 Painter Street Muncy, PA 17756-1407	Muncy Borough Lycoming County	NCRO
PAG034942	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Pactiv Pkg Inc. 1900 W Field Court Lake Forest, IL 60045-4828	Mount Carmel Township Northumberland County	NCRO
PAG034945	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Seneca Resources Co. LLC 51 Zents Boulevard Brookville, PA 15825-2701	Charleston Township Tioga County	NCRO
PAG034947	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	US Gypsum Co. 550 W Adams Street Chicago, IL 60661-3665	Derry Township Montour County	NCRO
PAG034949	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Edpo LLC 44 Reuter Boulevard Towanda, PA 18848-2153	Towanda Borough Bradford County	NCRO

## 2066

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG034951	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Centre Concrete Co. 629 E Rolling Ridge Drive Bellefonte, PA 16823-8135	Lawrence Township Clearfield County	NCRO
PAG034952	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Staiman Bros Inc. 201 Hepburn Street Williamsport, PA 17701-6501	Williamsport City Lycoming County	NCRO
PAG034953	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Playworld System 1000 Buffalo Road Lewisburg, PA 17837-9702	Buffalo Township Union County	NCRO
PAG034954	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Centre Concrete Co. 629 E Rolling Ridge Drive Bellefonte, PA 16823-8135	Fairfield Township Lycoming County	NCRO
PAG034955	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Centre Concrete Co. 629 E Rolling Ridge Drive Bellefonte, PA 16823-8135	Lock Haven City Clinton County	NCRO
PAG034957	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Valley Farms Dairy LLC 1860 E 3rd Street Williamsport, PA 17701-3923	Loyalsock Township Lycoming County	NCRO
PAG034958	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Centre Concrete Co. 629 E Rolling Ridge Drive Bellefonte, PA 16823-8135	Bradford Township Clearfield County	NCRO
PAG034959	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Domtar Paper Co. LLC 100 W Center Street Johnsonburg, PA 15845-1444	Bradford Township Clearfield County	NCRO
PAG034961	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Zenith Energy Terminal PA Holdings LLC 3900 Essex Lane Suite 700 Houston, TX 77027-5166	Armstrong Township Lycoming County	NCRO
PAG034962	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	M & B Redi Mix Inc. dba Dubrook 15303 Route 322 Clarion, PA 16214-6265	DuBois City Clearfield County	NCRO
PAG034963	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Cummings Lumber Co. Inc. P.O. Box 6 Troy, PA 16947-0006	Troy Township Bradford County	NCRO
PAG034964	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Clinton County SWA P.O. Box 209 McElhattan, PA 17748-0209	Wayne Township Clinton County	NCRO
PAG034965	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Watsontown Brick Co. 86 Portmay Road Watsontown, PA 17777-7800	Delaware Township Northumberland County	NCRO
PAG034966	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Keystone Filler & Manufacturing Co. 214 Railroad Street Muncy, PA 17756-1422	Muncy Creek Township Lycoming County	NCRO
PAG034967	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	A & L Wood Inc. 2220 Paradise Church Road Mount Pleasant Mills, PA 17853-8277	Perry Township Snyder County	NCRO

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG034968	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	H Rockwell & Son P.O. Box 197 Canton, PA 17724-0197	Canton Borough Bradford County	NCRO
PAG034972	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Fisher Mining Company Processing Plant 40 Choate Circle Montoursville, PA 17754-9791	Williamsport City Lycoming County	NCRO
PAG034975	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	PDF Inc. dba Berman Truck Group 1844 Rich Highway DuBois, PA 15801-3970	Sandy Township Clearfield County	NCRO
PAG034976	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Central Bldr Supply Co. P.O. Box 152 Sunbury, PA 17801-0152	Upper Augusta Township Northumberland County	NCRO
PAG034977	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Glenn O Hawbaker Inc. 711 E College Avenue Pleasant Gap, PA 16823-6854	Sandy Township Clearfield County	NCRO
PAG034978	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Central Bldr Supply Co. P.O. Box 152 Sunbury, PA 17801-0152	Coal Township Northumberland County	NCRO
PAG034979	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Central Bldr Supply Co. Penn Township P.O. Box 152 Snyder County Sunbury, PA 17801-0152		NCRO
PAG034981	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Central Bldr Supply Co. P.O. Box 152 Sunbury, PA 17801-0152	Lewisburg Borough Union County	NCRO
PAG034982	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Central Bldr Supply Co. P.O. Box 152 Sunbury, PA 17801-0152	Berwick Borough Columbia County	NCRO
PAG034984	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	International Paper Co. 2164 Locust Gap Highway Mount Carmel, PA 17851-2564	Mount Carmel Borough Northumberland County	NCRO
PAG034986	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Charlotte Pipe & Foundry Co. 4210 Old Charlotte Highway Monroe, NC 28110-7333	Muncy Township Lycoming County	NCRO
PAG034987	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Northumberland Terminal De LLC 900 S Eisenhower Boulevard Middletown, PA 17057-5503	Point Township Northumberland County	NCRO
PAG034991	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Ambrosius Auto Parts 2587 Ambrosius Road New Albany, PA 18833-7709	Wilmot Township Bradford County	NCRO
PAG034993	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Clear Salvage LLC 2608 Carson Hill Road DuBois, PA 15801-4918	Brady Township Clearfield County	NCRO
PAG034994	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Arrow United Ind Inc. 450 Riverside Drive Wyalusing, PA 18853-8926	Wyalusing Township Bradford County	NCRO

## 2068

Amplication		Amplication			DEP
Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	<i>Office</i>
PAG034995	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Central Bldr Supply Co. P.O. Box 152 Sunbury, PA 17801-0152	Delaware Township Northumberland County	NCRO
PAG036107	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Anixter Power Sol LLC 141 Vanyo Road Berlin, PA 15530-8304	Berlin Borough Somerset County	SWRO
PAG036160	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Sprague Energy LLC 1045 West Chestnut Street Washington, PA 15301	Carmichaels Borough Greene County	SWRO
PAG036161	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Sprague Energy LLC 1045 W Chestnut Street Washington, PA 15301-4628	Greensburg City Westmoreland County	SWRO
PAG036169	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Triumvirate Environmental Pittsburgh Inc. 200 Innerbelt Road Somerville, MA 02143-4456	Penn Township Westmoreland County	SWRO
PAG036171	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Oil States Energy Service 255 Johnson Road Canonsburg, PA 15317-4934	North Strabane Township Washington County	SWRO
PAG036194	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Retal PA LLCDonora Borough55 S Washington StreetWashington CourDonora, PA 15033-1393Street		SWRO
PAG036208	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Amazon Com Service LLC P.O. Box 80842 Seattle, WA 98108-0842	Pittsburgh City Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036226	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Wheeling & Lake Erie Railway Co. 100 First Street SE Brewster, OH 44613	Green Tree Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036227	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Dyno Nobel Inc. 1320 Galiffa Drive Donora, PA 15033	Donora Borough Washington County	SWRO
PAG036231	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Growmark Fs LLC 308 NE Front Street Milford, DE 19963-1434	Somerset Township Somerset County	SWRO
PAG036234	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	C & C Concrete dba Donaldsons Supply 40 Murdock Street Canonsburg, PA 15317-1310	Canonsburg Borough Washington County	SWRO
PAG036235	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Westrock Usc Inc. 400 Technology Drive Coal Center, PA 15423-1043	California Borough Washington County	SWRO
PAG036240	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	PA Department of Military and Veterans Affairs Air National Guard 171 Air Refueling Wing 300 Tanker Road Coraopolis, PA 15108-4805	Moon Township Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036242	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Drilling Tools International 3701 Briarpark Drive Houston, TX 77042-5276	Charleroi Borough Washington County	SWRO

Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	MPLX Terminals LLC 539 S Main Street Findlay, OH 45840-3229	Industry Borough Beaver County	SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	North Fayette Supply LLC 415 Unity Center Road Pittsburgh, PA 15239-3409	Bullskin Township Fayette County	SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Marathon Petro Co. LP 539 S Main Street Findlay, OH 45840	Jefferson Hills Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Stone & Co. Inc. 606 McCormick Avenue Connellsville, PA 15425-2733	Chartiers Township Washington County	SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	ATI Flat Rolled Products Holdings LLC 100 River Road Brackenridge, PA 15014-1537	Derry Township Westmoreland County	SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Amazon Com Service LLC P.O. Box 80842 Attn: NA Environmental Dept Seattle, WA 98108-0842	Findlay Township Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal			SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	FMC Tech Surface Integrated Service Inc. 12 Arentzen Boulevard Charleroi, PA 15022-1060	Speers Borough Washington County	SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Amazon Com Service LLC P.O. Box 80842 Attn: NA Environmental Dept Seattle, WA 98108-0842	Findlay Township Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Petromax Ltd 301 Prestley Street Carnegie, PA 15106-1636	Collier Township Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	RIDC SW PA 611 William Penn Place Suite 600 Pittsburgh, PA 15219-6901	East Pittsburgh Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Kiefer Coal & Supply Co. 5088 W Library Avenue Bethel Park, PA 15102-2732	Bethel Park Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Dura Bond Ind Inc. 5790 Kennedy Avenue Export, PA 15632	Duquesne City Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Josh Steel Co. Inc. 46 6th Street Braddock, PA 15104-1948	Rankin Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Josh Steel Co. Inc. 46 6th Street Braddock, PA 15104-1948	Braddock Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater PAG-03 NPDES	Permit TypeTypePAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial StormwaterRenewalPAG-03 N	Permit TypeTypeApplicant Name & AddressPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalMPLX Terminals LLC 539 S Main Street Findlay, OH 45840-3229PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalNorth Fayette Supply LLC 415 Unity Center Road Pittsburgh, PA 15239-3409PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalMarathon Petro Co. LP 539 S Main Street Findlay, OH 45840PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalStone & Co. Inc. 606 McCormick Avenue Connellsville, PA 15425-2733StormwaterPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalATI Flat Rolled Products Holdings LLC 100 River Road Batter RenewalPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalATE Flat Stormwater Backenridge, PA 15014-1537PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalABF Freight System Inc. 3801 OIG Greenwood Road Fort Smith, AR 72903-5937StormwaterPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalFMC Tech Surface Integrated Service Inc. 12 Arentzen Boulevard Charleroi, PA 15022-1060PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalFMC Tech Surface Integrated Service Inc. 12 Arentzen Boulevard Charleroi, PA 15010-1636PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalFMC Tech Surface Integrated Service LLC PO. Box 80842 Attn: NA Environmental Dept StormwaterPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalFMC Cool & Supple StormwaterPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialR	Permit TypeTypeApplicant Name & AddressMunicipality, CountyPAG-08 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalMPLX Terminals LLC 539 S Main Street Histourgh, PA 15239-3409Industry Beaver CountyPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalNorth Fayette Supply LLC 415 Unity Center Road Pritsburgh, PA 15239-3409Bullskin Township Fayette CountyPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalMarathon Petro Co. LP 539 S Main StreetBullskin Township KenewalPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalStore & Co. Inc. 606 McCornick Avenue Connellsville, PA 15425-2733Jefferson Hills Borough Washington CountyStornwaterRenewalStore & Co. Inc. 606 McCornick Avenue Connellsville, PA 15425-2733Derry Township Westmoreland CountyPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalATI Flat Rolled Products Brackenridge, PA 15014-1537Derry Township Allegheny CountyPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalAmazon Com Service LLC P.O. Box 80842Findlay Township Allegheny CountyPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalFMC Tech Surface Integrated Service Inc. 12801 Old Greenwood Road Fort Smith, AR 72005-5937Speers Borough Westmoreland CountyPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalPMC Tech Surface Integrated Service Inc. 12801 Old Greenwood Road Fort Smith, AR 72005-5937Speers Borough Westmoreland CountyPAG-03 NPDES General Permit for IndustrialRenewalPMC Tech

## 2069

## 2070

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG036389	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Dura Bond Coating Inc. P.O. Box 518 Export, PA 15632-0518	Liberty Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036390	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Dura Bond Ind Inc. 5790 Kennedy Avenue Export, PA 15632	Export Borough Westmoreland County	SWRO
PAG036391	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Keystone Iron & Metal Co. Inc. 4903 E Carson Street Pittsburgh, PA 15207-1943	Pittsburgh City Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036392	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	ECM Transportation LLC P.O. Box 45659 Omaha, NE 68145-0659	South Strabane Township Washington County	SWRO
PAG036393	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Ind Terminal System Inc. P.O. Box 4127 New Kensington, PA 15068-1227	Plum Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036394	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Recyclesource LLC P.O. Box 398 Monessen, PA 15062-0398	Pittsburgh City Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036395	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	HRI Inc. 1750 W College Avenue State College, PA 16801-2719	Richland Township Cambria County	SWRO
PAG036397	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Hitachi Energy USA Inc. 100 Distribution Circle Mt Pleasant, PA 15666-1044	East Huntingdon Township Westmoreland County	SWRO
PAG036404	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	DB Pipe LLC 5790 Kennedy Avenue Export, PA 15632	McKeesport City Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036405	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Stoystown Auto Wreckers 5079 Lincoln Highway Stoystown, PA 15563-6407	Quemahoning Township Somerset County	SWRO
PAG036406	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	First Student Inc. 110 Perimeter Park Road Suite E Knoxville, TN 37922-2247	Sewickley Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036407	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Hunter Panels LLC 2000 Summit View Drive Smithfield, PA 15478-1645	Smithfield Borough Fayette County	SWRO
PAG036408	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	First Transit Inc. 110 Perimeter Park Road Suite E Knoxville, TN 37922-2200	Bethel Park Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036409	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	New	Nelson Wire & Steel LLC 1015 New Salem Road New Salem, PA 15468-1175	Menallen Township Fayette County	SWRO
PAG036410	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	MCC International Inc. 110 Centrifugal Court McDonald, PA 15057	Cecil Township Washington County	SWRO

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG036412	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Oneal Steel Inc. 2975 Duss Avenue Suite 100 Ambridge, PA 15003-1487	Harmony Township Beaver County	SWRO
PAG036413	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	First Student Inc. 110 Perimeter Park Road Suite E Knoxville, TN 37922-2200	Peters Township Washington County	SWRO
PAG036414	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	PA American Water Co. 560 Horning Road Bethel Park, PA 15102-3720	Bethel Park Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036415	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	New	Laurel McAdam LLC P.O. Box 14004 Pittsburgh, PA 15239-0004	Springhill Township Fayette County	SWRO
PAG036416	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Smithfield Packaged Meats Corp 2200 Rivers Edge Drive Arnold, PA 15068-4540	New Kensington City Westmoreland County	SWRO
PAG036417	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	The Sherwin Williams Manufacturing Co. 372 Cleveland Street Rochester, PA 15074-1624	Rochester Township Beaver County	SWRO
PAG036418	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Whemco Steel Castings Inc. 1 12th Street Midland, PA 15059-1645	Midland Borough Beaver County	SWRO
PAG036419	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Stone & Co. Inc. 606 McCormick Avenue Connellsville, PA 15425-2733	Charleroi Borough Washington County	SWRO
PAG036420	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Stone & Co. Inc. 606 McCormick Avenue P.O. Box 776 Connellsville, PA 15425-2733	Plum Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036421	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Stone & Co. Inc. 606 McCormick Avenue Connellsville, PA 15425-2733	Hempfield Township Westmoreland County	SWRO
PAG036422	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Stone & Co. Inc. 606 McCormick Avenue Connellsville, PA 15425-2733	Glassport Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036423	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Holcim Solutions & Products US LLC Avenue A Bldg. 102 Youngwood, PA 15697	Youngwood Borough Westmoreland County	SWRO
PAG036424	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Parker Plastics Corp 3585 Valley Drive Pittsburgh, PA 15234-2018	Bethel Park Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036425	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Safety Kleen System Inc. 150 Allenbill Drive Johnstown, PA 15904-1938	Johnstown City Cambria County	SWRO
PAG036426	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Joseph Smith & Sons P.O. Box 64430 Washington, DC 20029-4430	Johnstown City Cambria County	SWRO

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG036427	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Somerset Scrap Metal Inc. P.O. Box 64430 Washington, DC 20029-4430	Brothersvalley Township Somerset County	SWRO
PAG036428	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	A Duie Pyle Inc. 650 Westtown Road P.O. Box 564 West Chester, PA 19382-4900	Etna Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036429	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Black Diamond Iron & Metal 731 E Main Street Monongahela, PA 15063-1403	Monongahela City Washington County	SWRO
PAG036430	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Gallatin Fuels Inc. 250 W Main Street Uniontown, PA 15401-5513	Springhill Township Fayette County	SWRO
PAG036431	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Stone & Co. Inc. 1718 Roseytown Road Greensburg, PA 15601-7000	Tarentum Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036432	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Wine Concrete Products Inc. 859 Big Sewickley Creek Road Sewickley, PA 15143-8653	Bell Acres Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036433	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC dba Northeast Paving 290 Bilmar Drive Floor 3 Pittsburgh, PA 15205-4601	Collier Township Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036434	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Patterson-Uti Drilling Company LLC 10713 W Sam Houston Parkway N Suite 800 Houston, TX 77064-3583	Perry Township Greene County	SWRO
PAG036435	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC dba Northeast Paving 290 Bilmar Drive Pittsburgh, PA 15205	Springdale Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036438	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC dba Northeast Paving 290 Bilmar Drive Pittsburgh, PA 15205	McKees Rocks Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG036439	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Pitt Mon Auto Inc. P.O. Box 122 Monongahela, PA 15063-0122	Monongahela City Washington County	SWRO
PAG036440	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Ind Recovery Service LLC P.O. Box 68 Uniontown, PA 15401-0068	Connellsville City Fayette County	SWRO
PAG038430	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Quanex Bldg. Products Corp 62 Brush Run Road Greenville, PA 16125-8310	Pymatuning Township Mercer County	NWRO
PAR222204	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Reynmil Inc. 194 Summer Hill Road Schuylkill Haven, PA 17972-9083	Wayne Township Schuylkill County	NERO

Application Number PAR232242	Permit Type PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Application Type Renewal	<i>Applicant Name &amp; Address</i> Graham Pkg Co. LP 73 Jaycee Drive West Hazleton, PA 18202-1143	<i>Municipality, County</i> West Hazleton Borough Luzerne County	<i>DEP Office</i> NERO
PAR706122	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Renewal	Wine Concrete Products Inc. 859 Big Sewickley Creek Road Sewickley, PA 15143-8653	Bell Acres Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG066103	PAG-06 NPDES General Permit for Combined Sewer Systems	Renewal	Homestead Borough Allegheny County 221 E 7th Avenue Homestead, PA 15120-1511	Homestead Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG066113	PAG-06 NPDES General Permit for Combined Sewer Systems	Renewal	Aspinwall Borough Allegheny County 217 Commercial Avenue Aspinwall, PA 15215-3024	Aspinwall Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PAG066118	PAG-06 NPDES General Permit for Combined Sewer Systems	Renewal	val Turtle Creek Borough Turtle Creek Allegheny County Allegheny Co 125 Monroeville Avenue Turtle Creek, PA 15145-1862		SWRO
PAG123813	PAG-12 NPDES General Permit for CAFOs	Amendment	Star Rock Farms Star Rock Dairy Joint Client 175 Chestnut Grove Road Conestoga, PA 17516-9317	Chanceford Township York County	SCRO
PAG136321	PAG-13 NPDES General Permit for MS4s	Renewal	Daisytown Borough Cambria County 93 Baiker Street Johnstown, PA 15902-1604	Daisytown Borough Cambria County	SWRO
3923401	Pump Stations WQM Individual Permit	New	Lehigh County Authority 1053 Spruce Road Allentown, PA 18106	Upper Macungie Township Lehigh County	NERO
4323406	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	New	Thompson Robert C 1267 Rutledge Road Transfer, PA 16154-2225	Pymatuning Township Mercer County	NWRO
WQG02042301	WQG-02 WQM General Permit	New	Beaver County 2326 Darlington Road Beaver Falls, PA 15010-1357	Chippewa Township Beaver County	SWRO

## II. Individual NPDES Permits—New, Renewal, and Major Amendment Applications and Draft Permits for Discharges Relating to Sewage, Industrial Waste, Industrial Stormwater, MS4s, Pesticides and CAFOs.

#### Northcentral Regional Office

**PA0234117**, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, **West Branch Regional Authority**, 127 Girton Drive, Muncy, PA 17756-6375. Facility Name: West Branch Regional Authority Wastewater Treatment Plant. This existing facility is located in Clinton Township, **Lycoming County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated sewage.

The receiving stream(s), West Branch Susquehanna River, is located in State Water Plan watershed 10-C and is classified for Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 2.4 MGD.—Limits.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 53, NO. 15, APRIL 15, 2023

### 2073

Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Weekly Average	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	ions (mg/L) Weekly Average	Instant. Maximum
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Dissolved Oxygen	XXX	XXX	Report Inst Min	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC) Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD <sub>5</sub> )	XXX 500	XXX 800	XXX XXX	$\begin{array}{c} 0.5\\ 25.0\end{array}$	XXX 40.0	$\begin{array}{c} 1.6\\ 50\end{array}$
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD <sub>5</sub> ) Raw Sewage Influent	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Suspended Solids	600	900	XXX	30.0	45.0	60
Raw Sewage Influent	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml) Oct 1 - Apr 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	2,000 Geo Mean	XXX	10,000
May 1 - Ŝep 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	200 Geo Mean	XXX	1,000
E. Coli (No./100 ml)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Nitrate-Nitrite as N	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
(Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Report Total Mo	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Nitrogen	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
(Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Report Total Mo	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Ammonia-Nitrogen	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
(Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Report Total Mo	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
(Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Report Total Mo	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Phosphorus	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
(Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Report Total Mo	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Copper, Total (ug/L)	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX

The proposed monitoring requirements and effluent limits for implementation of Pennsylvania's Chesapeake Bay Watershed Implementation Plan are as follows for Outfall 001.—Limits.

	Mass Uni	ts (lbs/day)		Concentrat	tions (mg/L)	
Parameters	Monthly	Annual	Monthly	Monthly Average	Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Total Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs) Effluent Net	XXX	42,508 Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	XXX	Report Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Ammonia-Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	XXX	Report Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Phosphorus (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	XXX	Report Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Phosphorus (Total Load, lbs) (lbs) Effluent Net	XXX	5,728 Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX

\* This permit contains conditions which authorize the permittee to apply nutrient reduction credits to meet the Net Total Nitrogen and the Net Total Phosphorus effluent mass limits, under the Department's Chapter 96 regulations. The condition includes the requirement to report the application of these credits in Supplemental Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs) submitted to the Department.

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 570-327-3693.

The EPA Waiver is not in effect.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 53, NO. 15, APRIL 15, 2023

#### Northcentral Regional Office

Application No. PA0233943, Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation (CAFO), Hoffman Family Farm LLC (Kar-Dale Acres Potter County), 243 Healy Road, Shinglehouse, PA 16748-8537.

Hoffman Family Farm LLC has submitted an application for an Individual NPDES permit for a renewal of an CAFO known as Kar-Dale Acres Potter County, located in Hebron Township, **Potter County**.

The CAFO is situated near Oswayo Creek (HQ—CWF) and Unnamed Tributary of Elevenmile Creek (HQ—CWF) in Watershed 16-C, which is classified for High Quality Waters—Cold Water Fishes. The CAFO is designed to maintain an animal population of approximately 1,808.14 animal equivalent units (AEUs) consisting of 780 Holstein Lactating Cows, 105 Holstein Dry Cows, 300 Holstein Heifers, and 590 Holstein Calves. The operation stores liquid dairy manure is two separately located concrete circular manure storages while also utilizing a concrete underbarn reception pit. A release or discharge to waters of the Commonwealth under normal operating conditions is not expected. Normal operating conditions are defined as conditions below a 25-year, 24-hour storm event.

The Department has conducted administrative and technical reviews of the application. Based on the preliminary review and application of lawful standards and regulations, the Department has made a tentative determination to issue an NPDES permit for the operation subject to the terms and conditions and monitoring and reporting requirements specified in the permit.

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 570-327-3693.

The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) permit waiver provision under 40 CFR 123.24(e) does not apply to this NPDES permit.

#### Northcentral Regional Office

**PA0233293**, Storm Water, SIC Code 2421, **Natural Wood USA**, **LLC**, 434 Swartz Road, Lewisburg, PA 17837-8802. Facility Name: Natural Wood USA. This existing facility is in Buffalo Township, **Union County**.

Description of Proposed Activity: The application is for a new NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated Industrial Stormwater.

The receiving stream(s), Unnamed Tributary to Spruce Run (HQ—CWF, MF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 10-C and is classified for High Quality—Cold Water and Migratory Fish, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfalls 001-003 are based on a design flow of 0.0 MGD.

	Mass Units	s (lbs/day)		Concentrations $(mg/L)$		
Parameters	Average	Average	Minimum	Average	Daily	IMAX
	Monthly	Weekly		Monthly	Maximum	
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Total Nitrogen	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Total Phosphorus	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Arsenic, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Chromium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Copper, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Pentachlorophenol	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

In addition, the permit contains the following major special conditions:

- Stormwater Outfalls
- Best Management Practices
- Routine Inspections
- Preparedness, Prevention and Contingency Plan
- Stormwater Monitoring Requirements

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 570-327-3693.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

Southwest Regional Office

**PA0284963**, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, **Union Township**, 3904 Finleyville Elrama Road, Finleyville, PA 15332-3011. Facility Name: Mingo Circle WWTP. This proposed facility is located in Union Township, **Washington County**.

Description of Proposed Activity: The application is for a new NPDES permit for a new discharge of treated sewage.

The receiving stream(s), Unnamed Tributary to Mingo Creek (HQ—TSF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 19-C and is classified for High Quality Waters—Trout Stocking, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 0.0227 MGD.-Limits.

Parameters	Mass Units Average Monthly	: (lbs/day) Average Weekly	Instanta- neous Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	ions (mg/L) Maximum	IMAX
E. Coli (No./100 ml) Total Nitrogen	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX Report	Report XXX
Total Phosphorus	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Daily Max Report Daily Max	XXX

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 0.0227 MGD.-Limits.

Parameters	Mass Unit: Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Average Weekly	Instanta- neous Minimum	Concentrati Average Monthly	ions (mg/L) Maximum	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
Dissolved Oxygen	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	XXX
Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD <sub>5</sub> ) Nov 1 - Apr 30	3.5	XXX	XXX	20.0	XXX	40.0
May 1 - Oct 31	1.5	XXX	XXX	10.0	XXX	20.0
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD <sub>5</sub> ) Raw Sewage Influent	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	Report
Total Suspended Solids Raw Sewage Influent	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	Report
Total Suspended Solids	1.5	XXX	XXX	10.0	XXX	20.0
Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml) Oct 1 - Apr 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	2,000 Geo Mean	XXX	10,000
May 1 - Ŝep 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	200 Geo Mean	XXX	1,000
Ultraviolet light transmittance (%) Ammonia-Nitrogen Nov 1 - Apr 30	XXX 0.6	XXX XXX	Report XXX	XXX 3.2	XXX XXX	XXX 6.4
May 1 - Oct 31	0.3	XXX	XXX	1.9	XXX	3.8

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 412-442-4000.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

Southwest Regional Office

**PA0204030**, Industrial, SIC Code 4226, **Calgon Carbon Corp**, P.O. Box 717, Pittsburgh, PA 15230-0717. Facility Name: Calgon Carbon E&A. This existing facility is located in Neville Township, **Allegheny County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated industrial waste.

The receiving stream(s), Ohio River (WWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 20-G and is classified for Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 0.05 MGD.—Limits.

Parameters	Mass Unit Average	ts (lbs/day) Daily	Minimum	Concentrat Average	tions (mg/L) Daily	IMAX
	Monthly	Maximum		Monthly	Maximum	
Flow (MGD)	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Oil and Grease	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 101 are based on a design flow of 0.05 MGD.-Limits.

Parameters	Mass Unit. Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Average Weekly	Average Monthly	Concentrat Instant. Minimum	ions (mg/L) Maximum	IMAX
Flow (MGD) pH (S.U.) Dissolved Oxygen Total Residual Chlorine (TRC) Total Suspended Solids	Report XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX Report 30.0	XXX 6.0 5.0 XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	XXX 9.0 XXX 0.05 60.0

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrations $(mg/L)$		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Average Monthly	Instant. Minimum	Maximum	IMAX
Oil and Grease Iron, Dissolved	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	15.0 XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	$\begin{array}{c} 30.0\\ 7.0 \end{array}$

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 412-442-4000.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

## III. Individual NPDES Permit Applications for Discharges of Stormwater Associated with Construction Activity.

Southwest Regional Office

Applicant: Peoples Natural Gas Company LLC

Applicant Address: 375 North Shore Drive, Suite 600, Pittsburgh, PA 15212

Application Number: **PA300005D** 

Application Type: New

Municipality/County: Washington Township and Amwell Township, Greene County and Washington County.

Total Earth Disturbance Area (acres): 41

Surface Waters Receiving Stormwater Discharges: Receiving Water Ch 93 Class Boyd Run WWF, Craig Run WWF, Craynes Run WWF, Dillie Run HQ-WWF, Pettit Run HQ-WWF, Ruff Creek WWF, Walkers Run WWF.

Proposed Effluent Limitations: The draft permit requires implementation of an Erosion and Sediment Control (E&S) Plan and a Post-Construction Stormwater Management (PCSM) Plan and compliance with Federal technology-based effluent standards at 40 CFR Part 450.

Rate or Frequency of Discharge: Stormwater discharges during and following earth disturbance activities are precipitation-induced and will vary depending on factors such as the area of impervious surfaces, the size and placement of best management practices (BMPs) and the intensity of precipitation.

Project Description: The Project consist of the installation of 13 miles of new 2-inch and 4-inch plastic gas pipeline in Washington Township, Greene County; Amwell Township, Washington County, PA. PNG intends to complete a portion of the Project using Horizontal Directional Drilling (HDD) to reduce earth disturbance and limit environmental impacts. The remainder of the Project will be installed via trenching methods. Use of the existing pipeline will be abandoned. The pipeline will remain in place except for sections of exposed pipeline within streams and wetlands, which will be removed. Additionally, the abandoned pipeline will either be removed or capped at all stream and wetland crossings in accordance with PADEP requirements. In-lieu of grouting the abandoned line at resource crossings, PNG shall maintain liability of the abandoned line. If there are any environmental concerns or any issues identified due to the abandoned pipe, PNG will be responsible to correct the issue. The Project will be restored to pre-construction conditions and no new permanent impervious areas are proposed.

You may review the permit application file by contacting DEP's File Review Coordinator at 412-442-4286.

## STATE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

## PROPOSED NUTRIENT MANAGEMENT PLANS RELATED TO APPLICATIONS FOR NPDES PERMITS FOR CAFOs

This notice provides information about agricultural operations that have submitted nutrient management plans (NMPs) for approval under 3 Pa.C.S. Chapter 5 and that have or anticipate submitting applications for new, amended or renewed (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) NPDES permits, or Notices of Intent (NOIs) for coverage under a general permit, for CAFOs, under 25 Pa. Code Chapter 92a. This notice is provided in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapter 92a and 40 CFR Part 122, implementing The Clean Streams Law and the Federal Clean Water Act.

Based upon preliminary reviews, the State Conservation Commission (SCC) or County Conservation Districts (CCD) working under a delegation agreement with the SCC have completed an administrative review of NMPs described. These NMPs are published as proposed plans for comment prior to taking final actions. The NMPs are available for review at the CCD office for the county where the agricultural operation is located. A list of CCD office locations is available at http://www.nacdnet.org/about/districts/directory/pa.phtml or can be obtained from the SCC at the office address listed or by calling 717-787-8821.

Individuals wishing to comment on an NMP are invited to submit a statement outlining their comments on the plan to the CCD, with a copy to the SCC for each NMP, within 30-days from the date of this public notice. Comments received within the respective comment periods will be considered in the final determinations regarding the NMPs. Comments should include the name, address and telephone number of the writer and a concise statement to inform the SCC of the exact basis of the comments and the relevant facts upon which they are based. Comments should be sent to the SCC, Agriculture Building, Room 310, 2301 North Cameron Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact the SCC through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

## ACT 38 NUTRIENT MANAGEMENT PLANS CAFO PUBLIC NOTICE SPREADSHEET—APPLICATIONS

Agricultural Operation Name and Address	County	Total Acres	Animal Equivalent Units	Animal Type	Protection Waters (HQ or EV or NA)	Renewal / New
Sullivan Farm 372 Hemlock Hill Rd Covington, PA 16917	Tioga County	0	3,036.6	Swine	NA	Renewal
Scott Gochenaur 3057 Harvest Road Elizabethtown, PA 17022	Lancaster County	6.1	370.52	Layers	NA	Renewal

## PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY PERMITS

Under the Pennsylvania Safe Drinking Water Act (35 P.S. §§ 721.1—721.17), the following parties have applied for Public Water Supply (PWS) permits to construct or substantially modify public water systems.

Individuals wishing to comment on permit applications are invited to submit statements to the office listed before the application within 30-days of this public notice. Comments received within this 30-day comment period will be considered in the formulation of the final determinations regarding an application. A comment should include the name, address and telephone number of the writer and a concise statement to inform the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) the exact basis of a comment and the relevant facts upon which it is based. A public hearing may be held after consideration of comments received during the 30-day public comment period.

Following the comment period, DEP will make a final determination regarding the proposed permit. Notice of this final determination will be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* at which time this determination may be appealed to the Environmental Hearing Board.

The permit application and related documents are on file at the office listed before the application and available for public review. Arrangements for inspection and copying information should be made with the office listed before the application.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

#### SAFE DRINKING WATER

#### Application(s) Received Under the Pennsylvania Safe Drinking Water Act (35 P.S. §§ 721.1–721.17).

Northeast Region: Safe Drinking Water Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Michele Lauer, Clerical Assistant 2, 570-830-3077.

**Application No. 3922513**, Construction, Public Water Supply.

Applicant	Catasauqua Municipal Water Works
Address	90 Bridge Street Catasauqua, PA 18032

Municipality	Catasauqua Borough
County	Lehigh County
Responsible Official	Glenn Eckhart Catasauqua Borough Manager 90 Bridge Street Catasauqua, PA 18032
Consulting Engineer	Vanessa Nedrick, Remington & Vernick Engineers 1010 Stony Hill Road Suite 175 Yardley, PA 19067
Application Received	December 13, 2022
Description	The applicant proposes to remove the addition of fluoride.
Application No. 64 Supply.	422503, Construction, Public Water
Applicant	Rockledge Community Association
Address	22 Rock Road Lakeville, PA 18438-6768
Municipality	Paupack Township
County	Wayne County
Responsible Official	Don Strathy 22 Rock Road Lakeville, PA 18438
Consulting Engineer	Irina O. Hott, PE, JHA Companies 466 South Main St. Montrose, PA 18801
Application Received	December 7, 2022
Description	The applicant proposes to install a 4-Log disinfection system.
Application No. 54 Supply.	423501, Construction, Public Water
Applicant	Onvo Travel Plaza— Pine Grove
Address	2227 Scranton Carbondale Highway Scranton, PA 18508
Municipality	Tremont Township
County	Schuylkill County

Special

Responsible Official	Amarbir Singh 2227 Scranton Carbondale Hwy Scranton, PA 18508
Consulting Engineer	Charles A. Kehew, II, P.E., James R. Holley & Associates, Inc. 18 South George Street Suite 300 York, PA 17401
Application Received	February 1, 2023
Description	The applicant proposes to permit an existing softener and a soda ash injection, and a new UV disinfection system.
Application No. 402 Supply.	23502, Construction, Public Water
Applicant	Pennsylvania-American Water Company
Address	852 Wesley Drive Mechanicsburg, PA 17055
Municipality	Hanover Township
County	Luzerne County
Responsible Official	Bruce Aiton Pennsylvania-American Water Company

852 Wesley Drive<br/>Mechanicsburg, PA 17055Consulting EngineerRichard B. Kresge, Jr., P.E.<br/>Atlas Technical Consultants LLC<br/>1001 Lackawanna Trail<br/>Clarks Summit, PA 18411Application ReceivedJanuary 6, 2023DescriptionThe applicant proposes to<br/>replace their existing Sugar<br/>Notch BPS. The project includes<br/>demolition of the existing

## LAND RECYCLING AND ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION

station. The new station will

feature larger pumps.

UNDER ACT 2, 1995 PREAMBLE 1

#### Acknowledgment of Notice(s) of Intent to Remediate Submitted Under the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (35 P.S. §§ 6026.101—6026.908).

Sections 302—305 of the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (Act) require the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to publish in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* an acknowledgment noting receipt of any Notices of Intent (NOI) to Remediate. An acknowledgment of the receipt of a NOI to Remediate is used to identify a site where an individual proposes to, or has been required to, respond to a release of a regulated substance at a site. Individuals intending to use the background standard, Statewide health standard, the site-specific standard, or who intend to remediate a site as a special industrial area, must file a NOI to Remediate with DEP. A NOI to Remediate filed with DEP provides a brief description of the location of the site, a list of known or suspected contaminants at the site, the proposed remediation measures for the site, and a description of the intended future use of the site. An individual who demonstrates attainment of one, or a combination of the cleanup standards, or who receives approval of a special industrial area remediation identified under the Act, will be relieved of further liability for the remediation of the site for any contamination identified in reports submitted to and approved by DEP. Furthermore, an individual shall not be subject to citizen suits or other contribution actions brought by responsible individuals not participating in the remediation.

Under Sections 304(n)(1)(ii) and 305(c)(2) of the Act, there is a 30-day public and municipal comment period for sites proposed for remediation using a site-specific standard, in whole or in part, and for sites remediated as a special industrial area. This period begins when a summary of the NOI to Remediate is published in a newspaper of general circulation in the area of the site. For the site(s) identified as follows, proposed for remediation to a site-specific standard or as a special industrial area, the municipality, within which the site is located, may request to be involved in the development of the remediation and reuse plans for the site if the request is made within 30-days of the date specified as follows. During this comment period the municipality may request that the individual identified as follows, as the remediator of the site, develop and implement a public involvement plan. Requests to be involved, and comments, should be directed to the remediator of the site.

For further information concerning plans or reports, please contact the Regional Office Program Manager previously listed in the notice.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

The DEP has received the following Notice(s) of Intent to Remediate.

Northcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 208 W. 3rd Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448, 570-327-3636.

Contact: Randy Farmerie, P.G., Environmental Program Manager, 570-327-3716.

SGL-12P Unit 4H on the SGL-12P Unit Pad, Primary Facility ID # 855993, 3039 Carbon Road, Monroeton, PA 18832, Franklin Township, Bradford County. Creston, P.O. Box 1373, Camp Hill, PA 17001 on behalf of Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC, 14 Chesapeake Lane, Sayre, PA 18840, submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. The NIR concerns remediation of soil contaminated with produced water. The applicant proposes to remediate the site to meet the Statewide Health Standard. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in *The Daily Review* on March 29, 2023. Application received: March 28, 2023.

Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Eric Supey, Environmental Program Manager.

**4278 Winchester Road**, Primary Facility ID **# 864011**, 4278 Winchester Road, Allentown, PA 18104, South Whitehall Township, **Lehigh County**. JMT Industrial & Environmental, 710 Uhler Road, Easton, PA 18040 on behalf of Community Action Center-Lehigh Valley, 1337 East Fifth Street, Bethlehem, PA 18015, submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil was contaminated with heating oil from an underground storage tank. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in *The Morning Call* on March 2, 2023. Application received: March 23, 2023.

**Migliore Property**, Primary Facility ID **# 832049**, 163 Roberts Road, Mount Bethel, PA 18343, Upper Mount Bethel Township, **Northampton County**. Trimpi Associates, 1635 Old Plains Road, Pennsburg, PA 18073 on behalf of 163 Roberts Road, LLC, 28 Riddle Drive, Bedford, NH 03110, submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil was contaminated with heating oil from an aboveground storage tank. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in *Express Times* on March 10, 2023. Application received: March 30, 2023.

Southeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5900.

Contact: Charline Bass, Administrative Assistant, 484-250-5787.

**Raceway Kia**, Primary Facility ID # **865159**, 1402 Ridge Pike, Conshohocken, PA 19428, Plymouth Township, **Montgomery County**. David DiPascale, TTI Environmental, 1253 North Church Street, Morristown, NJ 08057 on behalf of Wayne Heilman, 1402 Ridge Pike Associates, LLC, 1402 Ridge Pike, Conshohocken, PA 19428, submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. The site has been found to be contaminated with lead. The future use of the site will be an automotive dealership. The proposed cleanup standard for the site is the sitespecific standard. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in *The Montgomery Herald* on December 22, 2022. Application received: February 28, 2023.

McNeil Residence, Primary Facility ID # 850530, 1 Towpath Road, Levittown, PA 19056, Middletown Township, Bucks County. Jason Charles, Environmental Maintenance Company Inc., 1420 East Mermaid Lane, Glenside, PA 19038, Jason Charles, Environmental Maintenance Company Inc., Glenside, PA 19038 on behalf of Rick Becker, Becker Concrete, 41 Tweed Road, Levittown, PA 19056, submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. This NIR states that the site is used as a residence, where soil and groundwater were impacted with No. 2 fuel oil. The future use of the property will remain residential. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in *The Bucks County Courier Times* on February 24, 2023. Application received: March 10, 2023.

Contact: Charline Bass, Administrative Assistant, 484-250-5787.

**Tyburn and Cedar Phase 3**, Primary Facility ID # **865169**, Tyburn and Cedar Road, Fairless Hills, PA 19030, Falls Township, **Bucks County**. Jenifer Fields, ACRI Environmental Group, LLC, 3648 East Brandon Way, Doylestown, PA 18902 on behalf of Kenny Koretsky, Jr., Hope Realty Development LLC, 950 West Trenton Avenue, Suite 775, Morrisville, PA 19067, submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. The site has been found to be contaminated with heavy metals and SVOCs in soil and groundwater. The proposed future use of the property will be nonresidential for industrial or commercial use. The proposed cleanup standard for the site is the sitespecific standard The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in *The Bucks County Courier Times* on February 10, 2023. Application received: February 24, 2023.

Apartment Building, Primary Facility ID # 86519, 306 North Wayne Avenue, Wayne, PA 19087, Radnor Township, **Delaware County**. Jeremy Bolyn, Environmental Maintenance Company, Inc., 1420 East Mermaid Lane, Glenside, PA 19038 on behalf of Howard Smith, Metropolitan Management (for the property owners), 230 Windsor Avenue, Narberth, PA 19072, Narberth, PA 19072, submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. The site has been found to be contaminated with No. 2 fuel oil in soil and groundwater. The future use of the property will remain residential. The proposed cleanup standard for the site is the Statewide health standard The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in *The Times Herald* on December 13, 2022. Application received: March 10, 2023.

#### DETERMINATION OF APPLICABILITY FOR MUNICIPAL WASTE GENERAL PERMITS

Application(s) Received Under the Solid Waste Management Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97) (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101—6018.1003); the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (53 P.S. §§ 4000.101—4000.1904); and Municipal Waste Regulations for Determination of Applicability for a General Permit to Operate Municipal Waste Processing Facilities and/or the Beneficial Use of Municipal Waste.

Northeast Region: Waste Management Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Roger Bellas, Environmental Program Manager, 570-826-2201.

WMGM055-NE006. CES Biogas LLC, 4444 Westheimer Road, Suite G450, Houston, TX 77027-4800, Foster Township, Schuylkill County. An application for Determination of Applicability for coverage under general permit number WMGM055 for the processing and beneficial use of landfill gas as an alternative fuel source at Commonwealth Environmental Systems Landfill. Application received: March 17, 2023. Deemed administratively complete: March 30, 2023.

Comments or questions concerning the application should be directed to Roger Bellas, Environmental Program Manager, 570-826-2201, Northeast Region, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Public comments must be submitted within 60 days of this notice and may recommend revisions to, and approval or denial of the application.

Southcentral Region: Waste Management Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: John L. Oren, P.E., Permits Chief.

WMGM042SC013. Penn England, LLC, 10341 Fox Run Road, Williamsburg, PA 16693, Catharine Township, Blair County. An application for the renewal of coverage under General Permit No. WMGM042 was received on July 31, 2022. Penn England, LLC subsequently requested their renewal application be withdrawn on January 12, 2023 and submitted a Form 37 closure certification to the Department on February 11, 2023, for closure of a grease trap waste (GTW) tank, used in conjunction with the anerobic digester. The tank closure and Form 37 were approved on February 21, 2023, and Penn England, LLC's General Permit application under WMGM042 was withdrawn. Application received: August 1, 2022. Withdrawn: February 21, 2023.

Comments or questions concerning the application should be directed to John L. Oren, P.E., Permits Chief, Southcentral Region, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg,

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 53, NO. 15, APRIL 15, 2023

PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Public comments must be submitted within 60 days of this notice and may recommend revisions to, and approval or denial of the application.

#### DETERMINATION OF APPLICABILITY FOR **RESIDUAL WASTE GENERAL PERMITS**

Application(s) Received Under the Solid Waste Management Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97) (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101-6018.1003); the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (53 P.S. §§ 4000.101-4000.1904); and Residual Waste Regulations for Determination of Applicability for a General Permit to Operate Residual Waste Processing Facilities and/or the Beneficial Use of Residual Waste Other than Coal Ash.

Northeast Region: Waste Management Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Roger Bellas, Environmental Program Manager, 570-826-2201.

WMGR123-NE012, SWN Production Company, LLC, 917 State Route 92 North, Tunkhannock, PA 18657, New Milford Township, Susquehanna County. An application for determination of applicability for coverage under general permit number WMGR123 for the processing, transfer and beneficial use of oil and gas liquid waste at the Warner Water Transfer facility. Application received: March 16, 2023. Deemed administratively complete: March 30, 2023.

Comments or questions concerning the application should be directed to Roger Bellas, Environmental Program Manager, 570-826-2201, Northeast Region, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Public comments must be submitted within 60 days of this notice and may recommend revisions to, and approval or denial of the application.

WMGR123-NE013, SWN Production Company, LLC, 917 State Route 92 North, Tunkhannock, PA 18657, New Milford Township, Susquehanna County. An application for determination of applicability for coverage under general permit number WMGR123 for the processing, transfer and beneficial use of oil and gas liquid waste at the Loke Water Transfer facility. Application received: March 23, 2023. Deemed administratively complete: March 30, 2023.

Comments or questions concerning the application should be directed to Roger Bellas, Environmental Program Manager, 570-826-2201, Northeast Region, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Public comments must be submitted within 60 days of this notice and may recommend revisions to, and approval or denial of the application.

Southwest Region: Waste Management Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745, 412-442-4000.

Contact: Waste Management Program Manager.

WMGR123SW065, CNX Gas Company LLC, 1000 Horizon Vue Drive, Canonsburg, PA 15317, Bell Township, Westmoreland County. A Determination of Applicability was received for coverage under General Permit No. WMGR123 to install four above ground storage tanks

and secondary containment at the Mamont Centralized Water Storage Facility, located at 4581 State Route 819, Apollo, PA 15613, to store, process, and beneficially reuse oil and gas liquid waste. Application received: March 15, 2023. Deemed administratively complete: March 28, 2023.

Comments or questions concerning the application should be directed to RA-EP-EXTUPLSWRO@pa.gov, Southwest Region, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745, 412-442-4000. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Public comments must be submitted within 60 days of this notice and may recommend revisions to, and approval or denial of the application.

#### **OPERATE WASTE PROCESSING OR DISPOSAL** AREA OR SITE

Application(s) Received Under the Solid Waste Management Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97) (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101-6018.1003); the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (53 P.S. §§ 4000.101-4000.1904); and Regulations to Operate Solid Waste Processing or Disposal Area or Site.

Southcentral Region: Waste Management Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: John L. Oren, P.E., Permits Chief, 717-705-4907.

100009. Lancaster County Solid Waste Management Authority, 1299 Harrisburg Pike, Lancaster, PA 17603, Manheim Township, Lancaster County. This application is for a renewal of permit 100009 for Lancaster County Solid Waste Management Authority Municipal Waste Transfer Station, which expires April 12, 2024. This application was deemed administratively complete by the Southcentral Regional Office on March 9, 2023. The Department will accept comments from the general public recommending revisions to, and approval or denial of the application during the entire time the Department is reviewing the permit application. Application received: March 6, 2023. Deemed administratively complete: March 9, 2023.

Comments or questions concerning the application should be directed to John Oren, Permits Chief, (717-705-4907), Southcentral Region, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Public comments must be submitted within 60 days of this notice and may recommend revisions to, and approval or denial of the application.

#### HAZARDOUS WASTE TRANSPORTER LICENSE

#### Application(s) Received Under the Solid Waste Management Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97) (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101-6018.1003); and Hazardous Waste Regulations to Transport Hazardous Waste.

**Renewal Applications Received** 

Central Office: Waste Management Program, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17101,717-787-7561.

Contact: Jonathan Adams.

EQ Industrial Services, Inc., 17440 College Parkway, Livonia, MI 48152. License No. PA-AH 0615. Accepted: March 30, 2023.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 53, NO. 15, APRIL 15, 2023

Interstate Ventures, Inc., 1261 E. Tri County Blvd, Oliver Springs, TN 37840. License No. PA-AH 0732. Accepted: March 30, 2023.

#### REGULATED MEDICAL AND CHEMOTHERAPEUTIC WASTE TRANSPORTER LICENSE

Application(s) Received Under the Solid Waste Management Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97) (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101-6018.1003) and Act 93 of June 28, 1988 (P.L. 525, No. 93) and Regulations to Transport Regulated Medical and Chemotherapeutic Waste License.

Renewal Applications Received

Central Office: Waste Management Program, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17101,717-787-7561.

Contact: Jonathan Adams.

S-J Transportation Co., Inc., 1176 US Route 40, Woodstown, NJ 08098. License No. PA-HC 0031. Accepted: March 30, 2023.

## **AIR QUALITY**

## PLAN APPROVAL AND OPERATING PERMIT APPLICATIONS

The Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) has developed an integrated plan approval, State Operating Permit and Title V Operating Permit program. This integrated approach is designed to make the permitting process more efficient for DEP, the regulated community and the general public. This approach allows the owner or operator of a facility to submit permitting documents relevant to its application for all sources related to a facility or a proposed project, affords an opportunity for public input, and provides for a decision on the issuance of the necessary permits.

The DEP received applications for Plan Approvals or Operating Permits from the following facilities. Copies of the application, DEP's analysis, all pertinent documents used in the evaluation of the application and subsequently prepared proposed plan approvals/operating permits are available for public review during normal business hours at the appropriate DEP Regional Office. Appointments for scheduling a review must be made by calling the appropriate DEP Regional Office. The address and telephone number of the Regional Office is listed before the application notices.

Individuals wishing to file a written protest or provide comments or additional information, which they believe should be considered prior to the issuance of a permit, may submit the information to the DEP's Regional Office. A 30-day comment period from the date of this publication will exist for the submission of comments, protests and information. Each submission must contain the name, address and telephone number of the person submitting the comments, identification of the proposed Plan Approval/Operating Permit including the permit number and a concise statement regarding the relevancy of the information or objections to issuance of the permit.

Any individual wishing to request a hearing may do so during the 30-day comment period. A public hearing may be held, if DEP, in its discretion, decides that a hearing is warranted based on the information received. Persons submitting comments or requesting a hearing will be notified of the decision to hold a hearing by publication in the newspaper, the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* or by telephone, when DEP determines this type of notification is sufficient. Requests for a public hearing and any relevant information should be directed to the appropriate DEP Regional Office.

Permits issued to the owners or operators of sources subject to 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter D or E, or located within a Title V facility or subject to 25 Pa. Code § 129.51(a) or permits issued for sources with limitations on their potential to emit used to avoid otherwise applicable Federal requirements may be submitted to the United States Environmental Protection Agency for review and approval as a revision to the State Implementation Plan. Final Plan Approvals and Operating Permits will contain terms and conditions to ensure that the sources are constructed and operating in compliance with applicable requirements in the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015), 25 Pa. Code Chapters 121-145, the Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C.A. §§ 7401-7671q) and regulations adopted under the Federal Clean Air Act.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

#### PLAN APRROVALS

Notice of Intent to Issue Plan Approval(s) and Notice of Intent to Issue or Amend Operating Permit(s) Under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter B. These Actions May Include the Administrative Amendments of an Associated Operating Permit.

Northcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 208 W. 3rd Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448, 570-327-3636.

Contact: Muhammad Q. Zaman, Program Manager, 570-327-3648.

17-00064A: Rosebud Mining Company, 301 Market St., Kittanning, PA 16201-9642, Burnside Township, Clearfield County. Application received: February 9, 2023. Has applied for a plan approval to construct a new coal processing prep plant, the associated coal storage and loading operations, and two (2) diesel emergency generators. The potential to emit for the proposed sources regarding the aforementioned project were estimated to be equal to approximately: 3.8 TPY NO<sub>x</sub>; 2.0 TPY CO; 0.02 TPY SO<sub>x</sub>, 4.7 TPY PM<sub>10</sub>, 0.2 TPY HAPs, and negligible quantities of VOCs. Specifically, the proposed construction and coal processing plant equipment operations will specifically include a series of conveyors to a screener that will be fully enclosed in addition to the transfer points. The screener's product belt conveyor will feed the radial stacker conveyor used to stockpile the coal into open storage piles. The sources are subject to the Best Available Technology (BAT) requirements of 25 Pa. Code sections 127.1 and 127.12, along with the Federal new source performance standards as specified in 40 CFR Part 60 subpart Y, relating to coal processing and prep plants. Additionally, the stationary diesel emergency engine installations are subject to the Federal new source performance standards as specified in 40 CFR Part 60 subpart IIII, as well as the Federal national emission standards for hazardous air pollutants as specified in 40 CFR Part 63 subpart ZZZZ. Based on the information submitted by the company, the previously listed sources

submitted in the plan approval application will comply with the air quality regulatory rules and requirements as applicable to the proposed project. The plan approval incorporates all applicable requirements pertaining to the proposed project, including testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, reporting and work practice and other necessary compliance demonstration requirements to verify compliance. Based on the findings previously presented, the Department proposes to issue a plan approval for the proposed construction and operation of the previously listed air contaminant sources in accordance with 25 Pa. Code section 127.12. All pertinent documents used in the evaluation of the application are available for public review during normal business hours at the Department's North Central Regional Office, 208 West Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701. Appointments for scheduling a review must be made by calling 570-327-0550.

Northwest Region: Air Quality Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481, 814-332-6945.

Contact: Dave Balog, New Source Review Chief, 814-332-6328.

10-00368H: MarkWest Liberty Bluestone, LLC, Bluestone Gas Processing Plant, 1515 Arapahoe Street, Suite 1600, Denver, CO 80202, Jackson Township, Butler County. Application received: September 14, 2022. Notice is hereby given pursuant to 25 Pa. Code Sections 127.44(b) and 127.424(b), that the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) intends to issue Plan Approval 10-00368H to MarkWest Liberty Bluestone, LLC for the construction of a process heater at their existing Bluestone Gas Processing Plant facility located at 440 Hartmann Road, Jackson Township. The Plan Approval will subsequently be incorporated into the facility's Operating Permit through an administrative amendment in accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.450. Plan Approval No. 10-00368H is for the construction of a vapor combustion unit (VCU), which will control VOC emissions from existing railcar loading operations at the facility (Source ID 108). Emissions from this source are currently being controlled by the existing plant flare. Based on the information provided by the applicant and DEP's own analysis, the proposed VCU will have potential emissions of 12.73 tons of carbon monoxide, 2.79 tons of nitrogen oxides, and 12.59 tons of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) per year. The Plan Approval will contain testing, monitoring, recordkeeping and work practice requirements designed to keep the facility operating within all applicable air quality requirements. The subject source will also be subject to the requirements of New Source Performance Standards, 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart OOOOa, for Crude Oil and Natural Gas Facilities. Copies of the application, DEP's analysis, and other documents used in the evaluation are available for public inspection between the hours of 8 a.m. and 4 p.m. weekdays at the address shown as follows. To make an appointment, contact Records Management at 814-332-6340. Anyone wishing to provide DEP with additional information they believe should be considered may submit the information to the address shown as follows. Comments must be received by the Department within 30 days of the last day of publication. Written comments should include the following: 1. Name, address, and telephone number of the person submitting comments. 2. Identification of the proposed Plan Approval; No. 10-00368H. 3. Concise statement regarding the relevancy of the information or any objections to issuance of the Plan Approval. A public hearing may be held, if the Department of Environmental Protection, in its discretion, decides that such a hearing is

hold a hearing by publication in a local newspaper of general circulation or the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* or by telephone, where the Department determines such notification is sufficient. Written comments or requests for a public hearing should be directed to Eric Gustafson, Regional Air Quality Manager, Department of Environmental Protection, Northwest Regional Office, 230 Chestnut St., Meadville, PA 16335, 814-332-6940.

#### Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, PE, East Permit Section Chief, 717-705-4862.

36-03052D: Boose Aluminum Foundry Co., Inc., 77 N. Reamstown Rd., Stevens, PA 17578, East Cocalico Township, Lancaster County. Application received: January 16, 2023. For the construction of a thermal reclamation system at their facility. The thermal reclamation system includes the construction of two 300-ton sand silos, fabric filter dust collector to control particulate matter emissions. The expected emissions from the thermal reclamation system are as follows: 2.2 tpy of CO, 0.8 tpy of  $NO_x$ , 0.02 tpy of  $SO_x$ , 5.4 tpy of VOC 0.3 tpy of PM and 0.05 tpy of Total HAP's. The facility is a Natural Minor facility. DEP's review of the information submitted by the applicant indicates that air contamination sources will comply with all regulatory requirements, including monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting requirements, furthermore pertaining to air contamination sources and the emission of air pollutants including the best available technology requirement (BAT) of 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.1 and 127.12, and Federal Plan 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart UUU-Standards of Performance for Calciners and Dryers in Mineral Industries. Based on this finding, DEP proposes to issue a plan approval for the proposed activity. If DEP determines that the sources are constructed and operated in compliance with the plan approval conditions and the specifications of the application for plan approval, the requirements established in the plan approval will be incorporated into an Operating Permit pursuant to the administrative amendment provisions of 25 Pa. Code § 127.450.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5900.

Contact: James Beach, New Source Review Chief— Telephone: 484-250-5920.

23-0004B: Covanta Delaware Valley, L.P.- Delaware Valley Resource Recovery Facility, 10 Highland Avenue, Chester, PA 19013, City of Chester, Delaware County. Application received: December 20, 2022. On November 11, 2022, the "Additional RACT requirements for major sources of  $\rm NO_x$  and VOCs for the 2015 Ozone NAAQS" of 25 Pa. Code \$\$ 129.111—129.115 (reference 52 Pa.B. 6960), commonly referred to as RACT III requirements were finalized and effective. The RACT III incorporates provisions and requirements for the control of emissions of nitrogen oxides (NO<sub>x</sub>) and/or volatile organic compounds (VOCs). These provisions and requirements are intended to address the Commonwealth's RACT obligations under section 184 of the Clean Air Act for the 2015 8-hour ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standards. COVANTA is subject to the applicable RACT III requirements, pertaining to Nitrogen Oxides (NO<sub>x</sub>) emissions, and is not subject to the RACT III require-

ments pertaining to VOC emissions as its potential-to-emit VOC emissions are less than 50 tons per year. This plan approval is for the installation of one (1) unit of aqueous ammonia Selective Non-Catalytic Reduction (SNCR) system on each of the municipal waste combustors [a total of six (6) units of the SNCR systems] at their waste-to-energy plant, which incinerates residual waste and municipal waste, and generates 90 net megawatts of electricity per hour, in order to meet the RACT III NO<sub>x</sub> emission limitation of 110 ppmvd, corrected at 7% oxygen, as defined in 25 Pa. Code § 129.112(f). There are no proposed changes to other potential emissions and process operations from the facility. The proposed plan approval incorporates applicable requirements of the RACT III rules pertaining to Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) emissions, monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting. A public hearing is scheduled to be held on May 17, 2023, from 6:30 P.M. to 8:30 P.M., at the Chester City Hall (Chester City Municipal Building), 1 E 4th St, Chester, PA 19013. Persons wishing to present testimony at the hearing should contact Ms. Stephanie Berardi, Community Relations Coordinator, at sberardi@pa.gov or 484.250.5808 to register by May 16, 2023. Individuals who do not register may also present testimony the day of the hearing. Oral testimony will be limited to 3 minutes per individual, and time may not be relinquished to others. Each organization is requested to designate one witness to present testimony on its behalf. A stenographer will be present to record the testimony; copies of remarks are requested to aid in the transcription of comments. All comments, whether submitted to DEP in writing or delivered orally at the hearing, shall merit equal consideration. Persons unable to attend the hearing may submit a written statement and exhibits by May 27, 2023, to Mr. James D. Rebarchak, Environmental Program Manager, Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection, Southeast Regional Office, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, or electronically at ra-epseroaqpubcom@pa.gov. Should inclement weather postpone the hearing date, this information will be posted at the Southeast Community website at https://www.dep.pa.gov/About/Regional/SoutheastRegion/ Community%20Information/Pages/Covanta.aspx. Please contact Ms. Stephanie Berardi or monitor DEP website to determine if a hearing will be held. Persons with a disability who wish to comment and require an auxiliary aid, service, or other accommodations may contact Ms. Stephanie Berardi through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at 800.654.5984 (TDD), to discuss how DEP may accommodate your needs.

#### Correction—previously published on April 8, 2023.

**09-0255:** Suess-Gahman Funeral Home Inc., 33 N Main Street, Telford, PA 18969, Telford Borough, **Bucks County**. Application received: January 31, 2023. For the installation of one (1) Matthews Environmental Solutions Power Pak I crematory unit at the Sadler-Suess Funeral Home. The crematory unit has the following emission potential: 2.30 TPY particulate matter (PM); 3.29 TPY carbon monoxide (CO); 0.99 TPY volatile organic compound (VOC); 0.99 TPY nitrogen oxides ( $NO_x$ ); and 0.82 TPY sulfur oxides ( $SO_x$ ). Both the secondary and primary combustion chambers are fired with natural gas, with a total heat input design of 2.2 MMBtu/hr. Emissions are controlled by the afterburner.

#### **OPERATING PERMITS**

Notice of Intent to Issue Title V Operating Permit(s) Under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter G. Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5900.

Contact: Janine Tulloch-Reid, Facilities Permitting Chief, 484-250-5920.

09-00015, Rohm & Haas Company/Bristol, 200 Route 413, Bristol, PA 19007, Bristol Township, Bucks County. Application received: August 5, 2022. This action is for the renewal of a Title V Operating Permit. The facility is a major source for Volatile Organic Compound (VOC) emissions and Nitrogen Oxides (NO<sub>x</sub>) emissions; the facility is an area source for Hazardous Air Pollutant (HAP) emissions. There are no new sources at this facility. The renewal contains all applicable requirements including monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting. Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) requirements (40 CFR Part 64) for VOC apply to sources controlled by the Catalytic Oxidizer (C09) and the Regenerative Thermal Oxidizer (C18). The source is not a major source for Greenhouse Gases (GHG). Anyone wishing to request information regarding this action can do so by contacting the Southeast Regional Office through the contact person listed in the previously listed header. Comments on the draft permit can be submitted through the Air Quality resource account at RA-EPSEROAQPUBCOM@pa.gov.

23-00021, Congoleum Corp., 4401 Ridge Rd., Trainer, PA 19061-5000, Trainer Borough, Delaware County. Application received: January 19, 2023. This action is for a renewal of the Title V Operating Permit. This is a vinyl floor manufacturing facility where volatile organic compounds (VOC) emissions from the coating lines is routed to the thermal oxidizer. The facility's major emission points include: three Cleaver Brooks natural gas-fired boilers, two diesel fuel-fired emergency electric generators, a parts washer, two rotogravure printing presses/ coaters and a regenerative thermal oxidizer, which emit major levels of nitrogen oxides (NO<sub>x</sub>) and VOCs. The initial permit was issued on 3-5-2002 and was subsequently on Title V Operating Permit was most recently issued on August 22, 2018. CAM (40 CFR Part 64) was addressed at the previous renewal. All new and revised regulatory changes have been addressed in this renewal. The renewed Title V operating permit will contain sufficient monitoring, recordkeeping, reporting and work prac-tice standards to keep the facility operating within all applicable air quality requirements. Anyone wishing to request information regarding this action can do so by contacting the Southeast Regional Office through the contact person listed in the previously listed header. Comments on the draft permit can be submitted through the Air Quality resource account at RA-EPSEROAQ PUBCOM@pa.gov.

46-00005, Merck, Sharp, and Dohme, LLC, 770 Sumneytown Pike, West Point, PA 19486, Upper Gwynedd Township, Montgomery County. Application received: March 8, 2022. This action is for the renewal of the Title V operating permit. The Title V operating permit was last renewed on November 8, 2017. The facility's major emission points are boilers, turbines, generators, support equipment for R & D, and pharmaceutical manufacturing processes, which emit major levels of nitrogen oxides (NO<sub>x</sub>), carbon monoxide (CO), Sulfur oxides (SO<sub>x</sub>), volatile organic compounds (VOCs), particulate matter (PM), and PM<sub>10</sub>. Potential-to-emit for these pollutants is as follows: NO<sub>x</sub>-572.17 TPY; SO<sub>x</sub>-97.63TPY; PM-164.73 TPY; CO-815.52 TPY; VOC-145.66TPY; HAP-16.98 TPY; Formaldehyde-5.88 TPY; and Hexane-6.72 TPY. The boilers are subject to 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Db and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart JJJJJJJ. The turbines are subject to 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart GG. The generators are subject to either 40 CFR Part 60, Subparts IIII or JJJJ, or 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ. Some vaccine and biological processes are subject to 40 CFR Part 63, VVVVVV. All new and revised regulatory changes have been addressed in this renewal, including presumptive RACT III requirements. The renewed Title V operating permit will contain sufficient monitoring, recordkeeping, reporting and work practice standards to keep the facility operating within all applicable air quality requirements. Anyone wishing to request information regarding this action can do so by contacting the Southeast Regional Office through the contact person listed in the previously listed header. Comments on the draft permit can be submitted through the Air Quality resource account at RA-EPSEROAQPUBCOM@pa.gov.

23-00089, Marcus Hook Energy, LP, Marcus Hook Energy Center, Blueball Ave & Ethylene Blvd, Marcus Hook, PA 19061, Marcus Hook Borough, Delaware County. Application received: December 7, 2021.

23-00089: Of a Reasonably Available Control Technology (RACT) II and III plan for Marcus Hook Energy, LP, Marcus Hook Energy Center, located in Marcus Hook Borough, Delaware County, as a significant modification to its applicable Title V operating permit.

In accordance with 25 Pa. Code §§ 129.96—129.100 and 129.111—129.115 (relating to additional RACT requirements for major sources of  $NO_x$  and VOCs for the 2008 and 2015 ozone NAAQS), the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (Department, DEP) has made a preliminary determination to approve a RACT II and III alternate compliance plan for Marcus Hook Energy, LP, Marcus Hook Energy Center. The RACT II and III alternate compliance plan, if approved by the Department, will be issued as a significant modification to the facility's Title V operating permit (23-00089).

The RACT II and III alternate compliance plan incorporates provisions and requirements for the control of emissions of nitrogen oxides  $(NO_x)$ . These provisions and requirements are intended to address the Commonwealth's RACT obligations under section 184 of the Clean Air Act for the 1997, 2008 and 2015 8-hour ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standards. The RACT III alternate compliance plan does not adopt any new regulations. If approved by the Department, this RACT II and III alternate compliance plan will be submitted to the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for as a revision to the Commonwealth's State Implementation Plan (SIP). Requirements that are not part of the RACT II and III alternate compliance plan will be excluded from the SIP revision submittal.

The following is a summary of the RACT II and III alternate compliance plan requirements for this facility that are proposed to be submitted to the EPA as a revision to the Commonwealth's SIP, found in Section E, Source Group RACT II and III of the permit:

#### **Emission Restrictions**

# 001. (25 Pa. Code § 129.97)

Presumptive VOC RACT requirements, RACT emission limitations and petition for alternative compliance schedule.

Pursuant to 25 Pa. Code § 129.97(g)(2)(ii), Presumptive RACT II VOC Emission Limitations:

The combustion turbines with duct burners (Source IDs 101—103) shall each meet the following emission limitations:

-2 ppmvd VOC (as propane) at 15% O<sub>2</sub>

(Compliance with this streamlined permit condition also assures compliance with the presumptive RACT III VOC requirement in 25 Pa. Code § 129.112(g)(2)(iii)(B).)

Emission Restrictions

# 002. (25 Pa. Code § 129.99)

Alternative  $\mathrm{NO}_{\mathrm{x}}$  RACT proposal and petition for alternative compliance schedule.

[25 Pa. Code § 129.99(a)—Alternative RACT proposal and petition for alternative compliance schedule. Additional authority for these emission restrictions are derived from Plan 23-0089.]

(a) The following emission limits apply to each combustion turbine and duct burner:

(1)  $NO_x$ : 3.5 ppmvd at 15% oxygen, calculated as a 1-hour average applicable to combustion turbine with or without duct burner at all times, except during start-up and shutdown periods.

(2) Annual  $NO_x$  emissions shall not exceed 112.3 tons per year based on a 12-month rolling period and calculated as a 12-month rolling sum. This limit includes emissions from start-up, shutdown, and malfunction.

(b) The following emission limits apply to each of the combustion turbines during the stated periods. Maximum total  $NO_x$  mass emissions per turbine during each startup and shutdown event shall not exceed the following values:

(1) Cold startup: 1,410 pounds of NO<sub>x</sub>

(2) Warm startup: 800 pounds of  $NO_x$ 

(3) Hot startup: 610 pounds of  $NO_x$ 

(4) Shutdown: 130 pounds of NO<sub>x</sub>

(Compliance with the requirements in this streamlined permit condition also assures compliance with the Alternate RACT III requirements in 25 Pa. Code § 129.114(a).)

Recordkeeping Requirements

# 003. (25 Pa. Code § 129.100)

Compliance demonstration and recordkeeping requirements.

Pursuant to 25 Pa. Code § 129.100(a)(4) and (b)— Compliance with the VOC RACT emission limit shall be demonstrated by the following:

(a) Performance testing in accordance with the procedures outlined in 25 Pa. Code Chapter 139, Subchapter A (relating to sampling and testing methods and procedures).

(b) Conducting an initial performance test no later than January 1, 2023.

(c) Subsequent tests shall be conducted one time in each 5-year calendar period.

[Compliance with the requirements in this streamlined permit condition also assures compliance with the Alternate RACT III requirements in 25 Pa. Code § 129.115(b)(6) and (d).]

Recordkeeping Requirements

# 004. (25 Pa. Code § 129.100)

Compliance demonstration and recordkeeping requirements.

Pursuant to 25 Pa. Code § 129.100(d)—The owner and operator of an air contamination source subject to this section and §§ 129.96—129.99 and 129.111—129.114, shall keep records to demonstrate compliance with §§ 129.96—129.99 and 129.111—129.114, in the following manner:

(a) The records must include sufficient data and calculations to demonstrate that the requirements of §§ 129.96—129.99 and 129.111—129.114 are met.

(b) Data or information required to determine compliance shall be recorded and maintained in a time frame consistent with the averaging period of the requirement.

(c) The records necessary to determine compliance shall be reported to the Department or appropriate approved local air pollution control agency on a schedule specified in the applicable regulation or as otherwise specified in the operating permit or plan for the air contamination source.

(Compliance with this streamlined permit condition assures compliance with the requirements found in 25 Pa. Code § 129.115(f).)

Recordkeeping Requirements

# 005. (25 Pa. Code § 129.100)

Compliance demonstration and recordkeeping requirements.

(Additional authority for this permit condition is also derived from 25 Pa. Code 127.512.)

The permittee shall maintain records of required monitoring information that include the following:

(a) Maintain written records demonstrating that the unit installation, maintenance, and operation conforms with the manufacturer's specifications and with good operating practices.

(b) Retain all monitoring data, calibration data, QA/QC data, and any additional information required in 25 Pa. Code Chapter 139, Subchapter C.

**Recordkeeping Requirements** 

# 006. (25 Pa. Code § 129.100)

Compliance demonstration and recordkeeping requirements.

Records demonstrating compliance with 25 Pa. Code § 129.100(i) shall be retained by the permittee for 5 years and made available to the Department upon receipt of a written request.

(Compliance with the requirements in this streamlined permit condition also assures compliance with the Alternate RACT III requirements in 25 Pa. Code § 129.115(k).)

**Recordkeeping Requirements** 

# 007. (25 Pa. Code § 129.99)

Alternative RACT proposal and petition for alternative compliance schedule.

(a) The permittee shall maintain detailed records to document each cold, warm, and hot startup event, and each shutdown event.

(b) The permittee shall maintain detailed records of all maintenance performed on the air emissions control systems associated with the combustion turbines for the most recent five-year period.

(Compliance with the requirements in this streamlined permit condition also assures compliance with the Alternate RACT III requirements in 25 Pa. Code § 129.114(a).)

Work Practice Requirements

# 008. (25 Pa. Code § 129.99)

Alternative RACT proposal and petition for alternative compliance schedule.

(25 Pa. Code § 129.99(a)—Alternative RACT proposal and petition for alternative compliance schedule.)

The following procedures apply to the start-up or shutdown of the combustion turbines:

(1) A cold start-up shall be defined as an event that occurs after a combustion turbine has not been operating for at least 48 hours. A cold start-up shall not exceed 8 hours per start-up per combustion turbine and shall not exceed 14 hours per startup of all three combustion turbines combined. If a cold startup is aborted (e.g., the turbine trips prior to the end of the startup event), subsequent restarts will still be defined as a cold startup.

(2) A warm start-up shall be defined as an event that occurs after a combustion turbine has not been operating for eight hours to 48 hours. A warm start-up shall not exceed 5 hours per start-up per combustion turbine and shall not exceed 9 hours per start-up of all three combustion turbines combined. If a warm startup is aborted (e.g., the turbine trips prior to the end of the startup event), subsequent restarts will still be defined as a warm startup.

(3) A hot start-up shall be defined as an event that occurs after a combustion turbine has not been operating for less than 8 hours. A hot start-up shall not exceed 4 hours per start-up per combustion turbine and shall not exceed 8 hours per start-up of all three combustion turbines combined.

(4) The emissions from start-up or shutdown shall be included in the emissions calculations.

(5) A combustion turbine shutdown begins with the initiation of the shutdown command. A shutdown ends with the termination of fuel injection into the combustion chamber(s). A shutdown of all three turbines shall not last longer than 2 1/2 hours.

(Compliance with the requirements in this streamlined permit condition also assures compliance with the Alternate RACT III requirements in 25 Pa. Code § 129.114(a).)

Work Practice Requirements

# 009. (25 Pa. Code § 129.99)

Alternative RACT proposal and petition for alternative compliance schedule.

[25 Pa. Code § 129.99(a)—Alternative RACT proposal and petition for alternative compliance schedule.]

(a) The permittee shall operate the turbines in such a manner as to minimize the duration of start-up and shutdown periods. All  $NO_x$  mass emissions from each cold, warm, and hot start-up and each shutdown periods shall be quantified by the continuous emission monitoring system (CEMS) and included in the annual ton per year facility-wide  $NO_x$  emission limit.

(b) The permittee shall operate and maintain a continuous monitoring system to monitor and record the natural gas consumption from each combustion turbine, a continuous monitoring system to monitor and record the natural gas, gaseous fuel(s), or a combination of natural gas and gaseous fuel(s) consumption from each of the combustion turbine's associated duct burners, and total operating hours for each of the combined cycle combustion turbines.

(c) Compliance with the  $\mathrm{NO}_{\mathrm{x}}$  emission limits in this Source Group shall be determined via CEMS data.

(Compliance with the requirements in this streamlined permit condition also assures compliance with the Alternate RACT III requirements in 25 Pa. Code § 129.114(a).)

Public Comment Details:

A 30-day public comment period is provided for persons wishing to file a written protest, objection, comments or additional information, which they believe should be considered prior to the issuance of a permit. The written comments, information, protests or objections may be submitted to Janine Tulloch-Reid, Environmental Engineering Manager, Air Quality Program, at 2 E. Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, or at jtullochre@pa.gov on or before the closing date of this 30-day public comment period. The 30-day public comment period closes on May 15, 2023.

Each written submission must contain the name, address and telephone number of the person submitting the comments, identification of the RACT III alternate compliance plan, including the permit number, and a concise statement regarding the RACT III alternate compliance plan provision or requirement that the person is commenting on and the relevancy of the information or objections to issuance of the RACT III alternate compliance plan.

Public hearing. A public hearing will be held on June 6th, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. at the DEP Southeast Regional Office, 2 E. Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, to accept oral comments on the proposed RACT III alternate compliance plan action and the proposed SIP revision. To register to speak at the hearing, please contact Ms. Stephanie Berardi, Community Relations Coordinator, at sberardi@pa.gov or 484.250.5808. Speakers must preregister in order to testify at the hearing. The last day to pre-register to speak at the hearing will be Friday, June 2, 2023.

Oral testimony at the hearing will be limited to a maximum of 5 minutes per individual and two written copies of the oral testimony are requested. Each organization is requested to designate one witness to present testimony on its behalf. Persons unable to attend the hearing may submit a written statement and exhibits within 10 days thereafter to Janine Tulloch-Reid at 2 E. Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, or at jtullochre@pa.gov.

All pertinent documents are available electronically for public review and copies can be requested by contacting Janine Tulloch-Reid at 484-250-5920 or at jtullochre@ pa.gov.

#### **OPERATING PERMITS**

#### Notice of Intent to Issue Operating Permit(s) Under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001— 4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter F.

Northcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 208 W. 3rd Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448, 570-327-3636.

Contact: Muhammad Q. Zaman, Program Manager, (570) 327-3648.

49-00043, Shamokin Filler Co., P.O. Box 400, Shamokin, PA 17872, Coal Township, Northumberland County. Application received: October 17, 2022. The Department intends to issue a renewal State Only Operating Permit for the company's coal preparation facility. The facility's main sources include one natural gas/ No. 2 fuel oil fired coal dryer (35 tons per hour capacity), one natural gas/No. 2 fuel oil fired coal dryer (6 tons per hour capacity), a material handling system, a rail car loading operation, one parts washer, site haul roads and stockpiles. The facility has potential to emit under 40.09 tons per year (tpy) of particulate matter/particulate matter with an effective aerodynamic diameter of less than or equal to 10 micrometer, 11.89 tpy of nitrogen oxides, 2.97 tpy of carbon monoxide, 0.61 tpy of volatile organic compounds, 0.04 tpy of hazardous air pollutants and 42.20 tpy of sulfur oxides. The potential emissions for all criteria pollutants remained same at the facility. The emission limits and work practice standards along with testing, monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting requirements have been included in the operating permit to ensure the facility complies with all applicable Federal and State air quality regulations. These operating permit conditions have been derived from the applicable requirements of Title 25 Pa. Code Chapters 121-145, as well as 40 CFR Parts 60, 63 and 98. All pertinent documents used in the evaluation of the application are available for public review during normal business hours at the Department's Northcentral Regional Office, 208 West Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701. Appointments for scheduling a review must be made by calling 570-327-3636.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: Thomas Bianca, PE, West Permit Section Chief, 717-705-4862.

**34-03005, Energex American, Inc.**, 95 Energex Drive, Mifflintown, PA 17059, Walker Township, **Juniata County**. Application received: September 14, 2022. To issue a State Only Operating Permit for the wood pellet manufacturing facility. Potential emissions at the facility are estimated to be the following: CO—106.91 tpy,  $NO_x$ — 36.22 tpy,  $PM_{10}$ —47.61 tpy,  $SO_2$ —4.68 tpy, VOC—49.39 tpy, total HAPs—17.28 tpy. The facility will comply with synthetic minor emission limits to remain permitted under a State-Only Operating Permit. The operating permit will include emission limits and work practice standards along with monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting requirements to ensure the facility complies with the applicable air quality regulations.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, PE, East Permit Section Chief, 717-705-4862.

2087

**22-03076, Bitner Crematory, LLC**, 2100 Linglestown Road, Harrisburg, PA 17110, Susquehanna Township, **Dauphin County**. Application received: November 10, 2022. To issue a State-Only Operating Permit for the operation of a human crematory. Projected actual emissions from the facility are estimated to be 1.0 tpy of  $PM_{10}$ , 1.4 tpy of CO, 0.4 tpy of  $NO_x$ , 0.4 tpy SO<sub>x</sub>, and 0.4 tpy of VOCs. The Operating Permit will include emission limits and work practice standards along with monitoring and recordkeeping requirements to ensure the facility complies with the applicable air quality regulations.

**06-03171, Dengler Funeral Home, Inc.**, 144 N. Spruce Street, Birdsboro, PA 19508, Birdsboro Borough, **Berks County**. Application received: December 5, 2022. For the human crematory facility. The facility's potential emissions are 2.1 tpy of CO, 2.5 tpy of  $NO_x$ , 0.7 tpy of  $SO_x$ , 1.6 tpy of PM and 0.2 tpy of VOC. The Operating Permit will include emission standards and work practice standards along with monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting requirements designed to ensure the facility complies with the applicable air quality regulations.

**38-03036, Cargill, Inc.**, 320 N. 16th St., Lebanon, PA 17046-4511, City of Lebanon, **Lebanon County**. Application received: November 22, 2022. To issue a State-Only Operating Permit for operation of their animal feed mill. Potential emissions from the facility are estimated at 3.1 tpy CO, 3.7 tpy  $NO_x$ , 14.0 tpy  $PM_{10}/PM_{10}$ , 0.0 tpy  $SO_x$ , and 0.2 tpy VOC. The Operating Permit will include emission limits and work practice standards along with monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting requirements to ensure the facility complies with the applicable air quality regulations. Among other items, the conditions include provisions derived from 40 CFR 63, Subpart DDDDDDD—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Area Sources: Prepared Feeds Manufacturing.

#### Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5900.

## Contact: Janine Tulloch-Reid, Facilities Permitting Chief, 484-250-5920.

23-00073, Alan McIlvain Company, 501 Market St., Marcus Hook, PA 19061-4883, Marcus Hook Borough, Delaware County. Application received: October 18, 2022. This action is for the renewal of their non-Title V, State Only, Synthetic Minor Operating Permit. The facility's air emissions sources consist of various types of woodworking machinery with associated dust collectors and a wood waste (primary fuel) and a No. 2 fuel oil-fired boiler with an associated multi-cyclone control device. The facility has six dry kilns and eleven space heaters that are powered by steam from the boiler. The potential to emit nitrogen oxides (NO<sub>x</sub>) from the facility exceeds the major facility threshold, but the company has elected to restrict the  $NO_x$  emissions from the facility to less than 25 tons per year. The permit was most recently issued on June 19, 2018. The renewed permit will include monitoring, recordkeeping, reporting, and work practice standards designed to keep the facility operating within all applicable air quality requirements. Anyone wishing to request information regarding this action can do so by contacting the Southeast Regional Office through the contact person listed in the previously listed header. Comments on the draft permit can be submitted through the Air Quality resource account at RA-EPSEROAQ PUBCOM@pa.gov.

## COAL & NONCOAL MINING ACTIVITY APPLICATIONS

Applications under the Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act (52 P.S. §§ 1396.1-1396.31); the Noncoal Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act (52 P.S. §§ 3301-3326); the Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1-691.1001); the Coal Refuse Disposal Control Act (52 P.S. §§ 30.51-30.66); the Bituminous Mine Subsidence and Land Conservation Act (52 P.S. §§ 1406.1—1406.21) Mining activity permits issued in response to such applications are also subject to applicable permitting requirements of the following statutes: the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001–4015); the Dam Safety and Encroachments Act (32 P.S. §§ 693.1-693.27); and the Solid Waste Management Act (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101-6018.1003).

The following permit applications to conduct mining activities have been received by the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP). A copy of the application is available for inspection at the District Mining Office previously indicated in each application. Requests for 401 Water Quality Certifications are included in individual application only if noted.

Written comments or objections, or requests for an informal conference, or a public hearing, as applicable, on a mining permit application may be submitted by any person or any officer or head of any Federal, State or Local Government Agency or Authority to DEP at the address of the District Mining Office previously indicated in each application within 30-days of this publication, or within 30-days after the last publication of the applicant's newspaper advertisement, as provided by 25 Pa. Code §§ 77.121—77.123 and 86.31—86.34 (relating to public notices of filing of permit applications, opportunity for comment, and informal conferences). Such comments or objections should contain the name, address and phone number of persons submitting comments or objections; application number; and a statement of sufficient detail to inform DEP on the basis of comment or objection and relevant facts upon which it is based.

In addition, requests for an informal conference, or a public hearing, as applicable, on a mining permit application, as provided by 25 Pa. Code § 77.123 (relating to public hearing-informal conferences) or § 86.34 (relating to informal conferences), must also contain a brief summary of the issues to be raised by the requestor at the conference and a statement whether the requestor desires to have the conference conducted in the locality of the proposed mining activities.

Where a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) number is listed, the mining activity permit application is associated with an application for an NPDES permit. A separate notice will be provided for the draft NPDES permit.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

#### **Coal Applications**

*Effluent Limits*—The following range of effluent limits (Table 1) will apply to NPDES permits issued in conjunction with the associated coal mining activity permit. Additional effluent limits will be listed as part of the publication of the draft NPDES permit.

#### Table 1

Parameter	30-Day	Daily	Instantaneous
	Average	Maximum	Maximum
Iron (total) Manganese (total) Suspended solids Aluminum (Total) pH must always be greater than 6 Alkalinity must always be greater		3.0 to 6.0 mg/l 2.0 to 4.0 mg/l 20 to 70 mg/l 1.5 to 4.0 mg/l	3.5 to 7.0 mg/l 2.5 to 5.0 mg/l 25 to 90 mg/l 2.0 to 5.0 mg/l

California District Mining Office: 25 Technology Drive, Coal Center, PA 15423, 724-769-1100.

#### Contact: Bonnie Herbert, Clerical Assistant 3.

Mining Permit No. 03981301. NPDES No. PA0215198. Rosebud Mining Company, 301 Market Street, Kittanning, PA 16201, Plumcreek and Armstrong Townships, Armstrong and Indiana Counties. To revise the permit and related NPDES permit for installation and maintenance of a rockdust borehole and communications borehole, affecting 3.4 proposed surface acres. Application received: January 31, 2023. Accepted: March 30, 2023.

Mining Permit No. 03870701. NPDES No. PA0214558. Rosebud Mining Company, 301 Market Street, Kittanning, PA 16201, Plumcreek Township, Armstrong County. To renew the permit and related NPDES permit. Application received: February 1, 2023. Accepted: April 3, 2023.

Moshannon District Mining Office: 186 Enterprise Drive, Philipsburg, PA 16866, 814-342-8200.

Contact: Cassie Stanton, Clerical Assistant 2.

Mining Permit No. 17110107. NPDES No. PA0257699. Bell Resources, Inc., 1340 Hoyt Road, Curwensville, PA 16833, Bloom Township, Brady Township, and Penn Township, Clearfield County. Permit renewal application for a bituminous surface coal mine and associated NPDES permit affecting 76.2 acres. Receiving stream(s): Unnamed Tributary to Bell Run classified for the following use(s): CWF. Application received: April 3, 2023. Accepted: April 3, 2023.

Mining Permit No. 17100104. NPDES No. PA0257320. RES Coal LLC, 51 Airport Road, Clearfield, PA 16830, Chest Township, Clearfield County. Permit renewal application for a bituminous surface coal mine and associated NPDES permit affecting 125.0 acres. Receiving stream(s): Unnamed tributaries to Chest Creek and Chest Creek classified for the following use(s): CWF. Application received: April 3, 2023. Accepted: April 4, 2023.

#### Noncoal Applications

*Effluent Limits*—The following Table 2 effluent limits apply to NPDES permits issued in conjunction with a noncoal mining permit. Additional effluent limits will be listed as part of the publication of the draft NPDES permit.

	Tab		
Parameter	30-day Average	Daily Maximum	Instantaneous Maximum
Suspended solids Alkalinity must always exceed a		20 to 70 mg/l	25 to 90 mg/l

pH must always be greater than 6.0; less than 9.0

Moshannon District Mining Office: 186 Enterprise Drive, Philipsburg, PA 16866, 814-342-8200.

Contact: Cassie Stanton, Clerical Assistant 2.

Mining Permit No. 57120301. NPDES No. PA0257133. Insinger Excavating, Inc., 344 Kahni Hill Road, Dushore, PA 18614, Forks Township, Sullivan County. Renewal of an NPDES permit associated with a large noncoal (industrial minerals) mining site affecting 40 acres. Receiving stream(s): Unnamed tributary to Black Creek classified for the following use(s): CWF, MF. Application received: April 3, 2023. Accepted: April 4, 2023.

#### MINING ACTIVITY NPDES DRAFT PERMITS

This notice provides information about applications for a new, amended or renewed National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits associated with mining activity (coal or noncoal) permits. The applications concern industrial waste (mining) discharges to surface water and discharges of stormwater associated with mining activities. This notice is provided in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapters 91 and 92a and 40 CFR Part 122, implementing provisions of The Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1—691.1001) and the Federal Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1251—1376).

The Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) has prepared a draft NPDES permit and made a tentative determination to issue the NPDES permit in conjunction with the associated mining activity permit.

#### Effluent Limits for Coal Mining Activities

For coal mining activities, NPDES permits, when issued, will contain effluent limits that are the more stringent of technology-based (BAT) effluent limitations or Water Quality Based Effluent Limits (WQBEL).

The BAT limits for coal mining activities, as provided in 40 CFR Part 434 and 25 Pa. Code Chapters 87—90 are as follows:

Parameter	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instantaneous Maximum
Iron (Total)	3.0 mg/l	6.0 mg/l	7.0 mg/l
Manganese (Total)	2.0 mg/l	4.0 mg/l	5.0 mg/l
Suspended solids	35 mg/l	70 mg/l	90 mg/l
pH must always be greater that		6	0

Alkalinity must always be greater than acidity

A settleable solids instantaneous maximum limit of 0.5 ml/l applies to: surface runoff (resulting from a precipitation event of less than or equal to a 10-year 24-hour event) from active mining areas; active areas disturbed by coal refuse disposal activities; mined areas backfilled and revegetated; and all other discharges and drainage (resulting from a precipitation event of greater than 1-year 24-hour to less than or equal to a 10-year 24-hour event) from coal refuse disposal piles. Similarly, modified BAT limits apply to iron, manganese and suspended solids in surface runoff, discharges and drainage resulting from these precipitation events and those of greater magnitude in accordance with 25 Pa. Code §§ 87.102, 88.92, 88.187, 88.292, 89.52 and 90.102.

Exceptions to BAT effluent limits may be applicable in accordance with 25 Pa. Code §§ 87.102, 88.92, 88.187, 88.292, 89.52 and 90.102.

#### Effluent Limits for Noncoal Mining Activities

The limits for noncoal mining activities as provided in 25 Pa. Code § 77.522 are pH 6 to 9 and other parameters DEP may require.

Discharges from noncoal mines located in some geologic settings (for example, in the coal fields) may require additional water quality-based effluent limits. If additional effluent limits are needed for an NPDES permit associated with a noncoal mining permit, then the permit description specifies the parameters.

#### Coal NPDES Draft Permits

Moshannon District Mining Office: 186 Enterprise Drive, Philipsburg, PA 16866, 814-342-8200.

Contact: Cassie Stanton, Clerical Assistant 2.

NPDES No. PA0257605. Mining Permit No. 17110103. RES Coal, LLC, 51 Airport Road, Clearfield, PA 16830, Girard Township, Clearfield County. Application received: December 5, 2022.

Renewal of an NPDES permit for discharge of water resulting from coal surface mining affecting 240 acres. Receiving stream(s): Unnamed Tributaries to/and Bald Hill Run, classified for the following use(s): CWF.

Unless otherwise noted for a specific outfall, the proposed effluent limits for all outfalls in this permit are the BAT limits previously described in for coal mining activities.

The following outfall(s) listed discharge to Unnamed Tributary G to Bald Hill Run:

Outfall No.	New or Existing	Type	Discharge Rate
001	Existing	Treatment Facility 1	Intermittent
004	Existing	Treatment Facility 4	Intermittent
006	Existing	Sediment Pond A	Precipitation Induced
009	Existing	Sediment Pond D	Precipitation Induced
010	Existing	Sediment Pond E	Precipitation Induced

The proposed effluent limits for the previously listed outfall(s) are as follows:

Outfalls: 001, 004, 006, 009, and 010 (All Discharges) Parameter	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Iron (mg/L)	2.6	5.2	6.5
Manganese (mg/L)	1.7	3.4	4.2
Aluminum (mg/L)	1.3	2.6	3.2
Total Suspended Solids (mg/L)	35.0	70.0	90.0
Sulfate (mg/L)		Report	
Flow (gpm)		Report	
Temperature (°C)		Report	
Specific Conductivity (µmhos/cm)		Report	
pH (S.U.): Must be between 6.0 and 9.0 standard units at all times.			

Alkalinity must exceed acidity at all times.

The following outfall(s) listed discharge to Bald Hill Run:

Outfall No.	New or Existing	Type	Discharge Rate
002	Existing	Treatment Facility 2	Intermittent
007	Existing	Sediment Pond B	Precipitation Induced

## 2090

The proposed effluent limits for the previously listed outfall(s) are as follows:

te as ionows.		
30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
$\begin{array}{c} 3.0\\ 2.0\end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 6.0\\ 4.0\end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 7.0 \\ 5.0 \end{array}$
35.0 s.	Report 70.0 Report Report Report Report	90.0
30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
$\begin{array}{c} 3.0\\ 2.0\end{array}$	$6.0 \\ 4.0$	$\begin{array}{c} 7.0 \\ 5.0 \end{array}$
35.0 s.	Report 70.0 Report Report Report Report	90.0
30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
N/A N/A	N/A N/A Report Report Report Report	7.0 0.5
s.		
to Bald Hill Run:		
Type		arge Rate
reatment Facility 3 Sediment Pond E		rmittent tion Induced
re as follows:		
30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
3.0 1.8 1.3 35.0	6.0 3.6 2.6 70.0 Report Report Report Report	7.0 4.5 3.2 90.0
	Average 3.0 2.0 35.0 35.0 35.0 3. 30-Day Average 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3. 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3.0 2.0 35.0 3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3.	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$

This site also contains or is hydrologically connected to substandard discharges for which there is no responsible party. Pursuant to 25 Pa. Code Chapter 87, Subchapter F, effluent limits for those discharges will be based upon the existing baseline pollution load, or the standards found at 25 Pa. Code Chapter 87.102(a) Group A, whichever is least stringent.

Noncoal NPDES Draft Permits

Knox District Mining Office: P.O. Box 669, 310 Best Avenue, Knox, PA 16232-0669, 814-797-1191.

Contact: Cayleigh Boniger, Clerical Supervisor 2, 814-797-0824.

NPDES No. PA0259784. Mining Permit No. 3076SM8. Lakeland Aggregates, Inc., 11203 Ellion Road, Conneaut Lake, PA 16316, Sadsbury Township, Crawford County. Transfer of an NPDES permit from Conneaut Lake Sand & Gravel, Inc. to Lakeland Aggregates, Inc. No discharge. Application received: February 2, 2023.

Moshannon District Mining Office: 186 Enterprise Drive, Philipsburg, PA 16866, 814-342-8200.

Contact: Cassie Stanton, Clerical Assistant 2.

NPDES No. PA0257451. Mining Permit No. 08220302. Marcus Cole Construction, Inc., P.O. Box 158, Nichols, NY 13812, Windham Township, Bradford County. Application received: September 8, 2022.

Modification of an NPDES permit for discharge of water resulting from surface mining of industrial minerals affecting 85.8 acres. Receiving stream(s): UNT to Wysox Creek and UNT to Trout Brook, classified for the following use(s): CWF, MF. This NPDES Permit currently covers Mining Permit No. 08100306 which will be superseded by Mining Permit No. 08220302.

The following outfall(s) listed discharge to UNT to Wysox Creek:

Outfall No.	New or Existing	Thing	Diach	arge Rate
,		Туре		6
001	Existing	Treatment facility A		ent (pumped)
$\begin{array}{c} 003 \\ 004 \end{array}$	New New	Sedimentation Basin C Sedimentation Basin D		tion Induced
004	New	Sedimentation Dashi D	riecipita	muuceu
The following outfall(s) listed	discharge to UNT to Trout	Brook:		
Outfall No.	New or Existing	Type	Disch	arge Rate
002	Existing	Sedimentation Basin B	Precipita	tion Induced
The proposed effluent limits	for the previously listed outf	call(s) are as follows:		
Outfalls: 001 (All Discharges)		30-Day	Daily	Instant.
Parameter		Average	Maximum	Maximum
Total Suspended Solids (mg/L)		35.0	70.0	90.0
Flow (gpm)			Report	
pH (S.U.): Must be between 6.0	) and 9.0 standard units		-	
Outfalls: 002–004				
(Discharges during Dry Weather	r Conditions)	30-Day	Daily	Instant.
Parameter		Average	Maximum	Maximum
Total Suspended Solids (mg/L)		35.0	70.0	90.0
Flow (gpm)			Report	
pH (S.U.): Must be between 6.0	) and 9.0 standard units		-	
Outfalls: 002—004				
(Discharges after $\leq 10$ -yr/24-hr	Precip. Event)	30-Day	Daily	Instant.
Parameter		Average	Maximum	Maximum
Total Settleable Solids (mL/L)		N/A	N/A	0.5
Flow (gpm)		Report		
pH (S.U.): Must be between 6.0	) and 9.0 standard units at a			

Outfalls: 002-004 (Discharges after >10-yr/24-hr Precip. Event) pH (S.U.): Must be between 6.0 and 9.0 standard units at all times.

New Stanton District Mining Office: 131 Broadview Road, New Stanton, PA 15672, 724-925-5500.

Contact: Tracy Norbert, RA-EPNEWSTANTON@pa.gov.

NPDES No. PA0591866. Mining Permit No. 65900403. Heidelberg Materials Northeast LLC, 2200 Springfield Pike, Connellsville, PA 15425, Unity and Cook Townships, Westmoreland County. Renewal of an NPDES permit affecting 96 acres. Receiving streams: unnamed tributaries to Ninemile Run, classified for the following use: WWF. Application received: January 29, 2021.

The following treated stormwater outfalls discharge to UNT Coolspring Run:

Outfall number	New or existing	Туре	Discharge rate
006	Existing	SWO	Precipitation Dependent
007	Existing	SWO	Precipitation Dependent
008	Existing	SWO	Precipitation Dependent
009	Existing	SWO	Precipitation Dependent
010	Existing	SWO	Precipitation Dependent

The proposed effluent limits for the Outfalls 006-008 are as follows:

Parameter (unit)	Minimum	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant Maximum
pH (S.U.)	6.0			9.0
Iron, Total (mg/L)		3.0	6.0	7.0
Manganese, Total (mg/L)		2.0	4.0	5.0
Aluminum, Total (mg/L)		0.75	0.75	0.75
Total Suspended Solids (mg/L)		35	70	90
Net Alkalinity (as CaCO <sub>3</sub> , mg/L)	0.0			
Alkalinity, Total (as CaCO <sub>3</sub> , mg/L)				Report
Acidity, Total (as CaCO <sub>3</sub> , mg/L)				Report
Flow (gpm)				Report
Temperature (°C)				Report
Specific Conductance (µmhos/cm)				Report
Sulfate, Total (mg/L)				Report
The proposed effluent limits for the	Outfalls 009 and 01	10 are as follows:		

The proposed effluent limits for the Outfalls 009 and 010 are as follows:

Parameter (unit)	Minimum	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant Maximum
pH (S.U.) Iron, Total (mg/L) Manganese, Total (mg/L) Aluminum, Total (mg/L) Total Suspended Solids (mg/L) Net Alkalinity (as CaCO <sub>3</sub> , mg/L) Alkalinity, Total (as CaCO <sub>3</sub> , mg/L) Acidity, Total (as CaCO <sub>3</sub> , mg/L) Flow (gpm) Temperature (°C) Specific Conductance (µmhos/cm) Sulfate, Total (mg/L)	6.0 0.0	3.0 2.0 1.9 35	6.0 4.0 3.8 70	9.0 7.0 5.0 4.8 90 Report Report Report Report Report Report Report

## FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT SECTION 401

The following permit applications, requests for Environmental Assessment approval and requests for 401 Water Quality Certification have been received by the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP). Section 401 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (FWPCA) (33 U.S.C.A. § 1341), requires the State to certify that the involved projects will not violate the applicable provisions of Sections 301-303, 306 and 307 of the FWPCA (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1311—1313, 1316 and 1317), as well as relevant State requirements. Individuals objecting to approval of a request for certification under Section 401 or to the issuance of a Dam Permit or Water Obstruction and Encroachment Permit, or the approval of an Environmental Assessment must submit any comments, suggestions or objections within 30-days of the date of this notice, as well as any questions to the office previously noted in the application. Comments should contain the name, address and telephone number of the person commenting, identification of the certification request to which the comments or objections are addressed, and a concise statement of comments, objections or suggestions including the relevant facts upon which they are based.

The DEP may schedule a fact-finding hearing or an informal conference in response to comments if deemed necessary. Maps, drawings and other data pertinent to the certification request are available for inspection between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on each working day at the office previously noted in the application.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

#### WATER OBSTRUCTIONS AND ENCROACHMENTS

Applications Received Under the Dam Safety and Encroachments Act (32 P.S. §§ 693.1—693.27) and Section 302 of the Flood Plain Management Act (32 P.S. § 679.302) and Requests for Certification Under Section 401 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C.A. § 1341(a)).

Northcentral Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 208 W. 3rd Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448, 570-327-3636.

Contact: Pete Geanacopoulos, Project Manager, 570-327-3701.

**E0804223-005**. **Bradford County**, 2 VanKuren Drive, Towanda, PA 18848, Wells Township, **Bradford County**. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District. Application received: March 16, 2023.

The replacement of County Bridge 38 over Seely Creek (CWF, MF) Latitude: 41.990319°, Longitude: -76.902107°.

**E5704223-001**. Sullivan County, 245 Muncy Street, Laporte, PA 186262, Davidson Township, Sullivan County. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Pittsburgh District. Application received: March 20, 2023.

The proposed project will be to remove a debris pile that is located in the stream channel and on the existing gravel bar. The gravel bar will then be removed and regraded to stream elevations. Instream bank stabilization structures will then be installed along the northern bank of the stream to stabilize and direct stream flow away from the stream banks. The structures that will be used include two (2) single-log current deflectors and two (2) mudsills. A portion of the gravel removed from the bar will be used for back-filling and stabilizing the instream structures. All structures to be installed will be constructed according to Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission specifications. All disturbed areas will be regraded, topped with topsoil where applicable, seeded, and mulched according to the Erosion and Sedimentation Plan. Latitude: 41.304460°, Longitude: -76.415899°.

Northeast Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Michele Lauer, Clerical Assistant 2, 570-830-3077.

**E4002223-007**. Wyoming Valley Sanitary Sewer Authority, 1000 Wilke-Barre Street, P.O. Box 33A, Hanover, PA 18706, City of Nanticoke, Luzerne County. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District. Application received: March 23, 2023.

To construct and maintain a stream restoration project along a 900-LF reach of the South Branch of Newport Creek (CWF, MF) with work consisting of re-grading to create a constructed stream channel having a 5-foot wide bed bottom lined with 12-inches of natural streambed material, an 11-foot top width, 3:1 side slopes, a flood bench with live stake plantings, and a 0.26% longitudinal slope. Other improvements will include eight (8) log vanes, five (5) boulder revetment areas, four (4) coir log areas, random boulder placement, riparian buffer plantings, and R-3 riprap bank protection along the existing stream crossing associated with West Main Street. The project begins at the confluence of South Branch of Newport Creek and West Main Street and terminates approximately 900-LF upstream (Nanticoke, PA Quadrangle Latitude: 41° 11′ 49″; Longitude: -76° 0′ 46″) in City of Nanticoke, Luzerne County.

Northwest Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481, 814-332-6945.

Contact: RA-EPWW-NWRO@pa.gov.

**E0306123-002. PADOT Engineering District 10-0**, 2550 Oakland Avenue, Indiana, PA 15701, Plumcreek Township, **Armstrong County**. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Pittsburgh District. Application received: March 20, 2023.

To remove the existing structure and to construct and maintain a composite pre-stressed concrete PA bulb-tee beam bridge having a normal span of 57.52', an underclearance of 8.3' and an out-to-out width of 43.22' along SR 2005 (known locally as Brick Church Road) over Cherry Run (CWF) in Plumcreek Township, Armstrong County resulting in a total of 244' of permanent stream impacts and 318' of temporary stream impacts. No wetland impacts are proposed. Latitude: 40.68856°, Longitude: -79.41822°.

Southcentral Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: 717-705-4802.

E0603223-001. Berks County Parks and Recreation Department, 2083 Tulpehocken Road, Wyomiss-

ing, PA 19610, Robeson Township, **Berks County**. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Philadelphia District. Application received: January 16, 2023.

To 1) construct and maintain a 4-foot wide earthen berm; 2) install and maintain 162 linear feet of 6-inch diameter PVC pipe; and 3) place and maintain a R-3 rip-rap rock outfall, resulting in 0.02 acre of permanent impact to an emergent wetland and 50 square feet of permanent floodway impact to Allegheny Creek (CWF, MF) all for the purposes of restoring and maintaining an existing aqueduct. The project is located within the watershed of Allegheny Creek (CWF, MF) along Old River Road and the Allegheny Aqueduct Historical Park in Robeson Township, Berks County (40.286136, -75.874719). Permanent wetland loss is less than 0.05 acre and replacement is not required.

**E2203223-003.** York Haven Power Company, LLC, 7315 Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 1100W, Bethesda, MD 20814, Londonderry Township, **Dauphin County**. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District. Application received: March 24, 2023.

To construct and maintain a nature-like fishway in the Susquehanna River (WWF, MF), permanently impacting 770 linear feet of the Susquehanna River (WWF, MF), 14.8 acres of the floodway of the Susquehanna River (WWF, MF), 0.14 acre of palustrine emergent wetlands, and 0.41 acre of palustrine forested wetlands, all for the purposes of allowing for upstream and downstream passage of American Shad, other anadromous fish species, resident fish species, and juvenile American eel. The project is located on Three Mile Island at the York Haven Main Dam (Latitude: 40° 7' 57.58'N; Longitude: 76° 43' 21.75'W) in Londonderry Township, Dauphin County. To compensate for the wetland impacts, the applicant proposes to purchase 0.87 wetland credits from the East Branch Codorus Creek Mitigation Bank (PADEP Permit # MB990367-0002) in York County, Pennsylvania.

Southwest Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745, 412-442-4000.

Contact: Dana Drake, Program Manager.

**E0306222-001**. **Harsco Corporation**, 350 Poplar Church Road, Camp Hill, PA 17011, East Franklin Township, **Armstrong County**. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Pittsburgh District. Application received: March 29, 2023.

**E0306222-001. Harsco Corporation**, 350 Poplar Church Rd, Camp Hill, PA 17011, East Franklin Township, **Armstrong County**; Pittsburgh ACOE District. Applicant is proposing to: Place and maintain fill in 0.04 acre of Palustrine Emergent (PEM) wetland and 0.13 acre of Palustrine Forested (PFO) wetland at the Shaffer Farm, for the purpose of disposing of materials from an off-site slag structural fill area, as part of an Act 2—Land Recycling Program project. Mitigation of wetland impacts will be through a compensatory mitigation bank. 0.22 of wetland credits will be purchased from the Furnace Run Mitigation Bank in Laughlintown, PA. The project site is located at the Shaffer Farm at 671 Reesedale Rd, Adrian, PA 16210 (Kittanning USGS topographic quadrangle; Sub-basin 18F) Latitude: 40' 53" 25.926°, Longitude: -79' 32" 25.6128°.

## ACTIONS

# THE PENNSYLVANIA CLEAN STREAMS LAW AND THE FEDERAL CLEAN WATER ACT

## FINAL ACTIONS TAKEN FOR NPDES PERMITS AND WQM PERMITS

The Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) has taken the following actions on previously received applications for new, amended, and renewed National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) and Water Quality Management (WQM) permits, applications for permit waivers, and Notice of Intent (NOIs) for coverage under General Permits, as listed in the following tables. This notice of final action is published in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapters 91, 92a, and 102 and 40 CFR Part 122, implementing provisions of The Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1—691.1001) and the Federal Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1251—1376). The official file for each listed action can be reviewed at the DEP or delegated County Conservation District (CCD) office identified in the table for the action. DEP/CCD office information is listed as follows for Section I and is contained within the table for Section II. Additional information for permits issued under 25 Pa. Code Chapters 91 and 92a and Individual permits under 25 Pa. Code Chapter 102, including links to Individual Chapter 92a NPDES and WQM Permits, may be reviewed by generating the "Final Actions Report" on DEP's website at www.dep.pa.gov/CWPublicNotice.

DEP office contact information to review official files relating to the final actions in Section I is as follows:

DEP Southeast Regional Office (SERO)—2 E. Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401-4915. File Review Coordinator: 484-250-5910. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_SERO@pa.gov for Chapter 91 & 92a permits; RA-EPWW-SERO@pa.gov for Chapter 102 permits.

DEP Northeast Regional Office (NERO)—2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915. File Review Coordinator: 570-826-5472. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_NERO@pa.gov for Chapter 91 & 92a permits; RA-EPWW-NERO@pa.gov for Chapter 102 permits.

DEP Southcentral Regional Office (SCRO)—909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110. File Review Coordinator: 717-705-4732. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_SCRO@pa.gov for Chapter 91 & 92a permits; RA-EPWW-SCRO@pa.gov for Chapter 102 permits.

DEP Northcentral Regional Office (NCRO)—208 W. Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701. File Review Coordinator: 570-327-3693. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_NCRO@pa.gov for Chapter 91 & 92a permits; RA-EPWW-NCRO@pa.gov for Chapter 102 permits.

DEP Southwest Regional Office (SWRO)—400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222. File Review Coordinator: 412-442-4286. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_SWRO@pa.gov for Chapter 91 & 92a permits; RA-EPWW-SWRO@pa.gov for Chapter 102 permits.

DEP Northwest Regional Office (NWRO)—230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335. File Review Coordinator: 814-332-6078. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_NWRO@pa.gov for Chapter 91 & 92a permits; RA-EPWW-NWRO@pa.gov for Chapter 102 permits.

DEP Bureau of Clean Water (BCW)—400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17105. File Review Coordinator: 717-787-5017. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_Permits@pa.gov.

DEP Regional Permit Coordination Office (RPCO)—400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17105. File Review Coordinator: 717-772-5987. Email: RA-EPREGIONALPERMIT@pa.gov.

Persons aggrieved by an action may appeal that action to the Environmental Hearing Board (Board) under section 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act (35 P.S. § 7514) and 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—508 and 701—704 (relating to Administrative Agency Law).

The appeal should be sent to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, 717-787-3483. Appeals must be filed with the Board within 30-days of publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* unless the appropriate statute provides a different time period. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create a right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decisional law. For individuals who wish to challenge an action, the appeal must reach the Board within 30-days. A lawyer is not needed to file an appeal with the Board. Individuals who cannot afford a lawyer may qualify for free pro bono representation. Call the Secretary to the Board at 717-787-3483 for more information. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure are also available in Braille or on audiotape from the Secretary to the Board at 717-787-3483. Important legal rights are at stake, however, so individuals should contact a lawyer at once.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

For actions taken on applications for pipelines that are regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).

Any person aggrieved by this action may challenge it in an appropriate legal forum. The State and Federal courts are currently split on whether the proper forum to challenge a Department permit, authorization or approval for a facility or activity subject to the Federal Natural Gas Act, 15 U.S.C.A. §§ 717 et seq., is the United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit or the Pennsylvania Environmental Hearing Board. See *Delaware Riverkeeper Network v. Sec'y, Dep't of Envtl. Prot.*, 833 F.3d 360 (3d Cir. 2016); *Delaware Riverkeeper Network v. Sec'y, Dep't of Envtl Prot.*, 903 F.3d 65 (3d Cir. 2018), cert. denied, 139 S. Ct. 1648, 203 L. Ed. 899 (2019) and *Cole v. Dep't. of Envtl Prot.*, 1577 C.D. 2019 WL 2420667

## 2096

(Pa. Cmwlth Ct. June 15, 2021) (Pet. for Allowance of Appeal pending); West Rockhill Twp. v. Dep't of Envtl. Prot., No. 1595 C.D. 2019 WL 2426014 (Pa. Cmwlth. June 15, 2021) (Pet. for Allowance of Appeal pending).

## I. Final Action(s) on NPDES and WQM Permit Application(s) and NOIs for Sewage, Industrial Waste, Industrial Stormwater, MS4s, Pesticides, CAFOs and Individual Construction Stormwater.

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAD090089	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	NP Falls Township Ind., LLC 4805 Montgomery Road Suite 310 Cincinnati, OH 45212-2198	Falls Township Bucks County	SERO
PAD100020	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	PA DOT Engineering District 10 0 2550 Oakland Avenue Indiana, PA 15701-3388	Butler Township Butler County	NWRC
PAD150057	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	The Hankin Group 707 Eagleview Boulevard Suite 400 Exton, PA 19341-1159	Uwchlan Township Chester County	SERO
PAD150075	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	MDG Downingtown LP 500 Office Center Drive Suite 200 Fort Washington, PA 19034-3219	East Brandywine Township Chester County	SERO
PAD150282	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Charlestown Township Chester County P.O. Box 507 4030 Whitehorse Road Devault, PA 19432	Charlestown Township Chester County	SERO
PAD230025	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Marj Properties LP 114 Yearsley Mill Road Media, PA 19063-5518	Middletown Township Delaware County	SERO
PAD350035	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Moscow Sewer Authority Lackawanna County 309 Market Street P.O. Box 525 Moscow, PA 18444-0525	Moscow Borough Lackawanna County	NERO
PAD390052	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Nestle Purina Petcare 2050 Pope Road Allentown, PA 18104-9308	South Whitehall Township Lehigh County	NERO
PAD420011	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	PA American Water Co. 203 Sycamore Street Punxsutawney, PA 15767	Kane Borough McKean County	NWRC
PAD460017	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Toll PA III LP 1140 Virginia Drive Fort Washington, PA 19034-3204	Lower Moreland Township Montgomery County	SERO
PAD520044	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	DOT Red LLC Econo Pak 535 Route 6 and 209 Milford, PA 18337-7847	Milford Township Pike County	NERO
PAD640006	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Renehan Thomas 26 Long Lane Malvern, PA 19355-2916	Manchester Township Wayne County	NERO
PAD650029	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	112 Mark Dr., LLC One Monroeville Center Suite 1050 Monroeville, PA 15146	Salem Township Westmoreland County	SWRO
0113816	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Oakside Park c/o Upper Adams Jaycees P.O. Box 38 Biglerville, PA 17307-0038	Butler Township Adams County	SCRO

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
0113821	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Dewar Nathan 575 Gettysburg Road Littlestown, PA 17340-9771	Germany Township Adams County	SCRO
0115808	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Rice Fruit Co. 2760 Carlisle Road Gardners, PA 17324-9684	Huntington Township Adams County	SCRO
0123801	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Block Karen 11 Round Top Lane Gettysburg, PA 17325-8746	Cumberland Township Adams County	SCRO
0123802	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Garrison Falls HOA 84 Garrison Falls Drive Gettysburg, PA 17325-2013	Mount Joy Township Adams County	SCRO
0620802	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Zintak Priscilla 1104 Thrush Road Wyomissing, PA 19610-2546	Wyomissing Borough Berks County	SCRO
0913807	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Steve Casper 170 Buckmanville Road Newtown, PA 18940-3114	Upper Makefield Township Bucks County	SERO
1023804	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Andrew Dillner 200 State Road Valencia, PA 16059-2142	Middlesex Township Butler County	NWRO
1023805	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Donald and Joan Brenckle 168 Camp Fatima Road Renfrew, PA 16053-9104	Connoquenessing Township Butler County	NWRO
1023808	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Robert Hodek 105 Hidden Hill Road Sarver, PA 16055-8908	Clinton Township Butler County	NWRO
1413801	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Mountain View Country Club 310 Elks Club Road Boalsburg, PA 16827-1609	Harris Township Centre County	NCRO
1713801	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Dubois City Clearfield County 16 W Scribner Avenue Dubois, PA 15801-2210	DuBois City Clearfield County	NCRO
2019811	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Jeffery Scott Lang 21489 German Road Meadville, PA 16335	Woodcock Township Crawford County	NWRO
2223802	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Vineyards At Hershey 193 Cedar Street Middletown, PA 17057-4604	Londonderry Township Dauphin County	SCRO
2223803	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Milton Hershey School 1201 Homestead Lane Hershey, PA 17033-8818	Derry Township Dauphin County	SCRO
2518805	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Kathryn Maholic 235 Edgewater Circle Erie, PA 16509	Franklin Township Erie County	NWRO
3323801	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Robert Love 106 Dusty Rose Court Simi Valley, CA 93065-7349	Union Township Jefferson County	NWRO
4613812	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Gwynedd Square Center 773 Sumneytown Pike Lansdale, PA 19446-5301	Upper Gwynedd Township Montgomery County	SERO
4613859	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Congregation Beth Or 239 E Welsh Road Ambler, PA 19002-2314	Upper Dublin Township Montgomery County	SERO
4614811	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Tornetta Realty 910 Germantown Pike Plymouth Meeting, PA 19462-7400	East Norriton Township Montgomery County	SERO

Application		Application			DEP
Number	Permit Type	Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	Office
4615804	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Willowbend HOA 1800 Tournament Drive Blue Bell, PA 19422-1299	Whitpain Township Montgomery County	SERO
5513802	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Klaue Mary 315 Walnut Road Middleburg, PA 17842-8949	Franklin Township Snyder County	NCRO
5813801	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Lewis Lake Association P.O. Box 6 Union Dale, PA 18470-0006	Herrick Township Susquehanna County	NERO
6123802	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Brian Wagner 915 Railroad Street Springdale, PA 15144-1726	President Township Venango County	NWRO
PA0044113	Major Sewage Facility >= 1 MGD and < 5 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	South Middleton Township Municipal Authority Cumberland County P.O. Box 8 345 Lear Lane Boiling Springs, PA 17007-0008	South Middleton Township Cumberland County	SCRO
PA0043273	Major Sewage Facility with CSOs Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Hollidaysburg Borough Sewer Authority Blair County 401 Blair Street Hollidaysburg, PA 16648-1805	Frankstown Township Blair County	SCRO
2007404	Major Sewage Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Conneaut Lake Joint Municipal Authority Crawford County P.O. Box 277 9888 Highway 285 Conneaut Lake, PA 16316-0277	Sadsbury Township Crawford County	NWRO
2286407	Major Sewage Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Highspire Borough Authority Dauphin County 640 Eshelman Street Highspire, PA 17034-1610	Highspire Borough Dauphin County	SCRO
4322408	Major Sewage Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Greenville Borough Sanitary Authority Mercer County P.O. Box 604 125 Main Street Greenville, PA 16125-0604	Greenville Borough Mercer County	NWRO
PA0002941	Minor Industrial Waste Facility without ELG Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Allegheny Energy Supply LLC c/o Environmental Performance 800 Cabinhill Drive Greensburg, PA 15601	Monongahela Township Greene County	SWRO
PA0086878	Minor Industrial Waste Facility without ELG Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Hamburg Borough Municipal Authority Berks County 61 N 3rd Street Hamburg, PA 19526-1501	Windsor Township Berks County	SCRO
PA0031968	Minor Sewage Facility < 0.05 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	PA DPW 4534 Tar Kiln Road James Creek, PA 16657-7102	Todd Township Huntingdon County	SCRO
PA0101907	Minor Sewage Facility < 0.05 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Aqua PA Inc. 665 S Dock Street Sharon, PA 16146-1835	Salem Township Clarion County	NWRO

A		A			תקת
Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PA0261645	Minor Sewage Facility < 0.05 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Officers Christian Fellowship 4500 Milligans Cove Road Manns Choice, PA 15550-8016	Harrison Township Bedford County	SCRO
PA0021695	Minor Sewage Facility >= 0.05 MGD and < 1 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Orbisonia & Rockhill Borough Joint Municipal Authority Huntingdon County P.O. Box 346 843 Elliott Street Orbisonia, PA 17243-0346	Orbisonia Borough Huntingdon County	SCRO
PA0084182	Minor Sewage Facility >= 0.05 MGD and < 1 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Peters Township Municipal Authority P.O. Box 19 5000 Steele Avenue Lemasters, PA 17231-0019	Peters Township Franklin County	SCRO
PA0263842	Minor Sewage Facility >= 0.05 MGD and < 1 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Keating Township McKean County 7160 Route 46 Smethport, PA 16749-4700	Keating Township McKean County	NWRO
0117401	Minor and Non-NPDES Sewage Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Issued	The York Water Co. 130 East Market Street York, PA 17401	Straban Township Adams County	SCRO
1788403	Minor and Non-NPDES Sewage Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Country Place MHC P.O. Box 275 Lake Hiawatha, NJ 07034-0275	Sandy Township Clearfield County	NCRO
1793411	Minor and Non-NPDES Sewage Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Country Place MHC P.O. Box 275 Lake Hiawatha, NJ 07034-0275	Sandy Township Clearfield County	NCRO
NOEXSE217	No Exposure Certification	Issued	Harold Beck & Sons Inc. 11 Terry Drive Newtown, PA 18940-1806	Newtown Township Bucks County	SERO
PAG030147	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Issued	Old Dominion Freight Line Inc. 500 Old Dominion Way Thomasville, NC 27360-8923	Upper Providence Township Montgomery County	SERO
PAG030149	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Issued	ITW Performance Polymers 130 Commerce Drive Montgomeryville, PA 18936-9624	Montgomery Township Montgomery County	SERO
PAG030159	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Issued	Rolling Frito Lay Sales LP 23 Beethoven Street Binghamton, NY 13905-4250	Chester Township Delaware County	SERO
PAG030168	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Issued	Waste Management of PA Inc. 400 Progress Drive Telford, PA 18969-1191	Hilltown Township Bucks County	SERO
PAG030176	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Issued	Liberty Electric Power LLC 1000 Industrial Highway Eddystone, PA 19022-1529	Eddystone Borough Delaware County	SERO

# 2100

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAG032227	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Issued	Bethlehem Landfill Co. 2335 Applebutter Road Bethlehem, PA 18015-6004	Lower Saucon Township Northampton County	NERO
PAG032300	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Issued	Lockheed Martin 459 Kennedy Drive Archbald, PA 18403-1598	Archbald Borough Lackawanna County	NERO
PAG032301	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Issued	Waste Management of PA Inc. 2710 Golden Key Road Kutztown, PA 19530-8563	Weisenberg Township Lehigh County	NERO
PAG032310	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Issued	E Schneider & Sons Inc. P.O. Box 908 Allentown, PA 18105-0908	Whitehall Township Lehigh County	NERO
PAG033667	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Issued	McConway & Torley LLC 109 48th Street Pittsburgh, PA 15201-2755	Kutztown Borough Berks County	SCRO
PAG036309	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Denied	Hemminger Auto & Truck Inc. 6288 Penn Avenue Friedens, PA 15541-8804	Jenner Township Somerset County	SWRO
PAG042213	PAG-04 NPDES General Permit for Small Flow Treatment Facilities	Issued	LMF Landgroup LLC 6257 Peters Road Germansville, PA 18053-2122	Heidelberg Township Lehigh County	NERO
PAG043509	PAG-04 NPDES General Permit for Small Flow Treatment Facilities	Issued	Homer Roger H 296 Hemlock Hill Drive Austin, PA 16720-4734	Fannett Township Franklin County	SCRO
PAG123813	PAG-12 NPDES General Permit for CAFOs	Issued	Star Rock Farms Star Rock Dairy Joint Client 175 Chestnut Grove Road Conestoga, PA 17516-9317	Chanceford Township York County	SCRO
PAG123943	PAG-12 NPDES General Permit for CAFOs	Issued	Curtis R Musser 330 Bordner Road Richland, PA 17087-9608	Bethel Township Berks County	SCRO
1523402	Pump Stations Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Kennett Township Chester County 801 Burrows Run Road Chadds Ford, PA 19317-9219	Kennett Township Chester County	SERO
6320404	Sewage Treatment Facilities Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Cecil Township Municipal Authority 375 Southpointe Boulevard Canonsburg, PA 15317-8587	Cecil Township Washington County	SWRO
4623402	Sewer Extensions Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Bridgeport Borough Montgomery County 63 W 4th Street Bridgeport, PA 19405-1050	Upper Merion Township Montgomery County	SERO
0219404	Sewer Extensions and Pump Stations Individual WQM Permit	Issued	McCandless Township Sanitary Authority Allegheny County 418 W Arcadia Drive Pittsburgh, PA 15237-5506	Hampton Township Allegheny County	SWRO
PA0264938	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Stevens James S 455 Settlers Village Circle Cranberry Twp., PA 16066	Limestone Township Warren County	NWRO

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PA0265373	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Artman Andrew 29 S Good Hope Road Greenville, PA 16125-8125	West Salem Township Mercer County	NWRO
PA0267317	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Williamson Donna L 388 Hollen Road Tyrone, PA 16686-7316	Antis Township Blair County	SCRO
PA0291331	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Niggel Louis 371 Lamplite Lane Williston, VT 05495-7711	Corydon Township McKean County	NWRO
PA0291382	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Patrick and Stephanie Hargest 5650 Gibson Hill Road Edinboro, PA 16412-1817	Washington Township Erie County	NWRO
PA0291439	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Kasony Dom 310 Hickory Nut Road Eighty Four, PA 15330	Tionesta Township Forest County	NWRO
PA0291773	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Whorl Jessica 11083 Sawmill Road Glen Rock, PA 17327-8289	Shrewsbury Borough York County	SCRO
PA0292702	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Coburn Elizabeth 8111 Grubb Road McKean, PA 16426-1229	McKean Township Erie County	NWRO
PA0292770	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Ellenberger Mark 394 Bullcreek Road Butler, PA 16002-7778	Jefferson Township Butler County	NWRO
PA0292818	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Debra and Henry Speerstra 2384 Horsecreek Road Oil City, PA 16301	Cranberry Township Venango County	NWRO
0720404	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Williamson Donna L 388 Hollen Road Tyrone, PA 16686-7316	Antis Township Blair County	SCRO
1022419	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Ellenberger Mark 394 Bullcreek Road Butler, PA 16002-7778	Jefferson Township Butler County	NWRO
2522436	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Patrick and Stephanie Hargest 5650 Gibson Hill Road Edinboro, PA 16412-1817	Washington Township Erie County	NWRO
2522440	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Coburn Elizabeth 8111 Grubb Road McKean, PA 16426-1229	McKean Township Erie County	NWRO
2722401	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Kasony Dom 310 Hickory Nut Road Eighty Four, PA 15330	Tionesta Township Forest County	NWRO
2895403	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Homer Roger H 296 Hemlock Hill Drive Austin, PA 16720-4734	Fannett Township Franklin County	SCRO
4222408	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Niggel Louis 371 Lamplite Lane Williston, VT 05495-7711	Corydon Township McKean County	NWRO
4317409	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Artman Andrew 29 S Good Hope Road Greenville, PA 16125-8125	West Salem Township Mercer County	NWRO

Application Number 6122408	<i>Permit Type</i> Single Residence	Application Type Issued	Applicant Name & Address Debra and Henry Speerstra	Municipality, County Cranberry Township	<i>DEP Office</i> NWRO
0122400	Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issueu	2384 Horsecreek Road Oil City, PA 16301	Venango County	it wito
PA0082643	Small Flow Treatment Facility Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Flatbush Athletics LLC 5000 Hanover Road Hanover, PA 17331-9077	Union Township Adams County	SCRO
PA0097535	Small Flow Treatment Facility Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Norma Pennsylvania Inc. dba Breeze Ind Products Corp 3582 Tunnelton Road Saltsburg, PA 15681-3305	Conemaugh Township Indiana County	NWRO
0188413	Small Flow Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Flatbush Athletics LLC 5000 Hanover Road Hanover, PA 17331-9077	Union Township Adams County	SCRO
WQG01671905	Small Flow Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Whorl Jessica 11083 Sawmill Road Glen Rock, PA 17327-8289	Shrewsbury Borough York County	SCRO
WQG02652202	WQG-02 WQM General Permit	Issued	Mt Pleasant Township Municipal Authority Westmoreland County P.O. Box 137 208 Poker Road Mammoth, PA 15664-0137	Mount Pleasant Township Westmoreland County	SWRO

II. Final Action(s) on PAG-01 and PAG-02 General NPDES Permit NOIs.

Permit Number	Permit Type	Action Taken	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	Office
PAC350031	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Hemingway Development Limited Partnership 2 Glenmaura National Blvd. Moosic, PA 18505	Moosic Borough Lackawanna County	Lackawanna County Conservation District 1027 S. Abington Rd. South Abington Twp., PA 18411 570-382-3086 RA-EPWW-NERO@ pa.gov
PAC510251	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	A.P. Construction Inc. Synterra Ltd. Navy Yard Corporate Center One Crescent Drive Suite 104 Philadelphia, PA 19112	City of Philadelphia Philadelphia County	DEP, SERO 2 E. Main Street Norristown, PA 19401 484-250-5821 RA-EPNPDES_SERO@ pa.gov
PAC150327	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	ELU-Planebrook Guthriesville, LLC 114 East Lancaster Avenue Downingtown, PA 19335	East Brandywine Township Chester County	Chester County Conservation District 674 Unionville Road Suite 105 Kennett Square, PA 19348 610-455-1360 RA-EPNPDES_SERO@ pa.gov
PAC150329	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Penn Oaks HP Enterprises, LP c/o Allied Properties, Inc. 4737 Concord Pike Wilmington, DE 19803	Birmingham Township Chester County	Chester County Conservation District 674 Unionville Road Suite 105 Kennett Square, PA 19348 610-455-1360 RA-EPNPDES_SERO@ pa.gov

Permit Number	Permit Type	Action Taken	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	Office
PAC150322	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Triple S, LLC 194 Nolt Road New Holland, PA 17557	West Sadsbury Township Chester County	Chester County Conservation District 674 Unionville Road Suite 105 Kennett Square, PA 19348 610-455-1360 RA-EPNPDES_SERO@ pa.gov
PAC090062	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Swaminarayan Cultural Association 4731 Bethlehem Pike Telford, PA 18969	Hilltown Township Bucks County	Bucks County Conservation District 1456 Ferry Road Doylestown, PA 18901-5550 215-345-7577 x110 RA-EPNPDES_SERO@ pa.gov
PAC670572	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	JLM Real Estate Investments LLC 950 East Main Street P.O. Box 472 Schuylkill Haven, PA 17972	Dover Township York County	York County Conservation District 2401 Pleasant Valley Road Suite 101 Room 139 York, PA 17402 717-840-7430
PAC670607	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania 1600 Colony Road York, PA 17408	Hanover Borough York County	York County Conservation District 2401 Pleasant Valley Road Suite 101 Room 139 York, PA 17402 717-840-7430
PAC250185	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Winland Foods 11160 Parkway Drive North East, PA 16428	North East Township Erie County	Erie County Conservation District 1927 Wager Road Erie, PA 16509 814-825-6033
PAC380124A-1	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Springbrook Farms, Inc. 501 W Governor Road Hershey, PA 17033	South Londonderry Township Lebanon County	Lebanon County Conservation District 2120 Cornwall Road Suite 5 Lebanon, PA 17042 717-277-5275
PAC380257	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Cherie Kay Properties, LLC 61 Mountain Road Lititz, PA 17543	Heidelberg Township Lebanon County	Lebanon County Conservation District 2120 Cornwall Road Suite 5 Lebanon, PA 17042 717-277-5275
PAC380277	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	UGI Utilities Inc. 1 UGI Drive Denver, PA 17517-9039	North Annville Township South Annville Township Lebanon County	Lebanon County Conservation District 2120 Cornwall Road Suite 5 Lebanon, PA 17042 717-277-5275
PAC100075	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Leslie Farms LP 11279 Perry Highway Suite 509 Wexford, PA 15090	Connoquenessing Borough Butler County	Butler County Conservation District 120 Hollywood Drive Suite 201 Butler, PA 16001 724-284-5270

Permit Number	Permit Type	Action Taken	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	Office
PAC460176	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Oxford Land Development P.O. Box 841 521 Stump Road Suite C Montgomeryville, PA 18936	Horsham Township Montgomery County	Montgomery County Conservation District 143 Level Road Collegeville, PA 19426-3313 610-489-4506 x 10 RA-EPNPDES_SERO@ pa.gov
PAC460785	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Elmwood Park Zoo 1661 Harding Boulevard Norristown, PA 19401-2974	Norristown Borough Montgomery County	Montgomery County Conservation District 143 Level Road Collegeville, PA 19426-3313 RA-EPNPDES_SERO@ pa.gov
PAC460419	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	137 Stenton Avenue LP 1401 Morris Road Blue Bell, PA 19422	Whitpain Township Montgomery County	Montgomery County Conservation District 143 Level Road Collegeville, PA 19426-3313 610-489-4506 x 10 RA-EPNPDES_SERO@ pa.gov
PAC520009	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Thomas Murante 486 Route 6 & 209 Milford, PA 18337	Westfall Township Pike County	Pike County Conservation District 556 Route 402 Ste. 1 Hawley, PA 18428 570-226-8220 RA-EPWW-NERO@ pa.gov
PAC480171	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Central PA Enquiries 30, LLC 146 Pine Grove Circle York, PA 17403 and Triple Net Investments XLVII, LLC 171 Rt. 173 Asbury, NJ 08802	Bethlehem Township Northampton County	14 Gracedale Ave. Greystone Building Nazareth, PA 18064-9211 610-829-6276 RA-EPWW-NERO@
					pa.gov

# STATE CONSERVATION COMMISSION NUTRIENT MANAGEMENT PLANS RELATED TO APPLICATIONS FOR NPDES PERMITS FOR CAFOs

The State Conservation Commission has taken the following actions on previously received applications for nutrient management plans under 3 Pa.C.S. Chapter 5, for agricultural operations that have or anticipate submitting applications for new, amended or renewed NPDES permits or NOIs for coverage under a general permit for CAFOs under 25 Pa. Code Chapter 92a. This notice is provided in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapter 92a and 40 CFR Part 122, implementing The Clean Streams Law and the Federal Clean Water Act.

Persons aggrieved by an action may appeal under 3 Pa.C.S. § 517, section 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act and 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—508 and 701—704 to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, 717-787-3483. Appeals must be filed with the Board within 30-days of publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Secretary of the Board at 717-787-3483. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create a right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decision law.

For individuals who wish to challenge actions, appeals must reach the Board within 30-days. A lawyer is not needed to file an appeal with the Board.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

Important legal rights are at stake, however, so individuals should show this notice to a lawyer at once. Persons who cannot afford a lawyer may qualify for pro bono representation. Call the Secretary of the Board at 717-787-3483 for more information.

## NUTRIENT MANAGEMENT PLAN CAFO PUBLIC NOTICE SPREADSHEET—ACTIONS

Agricultural Operation Name and Address	County	Total Acres	Animal Equivalent Units	Animal Type	Special Protection Waters (HQ or EV or NA)	Approved or Disapproved
Curtis R. Musser Farm 330 Bordner Road Richland, PA 17087	Berks County	64.1	637.59	Swine	NA	Approved

# PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY PERMITS

The Department has taken the following actions on applications received under the Pennsylvania Safe Drinking Water Act (35 P.S. §§ 721.1—721.17) for the construction, substantial modification or operation of a public water system.

Persons aggrieved by an action may appeal that action to the Environmental Hearing Board (Board) under section 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act and 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501-508 and 701-704. The appeal should be sent to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, 717-787-3483. Appeals must be filed with the Board within 30-days of publication of this notice in the Pennsylvania Bulletin unless the appropriate statute provides a different time period. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure are also available in Braille or on audiotape from the Secretary to the Board at 717-787-3483. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create a right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decisional law.

For individuals who wish to challenge an action, the appeal must reach the Board within 30-days. A lawyer is not needed to file an appeal with the Board.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact the Environmental Hearing Board through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

Important legal rights are at stake, however, so individuals should show this document to a lawyer at once. Persons who cannot afford a lawyer may qualify for free pro bono representation. Call the Secretary to the Board at 717-787-3483 for more information.

### SAFE DRINKING WATER

#### Actions Taken Under the Pennsylvania Safe Drinking Water Act (35 P.S. §§ 721.1—721.17).

Northeast Region: Safe Drinking Water Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Michele Lauer, Clerical Assistant 2, 570-830-3077.

Operation Permit No. 3540070, Public Water Supply.

Applicant	Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc.
Address	762 West Lancaster Ave. Bryn Mawr, PA 19010
Municipality	Hazle Township

County	Luzerne County
Consulting Engineer	Joshua P. Shoff, E.I.T. Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. 1 Aqua Way White Haven, PA 18661
Application Received	March 24, 2023
Permit Issued	March 29, 2023
Description	Issuance of an Operation Permit for a recirculation pump station in Eagle Rock Resort.

Northcentral Region: Safe Drinking Water Program, 208 W. 3rd Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448, 570-327-3636.

Contact: Nadera Bair, Clerk II, 570-327-0551.

**Operation Permit 5920502MA-A2.** PWSID No. **2590042. Wellsboro Municipal Authority**, 14 Crafton Street, Wellsboro, PA 16901, Wellsboro Borough, **Tioga County**. Application received: February 28, 2023. Permit Issued: March 29, 2023. The permit authorizes the water system for the replacement of the water system's 5 turbidimeters from Hach 1720E and 660SE to Pyxis Lab Inc Model # LT-739.

Southcentral Region: Safe Drinking Water Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: Wade Cope, P.E., Environmental Engineer, 717-705-4708.

Emergency Permit 4423501 E. PWSID No. 4440011. McVeytown Borough Authority, P.O. Box 321, 10 North Queen Street, McVeytown, PA 17501, McVeytown Borough, Mifflin County. Application received: March 28, 2023. Permit Issued: March 31, 2023. Reissuance providing an extension for the limited-duration emergency operation permit.

**Operation Permit 2221501.** PWSID No. **7220044. Susquehanna Area Regional Airport Authority/ Harrisburg International Airport**, One Terminal Drive, Suite 300, Middletown, PA 17057, Lower Swatara Township, **Dauphin County**. Application received: March 28, 2023. Permit Issued: March 31, 2023. Issuance of a Partial Operation Permit to include operation of a Hach CL17sc online chlorine analyzer and temporary GAC system supply and return piping.

**Operation Permit 7500028.** PWSID No. **7500028. Transitions Healthcare Allens Cove, LLC**, 531 Old Westminster Pike, Suite 206, Westminster, MD 21157, Penn Township, **Perry County**. Application received: January 17, 2023. Permit Issued: April 4, 2023. Comprehensive Operation Permit for the transfer from Kinkora Pythian Home to Transitions Healthcare Allens Cove, LLC.

NCWSA Operation Permit 7360791. PWSID No. 7360791. The Vineyard at Grandview, 1489 Grand-

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 53, NO. 15, APRIL 15, 2023

view Road, Mount Joy, PA 17552, Mount Joy Township, Lancaster County. Application received: March 24, 2023. Permit Issued: April 4, 2023. Approval to Operate for Well No. 2.

Southwest Region: Safe Drinking Water Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745, 412-442-4000.

Contact: Renee Diehl, Program Manager, ra-epswsdw@ pa.gov.

**Operation Permit 6523501MA.** PWSID No. **5260036. Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County**, 124 Park and Pool Road, New Stanton, PA 15672, Unity Township, **Westmoreland County**. Application received: March 27, 2023. Permit Issued: March 30, 2023. Rehabilitated Chater Oaks # 1 water storage tank including a new interior coating system.

SEWAGE FACILITIES ACT PLAN APPROVAL

Plan Approvals Granted Under the Pennsylvania Sewage Facilities Act, Act of January 24, 1966, P.L. 1535, as Amended, 35 P.S. § 750.5.

Southcentral Region: Clean Water Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: Richard Barrett, Sewage Planning Specialist, 814-946-7290.

Plan Location:

Municipality	Address	County
Snyder Township	108 Baughman Hollow Road Tyrone, PA 16686	Blair County

#### Plan Description:

**Stephanie McKinley Property**, B3-07920-221-3s. Approval of a revision to the official plan of Snyder Township, **Blair County**. The project is known as Stephanie McKinley Property SFTF. The plan provides for the installation of a small flow treatment facility with discharge to a drainage channel on the property to Schell Run (WWF), for a proposed 3-bedroom residential dwelling on an 0.352-acre lot. The property is located at 330 Beastons Road. The Department's review of the plan revision has not identified any significant impacts resulting from this proposal. The DEP Code Number for this planning module is B3-07920-221-3s and the APS ID is 1076512. Any permits must be obtained in the name of the property owner.

### LAND RECYCLING AND ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION

### UNDER ACT 2, 1995 PREAMBLE 2

### The Following Plans and Reports Were Submitted Under the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (35 P.S. §§ 6026.101— 6026.908).

Provisions of Sections 301—308 of the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (act) (35 P.S. §§ 6026.301—6026.308) require the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to publish in the *Penn*sylvania Bulletin a notice of submission of plans and reports. A final report is submitted to document cleanup of a release of a regulated substance at a site to one of the act's remediation standards. A final report provides a description of the site investigation to characterize the nature and extent of contaminants in environmental media, the basis for selecting the environmental media of concern, documentation supporting the selection of residential or nonresidential exposure factors, a description of the remediation performed and summaries of sampling analytical results which demonstrate that remediation has attained the cleanup standard selected. Submission of plans and reports, other than the final report, will also be published in the Pennsylvania Bulletin. These include the remedial investigation report, risk assessment report and cleanup plan for a site-specific standard remediation. A remedial investigation report includes conclusions from the site investigation; concentration of regulated substances in environmental media; benefits of reuse of the property; and, in some circumstances, a fate and transport analysis. If required, a risk assessment report describes potential adverse effects caused by the presence of regulated substances. If required, a cleanup plan evaluates the abilities of potential remedies to achieve remedy requirements.

For further information concerning plans or reports, please contact the Regional Office Program Manager previously listed in the notice.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

The Department has received the following plans and reports.

Northcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 208 W. 3rd Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448, 570-327-3636.

Contact: Randy Farmerie, P.G., Environmental Program Manager, 570-327-3716.

SGL-12P Unit 4H on the SGL-12P Unit Pad, Primary Facility ID # 855993, 3039 Carbon Road, Monroeton, PA 18832, Franklin Township, Bradford County. Creston Environmental, LLC, P.O. Box 1373, Camp Hill, PA 17001, on behalf of Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC, 14 Chesapeake Lane, Sayre, PA 18840, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with produced fluid. The Final Report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health standards.

**Repsol Oil & Gas USA, LLC—Haralambous (03-074) G Well Pad**, Primary Facility ID # **865265**, 909 Van Horn Hollow Drive, Troy, PA 16947, Columbia Township, **Bradford County**. Resource Environmental Management, Inc., 50 Maple Street, Montrose, PA 18801, on behalf of Repsol Oil & Gas USA, LLC, 337 Daniel Zenker Drive, Horseheads, NY 14845, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with produced water. The Final Report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health standards.

**Croda, Inc.—Mill Hall Facility**, Primary Facility ID # 863628, 8 Croda Way, Mill Hall, PA 17751, Bald Eagle Township, **Clinton County**. Letterle & Associates Inc., 2022 Axemann Rd, Suite 201, Bellefonte, PA 16823, on behalf of Croda, Inc., 8 Croda Way, Mill Hall, PA 17751, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with Ethyl Benzene. The Final Report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health standards. Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

### Contact: Eric Supey, Environmental Program Manager.

Bethlehem Commerce Center Site—Majestic Parcel Lots RR1, RR1A, RR2, RR3, Primary Facility ID # 682648, 3115, 3535, 3017, 3525 Commerce Center Boulevard, Bethlehem, PA 18015, City of Bethlehem, Northampton County. Ramboll Americas Engineering Solutions, Inc., 751 Arbor Way, Suite 200, Blue Bell, PA 19422, on behalf of Commerce Construction Co. LP, 13191 Crossroads Parkway North, 6th Floor, Industry, CA 91746, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with Boron, Thallium, Lead, Iron, Benzo(a)pyrene, Benzo(a)anthracene, Benzene, Naphthalene, Dibenz(a,h)anthracene, and Tetrachloroethene from historic industrial operations. The Final Report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the site-specific standards.

**4278 Winchester Road**, Primary Facility ID **# 864011**, 4278 Winchester Road, Allentown, PA 18104, South Whitehall Township, **Lehigh County**. JMT Industrial & Environmental, 710 Uhler Road, Easton, PA 18040, on behalf of Community Action Center-Lehigh Valley, 1337 East Fifth Street, Bethlehem, PA 18015, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with heating oil. The Final Report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health standards.

Southcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program Manager, 717-705-4705.

**Former Village Greens Golf Course**, Primary Facility ID # **705749**, 3901 Penn Avenue, Sinking Spring, PA 19608, Sinking Spring Borough, **Berks County**. Liberty Environmental, Inc., 505 Penn Street, Suite 400, Reading, PA 19601, on behalf of Sinking Spring Associates, LLC, 300 Water Street, Suite 300, Wilmington, DE 19801-5037, submitted a Risk Assessment/Final Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with Arsenic. The Risk Assessment/Final Report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health and site-specific standards.

**Former Robesonia Furnace**, Primary Facility ID # **825230**, South Freeman Street, Robesonia, PA 19551, Robesonia Borough, **Berks County**. Liberty Environmental, Inc., 505 Penn Street, Suite 400, Reading, PA 19601, on behalf of Borough of Robesonia, 75 South Brooke Street, Robesonia, PA 19551, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with Lead. The Final Report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the site-specific standards.

Southwest Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745, 412-442-4000.

Contact: Kam Miseikyte, Clerical Assistant 2, 412-442-4091.

**CNX MAJ 18 Well Pad**, Primary Facility ID # **865538**, 130 Teagarden Lane, West Finley, PA 15377, Richhill Township, **Greene County**. Penn Environmental and Remediation, 111 Ryan Court, Pittsburgh, PA 15205, on behalf of CNX Gas Company, LLC, 1000 Horizon Vue Energy Drive, Canonsburg, PA 15317, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with arsenic, aluminum, barium, boron, chromium, copper, iron, lead, lithium, manganese, selenium, strontium, vanadium, zinc, and naphalene. The Final Report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health and background standards.

**Range Infante Waterline**, Primary Facility ID # 865544, Linear Project, Burgettstown, PA 15021, Smith Township, **Washington County**. EnviroTrac, Ltd., 176 Thorn Hill Road, Warrendale, PA 15086, on behalf of Range Resources—Appalachia, LLC, 3000 Town Center Boulevard, Canonsburg, PA 15317, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with aluminum, barium, boron, chloride, iron, lithium, manganese, strontium, vanadium, zinc, and selenium. The Final Report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health and background standards.

### LAND RECYCLING AND ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION UNDER ACT 2, 1995 PREAMBLE 3

### The Department Has Taken Action on the Following Plans and Reports Under the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (35 P.S. §§ 6026.101—6026.907).

Section 250.8 of 25 Pa. Code and administration of the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (act) require the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to publish in the Pennsylvania Bulletin a notice of its final actions on plans and reports. A final report is submitted to document cleanup of a release of a regulated substance at a site to one of the remediation standards of the act. A final report provides a description of the site investigation to characterize the nature and extent of contaminants in environmental media, the basis of selecting the environmental media of concern, documentation supporting the selection of residential or nonresidential exposure factors, a description of the remediation performed and summaries of sampling methodology and analytical results which demonstrate that the remediation has attained the cleanup standard selected. Plans and reports required by the act for compliance with selection of remediation to a site-specific standard, in addition to a final report, include a remedial investigation report, risk assessment report and cleanup plan. A remedial investigation report includes conclusions from the site investigation; concentration of regulated substances in environmental media; benefits of reuse of the property; and, in some circumstances, a fate and transport analysis. If required, a risk assessment report describes potential adverse effects caused by the presence of regulated substances. If required, a cleanup plan evaluates the abilities of potential remedies to achieve remedy requirements. A work plan for conducting a baseline remedial investigation is required by the act for compliance with selection of a special industrial area remediation. The baseline remedial investigation, based on the work plan, is compiled into the baseline environmental report to establish a reference point to show existing contamination, describe proposed remediation to be done and include a description of existing or potential public benefits of the use or reuse of the property. The DEP may approve or disapprove plans and reports submitted. This notice provides DEP's decision and, if relevant, the basis for disapproval.

For further information concerning plans or reports, please contact the Regional Office Program Manager previously listed in the notice. Individuals in need of accommodations should contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

The DEP has received the following plans and reports.

Northcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 208 W. 3rd Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448, 570-327-3636.

Contact: Randy Farmerie, P.G., Environmental Program Manager, 570-327-3716.

Jones BRA 5H on the Jones BRA Pad, Primary Facility ID # 864393, 900 Garrett Road, Wyalusing, PA 18853, Standing Stone Township, Bradford County. Creston Environmental, LLC, P.O. Box 1373, Camp Hill, PA 17001, on behalf of Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC, 14 Chesapeake Lane, Syare, PA 18840, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with production fluid. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standards. Approved: March 20, 2023.

**DCNR 587 (02-003) Well Pad**, Primary Facility ID # **862295**, 189 Long Ridge Lane, Morris Run, PA 16939, Ward Township, **Tioga County**. WSP USA, Inc., 2000 Lenox Drive, 3rd Fl, Lawrenceville, NJ 08648, on behalf of Repsol Oil & Gas USA, LLC, 337 Daniel Zenker Drive, Horseheads, NY 14845, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with production fluid. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standards. Approved: March 21, 2023.

**Kingsley E 6H Unconventional Well Site**, Primary Facility ID **# 863138**, 1030 Keir Hill Rd, Troy, PA 16947, Springfield Township, **Bradford County**. Moody and Associates, Inc., 101 N Main Street, Suite 3, Athens, PA 18810, on behalf of Blackhill Energy, LLC, 4600 J Barry Court, Suite 320, Canonsburg, PA 15417, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with production fluid. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health and background standards. Approved: April 4, 2023.

Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Eric Supey, Environmental Program Manager.

**D. Kielar Pad 1**, Primary Facility ID # **862820**, 764 State Route 2003, Nicholson, PA 18466, Lathrop Township, **Susquehanna County**. Resource Environmental Management, 50 Maple Street, Montrose, PA 18801, on behalf of Coterra Energy, Inc., 2000 Park Lane, Suite 300, Pittsburgh, PA 15275, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with hydrochloric acid. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standards. Approved: April 3, 2023.

Southcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program Manager, 717-705-4705.

Hershey 19 East Facility—The Hershey Company, Primary Facility ID # 753671, 19 East Chocolate Avenue, Hershey, PA 17033, Derry Township, **Dauphin County**. Langan Engineering & Environmental Services, 1818 Market Street, Suite 3300, Philadelphia, PA 19103, on behalf of The Hershey Company, 19 East Chocolate Avenue, Hershey, PA 17033, submitted a Cleanup Plan/ Final Report concerning remediation of groundwater contaminated with Lead. The Report demonstrated attainment of the site-specific standards. Approved: March 29, 2023.

# HAZARDOUS WASTE TRANSPORTER LICENSE

### Action(s) Taken on Hazardous Waste Transporter License Under the Solid Waste Management Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97) (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101-6018.1003); and Hazardous Waste Regulations to Transport Hazardous Waste.

### Transporter License Reissued

Central Office: Waste Management Program, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17101,717-787-7561.

### Contact: Jonathan Adams.

**EQ Industrial Services, Inc.**, 17440 College Parkway, Livonia, MI 48152. **License No. PA-AH 0615**. Application received: March 30, 2023. Effective March 31, 2023.

Interstate Ventures, Inc., 1261 E. Tri County Blvd, Oliver Springs, TN 37840. License No. PA-AH 0732. Application received: March 30, 2023. Effective March 31, 2023.

### REGULATED MEDICAL AND CHEMOTHERAPEUTIC WASTE TRANSPORTER LICENSE

Action(s) Taken on Regulated and Chemotherapeutic Waste Transporter License Under the Solid Waste Management Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97) (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101-6018.1003); Act 93 of June 28, 1988 (P.L. 525, No. 93); and Regulated Medical and Chemotherapeutic Regulations to Transport Regulated Medical and Chemotherapeutic Waste.

Transporter License Reissued

Central Office: Waste Management Program, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17101,717-787-7561.

Contact: Jonathan Adams.

S-J Transportation Co., Inc., 1176 US Route 40, Woodstown, NJ 08098. License No. PA-HC 0031. Received on March 30, 2023. Effective March 31, 2023.

### MUNICIPAL WASTE GENERAL PERMITS

Actions(s) Taken on Permit(s) Under the Solid Waste Management Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97) (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101—6018.1003); the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (53 P.S. §§ 4000.101—4000.1904); and Municipal Waste Regulations for a General Permit to Operate Municipal Waste Processing Facilities and/or the Beneficial Use of Municipal Waste.

Northwest Region: Waste Management Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481, 814-332-6945.

Contact: Christina S. Wilhelm, Regional Solid Waste Program Manager, 814-332-6848.

WMGM016NW001. Chestnut Ridge Mulch, LLC, 684 Old Farm Road, Blairsville, PA 15717, Burrell Township, Indiana County. This renewal addresses the receipt, handling/storage of raw materials, processing, and handling/storage of processed materials related to the beneficial use of trees, tree stumps, limbs, clean pallets,

untreated and unpainted scrap lumber, packing crates, and brush, referred to as "wood waste", to produce wood chips for wholesale purposes. Application received: January 10, 2023. Renewal issued: March 29, 2023. New expiration date: March 29, 2033.

Persons interested in reviewing the permit may contact Christina S. Wilhelm, Regional Solid Waste Program Manager, 814-332-6848, Northwest Region, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481, 814-332-6945. TDD users may contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, 800-654-5984.

### OPERATE WASTE PROCESSING OR DISPOSAL AREA OR SITE

Actions(s) Taken on Permit(s) Under the Solid Waste Management Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97) (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101—6018.1003); the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (53 P.S. §§ 4000.101—4000.1904); and Regulations to Operate Solid Waste Processing or Disposal Area or Site.

Southcentral Region: Waste Management Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: John L. Oren, P.E., Permits Chief, 717-705-4907.

100006. Washington Township, 1271 Buchanan Trail East, Waynesboro, PA 17268, Waynesboro Borough, Franklin County. Solid Waste Permit No. 100006 for the operation of the Washington Township Transfer Station was renewed until March 25, 2033 in accordance with Article V of the Solid Waste Managment Act, 35 P.S. §§ 6018.101 et seq. Application received: January 24, 2023. Renewed: March 24, 2023.

Persons interested in reviewing the permit may contact John L. Oren, Permits Chief, 717-705-4907, Southcentral Region, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700. TDD users may contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, 800-654-5984.

### **AIR QUALITY**

Actions(s) Taken on General Plan Approval(s) and Operating Permit(s) Usage Authorized Under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127 to Construct, Modify, Reactivate or Operate Air Contamination Sources and Associated Air Cleaning Devices.

Northcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 208 W. 3rd Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448, 570-327-3636.

Contact: Muhammad Q. Zaman, Program Manager, 570-327-3648.

AG5-41-00017B: EQT ARO, LLC, 625 Liberty Avenue, Suite 1700, Pittsburgh, PA 15222, Cummings Township, Lycoming County. For the construction and operation of two vapor destruction units and associated storage tanks as well as continuing to operate three (3) 1,380 bhp Caterpillar 3516B compressor engines, two (2) Capstone C65 microturbine engines, seven (7) storage tanks, two (2) TEG Dehydrators and other associated equipment pursuant to the General Plan Approval and/or General Operating Permit for Compression Stations, Processing Plants and Transmission Stations (BAQ-GPA/GP-5) at their COP Tract 685. Application received: February 13, 2023. Issued: March 22, 2023. Northeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Shailesh Patel, Air Quality Engineer, 570-826-2341.

**GP3-40-028A: GepTech, LLC**, 13 Shull Drive, Newark, DE 19711, Dorrance Township, **Luzerne County**. For the operation of a portable stone crushing plant at the facility located in Dorrance Twp., Luzerne County. Application received: March 8, 2023. Issued: March 31, 2023.

**GP9-40-028A: GepTech, LLC**, 13 Shull Drive, Newark, DE 19711, Dorrance Township, Luzerne County. For the operation of I C Engines at the facility located in Dorrance Twp., Luzerne County. Application received: March 8, 2023. Issued: March 31, 2023.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: Thomas Bianca, PE, West Permit Section Chief, 717-705-4862.

**GP1-28-03010: Ventura Foods, LLC**, 1501 Orchard Drive, Chambersburg, PA 17201, Chambersburg Borough, **Adams County**. For an existing 14.6 MMBtu, natural gas-fired boiler, under GP1, at the facility. The general permit authorization was renewed. Application received: February 21, 2023. Issued: March 31, 2023.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, PE, East Permit Section Chief, 717-705-4862.

**GP3-36-03215D:** Mellott Company, 100 Mellott Drive, Warfordsburg, PA 17267, Fulton Township, Lancaster County. For the installation and operation of portable nonmetallic mineral processing equipment, under GP3, at the Cedar Hill Quarry. Application received: February 20, 2023. Issued: March 29, 2023.

**GP11-36-03215D:** Mellott Company, 100 Mellott Drive, Warfordsburg, PA 17267, Fulton Township, Lancaster County. For the installation and operation of five nonroad engines, under GP11, to power portable nonmetallic mineral processing equipment, at the Cedar Hill Quarry. Application received: February 20, 2023. Issued: March 29, 2023.

Plan Approval Revision(s) Issued Including Extension(s), Minor Modification(s) and Transfer(s) of Ownership Under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.13, 127.13a and 127.32.

Northcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 208 W. 3rd Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448, 570-327-3636.

Contact: Muhammad Q. Zaman, Program Manager, 570-327-3648.

**18-00021B:** Avery Dennison Performance Polymers, 171 Draketown Road, Mill Hall, PA 17751, Mill Hall Borough, Clinton County. The Department has extended the plan approval temporary operation period for the facility's R-100 emulsion reactor pending verification of the system's compliance testing. Application received: March 16, 2023. Revised: April 4, 2023. New expiration date: October 6, 2023.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: Thomas Bianca, PE, West Permit Section Chief, 717-705-4862.

**67-05007E:** Adhesives Research Inc., 400 Seaks Run Road, Glen Rock, PA 17327, Springfield Township, York County. For installation of two new chemical reactors at the adhesive coating manufacturing facility. The new reactor tanks will produce a new polymer that will be either applied at two coating lines at the facility or sent to another facility for application. The plan approval was extended. Application received: March 17, 2023. Issued: April 4, 2023.

**21-03034A: Penn Valley Crematory, LLC**, 167 North Enola Road, Enola, PA 17025, East Pennsboro Township, **Cumberland County**. For modification of the human crematory. The plan approval was extended. Application received: March 28, 2023. Issued: April 4, 2023.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5900.

Contact: James Beach, New Source Review Chief, 484-250-5920.

**46-0112H: Palmer International, Inc.**, 2036 Lucon Road, Skippack, PA 19474, Skippack Township, **Montgomery County**. This action is for the installation of a dust collector prior to an existing regenerative thermal oxidizer (RTO) at their facility. Application received: March 6, 2023. Issued: March 31, 2023.

**09-0084B: Grand View Hospital**, 700 Lawn Avenue, Sellersville, PA 18960, West Rockhill Township, **Bucks County**. This action is for an extension for the replacement and installation of three (3) new 2,000-ekW emergency generators at their facility. Application received: February 9, 2023. Issued: March 31, 2023.

**15-00371: Idemia America Corporation**, 523 James Hance Court, Exton, PA 19341-2560, West Whiteland Township, **Chester County**. This action is for an extension of a plan approval for the modification of an existing screen press, designated as Screen Press No. 5 (Source ID 101G), at their Title V facility. Application received: March 13, 2023. Issued: March 31, 2023.

**23-0003AD:** Monroe Energy LLC, 4101 Post Road, Trainer, PA 19061-5052, Trainer Borough, **Delaware County**. This action is for an extension for the installation of a new, 2-bay, LPG Truck Loading Rack and associated piping components. Application received: March 22, 2023. Issued: April 4, 2023.

Title V Operating Permit(s) Issued Under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter G.

Northwest Region: Air Quality Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481, 814-332-6945.

Contact: Matthew Williams, Facilities Permitting Chief, 814-332-6940.

**62-00032: Ellwood National Forge**, 1 Front Street, Irvine, PA 16329, Brokenstraw Township, **Warren County**. The Department issued the renewal of the Title V Operating Permit for Ellwood National Forge's Irvine facility. The permit is comprised of sources from Ellwood National Forge (ENF), Ellwood National Steel (ENS), and Ellwood National Crankshaft (ENC). The combined facility manufactures iron and steel forging products. The facility's major emission sources include natural gas boilers, natural gas space heaters, Vacuum Oxygen Decarburization (VOD), a 45-ton Electric Arc Furnace (EAF), 3 ENS annealing furnaces, 13 ENF heat treat furnaces, 9 ENC heat treat furnaces, crankshaft file and grind process, vacuum degasser, teeming, scrap handling, slag handling, vehicle travel, crankshaft degreasing, a ladle furnace, 4 Safety-Kleen

degreaser units, pipe mold cleaning machine, 5 nitride furnaces, 9 natural gas fueled emergency generator en-gines, and 1 diesel fueled fire pump engine. The potential emissions of the pollutants from the facility are 94.6 tons per year (tpy) NO<sub>x</sub>, 496 tpy CO, 42 tpy SO<sub>x</sub>, 34 tpy VOC, 50 tpy PM<sub>10</sub>, and 9.98 tpy NH3. The facility is major for CO emissions. Actual 2021 emissions from the facility were: 27.7 tons NO<sub>x</sub>, 141 tons CO, 1.5 tons SO<sub>x</sub>, 6.3 tons VOC, 5.0 tons PM<sub>-10</sub>, and 1.2 tons NH3. The facility is subject to the Title V Operating Permit requirements adopted in 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter G. The facility is also subject to the Compliance Assurance Monitoring Rule (CAM) found in 40 CFR Part 64. Appropriate permit conditions to address the applicable CAM requirements have been included in the permit. The facility is subject to the following Standards of Performance from 40 CFR Part 60: Subpart Dc for Small Industrial-Commercial-Institutional Steam Generating Units, Subpart AAa for the EAF, and Subpart JJJJ for 6 emergency engines. The facility is also subject to the following National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants of 40 CFR Part 63: Subpart ZZZZ for 3 of the emergency engines and Subpart YYYYY for EAF Steelmaking Facilities. The renewal incorporates the provisions of plan approval 62-0320 which have been administratively amended into the permit. The renewal includes an approval to modify the indicator ranges for a monitoring parameter for the EAF baghouse and an approval to modify the indicator range for pressure drop across the VOD baghouse. The renewal also incorporates an approval to modify testing requirements for 2 heat treat furnaces and 5 nitride furnaces. The permit contains emission restrictions, testing, recordkeeping, work practice, and additional requirements to ensure compliance with the Clean Air Act and the Air Pollution Control Act as well as applicable requirements from previous plan approvals. Application received: January 13, 2022. Renewal issued: March 24, 2023.

Operating Permit(s) for Non-Title V Facilities Issued Under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter F.

Northcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 208 W. 3rd Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448, 570-327-3636.

Contact: Muhammad Q. Zaman, Program Manager, 570-327-3648.

14-00019: John B. Brown Funeral Home, Inc., 2601 Gateway Dr., Ste. 100, State College, PA 16801, College Township, Centre County. Was issued a renewal State Only Operating Permit for the Koch Funeral Home located in College Township, Centre County. The State Only Operating Permit contains all applicable regulatory requirements including monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting conditions. Application received: October 31, 2022. Issued: March 29, 2023.

Northwest Region: Air Quality Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481, 814-332-6945.

Contact: Matthew Williams, Facilities Permitting Chief, 814-332-6940.

10-00270: Lectromat, Incorporated, P.O. Box 608, Mars, PA 16046, Adams Township, Butler County. The Department issued the renewal of the State Only Operating Permit for Lectromat, Incorporated, a manufacturer of electrical insulations and composite prepregs. The primary sources at the facility include 3 horizontal coaters/ laminators, 2 vertical coating towers, an epoxy resin

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 53, NO. 15, APRIL 15, 2023

coating line, and 2 natural gas fired space heaters. Emissions from the coaters/laminators and the coating towers are controlled by fume incinerators. The facility is a Natural Minor. Potential emissions for the facility are as follows:  $NO_x < 1$  tpy; CO < 1 tpy; VOCs < 1 tpy; and HAPs < 1 tpy. The renewal permit contains emission restrictions, recordkeeping, work practice, and additional requirements to ensure compliance with the Clean Air Act and the Air Pollution Control Act. Application received: February 23, 2022. Renewal issued: March 23, 2023.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: Thomas Bianca, PE, West Permit Section Chief, 717-705-4862.

**67-03055: Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC**, 322 North Baker Road, York, PA 17404-5802, West Manchester Township, **York County**. For the stone crushing operations at the Baker Quarry. The State-Only Permit was renewed. Application received: July 22, 2022. Issued: March 29, 2023.

**31-03033: Stone Valley Welding, LLC**, 11582 Guyer Road, Huntingdon, PA 16652-6001, Jackson Township, **Huntingdon County**. For the steel container manufacturing facility. The State-Only Permit was renewed. Application received: June 6, 2022. Issued: March 28, 2023.

**01-03002: Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC**, 875 Oxford Avenue, Hanover, PA 17331-7743, Oxford Township, **Adams County**. For the quarrying operations. The State-Only Permit was renewed. Application received: May 16, 2022. Issued: March 31, 2023.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, PE, East Permit Section Chief, 717-705-4862.

**06-05001:** Adelphi Kitchens, Inc., 300 East Penn Avenue, Robesonia, PA 19551-8902, Heidelberg Township, Berks County. For the wood kitchen cabinet manufacturing facility. The State-Only Permit was renewed. Application received: October 25, 2022. Issued: March 28, 2023.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5900.

Contact: Janine Tulloch-Reid, Facilities Permitting Chief, 484-250-5920.

**46-00054:** Abington Memorial Hospital, 1200 Old York Rd., Abington, PA 19001-3720, Abington Township, **Montgomery County**. This action is for renewal of a non-Title V, Synthetic Minor Operating Permit. The renewed permit incorporates a previous Federallyenforceable potential to emit limit of 24.99 tons per year of nitrogen oxides  $(NO_x)$  for the entire facility. The permitted sources include four (4) dual fuel (natural gas and No. 2 fuel oil) boilers, thirteen (13) miscellaneous emergency generators with ratings ranging from 200-kW to 1,500-kW and a natural gas-fired cogeneration unit that is the facility's main source of steam. Application received: August 26, 2022. Issued: April 4, 2023.

**46-00199:** Alcom Printing Group, Inc./Harleysville Plant, 140 Christopher Lane, Harleysville, PA 19438-2034, Lower Salford Township, **Montgomery County**. This action is for the renewal of a State Only, Natural Minor Operating Permit, for operation of six (6) lithographic printing presses. Press 10 and Press 12 (Source IDs 110 and 112), previously operating under General Permit Nos. GP10-46-0041 and GP7-46-0050, will be incorporated into the Operating Permit with this renewal. Application received: January 19, 2022. Issued: April 4, 2023. **46-00278: Tierpoint Pennsylvania Two, LLC**, 100 Adams Ave., Audubon, PA 19403, Lower Providence Township, **Montgomery County**. This action is for the renewal of a State Only Operating Permit for the operation of a data center and managed hosting facility. Permitted sources consist of nine (9) diesel-fired electric generator engines which provide emergency back-up power to the facility. Application received: September 30, 2022. Issued: April 4, 2023.

**23-00226: 4** Ever in Our Hearts Pet Cremation, LLC, 1326 Macdade Blvd, Woodlyn, PA 19094-1537, Ridley Township, **Delaware County**. This action is for the issuance of a State Only, Natural Minor Operating Permit for the installation and operation of a Pet Crematorium. Application received: December 12, 2022. Issued: April 4, 2023.

Operating Permit Revisions Issued Including Administrative Amendments, Minor Modifications or Transfer of Ownership Under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.412, 127.450, 127.462 and 127.464.

Northwest Region: Air Quality Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481, 814-332-6945.

Contact: Matthew Williams, Facilities Permitting Chief, 814-332-6940.

**25-00955:** Foam Fabricators Incorporated, Erie Plant, 6550 West Ridge Road, Erie, PA 16506-1094, Fairview Township, Erie County. The Department administratively amended the Synthetic Minor State Only Operating Permit to incorporate the change of responsible and permit contact officials for the facility. Application received: January 30, 2023. Revised: March 29, 2023.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5900.

Contact: Janine Tulloch-Reid, Facilities Permitting Chief, 484-250-5920.

**46-00020:** Superior Tube Company, 3900 Germantown Pike, Collegeville, PA 19426, Lower Providence Township, **Montgomery County**. In accordance with 25 Pa. Code Section 127.462, the permit has been modified to address the reclassification of n-propyl bromide (nPB) as a Hazardous Air Pollutant (HAP) by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S EPA). The sitewide emissions remained the same and are as follows: HAP and VOC emissions are 96.2 tpy; NO<sub>x</sub> emissions are 79.2 tpy. The permit includes monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting requirements designed to keep the facility within all applicable air quality requirements. Application received: January 31, 2023. Issued: April 3, 2023.

Operating Permit(s) Denied, Terminated, Suspended or Revoked Under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.431 and 127.461.

Northcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 208 W. 3rd Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448, 570-327-3636.

Contact: Muhammad Q. Zaman, Program Manager, 570-327-3648.

17-00002: Eastern Gas Transmission & Storage, Inc., 925 White Oaks Boulevard, Bridgeport, WV 26330, Brady Township, Clearfield County. The Department terminated the State Only Operating Permit for the Helvetia Compressor Station after a Department inspection confirmed that the facility has disconnected all air contaminant sources and rendered them inoperable in preparation of the facility being disassembled and sources physically removed. The company has also submitted notice to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) formally notifying them of the planned station shut down and abandonment. The Department hereby terminates State Only Operating Permit 17-00002. Application received: March 30, 2023. Revoked: March 31, 2023.

# ACTIONS ON COAL AND NONCOAL APPLICATIONS

Actions on applications under the Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act (52 P.S. §§ 1396.1—1396.31); the Noncoal Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act (52 P.S. §§ 3301-3326); the Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1–691.1001); the Coal Refuse Disposal Control Act (52 P.S. §§ 30.51-30.66); the Bituminous Mine Subsidence and Land Conservation Act (52 P.S. §§ 1406.1-1406.21). The final action on each application also constitutes action on the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit application and, if noted, the request for a Section 401 Water Quality Certification. Mining activity permits issued in response to such applications will also address the application permitting requirements of the following statutes; the Air Quality Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015); the Dam Safety and Encroachments Act (32 P.S. §§ 693.1-693.27); and the Solid Waste Management Act (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101-6018.1103). Individuals in need of accommodations should contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

### Coal Permits

Knox District Mining Office: P.O. Box 669, 310 Best Avenue, Knox, PA 16232-0669, 814-797-1191.

Contact: Cayleigh Boniger, Clerical Supervisor 2, 814-797-0824.

Mining Permit No. 10841302. NPDES No. PA0002780. Pristine Resources Land, LLC, P.O. Box 36, Revloc, PA 15948, Clinton Township, Butler County. Renewal of an existing bituminous underground mine and associated NPDES permit for reclamation only. Application received: April 11, 2022. Issued: April 4, 2023.

Mining Permit No. 10743701. NPDES No. PA0215635. Pristine Resources Land, LLC, P.O. Box 36, Revloc, PA 15948, Clinton Township, Butler County. Renewal of an existing bituminous coal refuse disposal mine and associated NPDES permit for reclamation only. Application received: April 11, 2022. Issued: April 4, 2023.

Moshannon District Mining Office: 186 Enterprise Drive, Philipsburg, PA 16866, 814-342-8200.

Contact: Cassie Stanton, Clerical Assistant 2.

Mining Permit No. 17120103. Swisher Contracting, Inc., P.O. Box 1223, Clearfield, PA 16830, Bradford Township, Clearfield County. Renewal of a mining permit for reclamation only of a bituminous surface coal mine affecting 199.9 acres. Receiving stream(s): Fork Run to Roaring Run classified for the following use(s): CWF, MF. Application received: December 5, 2022. Issued: March 27, 2023. New Stanton District Mining Office: 131 Broadview Road, New Stanton, PA 15672, 724-925-5500.

Contact: Tracy Norbert, RA-EPNEWSTANTON@pa.gov.

Mining Permit No. 03120101. Amerikohl Mining, Inc., 202 Sunset Drive, Butler, PA 16001, Freeport Borough, Armstrong County. Permit renewal issued for continued mining and permit revision issued for land use change from forestland to unmanaged natural habitat for an existing bituminous surface mine, affecting 97.0 acres. Receiving streams: unnamed tributaries to Buffalo Creek and Buffalo Creek; classified for the following use: TSF. Application received: January 30, 2023. Permit issued: April 3, 2023.

#### Noncoal Permits

Moshannon District Mining Office: 186 Enterprise Drive, Philipsburg, PA 16866, 814-342-8200.

Contact: Cassie Stanton, Clerical Assistant 2, 814-342-8200.

Mining Permit No. 17210801. Thomas Morris, Jr., 7901 Ridge Road, Mahaffey, PA 15757, Burnside Township, Clearfield County. Commencement, operation, and restoration of a small noncoal (industrial minerals) operation affecting 2.1 acres. Receiving stream(s): Unnamed Tributary to Deer Run classified for the following use(s): CWF. Application received: October 27, 2021. Issued: April 3, 2023.

Pottsville District Mining Office: 5 West Laurel Boulevard, Pottsville, PA 17901, 570-621-3118.

Contact: RA-EPPottsvilleDMO@pa.gov.

Mining Permit No. 58222801. GP104 No. PAM122040. Force's Stone & Landscape Supply, LLC, 790 SR 3001, Laceyville, PA 18623, Springville Township, Susquehanna County. Coverage under the General NPDES Stormwater Permit for stormwater discharges associated with mining activities (BMP-GP-104). Receiving stream: unnamed tributary to White Creek. Application received: August 25, 2022. Coverage issued: March 30, 2023.

Mining Permit No. 58112502. F.S. Lopke Contracting, Inc., 3430 State Route 434, Apalachin, NY 13732, Jackson Township, **Susquehanna County**. Renewal of GP105 quarry operation affecting 10.0 acres. Receiving stream: unnamed tributary to Butler Creek. Application received: June 14, 2021. Permit issued: April 4, 2023.

Mining Permit No. 58112502. GP-104 No. PAM121043. F.S. Lopke Contracting, Inc., 3430 State Route 434, Apalachin, NY 13732, Jackson Township, Susquehanna County. Coverage under the General NPDES Stormwater Permit for stormwater discharges associated with mining activities (BMP-GP-104). Receiving stream: unnamed tributary to Butler Creek. Application received: June 14, 2021. Permit issued: April 4, 2023.

Contact: RA-EPPottsvilleDMO@pa.gov.

Mining Permit No. 49222801. GP104 Permit No. PAM122029. DSKE Rentals, LLC, 4655 Susquehanna Trail, Turbotville, PA 17772, Delaware Township, Northumberland County. Coverage under the General NPDES Stormwater Permit for stormwater discharges associated with mining activities (BMP-GP-104). Receiving stream: unnamed tributary to Delaware Run. Application received: May 23, 2022. Coverage issued: March 31, 2023.

Mining Permit No. 58140805. NPDES Permit No. PA0226238. Daniel Pompey, 1257 Pennay Hill Road, Kingsley, PA 18826, New Milford Township, **Susquehanna County**. Correction to add a new NPDES Permit on a quarry operation. Receiving stream: unnamed tributary to Wellmans Creek. Application received: October 21, 2021. Permit issued: April 3, 2023.

Mining Permit No. 7775SM10. NPDES Permit No. PA0225681. Lehigh Cement Co., LLC, 7660 Imperial Way, Allentown, PA 18195, Maidencreek Township, Berks County. Renew NPDES Permit on a quarry operation. Receiving stream: Maiden Creek. Application received: December 21, 2021. Renewal issued: April 3, 2023.

### ACTIONS ON BLASTING ACTIVITY APPLICATIONS

Action(s) Taken on Application(s) Under the Explosives Acts of 1937 and 1957 and 25 Pa. Code § 211.124. Blasting Activity Performed as Part of a Coal or Noncoal Mining Activity will be Regulated by the Mining Permit for that Coal or Noncoal Mining Activity.

#### Blasting Permits

Moshannon District Mining Office: 186 Enterprise Drive, Philipsburg, PA 16866, 814-342-8200.

Contact: Cassie Stanton, Clerical Assistant 2, 814-342-8101.

**Permit No. 18234101. Douglas Explosives Services LLC**, 2052 Philipsburg Bigler Hwy, Philipsburg, PA 16866, Greene Township, **Clinton County**. Blasting for a mine/quarry. Application received: March 27, 2023. Permit issued: April 3, 2023. Expiration: December 30, 2023.

Pottsville District Mining Office: 5 West Laurel Boulevard, Pottsville, PA 17901, 570-621-3118.

Contact: RA-EPPottsvilleDMO@pa.gov.

**Permit No. 35234103. Holbert Explosives, Inc.**, 237 Mast Hope Plank Road, Suite A, Lackawaxen, PA 18435, Roaring Brook Township, **Lackawanna County**. Construction blasting for Conner Rosensweet footer drain. Application received: March 21, 2023. Permit issued: March 28, 2023. Expiration date: March 21, 2024.

**Permit No. 15234101. Valley Rock Solutions, LLC**, P.O. Box 246, Macungie, PA 18062, East Brandywine Township, **Chester County**. Construction blasting for Brandywine Walk Phase 1. Application received: March 31, 2023. Permit issued: April 3, 2023. Expiration date: March 31, 2024.

**Permit No. 38234106. Valley Rock Solutions, LLC**, P.O. Box 246, Macungie, PA 18062, South Lebanon Township, **Lebanon County**. Construction blasting for DHL Project Embark Phase 2. Application received: March 29, 2023. Permit issued: April 3, 2023. Expiration date: December 31, 2023.

Permit No. 46234101. Valley Rock Solutions, LLC, P.O. Box 246, Macungie, PA 18062, Douglass Township, Montgomery County. Construction blasting for Embree Hospital. Application received: April 2, 2023. Permit issued: April 3, 2023. Expiration date: March 31, 2024.

## FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT SECTION 401

The Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) has taken the following actions on previously received permit applications, requests for Environmental Assessment approval, and requests for Water Quality Certification under Section 401 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (FWPCA) (33 U.S.C.A.  $\S$  1341).

Except as otherwise noted, DEP has granted 401 Water Quality Certification certifying that the construction and operation described will comply with the applicable provisions of Sections 301—303, 306 and 307 of the FWPCA (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1311—1313, 1316 and 1317), and that the construction will not violate applicable Federal and State Water Quality Standards.

Individuals aggrieved by these actions may appeal, pursuant to Section 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act, 35 P.S. § 7514, and the Administrative Agency Law, 2 Pa.C.S. Chapter 5A, to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, 717-787-3483. Appeals must be filed with the Environmental Hearing Board within 30-days of publication of this notice in the Pennsylvania Bulletin, unless the appropriate statute provides a different time period. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure are also available in braille or on audiotape from the Secretary to the Board at 717-787-3483. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create any right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decisional law.

If you want to challenge this action, your appeal must reach the Board within 30-days. You do not need a lawyer to file an appeal with the Board.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact the Environmental Hearing Board through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

Important legal rights are at stake, however, so you should show this notice to a lawyer at one. If you cannot afford a lawyer, you may qualify for free pro bono representation. Call the Secretary to the Board 717-787-3483 for more information.

### WATER OBSTRUCTIONS AND ENCROACHMENTS

Action(s) Taken on Application(s) for the Following Activities Filed Under The Dam Safety and Encroachments Act (32 P.S. §§ 693.1—693.27), Section 302 of the Flood Plain Management Act (32 P.S. § 679.302) and the Clean Streams Law and Notice of Final Action for Certification Under Section 401 of the FWPCA.

Northcentral Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 208 W. 3rd Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448, 570-327-3636.

Contact: Pete Geanacopoulos, Project Manager, 570-327-3701.

**E0804223-003**. **Bradford County**, 2 VanKuren Drive, Towanda, PA 18848, Wysox Township, **Bradford County**. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District.

The Wysox Community Park Phase II Development Project is the development of a municipally owned existing park to include additional items for use by the public. These items, as requested by the public and funded for construction by PA DCNR include: a proposed river access drive, asphalt paved trail, asphalt ADA parking spaces, concrete walk (accessible walkway), playground (for ages 5—12), a two-door composting restroom, and (concrete lattice, pervious) boat ramp. Latitude: 41.768829°, Longitude: -76.397837°. Application received: January 24, 2023. Deemed administratively complete: February 6, 2023. Accepted: March 29, 2023.

Northeast Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Michele Lauer, Clerical Assistant 2, 570-830-3077.

**E4002222-009**. Hazleton Logistics, LLC (A DE Entity), 3515 West 75th Street, Suite 103, Prairie Village, KS 66208, Hazle Township, Luzerne County. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District.

To construct and maintain the following water obstructions and encroachments associated with the Humboldt Warehouse Project: 1) A fill within 0.11 acre of PEM Wetlands (Other) for the purpose of constructing the northern portion of Building No. 1 and adjoining parking lot. 2) A fill within 0.11 acre of PEM Wetlands (Other) for the purpose of constructing the northern portion of Building No. 1 and adjoining parking lot. 3) A stream enclosure of a UNT to Stony Creek (CWF, MF) consisting of a 728-LF, 36-in diameter SLCPP and four (4) manholes. A total of 0.22 acre of permanent wetland impacts will result in 0.22 acre of wetlands being mitigated for in the form of 0.22 wetland acre credits of mitigation bank credits from the USRMB2 mitigation bank. The credit reservation letter was provided as part of the application and the credit transfer letter has been made a case specific special condition of this permit. The project is located approximately 0.3 mile northwest of the intersection of S.R. 923 and Chestnut Hill Drive (Conyngham, PA Quadrangle Latitude: 40° 55′ 47″, Longitude: -76° 4′ 24″) in Hazle Township, Luzerne County. Application received: August 19, 2022, March 30, 2023.

**E5202222-002**. Woodloch Pines, Inc., 731 Welcome Lake Road, Hawley, PA 18428, Lackawaxen Township, **Pike County**. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Philadelphia District.

To remove an existing structure and to construct and maintain the following water obstructions and encroachments associated with the Little Teedyuskung Lake Dock/ Gangway Replacement Project: 1) A crossing of 0.01 acre of PEM/PSS Wetlands (EV) consisting of a 27-foot long by 17-foot wide pile-supported wooden gangway access plat-form. 2) A crossing of 0.03 acre of PEM/PSS Wetlands (EV) consisting of a 172-foot long by 10-foot wide pilesupported wooden gangway. 3) An 11-foot long, 62-foot wide, T-shaped wooden floating dock within the normal pool elevation of Little Teedyuskung Lake (HQ-CWF, MF). The project is located at 109 River Birch Lane in Hawley, approximately 0.34 mile north of the intersection of Pin Oak Circle and Woodloch Drive (Narrowsburg, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41° 30' 17", Longitude: -75° 5' 55") in Lackawaxen Township, Pike County. Application received: December 5, 2022.

Northwest Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481, 814-332-6945.

Contact: RA-EPWW-NWRO@pa.gov.

**E1006222-010.** John Jabaut, 330 Stanford Road, Prospect, PA 16052, Muddycreek Township, **Butler County**. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Pittsburgh District.

To construct and maintain a 10-foot wide private residential driveway including two 14-foot wide steel and timber bridges the first having a 28-foot span across the main channel of Yellow Creek and the second having a 12-foot span across an existing stormwater ditch and wetland resulting in a total of 0.006 acre of permanent stream impact, 0.062 acre of permanent floodway impact, and 0.032 acre of permanent wetland impact for the extension of an existing driveway from the 11-acres parcel to Stanford Road (Prospect, PA Quadrangle N: 40.907220°; W: -80.120188°) in Muddy Creek Township, Butler County. Application received: October 25, 2022. Issued: March 28, 2023.

**E4206222-006**. Pennsylvania American Water Company, 203 Sycamore Street, Punxsutawney, PA 15767, Kane Borough, Wetmore Township, McKean County. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Pittsburgh District.

To install and maintain four stream crossings and four wetland crossings by 12-inch diameter water and 8-inch diameter sewer lines temporarily impacting a total of 0.08 acre of a UNT Hubert Run (UNT 56603) and a total 0.03 acre of EV wetlands as part of the replacement of 9,000 feet of existing water and 1,300 feet of sewer lines in the area immediately northeast of the town of Kane, PA adjacent to S.R. 321 (Kane, PA Quadrangle N: 41.67161°; W: -78.8043°) in Kane Borough and Wetmore Township, McKean County. Application received: September 30, 2022. Issued: March 31, 2023.

**E2406222-003**. Fridays Gas and Oil, 16444 Bennetts Valley Highway, Weedville, PA 15868, Jay Township, Elk County. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District.

To maintain 0.23 acre of fill placed in wetlands and 50 linear feet of assumed floodway of UNT Bennett Branch Sinnemahoning Creek at a commercial gas and oil company at 16444 Bennetts Valley Highway, Weedville, PA approximately 0.4 mile east of intersection of Elm Street on SR-255 (Kersey and Penfield, PA Quadrangle N: 41.24932°; W: -78.52096°) in Jay Township, Elk County. Mitigation for project impact is through purchase of 2.61 credits from the Pennsylvania In Lieu Fee Program fund (PIECES). Application received: October 20, 2022. Issued: March 31, 2023.

**E6106222-005**. Andrew C Virostek Irrevocable Trust, 3481 Treeline Drive, Murrysville, PA 15668, Scrubgrass Township, Rockland Township, Venango County. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Pittsburgh District.

To construct and maintain a 0.2 acre fishing hole in/along the channel and floodway of the Allegheny River, outside ordinary low water but below ordinary high water resulting in 0.015 acre of permanent impact and 0.03 acre of temporary impact to the Allegheny River on property along South Tunnel Road approximately 1.3 miles from the intersection with Kennerdell Road (Kennerdell, PA Quadrangle N: 41.270250°; W: -79.826603°) in Rockland and Scrubgrass Townships, Venango County. Application received: July 19, 2022. Issued: April 3, 2023.

Southeast Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5900.

Contact: Elaine Henderson, Clerical Assistant 3, 484-250-5157.

**E5101222-014**. **Philadelphia Water Department**, 1100 Market Street, 5th Floor, Philadelphia, PA 19107, City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Philadelphia District.

To construct and maintain an approximately 120 feet by 55 feet floating classroom at Penn's Landing, Delaware River (WWF-MF) associated with an outdoor facility for an educational purpose. The project will include four steel 30" pipe piles for mooring the floating classroom and supporting the accessways; an access platform supported by two 16" steel pipe piles; and two approach accessways. The site is located at Penn's Landing, Delaware River (Philadelphia, PA USGS Quadrangle) in the City and County of Philadelphia. Latitude: 39.944714°, Longitude: -75.140296°. Application received: December 29, 2022. Issued: March 21, 2023.

E1501221-017. Borough of Phoenixville, 351 Bridge Street, Phoenixville, PA 19460, Phoenixville Borough, Chester County. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Philadelphia District.

To perform the following water obstruction and encroachment activities associated with the Phoenixville Borough Water Treatment Plant Intake Replacement Project within the Schuylkill River (WWF-MF): 1) To construct and maintain a new 18-inch passive intake screen with conical debris deflector within the Schuylkill River (WWF-MF) resulting in 6 linear feet (36 square feet) of permanent watercourse impact. Also included with this activity is the construction and maintenance of two 1.5-inch stainless steel compressed air lines and a new 24-inch TR Flex DIP raw water main to be trenched within the riverbed resulting in 59 linear feet (354 square feet) of temporary watercourse impact and 186 square feet of temporary floodway impact. 2) In order to facilitate the construction of the new passive intake, a temporary cofferdam within the Schuylkill River (WWF-MF) compressed air pipes and passive intake screens resulting in 138 linear feet (11,592 square feet, 0.27 acre) of temporary watercourse impact. A rock construction access will also be constructed on riverbed within this area to facilitate construction activities as well as to abandon the existing 24-inch raw intake structure with the construction of a concrete bulkhead and placement of flowable fill resulting in 15 linear feet (390 square feet) of temporary watercourse impact and 12 square feet of temporary

floodway impact. 3) To perform streambank stabilization resulting in 350 square feet of permanent watercourse impact, 150 square feet of permanent floodway impact, 1,032 square feet of temporary watercourse impact, and 390 square feet of temporary floodway impact, with an additional 2,484 square feet of temporary floodway impact for construction access. This project is located near Water Street at the Phoenixville Borough Water Plant in Phoenixville Borough, Chester County (USGS PA Phoenixville Quadrangle). Latitude: 40.146551°, Longitude: -75.522503°. Application received: December 27, 2021. Issued: March 31, 2023.

Southwest Region: Oil and Gas Management Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745, 412-442-4000.

Contact: D. J. Stevenson, 412-442-4281.

**E0207222-005**. **Olympus Energy, LLC**, 501 Technology Drive, Canonsburg, PA 15317, Elizabeth Township, **Allegheny County**. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Pittsburgh District.

Latitude: 40.246585°, Longitude: -79.873603°. Application received: March 7, 2022. Issued: March 29, 2023.

This Joint Permit Application is being submitted for stream and floodway impacts due to the construction of a 3,730-foot-long, 24-foot-wide, permanent paved access road that will provide access to the Heracles Well Pad from SR-51. The proposed access road will cross an intermittent stream at two locations and will require the construction of two stream enclosures. A temporary access road, including one existing stream crossing and one proposed stream crossing, is proposed for use during construction of the permanent access road.

The project is located in the Donora 7.5-minute quadrangle.

Resource Name	Aquatic Resource Type	Activity	Chapter 93 Desig- nation	Impact Length Temp. (LF)	Impact Length Perm. (LF)	Impact Area Temp. (Ac)	Impact Area Perm. (Ac)	Lat. Long.
UNT 2 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run	Intermittent	Access Road Stream Crossing 1	WWF	43	76	0.007	0.012	40.246585 -79.873603
UNT 2 to Trib 39542 -79.873603 to Fallen Timber Run Floodway	Floodway	Access Road Stream Crossing 1	WWF	31	104	0.010	0.007	40.246585 -79.873603
UNT 2 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run	Intermittent	Access Road Stream Crossing 2	WWF	24	196	0.004	0.031	40.246879 -79.872518
UNT 2 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run Floodway	Floodway	Access Road Stream Crossing 2	WWF	80	173	0.007	0.016	40.246879 -79.872518
UNT 1 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run Floodway	Floodway	Access Road Stream Crossing 2	WWF	0	45	0	0.044	40.246879 -79.872518
UNT 1 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run	Intermittent	Temporary Road Crossing 1	WWF	86	0	0.008	0	40.247200 -79.872463

Resource Name	Aquatic Resource Type	Activity	Chapter 93 Desig- nation	Impact Length Temp. (LF)	Impact Length Perm. (LF)	Impact Area Temp. (Ac)	Impact Area Perm. (Ac)	Lat. Long.
UNT 1 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run Floodway	Floodway	Temporary Road Crossing 1	WWF	180	0	0.145	0	40.247200 -79.872463
UNT 2 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run	Intermittent	Temporary Road Crossing 2	WWF	49	0	0.008	0	40.247569 -79.871686
UNT 2 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run Floodway	Floodway	Temporary Road Crossing 2	WWF	58	0	0.075	0	40.247569 -79.871686
UNT 2 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run Floodway	Floodway	Permanent Floodway Impact 1	WWF	198	15	0.064	0.014	40.247449 -79.871671
UNT 2 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run Floodway	Floodway	Permanent Floodway Impact 2	WWF	291	126	0.107	0.078	40.247449 -79.871671
UNT 2 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run Floodway	Floodway	Temporary Road Crossing 3	WWF	96	0	0.011	0	40.248111 -79.870349
UNT 3 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run Floodway	Floodway	Permanent Floodway Impact 3	WWF	37	30	0.021	0.002	40.249968 -79.867836
UNT 5 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run Floodway	Floodway	Permanent Floodway Impact 3	WWF	128	73	0.059	0.007	40.249968 -79.867836
UNT 4 to Trib 39542 to Fallen Timber Run Floodway	Floodway	Temporary Road Crossing 4	WWF	85	0	0.025	0	40.249967 -79.867526
Totals	Stream Floodway			202 1,184	$\begin{array}{c} 272 \\ 566 \end{array}$	$0.027 \\ 0.524$	$0.043 \\ 0.168$	

### Contact: Dana Drake, Program Manager, 412-442-4000.

E0205221-024. Brackenridge Borough, 1000 Brackenridge Ave, Brackenridge, PA 15014, Brackenridge Borough, Allegheny County. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Pittsburgh District. The applicant has been given consent to: Construct, operate, and maintain a new variable width asphalt trail within Brackenridge Memorial Park that will serve as an extension of the Three Rivers Heritage Trail paralleling the Allegheny River. Additionally, an existing abandoned well will be filled to allow for the continuation of the trail. Permanent impacts include 0.6 acre of floodplain impacts for the trail construction as well as 0.003 acre of impact for the filling of the existing well. The project site is located at 1000 Brackenridge Avenue (New Kensington East, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40°, 36.9', 65"; W: -79°, 44', 30.24"; Sub-basin 18A; USACE Pittsburgh District), in Brackenridge Borough, Allegheny County. Application received: October 26, 2021. Issued: March 30, 2023.

E5605221-001. Somerset Township, P.O. Box 754, Somerset, PA 15501, Somerset Township, Somerset County. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Pittsburgh Dis-

trict. The applicant has been given consent to: 1. Remove 336 LF of an existing 435 LF 30-inch diameter plastic pipe in an Unnamed Tributary (UNT) to Kimberly Run (CWF). 2. Construct, operate and maintain a new 402 LF watercourse to connect the outlet of the remaining 99 LF plastic pipe to the unaffected portions of the unnamed tributary. 3. Construct, operate and maintain 75 LF of bank stabilization on the newly created watercourse below the aforementioned 99 LF plastic pipe, consisting of gabion baskets and 18 LF of R-4 riprap for outlet protection. For the purpose of corrective action to resolve the unpermitted enclosure of and fill placement in 450 LF of UNT to Kimberly Run and associated floodway, and 0.013 acre of PEM wetlands. The culvert's function is to provide support to the west side of Menser Road. The project will permanently impact 402 LF of the UNT and 0.048 acre of palustrine emergent (PEM) wetlands and temporarily impact 336 LF of the UNT and 0.552 acre of associated floodway, and 0.038 acre of PEM wetlands. The project site is located along Menser Road, approximately 0.3 mile south of the intersection with SR 31, (Murdock PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 39°, 59′, 30″; W: -79°, 01′, 01″; Sub-basin 19F; USACE Pittsburgh District). Application received: March 22, 2021. Issued: March 31, 2023.

E0205222-016. AR Building Company, Inc, 310 Seven Fields, Suite 350, Seven Fields, PA 16046, Monroeville Borough, Allegheny County. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Pittsburgh District. The applicant has been given consent to: To amend Permit No. E02-1801, which authorized the replacement of a 25' arch metal culvert over Leak Run (WWF) with a 45' open bottom, metal plate arch culvert. This culvert replacement project was not constructed. This permit also authorized the construction of three utility crossings of Leak Run (4" plastic gas line, 6" plastic (SDR-35) sewer line, and an 8" DIP (ductile iron pipe) water line). This amendment proposes to: Remove the existing 25' arch metal culvert and construct and maintain a replacement 48' open bottom precast concrete culvert, with wingwalls, over Leak Run; Construct and maintain three utility line crossings of Leak Run, as previously detailed; For the purpose of providing access to a proposed 116-unit apartment building. Cumulatively, the project will permanently impact 70 feet of stream and 0.02 acre of floodway, and temporarily impact 150 feet of stream and 0.03 acre of floodway. The project site is located at the entrance of 4281 Old William Penn Hwy (Braddock, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40°, 26', 35"; W: -79°, 46', 38"; Sub-basin 19A). Application received: April 15, 2022. Issued: March 31, 2023.

E0205222-001. O'Hara Township, 325 Fox Chapel Rd, Pittsburgh, PA 15238, City of Pittsburgh, Allegheny County. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Pittsburgh District.

The applicant has been given consent to: Construct, operate, and maintain approximately 310 liner feet of streambank restoration, along a UNT to Little Pine Creek (TSF), including grading the stream bank to aid in reconnecting the stream to its floodplain, 310 linear feet of vegetative slope stabilization, using landscape fabric and riparian buffer plantings along both banks of the UNT to Little Pine Creek, for the purpose of providing sediment load reduction toward O'Hara Township's MS4 requirements of their NPDES permit (Permit No. PAI136128). Cumulatively, the project will permanently impact 310 feet of stream and 0.5 acre of floodway and will temporarily impact 350 feet of stream and 0.45 acre of floodway. Construct, operate, and maintain a 19' x 8' riprap lined stilling basin for the purpose of dissipating velocities exiting the existing 60" CMP culvert. The project site is located at the end of Calmwood Road, which is located off of Saxonburg Boulevard (Glenshaw, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40°, 31', 24" W: -79°, 55′, 23″; Sub-basin 18A). Application received: January 21, 2022. Issued: April 3, 2023.

### **EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL**

The following Erosion and Sediment Control permits have been issued.

Persons aggrieved by an action may appeal that action to the Environmental Hearing Board (Board) under section 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act and 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—508 and 701—704. The appeal should be sent to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, 717-787-3483. Appeals must be filed with the Board within 30-days of publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* unless the appropriate statute provides a different time period. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure are also available in Braille or on audiotape from the Secretary to the Board at 717-787-3483. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create a right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decisional law.

For individuals who wish to challenge an action, the appeal must reach the Board within 30-days. A lawyer is not needed to file an appeal with the Board.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact the Environmental Hearing Board through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

Important legal rights are at stake, however, so individuals should show this notice to a lawyer at once. Persons who cannot afford a lawyer may qualify for free pro bono representation. Call the Secretary to the Board at 717-787-3483 for more information.

Eastern District: Oil and Gas Management Program, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448.

Contact: RA-EPEASTERNOGPRG@pa.gov.

ESCGP # 3 ESG294123007-00

Applicant Name Seneca Resources Co, LLC

Contact Person Doug Kepler

Address 51 Zents Boulevard

City, State, Zip Brookville, PA 15825-2701

Township(s) Lewis Township

County Lycoming County

Receiving Stream(s) and Classification(s) UNT to Grays Run (EV, MF), UNT to Lycoming Creek (EV, MF) Application received: February 14, 2023

Issued: March 30, 2023

Northwest Region: Oil and Gas Management Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481, 814-332-6945.

Contact: Kate Hogue, Clerical Supervisor 2, 814-332-6860.

ESCGP # 3 ESX170590040-01/Cosgray Meter Pad Applicant Name EQM Gathering OPCO, LLC Contact Person Kirsten Kiesel

Address 2200 Energy Drive

City, State, Zip Cannonsburg, PA 15317 Township(s) Franklin Township

County Greene County

Receiving Stream(s) and Classification(s) UNT To South Fork Ten Mile Creek WWF

Application received: February 28, 2023 Issued: April 4, 2023

Southwest Region: Oil and Gas Management Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745, 412-442-4000.

Contact: D. J. Stevenson, 412-442-4281.

ESCGP # 3 ESG070222004-00

Applicant Name **Range Resources—Appalachia, LLC** Contact Person Karl Matz Address 3000 Town Center Boulevard City, State, Zip Canonsburg, PA 15317-5839 Township(s) Frazer Township County **Allegheny County** Receiving Stream(s) and Classification(s) Crawford Run WWF, Bailey Run WWF Application received: December 23, 2022 Issued: March 29, 2023

### CORRECTIVE ACTION UNDER ACT 32, 1989

### PREAMBLE 2

### The Following Plan(s) and Report(s) Were Submitted Under the Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Act (35 P.S. §§ 6021.101-6021.2104).

Provisions of 25 Pa. Code Chapter 245, Subchapter D, Administration of the Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Program, require the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to publish in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* a notice of submission of plans and reports. A remedial action plan is submitted to summarize the site characterization, document the design and construction details for the remedial action, and describe how the remedial action will attain the selected remediation standard. The remedial action plan also provides results of studies performed and data collected to support the remedial action and a description of postremediation care requirements. A remedial action completion report is submitted to document cleanup of a release of a regulated substance at a site to the selected remediation standard. A remedial action completion report provides a description of the site investigation to characterize the nature and extent of contaminants in environmental media, the basis of selecting the environmental media of concern, documentation supporting the selection of residential or nonresidential exposure factors, a description of the remediation performed and summaries of sampling methodology and analytical results which demonstrate that the remediation has attained the cleanup standard selected.

For further information concerning plans or reports, please contact the Regional Office Program Manager previously listed in the notice.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

DEP has received the following plans and reports.

Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Eric Supey, Environmental Program Manager.

Uni Mart 44343, Storage Tank Facility ID # 40-36683, 901 Wyoming Avenue, Wyoming, PA 18644, Wyoming Borough, Luzerne County. MEA, 1365 Ackermanville Road, Bangor, PA 18013, on behalf of Fuel Up Trucksville, LLC, 10 Nittany Lane, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18702 submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with gasoline. The plan is intended to document the remedial actions for meeting site-specific standards.

7 Eleven 40206, Storage Tank Facility ID # 48-24155, 109 West Main Street, Bath, PA 18014, Bath Borough, Northampton County. Groundwater & Environmental Services, 440 Creamery Way, Suite 500, Exton, PA 19341, on behalf of Evergreen Resources Group LLC, 2 Righter Parkway, Suite 120, Wilmington, DE 19803 submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of groundwater contaminated with gasoline. The plan is intended to document the remedial actions for meeting residential Statewide health standards. Northwest Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481, 814-332-6945.

Contact: Natalie Ferraro, 814-332-6648.

Last Minit Mart New Castle, Storage Tank Facility ID # 37-30260, 511 Montgomery Ave, New Castle, PA 16102, City of New Castle, Lawrence County. Letterle & Associates, Inc., 191 Howard Street, Franklin, PA 16323, on behalf of Reed Oil Company, 511 Montgomery Ave, New Castle, PA 16102 submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with Unleaded gasoline. The plan is intended to document the remedial actions for meeting nonresidential site-specific standards.

Southcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

Contact: Greg Bowman, Environmental Group Manager.

**Keneco**, Storage Tank Facility ID # **01-36776**, 6149 Baltimore Pike, Littlestown, PA 17340-9504, Germany Township, **Adams County**. Mountain Research LLC, 825 25th St, Altoona, PA 16601, on behalf of Sharon & Dean Berkheimer, 6149 Baltimore Pike, Littlestown, PA 17340-9504 submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with Petroleum Constituents. The report is intended to document the remedial actions for meeting Statewide health and site-specific standards.

Contact: Gregory Bowman, Environmental Group Manager.

7 Eleven 40245, Storage Tank Facility ID # 36-24121, 1404 N Reading Rd, Reamstown, PA 17578, East Cocalico Township, Lancaster County. Aquaterra Technologies, Inc., 901 S Bolmar St, West Chester, PA 19382, on behalf of Sunoco LLC, 2 Righter Pkwy, Ste 120, Wilmington, DE 19803 submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with Petroleum Constituents. The report is intended to document the remedial actions for meeting Statewide health and site-specific standards.

Southeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5900.

Contact: Richard M. Staron, Professional Geologist Manager, 484-250-5717.

Hertz Rent a Car, Storage Tank Facility ID # 51-38096, 8201 Bartram Ave., Philadelphia, PA 19153, City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. EnviroTrac, Ltd., 6 Terri Lane, Suite # 350, Burlington, NJ 08016, on behalf of The Hertz Corporation, 8501 Williams Road, Estero, FL 33928 submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum products. The report is intended to document the remedial actions for meeting nonresidential Statewide health standards.

Hertz Rent a Car, Storage Tank Facility ID # 51-44283, 1 Arrivals Rd., Philadelphia, PA 19153, City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. EnviroTrac, Ltd., 6 Terri Lane, Suite # 350, Burlington, NJ 08016, on behalf of The Hertz Corporation, 8501 Williams Road, Estero, FL 33928 submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum products. The report is intended to document the remedial actions for meeting nonresidential Statewide health standards. Southwest Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745, 412-442-4000.

Contact: Kam Miseikyte, Clerical Assistant 2, 412-442-4091.

A to Z Convenience Store, Storage Tank Facility ID # 02-03926, 1617 West Street, Homestead, PA 15120, Homestead Borough, Allegheny County. Compliance Environmental Service, 2700 Kirila Boulevard, Hermitage, PA 16148, on behalf of Executor of the Estate of Robert B. Graham, 131 East 17th Avenue, Hermitage, PA 16148 submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The plan is intended to document the remedial actions for meeting residential Statewide health standards.

# CORRCTIVE ACTION UNDER ACT 32, 1989 PREAMBLE 3

# Action(s) Taken on the Following Plans and Reports Under the Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Act (35 P.S. §§ 6021.101-6021.2104).

Provisions of 25 Pa. Code Chapter 245, Subchapter D, Administration of the Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Program, require the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to publish in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* a notice of its final actions on plans and reports.

A remedial action plan is submitted to summarize the site characterization, document the design and construction details for the remedial action, and describe how the remedial action will attain the selected remediation standard. The remedial action plan also provides results of studies performed and data collected to support the remedial action and a description of postremediation care requirements. A remedial action completion report is submitted to document cleanup of a release of a regulated substance at a site to the selected remediation standard. A remedial action completion report provides a description of the site investigation to characterize the nature and extent of contaminants in environmental media, the basis of selecting the environmental media of concern, documentation supporting the selection of residential or nonresidential exposure factors, a description of the remediation performed and summaries of sampling methodology and analytical results which demonstrate that the remediation has attained the cleanup standard selected.

DEP may approve or disapprove plans and reports submitted. This notice provides DEP's decision and, if relevant, the basis for disapproval.

For further information concerning plans or reports, please contact the Regional Office Program Manager previously listed in the notice.

Individuals in need of accommodations should contact DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

DEP has received the following plans and reports.

Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Eric Supey, Environmental Program Manager.

Al's Quick Stop 9, Storage Tank Facility ID # 40-13185, 547 North Hunter Highway, Drums, PA 18222, Butler Township, Luzerne County. LaBella Associates, 1000 Dunham Drive, Suite B, Dunmore, PA 18512, on behalf of Alnajukchahat Real Estate, LLC, 702 East Swinick Drive, Dunmore, PA 18512 submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum. The plan nonresidential was acceptable to meet the Statewide health standards and was approved by DEP on March 30, 2023.

**Brodheadsville Sunoco**, Storage Tank Facility ID # **45-25468**, 2023 Route 209, Brodheadsville, PA 18322, Chestnuthill Township, **Monroe County**. MEA, 1365 Ackermanville Road, Bangor, PA 18013, on behalf of Pipeline Petroleum, Inc., P.O. Box 159, Macungie, PA 18062 submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum. The report residential demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standards and was approved by DEP on March 31, 2023.

**Speedway # 6714**, Storage Tank Facility ID **# 48-23195**, 201 Broadway, Bethlehem, PA 18015, City of Bethlehem, **Northampton County**. AECOM, 625 West Ridge Pike, Suite E-100, Conshohocken, PA 19428, on behalf of Speedway, LLC, P.O Box 1500, Springfield, OH 44501 submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with gasoline. The report nonresidential demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health and site-specific standards and was approved by DEP on March 31, 2023.

Northwest Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481, 814-332-6945.

Contact: Natalie Ferraro, Clerical Assistant, 814-332-6648.

**Radhe Oil**, Storage Tank Facility ID # 03-29674, 222 Buffalo Street, Freeport, PA 16229, Freeport Borough, **Armstrong County**. CORE Environmental Services, Inc., 3960 William Flinn Highway, Suite 100, Allison Park, PA 15101, on behalf of SPC Realty Company, 8199 McKnight Road, Pittsburgh, PA 15237 submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with Petroleum. The plan nonresidential was acceptable to meet the Statewide health standards and was approved by DEP on March 30, 2023.

Southcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, 717-705-4700.

### Contact: Cherie M. Campbell, Soil Scientist.

7 Eleven 40245, Storage Tank Facility ID # 36-24121, 1404 N Reading Rd, Reamstown, PA 17578, East Cocalico Township, Lancaster County. Aquaterra Technologies, Inc., 901 S Bolmar St., West Chester, PA 19382, on behalf of Sunoco LLC, 2 Righter Pkwy, Ste 120, Wilmington, DE 19808 submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with Petrolem Constituents. The report demonstrated attainment of the site-specific standards and was approved by DEP on March 31, 2023.

Contact: Cynthia Stine, Licensed Professional Geologist.

Sac Shop Wolfsburg, Storage Tank Facility ID

qj # 05-32020, 6934 Lincoln Hwy, Bedford, PA 15522, Bedford Township, **Bedford County**. Gary C Calvert LLC, P.O. Box 504, Hollidaysburg, PA 16648, on behalf of SAC Incorporated, 488 Business 220, Bedford, PA 15522 submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with Petroleum Products. The report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standards and was approved by DEP on March 28, 2023.

Southwest Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745, 412-442-4000.

Contact: Kam Miseikyte, Clerical Assistant 2, 412-442-4091.

**Mauro's Amoco**, Storage Tank Facility ID **# 02-06219**, 7409 Saltsburg Road, Penn Hills, PA 15235, Penn Hills Township, **Allegheny County**. KU Resources, Inc., 22 South Linden Street, Duquesne, PA 15110, on behalf of David Mauro, 7409 Saltsburg Road, Penn Hills, PA 15235 submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The report nonresidential demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standards and was approved by DEP on March 31, 2023.

Kehm Oil, Storage Tank Facility ID # 02-81563, 1600 Oakdale Road, P.O. Box # 275, Allison Park, PA 15101, Oakdale Borough, Allegheny County. CORE Environmental Services, Inc., 3960 William Flinn Highway, Suite 100, Allison Park, PA 15101, on behalf of Kehm Oil Company, P.O. Box 130, Oakdale, PA 15071 submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline and diesel fuel. The plan nonresidential was acceptable to meet the background standards and was approved by DEP on April 4, 2023.

### STORAGE TANKS

### **CLOSURE-IN-PLACE VARIANCE**

Central Office: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17101.

Contact: Randy Martin 717-772-5828

The following variance from closure requirements under the authority of the Storage Tank Spill Prevention Act (35 P.S. § 6021.501) and under 25 Pa. Code Chapter 245, Subchapter E, has been issued by the Bureau of Environmental Cleanup and Brownfields, P.O. Box 8762, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8762.

Variance No.	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Tank Type	Tank Capacities
U-23-0001	7-Eleven, Inc. P.O. Box 711 Dallas, TX 75221	Allegheny	Bethel Park Borough	Gasoline Gasoline	10,000 gallons 10,000 gallons

The variance request asks that underground storage tanks (USTs) 002 and 003 be excluded from part of the UST closure requirements located in 25 Pa. Code § 245.452(b). Specifically, the variance requests that USTs 002 and 003 be permanently closed without being removed from the ground or filled with a non-shrinking, inert solid material as required by regulation to facilitate the installation of new, structurally independent, fieldconstructed USTs built within USTs 002 and 003. A variance was granted with the following conditions: (1) 7-Eleven, Inc. shall comply with all remaining applicable requirements of 25 Pa. Code Chapter 245 and shall not violate any applicable provision of the Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Act; and (2) This Variance Approval will remain in effect until March 30, 2026, unless amended or revoked by the Department or terminated for any reason by 7-Eleven, Inc. or by the Department.

# **SPECIAL NOTICES**

### WATER PROGRAMS

### FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT, SECTION 401

The following permit applications, requests for Environmental Assessment approval and requests for 401 Water Quality Certification have been received by the Department. Section 401 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (FWPCA) (33 U.S.C.A. § 1341) requires the Commonwealth to certify that the involved projects will not violate the sections 301—303, 306 and 307 of the FWPCA (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1311—1313, 1316 and 1317) as well as relevant State requirements. Persons objecting to approval of a request for certification under section 401 of the FWPCA, the issuance of a Dam Permit or Water Obstruction and Encroachment Permit or the approval of an Environmental Assessment shall submit comments, suggestions or objections within 30 days of the date of this notice as well as any questions to the Regional Permit Coordination Office as noted before the application. Comments should contain the name, address and telephone number of the person commenting, identification of the certification request to which the comments or objections are addressed and a concise statement of comments, objections or suggestions including the relevant facts upon which they are based.

The Department may conduct a fact-finding hearing or an informal conference in response to comments if deemed necessary. Each individual will be notified, in writing, of the time and place of a scheduled hearing or conference concerning the certification request to which the comment, objection or suggestion relates.

More information regarding the permit applications related to this proposed project may be available online (dep.pa.gov/pipelines) or in the Department's Regional Permit Coordination Office. The Department's Regional Permit Coordination Office can be contacted at 717-772-5987 or RA-EPREGIONALPERMIT@pa.gov.

Comments on the applications can be emailed or sent via postal mail to the Department of Environmental Protection, Regional Permit Coordination Office, Rachel Carson Building, 400 Market Street, 10th Floor, Harrisburg, PA 17101, RA-EPREGIONALPERMIT@pa.gov.

Persons with a disability that require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation should contact the specified Department office. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 53, NO. 15, APRIL 15, 2023

Applications Received under the Dam Safety and Encroachments Act (32 P.S. §§ 693.1—693.27) and section 302 of the Flood Plain Management Act (32 P.S. § 679.302) and Requests for Certification under section 401(a) of the FWPCA.

### WATER OBSTRUCTIONS AND ENCROACHMENTS

Central Office: Regional Permit Coordination Office, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17101.

### Contact: RA-EPREGIONALPERMIT@pa.gov.

Applicant: Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Company, LLC, 2000 Commerce Drive, Park Place 2, Pittsburgh, PA 15275, West Conshohocken Lateral Stream Stabilization Project.

**E4683223-019.** To construct and maintain a stream stabilization project of approximately 97 linear feet of a tributary to Schuylkill River (WWF) for purposes of protecting an existing and exposed 10-inch diameter natural gas pipeline. The work includes the installation of an articulated concrete mat, installation of in-stream grade control structures (6 cross vanes), and left bank armored with riprap. The project is located approximately 500 feet north west from Chelsea Drive (Latitude: 40.114894°; Longitude: -75.371701°) in Upper Merion Township, **Montgomery County**.

### PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR WATER OBSTRUCTIONS AND ENCROACHMENTS, STATE WATER QUALITY CERTIFICATION AND EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL

A person wishing to comment on a proposed permit are invited to submit a statement to the appropriate Department office listed before the application within 30 days of this public notice. Comments reviewed within this 30-day period will be considered in the formulation of the final determinations regarding this application. Responses should include the name, address and telephone number of the writer and a concise statement to inform the Department of the exact basis of a comment and relevant facts upon which it is based. A public hearing may be held after consideration of comments received by the appropriate Department office during the 30-day public comment period.

Following the 30-day comment period, the program manager from the appropriate Department office will make a final determination regarding the proposed permit. Notice of this determination will be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* at which time this determination may be appealed to United States Court of Appeals for the 3rd Circuit, 21400 U.S. Courthouse, 601 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19106-1790.

More information regarding the permit applications related to this proposed project may be available online (dep.pa.gov/pipelines) or in the Department's Regional Permit Coordination Office. The Department's Regional Permit Coordination Office can be contacted at 717-772-5987 or RA-EPREGIONALPERMIT@pa.gov.

Comments on the applications can be emailed or sent via postal mail to the Department of Environmental Protection, Regional Permit Coordination Office, Rachel Carson Building, 400 Market Street, 10th Floor, Harrisburg, PA 17101, RA-EPREGIONALPERMIT@pa.gov.

Persons with a disability that require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to participate during the 30-day public comment period should contact the specified Department office. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-497. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

### Availability of Technical Guidance

Technical guidance documents (TGD) are available on the Department of Environmental Protection's (Department) web site at http://www.depgreenport.state.pa.us/ elibrary/. The "Technical Guidance Final Documents" heading is the link to a menu of the various Department bureaus where each bureau's final TGDs are posted. The "Technical Guidance Draft Documents" heading is the link to the Department's draft TGDs.

### Ordering Paper Copies of Department Technical Guidance

The Department encourages the use of the Internet to view and download TGDs. When this option is not available, persons can order a paper copy of any of the Department's draft or final TGDs by contacting the Department at (717) 783-8727.

In addition, bound copies of some of the Department's documents are available as Department publications. Check with the appropriate bureau for more information about the availability of a document as a publication.

### Changes to TGDs

Following is the current list of recent changes. Persons who have questions or comments about a document should call the contact person whose name and phone number are listed with each document.

### Final TGD: Minor Revisions

DEP ID: 250-4000-004. Title: Program Implementation Guidance. Description: This document establishes a formal methodology for how the Department's Bureau of Waste Management will implement a compliance and enforcement program throughout this Commonwealth. Minor changes to this TGD include removal of outdated references, updating additional document references and minor formatting adjustments.

Contact: Questions regarding this TGD can be directed to Derek Bartram at (717) 787-2693 or dbartram@pa.gov.

Effective Date: April 15, 2023

Final TGD: Minor Revisions

DEP ID: 250-4000-002. Title: Enforcement Actions. Description: This document provides guidelines to the Department's Bureau of Waste Management staff to implement enforcement action provisions. The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all staff use similar comparable formats when addressing similar violations across Department regions. Revisions include removal of outdated references, grammatical corrections and minor formatting adjustments.

*Contact*: Questions regarding this TGD can be directed to Derek Bartram at (717) 787-2693 or dbartram@pa.gov.

Effective Date: April 15, 2023

Final TGD: Minor Revisions

DEP ID: 254-3120-001. Title: Performing Municipal and Residual Waste Inspections. Description: This document establishes a formalized procedure for the Department's Bureau of Waste Management staff to conduct municipal and residual waste facility inspections across the six regions of the Department. Minor changes to this TGD include updates to language, changes to regulatory citations formats and minor formatting adjustments.

*Contact*: Questions regarding this TGD can be directed to Kevin Beer at (717) 787-6052 or kbeer@pa.gov.

Effective Date: April 15, 2023

Final TGD: Minor Revisions

DEP ID: 254-5900-001. Title: Guidelines for the Development and Implementation of Preparedness, Prevention and Contingency Plans for Generators and Burners of Waste. Description: This document provides a simple alternative for waste oil generators and burners to "Guidelines for the Development and Implementation of Environmental Emergency Response Plans" (400-2200-001) that preserves the waters of this Commonwealth through prompt response to all emergencies and accidental spills by generators or burners of waste oil for the protection of public health, animal and aquatic life and for recreation. Minor revisions include removal of outdated references, formatting regulatory citations to be consistent with current standards and minor document formatting adjustments.

*Contact*: Questions regarding this TGD can be directed to Kevin Beer at (717) 787-6052 or kbeer@pa.gov.

Effective Date: April 15, 2023

RICHARD NEGRIN, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-498. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

### Federal Consistency under the Coastal Zone Management Act; City of Erie and Erie Sewer Authority, Mill Creek Channel Wall Rehabilitation

This notice is published under section 306(d)(14) of the Federal Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (CZMA) (16 U.S.C.A. § 1455(d)(14)), relating to public participation in consistency determinations. The Department of Environmental Protection (Department), Coastal Resources Management Program has received notice that the City of Erie and the Erie Sewer Authority (applicant) are proposing to rehabilitate the Mill Creek channel wall (Project).

The applicant is proposing to stabilize the concrete channel walls of Mill Creek which will help to mitigate future hazardous occurrences from happening directly to the water body. The concrete channel walls have been in existence since the 1900s and need maintenance. The applicant projects that if stabilization measures are not taken, hazardous events such as concrete debris falling in

the waterway due to the cracking channel walls could occur. Possible short-term impacts during construction consist of minor, temporary noise and air pollution from construction equipment. The applicant has stated that there is no public access by means of uplands to the Project site since the area is located on privately owned land; therefore, public access will not be restricted. Access to the navigable waterway is not anticipated to be detrimental due to the existing Mill Creek Tube outfall and existing hardened banks. Effects on historic resources from this Project are not anticipated. Recreational fishing will be temporarily disrupted due to the location of the Project work zone. Wetlands are present within the Project area but will be avoided and applicable erosion control measures will be implemented. The Project involves maintenance activities and is temporary in nature. Substantial changes to the site are not proposed. Minimal disturbances due to maintenance activities may occur, but the long-term effects of the proposed Project are expected to be beneficial. The applicant proposes that the Project will maintain existing infrastructure for the community, ensuring that existing services will continue to function as expected for the foreseeable future. The applicant is seeking authorization of the proposed Project from the United States Army Corps of Engineers under section 10 of the Federal Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C.A. § 403). The applicant is seeking coverage for the proposed Project under the Pennsylvania State Programmatic General Permit.

This Project is subject to Department review for Federal consistency because it is an activity requiring a Federal license or permit and will have reasonably foreseeable effects on this Commonwealth's coastal resources or uses.

In accordance with section 307 of the CZMA (16 U.S.C.A. § 1456) and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) regulations at 15 CFR Part 930, Subpart D (relating to consistency for activities requiring a Federal license or permit), the applicant has certified that the proposed Project will be conducted in a manner consistent with the applicable enforceable policies of the Commonwealth's NOAA-approved Coastal Resources Management Program. Interested parties may request a copy of the Federal Consistency Certification from the Department contact listed as follows.

Questions regarding this review can be directed to Matthew Walderon, Federal Consistency Coordinator, at (717) 772-2196 or RA-Fed\_Consistency@pa.gov.

The Department will consider all comments received on or before Monday, May 1, 2023, before issuing a final Federal consistency concurrence or objection. Commentators are encouraged to submit comments using the Department's online eComment tool at www.ahs.dep.pa.gov/ eComment. Written comments can be submitted by e-mail to ecomment@pa.gov or by mail to the Department of Environmental Protection, Policy Office, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 2063, Harrisburg, PA 17105-2063. Comments submitted by facsimile will not be accepted. Comments, including comments submitted by e-mail, must include the originator's name and address.

RICHARD NEGRIN,

Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-499. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

### Planning Grant Award under Section 901 of the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act, Act 101 of 1988

The Department of Environmental Protection announces the following grant to Lawrence County under section 901 of the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (Act 101) (53 P.S. § 4000.901) and section 208 of the Small Business and Household Pollution Prevention Program Act (35 P.S. § 6029.208).

Planning grants are awarded to counties for 80% of approved costs for preparing municipal waste management plans, as required by Act 101, for carrying out related studies, surveys, investigations, inquiries, research and analysis, including those related to siting, environmental mediation, education programs on pollution prevention and household hazardous waste (HHW) and providing technical assistance to small businesses for pollution prevention. Grants may be awarded for feasibility studies and project development for municipal waste processing or disposal facilities, except for facilities for the combustion of municipal waste that are not proposed to be operated for the recovery of energy. Grant awards are predicated on the receipt of recycling fees required by sections 701 and 702 of Act 101 (53 P.S. §§ 4000.701 and 4000.702) and the availability of funds in the Recycling Fund.

Inquiries regarding the grant offering can be directed to Mark Vottero, Department of Environmental Protection, Bureau of Waste Management, Division of Waste Minimization and Planning, Rachel Carson State Office Building, P.O. Box 8472, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8472, at mvottero@pa.gov or (717) 772-5719.

Act 101, Section 901 HHW Education Grant

Region	County	Applicant	Project	Grant
Northwest	Lawrence	Lawrence County	HHW Education	\$8,636

RICHARD NEGRIN, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-500. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

### Proposed State Implementation Plan Revision; Attainment Demonstration for the Indiana, PA Nonattainment Area for the 2010 Sulfur Dioxide National Ambient Air Quality Standard; Public Hearing

The Department of Environmental Protection (Department) is seeking public comment on a proposed State Implementation Plan (SIP) revision which demonstrates how the Indiana nonattainment area (Indiana Area) will attain the 2010 1-hour National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS) for Sulfur Dioxide (SO<sub>2</sub>). Short-term exposure to SO<sub>2</sub> has been linked to adverse respiratory conditions in humans.

On June 22, 2010, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) promulgated a revised primary NAAQS for SO<sub>2</sub> of 75 parts per billion, which went into effect on August 23, 2010 (75 FR 35520). On August 5, 2013, the EPA designated four areas in this Commonwealth as nonattainment for the 2010 1-hour SO<sub>2</sub> NAAQS, including the Indiana Area (78 FR 47191). The Indiana Area includes all of Indiana County and the municipalities of Plumcreek Township, South Bend Township and Elderton Borough in Armstrong County.

On October 19, 2020 (85 FR 66240), the EPA published a final rulemaking, effective November 18, 2020, approving the Pennsylvania SO<sub>2</sub> attainment plan for the Indiana Area (2020 Final Rule). As a result of litigation challenging the EPA's 2020 Final Rule in *Sierra Club v. EPA*, 3d Cir., Case No. 20-3568, the United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit granted the EPA's motion for remand without vacatur and ordered the EPA to take final action no later than August 17, 2022. On March 17, 2022 (87 FR 15166), the EPA reconsidered the October 2020 Final Rule and proposed converting its approval of Pennsylvania's 2010  $SO_2$  Indiana Area Attainment Plan into a partial approval and partial disapproval (2022 Proposed Rule). On August 18, 2022 (87 FR 50778), the EPA published a final rulemaking partially approving and partially disapproving the Commonwealth's 2010  $SO_2$  Indiana Area Attainment Plan (2022 Final Rule). The 2022 Final Rule, effective September 19, 2022, retained the EPA's previous approval of the emission inventory and nonattainment New Source Review program requirements and disapproved the dispersion modeling attainment demonstration, RACM/RACT requirements, RFP requirements and contingency measures (87 FR 50779).

The proposed SIP revision addresses the requirements for an approvable SIP revision as set forth in sections 110, 172, 191 and 192 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C.A. §§ 7410, 7502, 7514 and 7514a) and 40 CFR § 51.102 (relating to public hearings), including reasonable further progress toward attainment, installation of reasonably available control measures/technology, dispersion modeling demonstrating attainment in 2023 and contingency measures. After consideration of comments received from the public, the Department will finalize and submit the Indiana, PA SO<sub>2</sub> SIP revision to the EPA for approval and to revise the SIP.

The proposed SIP revision is available on the Department's web site at www.ahs.dep.pa.gov/eComment.

The Department will provide the opportunity for a public hearing to receive comments on this proposed SIP revision on Wednesday, May 24, 2023, at 10:30 a.m. at the Indiana Free Library, 845 Philadelphia Street, Indiana, PA 15701. Persons wishing to present testimony should contact Amanda Rodriguez at P.O. Box 8468, Harrisburg, PA 17105, (717) 787-7677 or amarodrigu@pa.gov no less than 24 hours in advance of the public hearing to reserve a time. Witnesses will be limited to 10 minutes and should provide two written copies of their comments. Persons with a disability who wish to attend a hearing and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to participate in the proceeding should contact Amanda Rodriguez at amarodrigu@pa.gov or (717) 787-7677. TDD users may contact the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 to discuss how the Department can best accommodate their needs.

The Department must receive comments no later than Thursday May 25, 2023. Commentators are encouraged to submit comments using the Department's eComment system at www.ahs.dep.pa.gov/eComment or by e-mail to ecomment@pa.gov. Written comments may be submitted to the Policy Office, Department of Environmental Protection, Rachel Carson State Office Building, P.O. Box 2063, Harrisburg, PA 17105-2063. Use "Indiana 2010 SO<sub>2</sub>" as the subject line in written communication.

> RICHARD NEGRIN, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-501. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

### **Radiation Protection Advisory Committee Meeting**

The Radiation Protection Advisory Committee (Committee) will meet Thursday, April 27, 2023. The meeting will begin at 9 a.m. in the 14th Floor Conference Room, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA. Individuals may attend the meeting in person or remotely.

Information on how to join the meeting, as well as agenda and meeting materials, will be available on the Committee's webpage, found through the Public Participation tab on the Department of Environmental Protection's (Department) web site at www.dep.pa.gov (select "Public Participation," then "Advisory Committees," then "Radiation," then "Radiation Protection Advisory Committee," then "Meetings and Bylaws"). Individuals are encouraged to visit the Committee's webpage to confirm meeting date, time and location prior to each meeting. Questions concerning the April 27, 2023, meeting can be directed to John Chippo, Bureau of Radiation Protection, at jchippo@pa.gov or (717) 783-9730.

Persons in need of accommodations as provided for in the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 should contact the Department at (717) 783-1566, or through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users), or (800) 654-5988 (voice users) to discuss how the Department may accommodate their needs.

RICHARD NEGRIN,

Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-502. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

### **Real Estate for Sale**

### **Allegheny County**

The Department of General Services (Department) will accept bids for the purchase of 0.16 acre  $\pm$  of land and 2,568 square foot  $\pm$  single family house known as the former SCI Pittsburgh Superintendent's house located at 3561 Shadeland Avenue, City of Pittsburgh, Allegheny County, PA. Bids are due Wednesday, June 28, 2023. Interested parties wishing to receive a copy of Solicitation No. 95193 should view the Department's web site at www.dgs.pa.gov/realestate or call Andrew Lick at (717) 772-8842.

#### REGGIE McNEIL, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-503. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

### Ambulatory Surgical Facilities; Requests for Exceptions

The following ambulatory surgical facilities (ASF) have filed requests for exceptions under 28 Pa. Code § 51.33 (relating to requests for exceptions) with the Department of Health (Department), which has authority to license ASFs under the Health Care Facilities Act (35 P.S. §§ 448.101—448.904b). The following requests for exceptions relate to regulations governing ASF licensure in 28 Pa. Code Chapters 29, 51 and 551—571 (relating to miscellaneous health provisions; general information; and ambulatory surgical facilities).

Facility Name	Regulation
Allegheny Health Network Surgery Center— Bethel Park, LLC	28 Pa. Code § 567.53(1) (relating to sterilization control)
East Norriton Surgical Center, LLC	28 Pa. Code § 569.35(7) (relating to general safety precautions)
North Shore Endoscopy Center, LLC	28 Pa. Code § 553.31(a) (relating to administrative responsibilities)
RMA of Philadelphia Surgical Center, LLC	28 Pa. Code § 569.35(7)
Valley Surgical Center, Inc.	28 Pa. Code § 555.32(a) (relating to administration of anesthesia)

The previously listed requests are on file with the Department. Persons may receive a copy of a request for exception by requesting a copy from the Department of Health, Division of Acute and Ambulatory Care, Room 532, Health and Welfare Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120, (717) 783-8980, fax (717) 772-2163, ra-paexcept@pa.gov. Persons who wish to comment on an exception request may do so by sending a letter by mail, e-mail or facsimile to the Division at the previously listed address. Comments received by the Department within 10 days after the date of publication of this notice will be reviewed by the Department before it decides whether to approve or disapprove the request for exception.

Persons with a disability who wish to obtain a copy of a request and/or provide comments to the Department and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to do so should contact the Director, Division of Acute and Ambulatory Care at (717) 783-8980, or for speech and/or hearing-impaired persons, call the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

DR. DEBRA L. BOGEN, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-504. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

#### Decisions on Requests for Exceptions to Health Care Facility Regulations

Under 28 Pa. Code § 51.33 (relating to requests for exceptions), effective June 6, 1998, the Department of Health (Department) has published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* all requests by entities licensed under the Health Care Facilities Act (35 P.S. §§ 448.101—448.904b), for exceptions to regulations contained in 28 Pa. Code Part IV Subparts B—G.

Section 51.33(d) of 28 Pa. Code provides that the Department will publish notice of all approved exceptions on a periodic basis. The Department has determined that it will publish notice of all exceptions, both approved and denied. The following list contains the decisions made on exception requests published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* from March 1, 2023, through March 31, 2023. Future publications of decisions on exception requests will appear on a quarterly basis.

Requests for additional information on the exception request and the Department's decision should be made to the relevant division of the Department. Inquiries regarding hospitals, abortion facilities and ambulatory surgical facilities shall be addressed to Garrison E. Gladfelter, Jr., Director, Division of Acute and Ambulatory Care, Room 532, Health and Welfare Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120, (717) 783-8980. Inquiries regarding long-term care facilities shall be addressed to Susan Williamson, Director, Division of Nursing Care Facilities, Room 528, Health and Welfare Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120, (717) 787-1816. Inquiries regarding Home Health agencies should be directed to Linda Chamberlain, Director, Division of Home Health, Forum Place, Suite 701, 555 Walnut Street, Harrisburg, PA 17101, (717) 783-1379.

### **Ambulatory Surgical Facilities**

Facility Name	28 Pa. Code Regulation	Dec. Date	Decision
Bryn Mawr Medical Specialist Endoscopy Associates Ltd.	§ 553.31(a) (relating to administrative responsibilities)	03/07/2023	Granted w/Conditions
Muve—West Chester Ambulatory Surgical Center, LLC	§ 551.21(d)(1) (relating to criteria for ambulatory surgery)	03/13/2023	Granted Probationary w/Conditions
Planned Parenthood Keystone— Lancaster	§ 29.33(10) (relating to requirements for abortion)	03/15/2023	Granted w/Conditions

nospitais					
Facility Name	28 Pa. Code Regulation	Dec. Date	Decision		
Barnes-Kasson County Hospital	§ 101.4 (relating to definitions)	03/07/2023	Granted w/Conditions		
	§ 135.5 (relating to surgical emergency care)	03/07/2023	Granted w/Conditions		
The Children's Hospital of Philadelphia	§ 101.31(7) (relating to hospital requirements)	03/13/2023	Granted w/Conditions		
	§ 127.31(b) (relating to policies and procedures)	03/13/2023	Granted w/Conditions		
	§ 153.1(a) (relating to minimum standards) 2.2-3.2.2.2(1) space requirements	03/22/2023	Granted		
Conemaugh Meyersdale Medical Center	§ 153.1(a) 2.2-2.2.2.1(2) capacity	03/14/2023	Granted		
Geisinger Wyoming Valley Medical Center	§ 153.1(a) 2.2-3.5.2.1(1) general	03/07/2023	Granted w/Conditions		
Penn Highlands Brookville	§ 101.4	03/13/2023	Granted w/Conditions		
	§ 135.5	03/13/2023	Granted w/Conditions		

### Hospitals

Facility Name	28 Pa. Code Regulation	Dec. Date	Decision
Penn Highlands Connellsville	$\$ 153.1(a) 2.1-8.4.3.2(2) handwashing station sinks	03/07/2023	Granted
Penn Highlands Dubois	$\$ 153.1(a) 2.2-3.3.7.13(2) clean equipment and supply storage	03/14/2023	Granted
Wellspan Good Samaritan Hospital	§ 133.21 (relating to facilities)	03/13/2023	Granted w/Conditions
	§ 133.31(a) (relating to policies and procedures)	03/13/2023	Granted w/Conditions
Wellspan York Hospital	$\$ 153.1(a) 2.1-8.5.2.3(3)(a) and (b) technology distribution room (TDR)	03/13/2023	Granted

# **Nursing Care Facilities**

Facility Name	28 Pa. Code Regulation	Dec. Date	Decision
Complete Care at Berkshire, LLC	§ 201.3 (relating to definitions), specifically the definition of nurse aide	03/27/2023	Granted
Corry Manor	§ 201.22(e) (relating to prevention, control and surveillance of tuberculosis (TB))	03/06/2023	Granted
Homestead Village	§ 205.67(j) (relating to electric requirements for existing and new construction)	03/27/2023	Granted
University City Rehabilitation and Healthcare Center	§ 205.24 (relating to dining room)	03/20/2023	Granted
	§ 205.27 (relating to lounge and recreation rooms)	03/20/2023	Granted

### **Home Health**

Facility Name	28 Pa. Code Regulation	Dec. Date	Decision
Ameribest Home Care—Allentown	§ 611.51(a)(1) (relating to hiring or rostering of direct care workers)	02/22/2023	Granted
Avalon at Home	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Aveanna Healthcare (Bala Cynwyd)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Aveanna Healthcare (Jenkintown)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Aveanna Healthcare (Olyphant)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Dedicated Nursing Associates	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Help at Home (Dubois)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Help at Home (Erie)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Help at Home (Harrisburg)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Help at Home (Lancaster)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Help at Home (New Castle)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Help at Home (Philadelphia)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Help at Home (Pittsburgh)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Help at Home (Reading)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Help at Home (Scranton)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Help at Home (Williamsport)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Home Sweet Home in Home Services	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Legacy Home Care	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Maxim Healthcare Services	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Medstaffers—Altoona	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Medstaffers—Armstrong	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Medstaffers—Carlisle	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Medstaffers—Mayfield	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Moravia Health Network	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Preferred Home Health Care and Nursing Services	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted

Facility Name	28 Pa. Code Regulation	Dec. Date	Decision
Redstone at Home	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Voices for Independence (Erie)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted
Voices for Independence (Washington)	§ 611.51(a)(1)	02/22/2023	Granted

Persons with a disability who require an alternative format of this notice (for example, large print, audiotape, Braille) should contact the Division of Acute and Ambulatory Care or the Division of Nursing Care Facilities at the previously referenced address or telephone number, or for speech and/or hearing-impaired persons, call the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

DR. DEBRA L. BOGEN, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-505. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

### Hospitals; Requests for Exceptions

The following hospitals have filed requests for exceptions under 28 Pa. Code § 51.33 (relating to requests for exceptions) with the Department of Health (Department), which has authority to license hospitals under the Health Care Facilities Act (35 P.S. §§ 448.101—448.904b). The following requests for exceptions relate to regulations governing hospital licensure in 28 Pa. Code Chapters 51 and 101—158 (relating to general information; and general and special hospitals).

Facility Name	Regulation and relating to
Clarion Hospital	28 Pa. Code § 101.4 (relating to definitions)
	28 Pa. Code § 135.5 (relating to surgical emergency care)
Grand View Health	28 Pa. Code § 107.5(a) (relating to membership appointment and reappointment)
Penn Highlands Brookville	28 Pa. Code § 107.26(b)(3) (relating to additional committees)
	28 Pa. Code § 107.41 (relating to continuing education)
	28 Pa. Code § 145.1 (relating to principle)
Penn Highlands Connellsville	28 Pa. Code § 107.26(b)(2)
	28 Pa. Code § 145.1
Penn Highlands Dubois	28 Pa. Code § 107.26(b)(3)
	28 Pa. Code § 107.41
Penn Highlands Elk	28 Pa. Code § 107.26(b)(3)
	28 Pa. Code § 107.41
Penn Highlands Huntingdon	28 Pa. Code § 107.26(b)(3)
	28 Pa. Code § 107.41
	28 Pa. Code § 145.1
Penn Highlands Mon Valley	28 Pa. Code § 107.26(b)(2)
Penn Highlands Tyrone	28 Pa. Code § 107.26(b)(3)
	28 Pa. Code § 107.41
	28 Pa. Code § 145.1
Wellspan York Hospital	28 Pa. Code § 133.21 (relating to facilities)
	28 Pa. Code § 133.31(a) (relating to policies and procedures)

The following hospitals have filed requests for exceptions under 28 Pa. Code § 153.1 (relating to minimum standards). Requests for exceptions under this section relate to minimum standards that hospitals must comply with under the Guidelines for Design and Construction of Hospitals—2018 Edition, Guidelines for Design and Construction of Outpatient Facilities—2018 Edition or the Guidelines for Design and Construction of Hospitals—2022 Edition. The following list includes the citation to the section under the Guidelines that the hospital is seeking an exception.

Facility Name	FGI Guidelines Section and relating to	$Yr^{1,2}$
The Children's Hospital of Philadelphia	2.2-2.6.1.2(3) location	22
	2.2-2.6.8.12 soiled workroom or soiled holding room	22
	2.2-2.9.2.2(3)(a) space requirements	22
	2.2-2.9.8.12 soiled workroom or soiled holding room	22
	2.2-2.9.8.14(1) and (2) environmental services room	22
	2.2-2.9.9.1 staff lounge, storage facilities and toilet	22
	2.2-2.9.10.1(2) family and visitor lounge	22
	2.2-3.2.2(1) space requirements	18
Grove City Hospital	2.1-3.4.1.4 number of patient care stations	22
	2.2-3.5.2.1(1) general	22
Jefferson Health—Northeast	2.1-2.6 patient toilet room for individuals of size	18-0
	2.1-2.7.1.1(3)(b) clearances	18-0
	2.1-2.10.2.1 door openings to accommodate individuals of size	18-0
	2.1-3.2.2.2(2)(a)(i) and (ii) single-patient exam/observation room	18-0
Lehigh Valley Hospital—Pocono	§ 153.1(a) supporting service areas—treatment rooms (page 77)	Perinatal Guidelines 8th Edition
Penn Highlands Dubois	2.1-3.8.8.2(1)(a)(iii) work areas for preparing, dispensing and administering medications	22-0
	2.1-3.10.2.1 patient toilet room	22-0
	2.1-8.4.3.2(2) and (5) handwashing station sinks	22-0
	2.2-2.5.2.2(2)(b) space requirements	18
Saint Luke's Hospital—Easton Campus	2.2-3.5.6.2 patient toilet room	22
Temple University Hospital, Inc.	2.2-3.4.2.2(2)(a) space requirements	18
Thomas Jefferson University Hospitals, Inc.	2.1-2.6 patient toilet room for individuals of size	18-0
	2.1-2.6.1 patient toilet room for individuals of size	22-0
	2.1-2.7.1.1(3)(b) clearances	22-0
	2.1-2.10.2.1 door openings to accommodate individuals of size	18-0
UPMC Presbyterian Shadyside	2.1-7.2.2.5(1) windows in patient rooms	22
Wellspan Gettysburg Hospital	2.1-2.2.5.3 renovation	22
	2.2-2.2.1(1) capacity	22

<sup>1</sup> 2018 Year FGI Regulations for Outpatient Facilities are indicated by "-O."

<sup>2</sup> 2022 Year FGI Regulations for Outpatient Facilities are indicated by "-O."

The previously listed requests are on file with the Department. Persons may receive a copy of a request for exception by requesting a copy from the Department of Health, Division of Acute and Ambulatory Care, Room 532, Health and Welfare Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120, (717) 783-8980, fax (717) 772-2163, ra-paexcept@pa.gov. Persons who wish to comment on an exception request may do so by sending a letter by mail, e-mail or facsimile to the Division at the previously listed address. Comments received by the Department within 10 days after the date of publication of this notice will be reviewed by the Department before it decides whether to approve or disapprove the request for exception.

Persons with a disability who wish to obtain a copy of a request and/or provide comments to the Department and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to do so should contact the Director, Division of Acute and Ambulatory Care at (717) 783-8980, for speech and/or hearing impaired persons V/TT (717) 783-6154, or for speech and/or hearing impaired persons, call the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

DR. DEBRA L. BOGEN, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-506. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

### Long-Term Care Nursing Facilities; Requests for Exception

The following long-term care nursing facilities are seeking exceptions to 28 Pa. Code § 201.18(e) (relating to management):

Concordia at Cedars 4363 Northern Pike Monroeville, PA 15146 FAC ID # 062502

Harmony Physical Rehabilitation 4365 Northern Pike Monroeville, PA 15146 FAC ID # 24280201

The following long-term care nursing facility is seeking an exception to 28 Pa. Code § 201.22(e) and (k) (relating to prevention, control and surveillance of tuberculosis (TB)):

Sweden Valley Manor 1028 East Second Street Coudersport, PA 16915 FAC ID # 455402

These requests are on file with the Department of Health (Department). Persons may receive a copy of a request for exception by requesting a copy from the Department of Health, Division of Nursing Care Facilities, Room 526, Health and Welfare Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120, (717) 787-1816, fax (717) 772-2163, ra-paexcept@pa.gov.

Persons who wish to comment on an exception request may do so by sending a letter by mail, e-mail or facsimile to the Division at the previously listed contact information.

Comments received by the Department within 10 days after the date of publication of this notice will be reviewed by the Department before it decides whether to approve or disapprove the request for exception.

Persons with a disability who wish to obtain a copy of the request and/or provide comments to the Department and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to do so should contact the Division at the previously listed address or phone number, or for speech and/or hearing-impaired persons, call the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

> DR. DEBRA L. BOGEN, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-507. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# **DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

### **Organ Donation Advisory Committee Meeting**

The Organ Donation Advisory Committee established under 20 Pa.C.S. § 8622 (relating to The Governor Robert P. Casey Memorial Organ and Tissue Donation Awareness Trust Fund), will hold a public meeting on Thursday, May 4, 2023, from 10 a.m. to 1:30 p.m. The purpose of the meeting is to review progress in the area of organ and tissue donation in this Commonwealth, recommend education and awareness activities, recommend priorities in expenditures from the Organ and Tissue Donation Awareness Fund (Fund) and advise the Secretary of Health on matters relating to the administration of the Fund. The meeting will be held at the Gift of Life Harrisburg Office, 800 North 3rd Street, Suite 504, Harrisburg, PA. There will be a virtual option available using Microsoft Teams. The information for calling into the meeting is to dial (267) 332-8737 and enter conference ID 980 679 204#. Contact the Organ Donation Program at (717) 787-5876 or at ra-dhorgandonation@pa.gov to RSVP or with any questions regarding the meeting. It is requested that all RSVP responses are received no later than April 28, 2023.

For additional information or for persons with a disability who wish to attend the meeting and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to do so contact Amy Flaherty, Director, Division of Nutrition and Physical Activity, Bureau of Health Promotion and Risk Reduction, Room 1000, Health and Welfare Building, Harrisburg, PA, (717) 787-5876, or for speech and/or hearing impaired persons, call the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

This meeting is subject to cancellation without notice. DR. DEBRA L. BOGEN,

Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-508. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# **DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

### Special Pharmaceutical Benefits Program Advisory Council Public Meeting

The Statewide Special Pharmaceutical Benefits Program (SPBP) Advisory Council, established by the Department of Health (Department) to aid in the carrying out of its Federal grant responsibilities under section 2616 of the Ryan White Comprehensive AIDS Resources Emergency Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 300ff-26), will hold a public meeting on Thursday, May 4, 2023, from 10 a.m. to 3 p.m. at the Best Western Premier, 800 East Park Drive, Harrisburg, PA 17111. There will be a virtual option available using Microsoft Teams. Persons may participate by dialing in by location at (412) 648-8888 or (866) 588-4789. The meeting ID is 587 321 765#. The meeting will begin promptly at 10 a.m. and participants are urged to call in by 9:50 a.m.

The SPBP Advisory Council will provide program guidance and recommendations to the Department's SPBP in regard to the following: drug formulary; covered lab services; drug utilization review; clinical programs; eligibility; and program management.

For additional information or for persons with a disability who wish to attend the meeting and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to do so contact Sandy Brosius, Bureau of Communicable Diseases, Department of Health, Health and Welfare Building, 625 Forster Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120, (717) 547-3419, or for speech or hearing impaired persons call the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

The Department reserves the right to cancel this meeting without prior notice.

DR. DEBRA L. BOGEN, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-509. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

### Traumatic Brain Injury Advisory Board Meeting

The Traumatic Brain Injury Advisory Board (Board), established under section 1252 of the Federal Traumatic Brain Injury Act of 1996 (42 U.S.C. § 300d-52), will hold a public meeting on Friday, May 5, 2023, from 10 a.m. to 3 p.m. The meeting will be held in person at the Pennsylvania Training and Technical Assistance Network, 6340 Flank Drive, Harrisburg, PA 17112 in the Cambria conference room.

Meeting materials will be sent out before the meeting and will also be available on the Board's web site at https://www.health.pa.gov/topics/disease/Pages/Traumatic-Brain-Injury.aspx and at the meeting location. Contact Nicole Johnson at nfjohnson@pa.gov with any questions.

The Department of Health's (Department) Head Injury Program (HIP) strives to ensure that eligible individuals who have a traumatic brain injury receive high quality rehabilitative services aimed at reducing functional limitations and improving quality of life. The Board assists the Department in understanding and meeting the needs of persons living with traumatic brain injury and their families. This quarterly meeting will provide updates on a variety of topics including the number of people served by HIP. In addition, meeting participants will discuss budgetary and programmatic issues, community programs relating to traumatic brain injury and available advocacy opportunities.

For additional information or for persons with a disability who wish to attend the meeting and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to do so contact Nicole Johnson, Division of Community Systems Development and Outreach, (717) 772-2763, or for speech and/or hearing-impaired persons, contact V/TT (717) 783-6514 or the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

This meeting is subject to cancellation without notice. DR. DEBRA L. BOGEN, Acting Secretary

Thering Secretar

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-510. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

# Pennsylvania 4 X 4 Payout Instant Lottery Game 1636

Under the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101— 3761-314) and 61 Pa. Code § 819.203 (relating to notice of instant game rules), the Secretary of Revenue hereby provides public notice of the rules for the following instant lottery game:

1. Name: The name of the game is Pennsylvania 4 X 4 Payout (hereafter "4 X 4 Payout"). The game number is PA-1636.

2. *Price*: The price of a 4 X 4 Payout instant lottery game ticket is \$5.

3. *Play symbols*: Each 4 X 4 Payout instant lottery game ticket will contain one play area featuring a "WINNING NUMBERS" area and a "YOUR NUMBERS" area. The play symbols and their captions, located in the "WINNING NUMBERS" area, are: 1 (ONE), 2 (TWO), 3 (THREE), 4 (FOUR), 5 (FIVE), 6 (SIX), 7 (SEVEN), 8

(EIGHT), 9 (NINE), 10 (TEN), 11 (ELEVN), 12 (TWLV), 13 (THRTN), 14 (FORTN), 15 (FIFTN), 16 (SIXTN), 17 (SVNTN), 18 (EGHTN), 19 (NINTN), 20 (TWENT), 21 (TWYONE), 22 (TWYTWO), 23 (TWYTHR), 24 (TWYFOR), 25 (TWYFIV), 26 (TWYSIX), 27 (TWYSVN), 28 (TWYEGT), 29 (TWYNIN) and 30 (THIRT). The play symbols and their captions, located in the "YOUR NUM-BERS" area, are: 1 (ONE), 2 (TWUO), 3 (THREE), 4 (FOUR), 5 (FIVE), 6 (SIX), 7 (SEVEN), 8 (EIGHT), 9 (NINE), 10 (TEN), 11 (ELEVN), 12 (TWLV), 13 (THRTN), 14 (FORTN), 15 (FIFTN), 16 (SIXTN), 17 (SVNTN), 18 (EGHTN), 19 (NINTN), 20 (TWENT), 21 (TWYONE), 22 (TWYTWO), 23 (TWYTHR), 24 (TWYFOR), 25 (TWYFIV), 26 (TWYSIX), 27 (TWYSVN), 28 (TWYEGT), 29 (TWYNIN), 30 (THIRT), 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol, Key (WINALL) symbol and a Truck (TRUCK) symbol.

4. *Prize symbols*: The prize symbols and their captions, located in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area, are:  $5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL),  $10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL),  $20^{.00}$  (TWENTY),  $40^{.00}$  (FORTY),  $550^{.00}$  (FIFTY), 100 (ONE HUN), 200 (TWO HUN), 400 (FOR HUN), 1,000 (ONE THO), 5,000 (FIV THO) and a TRUCK (YOUPICK) symbol.

5. *Prizes*: The prizes that can be won in this game, are: \$5, \$10, \$20, \$40, \$50, \$100, \$200, \$400, \$1,000 and \$5,000. The prize that can be won when a Truck (TRUCK) play symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area is a Truck Prize as described in section 10. A player can win up to 12 times on a ticket.

6. Second-Chance Drawings: The Pennsylvania Lottery will conduct one Brake the Bank Second-Chance Drawing for which non-winning 4 X 4 Payout instant lottery game tickets may be eligible as provided for in section 11.

7. Approximate number of tickets printed for the game: Approximately 10,800,000 tickets will be printed for the 4 X 4 Payout instant lottery game.

8. Determination of prize winners:

(a) Holders of tickets upon which a Truck (TRUCK) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of a TRUCK (YOUPICK) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a Truck Prize as described in section 10.

(b) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$5,000 (FIV THO) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$5,000.

(c) Holders of tickets upon which a Key (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$1,000 (ONE THO) appears in two of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$400 (FOR HUN) appears in five of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in five of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$5,000.

(d) Holders of tickets upon which a Key (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$400 (FOR HUN) appears in nine of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in two of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol \$1,000 (ONE THO) appears in one of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$5,000.

(e) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$1,000 (ONE THO) appears in the "prize" area under the match-

ing "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(f) Holders of tickets upon which a Key (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in three of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in two of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$50<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTY) appears in two of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$20<sup>.00</sup> (TWENTY) appears in five of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(g) Holders of tickets upon which a Key (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in two of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in five of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of \$20<sup>.00</sup> (TWENTY) appears in five of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(h) Holders of tickets upon which a 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in the "prize" area under that 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$800.

(i) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$400 (FOR HUN) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(j) Holders of tickets upon which a 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in the "prize" area under that 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(k) Holders of tickets upon which a Key (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in two of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of \$20<sup>.00</sup> (TWENTY) appears in ten of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(1) Holders of tickets upon which a Key (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $$50^{.00}$  (FIFTY) appears in six of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $$20^{.00}$  (TWENTY) appears in four of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $$10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in two of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(m) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(n) Holders of tickets upon which a 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $50^{00}$  (FIFTY) appears in the "prize" area under that 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(o) Holders of tickets upon which a Key (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $50^{00}$  (FIFTY) appears in two of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $10^{00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in ten of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(p) Holders of tickets upon which a Key (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a

prize symbol of \$5.00 (FIV DOL) appears in ten of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in one of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of \$50.00 (FIFTY) appears in one of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(q) Holders of tickets upon which a 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$40<sup>.00</sup> (FORTY) appears in the "prize" area under that 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$160.

(r) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(s) Holders of tickets upon which a Key (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $20^{00}$  (TWENTY) appears in two of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $10^{00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in two of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $5^{00}$  (FIV DOL) appears in eight of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(t) Holders of tickets upon which a Key (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $$10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in eight of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $$5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL) appears in four of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(u) Holders of tickets upon which a 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $$20^{.00}$  (TWENTY) appears in the "prize" area under that 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$80.

(v) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$50<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTY) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(w) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$40<sup>.00</sup> (FORTY) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$40.

(x) Holders of tickets upon which a 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $$10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in the "prize" area under that 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$40.

(y) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$20<sup>.00</sup> (TWENTY) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20.

(z) Holders of tickets upon which a 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $$5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL) appears in the "prize" area under that 4X4 (4TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20.

(aa) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of  $10^{-00}$ 

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 53, NO. 15, APRIL 15, 2023

(TEN DOL) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10.

(bb) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of  $$5^{-00}$  (FIV DOL) appears in the "prize" area under the match-

ing "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$5.

9. Number and description of prizes and approximate odds: The following table sets forth the approximate number of winners, amounts of prizes and approximate odds of winning:

When Any Of Your Numbers Match Any Winning Number, Win Prize Shown Under The Matching Number. Win With:	Win:	Approximate Odds Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 10,800,000 Tickets:
\$5	\$5	8.82	1,224,000
\$5 × 2	\$10	30	360,000
\$10	\$10	33.33	324,000
\$5 × 4	\$20	600	18,000
\$10 × 2	\$20	600	18,000
$(\$5 \times 2) + \$10$	\$20	600	18,000
\$5 w/ 4X4	\$20	60	180,000
\$20	\$20	600	18,000
\$5 × 8	\$40	600	18,000
\$10 × 4	\$40	600	18,000
\$20 × 2	\$40	600	18,000
$(\$5 \text{ w/ } 4\text{X4}) + (\$5 \times 4)$	\$40	600	18,000
$(\$5 \text{ w/ } 4\text{X4}) \times 2$	\$40	600	18,000
\$10 w/ 4X4	\$40	150	72,000
\$40	\$40	600	18,000
\$5 × 10	\$50	600	18,000
\$10 × 5	\$50	600	18,000
(\$10 × 3) + \$20	\$50	600	18,000
$((\$5 \text{ w}/4X4) \times 2) + (\$5 \times 2)$	\$50	600	18,000
(\$10 w/ 4X4) + \$10	\$50	300	36,000
\$50	\$50	600	18,000
KEY w/ (( $\$10 \times 8$ ) + ( $\$5 \times 4$ ))	\$100	1,043	10,350
KEY w/ $((\$20 \times 2) + (\$10 \times 2) + (\$5 \times 8))$	\$100	1,043	10,350
\$10 × 10	\$100	24,000	450
\$20 × 5	\$100	24,000	450
\$50 × 2	\$100	24,000	450
$((\$5 \text{ w}/4X4) \times 2) + (\$10 \times 4) + (\$5 \times 4)$	\$100	24,000	450
((\$5 w/ 4X4) × 4) + \$20	\$100	24,000	450
((\$10 w/ 4X4) × 2) + (\$5 w/ 4X4)	\$100	12,000	900
(\$20 w/ 4X4) + (\$5 w/ 4X4)	\$100	4,000	2,700
\$100	\$100	24,000	450
KEY w/ ((\$5 × 10) + \$100 + \$50)	\$200	4,800	2,250
KEY w/ ((\$50 × 2) + (\$10 × 10))	\$200	4,800	2,250
\$40 × 5	\$200	60,000	180
\$100 × 2	\$200	60,000	180
$(\$20 \text{ w}/ 4X4) + (\$10 \text{ w}/ 4X4) + (\$5 \text{ w}/ 4X4) + (\$10 \times 5) + (\$5 \times 2)$	\$200	24,000	450
(\$40 w/ 4X4) + (\$10 w/ 4X4)	\$200	24,000	450
\$50 w/ 4X4	\$200	8,000	1,350

When Any Of Your Numbers Match Any Winning Number, Win Prize Shown Under The Matching Number. Win With:	Win:	Approximate Odds Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 10,800,000 Tickets:
\$200	\$200	60,000	180
KEY w/ (( $\$50 \times 6$ ) + ( $\$20 \times 4$ ) + ( $\$10 \times 2$ ))	\$400	12,000	900
KEY w/ (( $(100 \times 2) + (20 \times 10)$ )	\$400	12,000	900
\$200 × 2	\$400	120,000	90
(\$10 w/ 4X4) × 10	\$400	60,000	180
\$100 w/ 4X4	\$400	12,000	900
\$400	\$400	120,000	90
KEY w/ (( $\$200 \times 2$ ) + ( $\$100 \times 5$ ) + ( $\$20 \times 5$ ))	\$1,000	720,000	15
KEY w/ (( $\$200 \times 3$ ) + ( $\$100 \times 2$ ) + ( $\$50 \times 2$ ) + ( $\$20 \times 5$ ))	\$1,000	720,000	15
\$100 × 10	\$1,000	2,160,000	5
(\$200 w/ 4X4) + (\$50 w/ 4X4)	\$1,000	720,000	15
\$1,000	\$1,000	2,160,000	5
KEY w/ (( $$400 \times 9$ ) + ( $$200 \times 2$ ) + \$1,000)	\$5,000	2,160,000	5
KEY w/ (( $(1,000 \times 2) + (400 \times 5) + (200 \times 5)$ )	\$5,000	2,160,000	5
\$5,000	\$5,000	2,160,000	5
TRUCK w/ TRUCK SYMBOL	\$150,000	1,080,000	10

Reveal a "4X4" (4TIMES) symbol, win 4 TIMES the prize shown under that symbol.

Reveal a "Key" (WINALL) symbol, win all 12 prizes shown.

Reveal a "Truck" (TRUCK) symbol, win a 2023 Ford F-150 truck of your choice instantly!

Prizes, including top prizes, are subject to availability at the time of purchase.

#### 10. Truck Prize Description:

(a) Each Truck Prize shall have a value of \$150,000 and shall include dealers' fees, dealer preparation, set up fees, freight charges, delivery charges, registration, \$1,342.17 state income tax withholding and \$36,000 federal income tax withholding.

(b) Each Truck Prize winner shall select one prize from the following four available choices:

(1) 2023 FORD F-150 Raptor<sup>®</sup>: Base model includes standard 3.5L V6 EcoBoost<sup>®</sup> high-output engine with Auto Start-Stop Technology;

(2) 2023 FORD F-150 Limited<sup>®</sup>: Base model includes 3.5L PowerBoost Full Hybrid V6 Engine;

(3) 2023 FORD F-150 Lightning<sup>®</sup> Platinum: Base model includes Dual eMotor—Extended Range Battery; or

(4) The cash value of the prize ("Cash Option"), as described in section 10(d), below.

(c) The amount allocated to the vehicle itself (hereafter "Allocated Amount") is \$112,657.83. Each Truck Prize will be a 2023 production year model at the time of the claim or may be replaced with a 2024 model if a 2023 model is no longer available. During 2023 model production, the Lottery may factory order a Truck Prize with winner's specifications up to the Allocated Amount or locate the Truck Prize based on local dealer stock. Once 2023 model production ceases, a Truck Prize will be ordered based on current local dealer stock up to the Allocated Amount.

(d) A Truck Prize winner opting for the Cash Option will receive the cash value of the Truck Prize (\$150,000)

minus required income tax withholding, subject to the provisions of section 10(e)(1), below.

### (e) Truck Prize Restrictions:

(1) If the Department of Human Services, pursuant to 23 Pa.C.S.A. § 4308, determines that a winner of the Truck Prize owes certain debts to the Commonwealth as provided in 23 Pa.C.S.A. § 4308 or 72 P.S. § 215, the winner shall be awarded the Cash Option, and the amount of any arrearages shall be deducted from the cash value of the prize. After the delinquent support obligation is met, the winner will receive the remaining prize value, if any, according to Lottery procedure.

(2) In the event a prize described in section 10(b)(1)— (3) is not available, the Lottery may either provide a substitute prize, determined by the Secretary to have an equivalent value to the prize won, or make a cash payment to the winner in an amount determined by the Secretary to have an equivalent value to the prize won.

(3) Each winner, his or her respective heirs, legal representatives and assigns, agrees to indemnify, defend, release and discharge the Pennsylvania Lottery, its employees, officers, directors and commissioners and Ford Motor Company from and against any loss, claim, damage, suit or injury arising out of or relating to this game, acceptance and possession of the Truck Prize or any action taken pursuant to these rules. By entering, the winner indemnifies, releases, discharges and agrees to hold harmless the Pennsylvania Lottery, its employees, officers, directors and commissioners and Ford Motor Company from unanticipated cancellation, suspension or postponement of the promotion due to natural disaster, national emergency or other unforeseen act of God or man. 11. Second-Chance Drawing: The Pennsylvania Lottery's (hereafter, the "Lottery") Brake the Bank Second-Chance Drawing for qualifying instant lottery game tickets (hereafter, the "Drawing"):

(a) Qualifying Tickets: Non-winning PA-1636 4 X 4 Payout (\$5) lottery game tickets are eligible for entry into the Drawing.

(b) *Participation and entry*:

(1) Entrants must have a registered lottery account in order to participate in the Drawing. To create a lottery account, visit https://www.pailottery.com. Creating a lottery account is free.

(2) A registered lottery account holder is subject to the iLottery regulations and specifically agrees to be bound by the iLottery terms and conditions located at https://www.pailottery.com/signup/terms-and-conditions/, as well as any related policies.

(3) To establish a lottery account, players must provide the following information:

(i) The player's name as it appears on a valid government-issued identification or tax documents;

(ii) The player's date of birth;

(iii) The entire or last four digits of the player's Social Security Number, or comparable equivalent;

(iv) The player's address;

(v) The player's telephone number;

(vi) The player's email address;

(vii) Any other information established by the Lottery to be necessary to verify the age and identity of the player.

(4) An individual may be required to provide additional information or documentation, as set forth in the iLottery terms and conditions, to establish a lottery account or register for iLottery. The information may be used for iLottery registration or to confirm information provided by that individual during the registration process.

(5) To enter the Drawing, entrants must submit the identifying information from at least one Qualifying Ticket via the Drawing's promotional web site, available at https://www.palottery.com, or the Lottery's official mobile application during the entry period. The identifying information from a Qualifying Ticket may be submitted only once in the Drawing. Entries will automatically be awarded at the time of successful submission of a Qualifying Ticket. No other method of submission will be accepted, and entries submitted using any other method, including entries mailed or hand-delivered to the Pennsylvania Lottery, are not valid and will be disqualified.

(6) Each entry must be complete and the information supplied by the entrant must be accurate. Incomplete entries cannot be accepted.

(7) Only one claimant per entry is allowed.

(8) Entrants must be 18 years of age or older.

(9) Players may submit the identifying information from an unlimited number of Qualifying Tickets in the Drawing.

(10) Once an entry has been submitted it cannot be withdrawn or changed.

(c) Drawing description:

(1) The Lottery will conduct one Brake the Bank Second-Chance Drawing for qualifying instant lottery game tickets. All time references are Eastern Prevailing Time.

(2) All entries received after 11:59:59 p.m. April 16, 2023, through 11:59:59 p.m. June 1, 2023, will be entered into the Drawing tentatively scheduled to be held between June 5, 2023 and June 16, 2023.

(3) The entry period for the Drawing will be posted to the Pennsylvania Lottery's publicly accessible web site.

(4) When a Qualifying Ticket is entered into the Drawing, the entry has a chance to be multiplied by four (hereafter the "Entry Multiplier Prize"). Each Qualifying Ticket will have a predetermined ticket file assigned at the time the ticket is printed that will determine whether an entry will be multiplied. If an entry is multiplied, the entrant will be notified during the entry process.

(5) The number of entries an entrant will receive for the Drawing is determined by the purchase price of the Qualifying Ticket entered and the Entry Multiplier Prize, if applicable. The respective purchase price and corresponding number of entries for the Qualifying Ticket is as follows: PA-1636 4 X 4 Payout (\$5) = five entries.

(6) Players may review prizes won and their entries for the Drawing via the Drawing's promotional web site.

(d) *Prizes available to be won, determination of winners and odds of winning:* 

(1) The prize entitlements described below are subject to all restrictions and limitations described in section 11(e), or those mentioned anywhere else in these rules.

(2) The following table sets forth the approximate number of Entry Multiplier Prizes and the approximate odds of winning an Entry Multiplier Prize:

Qualifying Tickets:	Approximate Number of Entry Multiplier Prizes:	Approximate Odds of Winning a 4X Multiplier Are 1 In:
PA-1636 4 X 4 Payout	1,659,314	5

(3) Lottery will conduct one Drawing from among all the entries received during the entry period as described in section 11(c)(2).

(i) The first entry selected in the Drawing will be a winning entry and the entrant who submitted that winning entry shall be entitled to a prize of \$50,000, less required income tax withholding.

(ii) The second through the eleventh entries selected in the Drawing will be winning entries and the entrants who submitted those winning entries shall each be entitled to a prize of \$5,000.

(iii) The twelfth through the sixty-first entries selected in the Drawing will be winning entries and the entrants who submitted those winning entries shall each be entitled to a prize of \$100 iLottery Bonus Money.

(4) All prizes will be paid as a lump-sum cash payment or uploaded to a winning player's lottery account.

(5) Winners of iLottery Bonus Money are not required to claim a prize. Winners of iLottery Bonus Money will have the iLottery Bonus Money credited to their lottery account and will receive an email notifying them that they won a prize.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 53, NO. 15, APRIL 15, 2023

(6) The number of winning entries to be selected for the Drawing will be posted to the Pennsylvania Lottery's publicly accessible web site.

(7) The odds of winning in the Drawing depend upon the number of entries received for the Drawing.

(8) A computer-generated randomizer will be used to select the Drawing winners.

(e) *Drawing restrictions*:

(1) To be eligible to participate in the Drawing, entrants must have complied with the requirements of these rules.

(2) The Lottery is not responsible for late, lost or misdirected entries not entered into the Drawing. The Lottery is not responsible for entries that are not entered into the Drawing because of incompatible internet browsers, mobile Lottery application failure or other technical issues. The Lottery is not responsible for entries not entered due to delays in creating a lottery account or the inability to create a lottery account. If a Drawing entry is selected as a winner and rejected or otherwise disqualified during or following the Drawing, the Lottery will select one entry to replace the rejected or otherwise disqualified entry in accordance with these rules and Lottery procedure.

(3) If any discrepancy exists between these rules and any material describing the Drawing, these rules shall govern.

(4) Employees of the Pennsylvania Lottery, 9Rooftops Marketing, LLC (formerly known as MARC USA, LLC), MUSL, Scientific Games International, Inc., MDI Entertainment, LLC, and their subcontractors, or a spouse, child, brother, sister or parent residing as a member of the same household in the principal place of residence of any such person are not eligible to participate in the Drawing. Offer void where prohibited or restricted.

(5) The Pennsylvania Lottery reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to cancel or suspend the Drawing and change these rules if the Drawing cannot be conducted as planned due to errors in these rules or advertising, unauthorized intervention, tampering, fraud, technical errors, viruses, worms, bugs or any other cause that, in the Pennsylvania Lottery's sole judgment, could corrupt or impair the administration, security, fairness, integrity or proper conduct of the Drawing.

(6) All entries shall be subject to verification by the Pennsylvania Lottery.

(7) The Pennsylvania Lottery reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to disqualify an entrant found to be tampering with the operation of the Drawing or to be acting in violation of these rules or applicable law.

(8) The Drawing is governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Applicable laws and regulations apply.

(9) Prizes must be claimed within 1 year of the drawing date of the Drawing in which the prize was won. If no claim is made within 1 year of the drawing date of the Drawing in which the prize was won, the right of an entrant to claim the prize won, if any, will expire and the prize money will be paid into the State Lottery Fund and used for purposes provided by statute.

(10) Final determination of winners will be made by the Secretary, whose judgment will be final and binding.

(11) A prize awarded in the Drawing to a person who dies before receiving the prize shall be paid according to 61 Pa. Code § 811.16 (relating to prizes payable after death of a prize winner).

(12) A winner is responsible for all taxes arising from or in connection with any prize won.

(13) A player may only win the prize for which the player is first selected in the Drawing. Subsequent entries, from the same individual, selected in the same Drawing will be disqualified and one replacement entry will be selected.

(14) Winners of iLottery Bonus Money must abide by the iLottery Terms & Conditions, the iLottery Bonus Policy and these rules. iLottery Bonus Money will expire 90 days from the date on which the winner was notified, via email, of the prize win, as further detailed in section 11(d)(5). iLottery Bonus Money has a five times play through requirement in order to convert the iLottery Bonus Money into cash. For example, for a player winning \$100 of iLottery Bonus Money, the player is required to place \$500 in wagers before the iLottery Bonus Money awarded is converted into cash which may be withdrawn from the player's account.

(15) Prizes are not transferrable.

(16) Other restrictions may apply.

12. *Retailer incentive awards*: The Lottery may conduct a separate Retailer Incentive Program for retailers who sell 4 X 4 Payout instant lottery game tickets.

13. Retailer bonus: The Lottery may offer a retailer bonus in connection with the sale of Pennsylvania instant lottery game tickets. If a retailer bonus is offered, a Lottery retailer shall be eligible for a bonus as described in this section. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$100,000 and not exceeding \$500,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$500. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$500,001 and not exceeding \$1,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$5,000. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$1,000,001 and not exceeding \$10,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$10,000. A Lottery retailer is entitled only to the largest bonus for which they qualify on a winning ticket. A bonus will be initiated for payment after the instant ticket is claimed and validated. A bonus will not be awarded to a Lottery retailer that sells a nonwinning Pennsylvania Lottery instant ticket used to enter a Pennsylvania Lottery second-chance drawing or promotion that is subsequently selected to win a prize.

14. Unclaimed prize money: For a period of 1 year from the announced close of 4 X 4 Payout, prize money from winning 4 X 4 Payout instant lottery game tickets will be retained by the Secretary for payment to the persons entitled thereto. If no claim is made within 1 year of the announced close of the 4 x 4 Payout instant lottery game, the right of a ticket holder to claim the prize represented by the ticket, if any, will expire and the prize money will be paid into the State Lottery Fund and used for purposes provided for by statute.

15. Governing law: In purchasing a ticket, the customer agrees to comply with and abide by the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101-3761-314), 61 Pa. Code Part V (relating to State Lotteries) and the provisions contained in this notice.

16. *Termination of the game*: The Secretary may announce a termination date, after which no further tickets

from this game may be sold. The announcement will be disseminated through media used to advertise or promote 4 X 4 Payout or through normal communications methods.

> PATRICK BROWNE, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-511. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

### **DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE**

# Pennsylvania \$20,000 for \$2 Instant Lottery Game 1638

Under the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101— 3761-314) and 61 Pa. Code § 819.203 (relating to notice of instant game rules), the Secretary of Revenue hereby provides public notice of the rules for the following instant lottery game:

1. Name: The name of the game is Pennsylvania \$20,000 for \$2 (hereafter "\$20,000 for \$2"). The game number is PA-1638.

2. *Price*: The price of a \$20,000 for \$2 instant lottery game ticket is \$2.

3. *Play symbols*: Each \$20,000 for \$2 instant lottery game ticket will contain one play area featuring a "WINNING NUMBERS" area and a "YOUR NUMBERS" area. The play symbols and their captions, located in the "WINNING NUMBERS" area, are: 1 (ONE), 3 (THREE), 4 (FOUR), 5 (FIVE), 6 (SIX), 7 (SEVEN), 8 (EIGHT), 9 (NINE), 10 (TEN), 11 (ELEVN), 13 (THRTN), 14 (FORTN), 15 (FIFTN), 16 (SIXTN), 17 (SVNTN), 18 (EGHTN), 19 (NINTN), 30 (THIRT), 31 (THYONE), 33 (THYTHR), 34 (THYFOR) and 35 (THYFIV). The play symbols and their captions, located in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area, are: 1 (ONE), 3 (THREE), 4 (FOUR), 5 (FIVE), 6 (SIX), 7 (SEVEN), 8 (EIGHT), 9 (NINE), 10 (TEN), 11 (ELEVN), 13 (THRTN), 14 (FORTN), 15 (FIFTN), 16 (SIXTN), 17 (SVNTN), 18 (EGHTN), 19 (NINTN), 30 (THIRT), 31 (THYONE), 33 (THYTHR), 34 (THYFOR), 35 (THYFIV), 2X (2TIMES) symbol and a 20K (WIN\$20K) symbol.

4. *Prize symbols*: The prize symbols and their captions, located in the play area, are:  $$2^{.00}$  (TWO DOL),  $$4^{.00}$  (FOR DOL),  $$5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL),  $$10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL),  $$20^{.00}$  (TWENTY),  $$40^{.00}$  (FORTY), \$100 (ONE HUN), \$200 (TWO HUN), \$400 (FOR HUN), \$1,000 (ONE THO) and \$20,000 (TWY THO).

5. *Prizes*: The prizes that can be won in this game, are: \$2, \$4, \$5, \$10, \$20, \$40, \$100, \$200, \$400, \$1,000 and \$20,000. \$20,000 for \$2 contains a feature that can multiply certain prizes. For a complete list of prizes that can be won in this game, including multiplied prizes, see section 8 (relating to number and description of prizes and approximate odds). A player can win up to ten times on a ticket.

6. Approximate number of tickets printed for the game: Approximately 8,400,000 tickets will be printed for the \$20,000 for \$2 instant lottery game.

#### 7. Determination of prize winners:

(a) Holders of tickets upon which a 20K (WIN\$20K) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$20,000 (TWY THO) appears in the

"prize" area under that 20K (WIN\$20K) play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20,000.

(b) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match either of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$1,000 (ONE THO) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(c) Holders of tickets upon which a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$400 (FOR HUN) appears in the "prize" area under that 2X (2TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$800.

(d) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match either of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$400 (FOR HUN) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(e) Holders of tickets upon which a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in the "prize" area under that 2X (2TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(f) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match either of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(g) Holders of tickets upon which a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in the play area and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in the "prize" area under that 2X (2TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(h) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match either of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(i) Holders of tickets upon which a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in the play area and a prize symbol of  $40^{00}$  (FORTY) appears in the "prize" area under that 2X (2TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$80.

(j) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match either of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$40<sup>.00</sup> (FORTY) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$40.

(k) Holders of tickets upon which a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in the play area and a prize symbol of  $20^{00}$  (TWENTY) appears in the "prize" area under that 2X (2TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$40.

(l) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match either of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$20<sup>.00</sup> (TWENTY) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20.

(m) Holders of tickets upon which a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in the play area and a prize symbol of

 $$10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in the "prize" area under that 2X (2TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20.

(n) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match either of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$10<sup>.00</sup> (TEN DOL) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10.

(o) Holders of tickets upon which a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in the play area and a prize symbol of  $$5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL) appears in the "prize" area under that 2X (2TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10.

(p) Holders of tickets upon which a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in the play area and a prize symbol of  $$4^{.00}$  (FOR DOL) appears in the "prize" area under that 2X (2TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$8.

(q) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match either of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$5<sup>.00</sup> (FIV DOL) appears in the "prize" area under the match-

ing "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$5.

(r) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match either of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$4<sup>.00</sup> (FOR DOL) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$4.

(s) Holders of tickets upon which a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in the play area and a prize symbol of  $$2^{.00}$  (TWO DOL) appears in the "prize" area under that 2X (2TIMES) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$4.

(t) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match either of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$2<sup>.00</sup> (TWO DOL) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$2.

8. Number and description of prizes and approximate odds: The following table sets forth the approximate number of winners, amounts of prizes and approximate odds of winning:

When Any Of YOUR			
NUMBERS Match Either			
WINNING NUMBER, Win			A
Prize Shown Under The Matching Number.		Approximate	Approximate No. Of Winners Per
Win With:	Win:	Odds Are 1 In:	8,400,000 Tickets:
\$2	\$2	10	840,000
\$2 w/ 2X	\$4	25	336,000
\$4	\$4	150	56,000
\$5	\$5	28.85	291,200
$$2 \times 5$	\$10	300	28,000
\$5 w/ 2X	\$10	68.18	123,200
\$10	\$10	300	28,000
\$2 × 10	\$20	750	11,200
$((\$2 \text{ w/ } 2\text{X}) \times 4) + (\$2 \times 2)$	\$20	500	16,800
$($2 w/ 2X) \times 5$	\$20	500	16,800
$(\$5 \text{ w/ } 2\text{X}) \times 2$	\$20	500	16,800
\$10 w/ 2X	\$20	125	67,200
\$20	\$20	750	11,200
\$4 × 10	\$40	6,000	1,400
$(\$10 \times 2) + (\$5 \times 2) + (\$2 \times 5)$	\$40	6,000	1,400
$((\$5 \text{ w/ } 2\text{X}) \times 2) + ((\$4 \text{ w/ } 2\text{X}) \times 2) + (\$2 \text{ w/ } 2\text{X})$	\$40	1,714	4,900
(\$10 w/ 2X) × 2	\$40	1,412	5,950
\$20 w/ 2X	\$40	1,200	7,000
\$40	\$40	6,000	1,400
\$10 × 10	\$100	24,000	350
$(\$40 \times 2) + (\$10 \times 2)$	\$100	24,000	350
$((\$5 \text{ w/ } 2X) \times 5) + (\$10 \times 5)$	\$100	12,000	700
$((\$10 \text{ w/ } 2\text{X}) \times 3) + ((\$4 \text{ w/ } 2\text{X}) \times 5)$	\$100	12,000	700
$((\$10 \text{ w/ } 2\text{X}) \times 4) + ((\$5 \text{ w/ } 2\text{X}) \times 2)$	\$100	12,000	700
$((\$20 \text{ w/ } 2\text{X}) \times 2) + ((\$2 \text{ w/ } 2\text{X}) \times 5)$	\$100	12,000	700
(\$40 w/ 2X) + (\$10 w/ 2X)	\$100	6,000	1,400

When Any Of YOUR NUMBERS Match Either WINNING NUMBER, Win Prize Shown Under The Matching Number. Win With:	Win:	Approximate Odds Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 8,400,000 Tickets:
\$100	\$100	24,000	350
\$20 × 10	\$200	120,000	70
$((\$20 \text{ w/ } 2\text{X}) \times 4) + (\$10 \times 2) + (\$5 \times 4)$	\$200	120,000	70
\$100 w/ 2X	\$200	24,000	350
\$200	\$200	120,000	70
\$100 × 4	\$400	120,000	70
\$200 w/ 2X	\$400	120,000	70
\$400	\$400	120,000	70
\$200 × 5	\$1,000	840,000	10
(\$400 w/ 2X) + (\$100 w/ 2X)	\$1,000	840,000	10
\$1,000	\$1,000	840,000	10
\$20,000 w/ 20K SYMBOL	\$20,000	840,000	10

Reveal a "2X" (2TIMES) symbol, win 2 TIMES the prize shown under that symbol.

Reveal a "20K" (WIN\$20K) symbol, win \$20,000 instantly!

Prizes, including top prizes, are subject to availability at the time of purchase.

9. *Retailer incentive awards*: The Lottery may conduct a separate Retailer Incentive Program for retailers who sell \$20,000 for \$2 instant lottery game tickets.

10. Retailer bonus: The Lottery may offer a retailer bonus in connection with the sale of Pennsylvania instant lottery game tickets. If a retailer bonus is offered, a Lottery retailer shall be eligible for a bonus as described in this section. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$100,000 and not exceeding \$500,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$500. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$500,001 and not exceeding \$1,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$5,000. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$1,000,001 and not exceeding \$10,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$10,000. A Lottery retailer is entitled only to the largest bonus for which they qualify on a winning ticket. A bonus will be initiated for payment after the instant ticket is claimed and validated. A bonus will not be awarded to a Lottery retailer that sells a nonwinning Pennsylvania Lottery instant ticket used to enter a Pennsylvania Lottery second-chance drawing or promotion that is subsequently selected to win a prize.

11. Unclaimed prize money: For a period of 1 year from the announced close of \$20,000 for \$2, prize money from winning \$20,000 for \$2 instant lottery game tickets will be retained by the Secretary for payment to the persons entitled thereto. If no claim is made within 1 year of the announced close of the \$20,000 for \$2 instant lottery game, the right of a ticket holder to claim the prize represented by the ticket, if any, will expire and the prize money will be paid into the State Lottery Fund and used for purposes provided for by statute. 12. Governing law: In purchasing a ticket, the customer agrees to comply with and abide by the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101—3761-314), 61 Pa. Code Part V (relating to State Lotteries) and the provisions contained in this notice.

13. Termination of the game: The Secretary may announce a termination date, after which no further tickets from this game may be sold. The announcement will be disseminated through media used to advertise or promote \$20,000 for \$2 or through normal communications methods.

PATRICK BROWNE,

Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-512. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

### DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

#### Pennsylvania \$1 Million? Seriously Instant Lottery Game 1634

Under the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101— 3761-314) and 61 Pa. Code § 819.203 (relating to notice of instant game rules), the Secretary of Revenue hereby provides public notice of the rules for the following instant lottery game:

1. *Name*: The name of the game is Pennsylvania \$1 Million? Seriously (hereafter "\$1 Million? Seriously"). The game number is PA-1634.

2. *Price*: The price of a \$1 Million? Seriously instant lottery game ticket is \$20.

3. *Play symbols*: Each \$1 Million? Seriously instant lottery game ticket will contain one play area featuring a "WINNING NUMBERS" area, a "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a "WIN-A-MILLION SPOT" area. The "WIN-A-MILLION SPOT" area is played separately. The play symbols and their captions, located in the "WINNING

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 53, NO. 15, APRIL 15, 2023

NUMBERS" area, are: 1 (ONE), 2 (TWO), 3 (THREE), 4 (FOUR), 5 (FIVE), 6 (SIX), 7 (SEVEN), 8 (EIGHT), 9 (NINE), 11 (ELEVN), 12 (TWLV), 13 (THRTN), 14 (FORTN), 15 (FIFTN), 16 (SIXTN), 17 (SVNTN), 18 (EGHTN), 19 (NINTN), 20 (TWENT), 21 (TWYONE), 22 (TWYTWO), 23 (TWYTHR), 24 (TWYFOR), 25 (TWYFIV), 26 (TWYSIX), 27 (TWYSVN), 28 (TWYEGT), 29 (TWYNIN), 30 (THIRT), 31 (THYONE), 32 (THYTWO), 33 (THYTHR), 34 (THYFOR), 35 (THYFIV), 36 (THYSIX), 37 (THYSVN), 38 (THYEGT), 39 (THYNIN) and 40 (FORT). The play symbols and their captions, located in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area, are: 1 (ONE), 2 (TWO), 3 (THREE), 4 (FOUR), 5 (FIVE), 6 (SIX), 7 (SEVEN), 8 (EIGHT), 9 (NINE), 11 (ELEVN), 12 (TWLV), 13 (THRTN), 14 (FORTN), 15 (FIFTN), 16 (SIXTN), 17 (SVNTN), 18 (EGHTN), 19 (NINTN), 20 (TWENT), 21 (TWYONE), 22 (TWYTWO), 23 (TWYTHR), 24 (TWYFOR), 25 (TWYFIV), 26 (TWYSIX), 27 (TWYSVN), 28 (TWYEGT), 29 (TWYNIN), 30 (THIRT), 31 (THYONE), 32 (THYTWO), 33 (THYTHR), 34 (THYFOR), 35 (THYFIV), 36 (THYSIX), 37 (THYSVN), 38 (THYEGT), 39 (THYNIN), 40 (FORT), WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol, Money Roll (WIN200) symbol, 10X (10TIMES) symbol and an ALL (WINALL) symbol. The play symbols and their captions, located in the "WIN-A-MILLION SPOT" area, are: Chest (NOBONUS) symbol, Vault (TRYAGAIN) sym-Bank (NOBONUS) symbol, Stack of Coins bol. (TRYAGAIN) symbol, Gold Bar (NOBONUS) symbol, Dollar Bill (TRYAGAIN) symbol and a SERIOUSLY (\$1MILL) symbol.

4. *Prize symbols*: The prize symbols and their captions, located in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area, are:  $$20^{.00}$  (TWENTY),  $$30^{.00}$  (THIRTY),  $$50^{.00}$  (FIFTY), \$100 (ONE HUN), \$200 (TWO HUN), \$400 (FOR HUN), \$500 (FIV HUN), \$1,000 (ONE THO), \$10,000 (TEN THO) and \$100,000 (ONEHUNTHO).

5. *Prizes*: The prizes that can be won in this game, are: \$20, \$30, \$50, \$100, \$200, \$400, \$500, \$1,000, \$10,000 and \$100,000. The prize that can be won in the "WIN-A-MILLION SPOT" area is \$1,000,000. \$1 Million? Seriously contains a feature that can multiply certain prizes. For a complete list of prizes, and how those prizes can be won, see section 8 (relating to number and description of prizes and approximate odds). A player can win up to 20 times on a ticket.

6. Approximate number of tickets printed for the game: Approximately 7,200,000 tickets will be printed for the \$1 Million? Seriously instant lottery game.

#### 7. Determination of prize winners:

(a) Holders of tickets upon which a SERIOUSLY (\$1MILL) play symbol appears in the "WIN-A-MILLION SPOT" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000,000. The prize shall be paid as a one-time, lump-sum cash payment.

(b) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$100,000 (ONEHUNTHO) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100,000.

(c) Holders of tickets upon which an ALL (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$10,000 (TEN THO) appears in nine of the "Prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$1,000 (ONE THO) appears in nine of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of \$500 (FIV HUN) appears in two of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100,000.

(d) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$10,000 (TEN THO) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10,000.

(e) Holders of tickets upon which an ALL (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$500 (FIV HUN) appears in all 20 of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10,000.

(f) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$1,000 (ONE THO) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(g) Holders of tickets upon which a 10X (10TIMES) play symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under that 10X (10TIMES) play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(h) Holders of tickets upon which a WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$1,000 (ONE THO) appears in the "Prize" area under that WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(i) Holders of tickets upon which an ALL (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in two of the "Prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in three of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of \$20<sup>.00</sup> (TWENTY) appears in 15 of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(j) Holders of tickets upon which an ALL (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in six of the "Prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $50^{00}$  (FIFTY) appears in four of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $20^{00}$  (TWENTY) appears in ten of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(k) Holders of tickets upon which an ALL (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $50^{00}$  (FIFTY) appears in all 20 of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(1) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$500 (FIV HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$500.

(m) Holders of tickets upon which a 10X (10TIMES) play symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $$50^{.00}$  (FIFTY) appears in the "Prize" area under that 10X (10TIMES) play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$500.

(n) Holders of tickets upon which a WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$500 (FIV HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under that WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$500.

(o) Holders of tickets upon which an ALL (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $$20^{.00}$  (TWENTY) appears in 17 of the

"Prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $30^{-00}$  (THIRTY) appears in two of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of 100(ONE HUN) appears in one of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of 500.

(p) Holders of tickets upon which an ALL (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $50^{.00}$  (FIFTY) appears in three of the "Prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $20^{.00}$  (TWENTY) appears in 16 of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $30^{.00}$  (THIRTY) appears in one of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$500.

(q) Holders of tickets upon which an ALL (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $30^{00}$  (THIRTY) appears in ten of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $20^{00}$  (TWENTY) appears in ten of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of 500.

(r) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$400 (FOR HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(s) Holders of tickets upon which a WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$400 (FOR HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under that WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(t) Holders of tickets upon which an ALL (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area, and a prize symbol of  $20^{00}$  (TWENTY) appears in all 20 of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(u) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(v) Holders of tickets upon which a 10X (10TIMES) play symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $20^{00}$  (TWENTY) appears in the "Prize" area under that 10X (10TIMES) play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of 200.

(w) Holders of tickets upon which a Money Roll (WIN200) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under that Money Roll (WIN200) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200. (x) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(y) Holders of tickets upon which a WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under that WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(z) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$50<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTY) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(aa) Holders of tickets upon which a WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$50<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTY) appears in the "Prize" area under that WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(bb) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$30<sup>.00</sup> (THIRTY) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$30.

(cc) Holders of tickets upon which a WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$30<sup>.00</sup> (THIRTY) appears in the "Prize" area under that WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$30.

(dd) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$20<sup>.00</sup> (TWENTY) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20.

(ee) Holders of tickets upon which a WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$20<sup>.00</sup> (TWENTY) appears in the "Prize" area under that WIN Burst (WINPRZ) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20.

8. Number and description of prizes and approximate odds: The following table sets forth the approximate number of winners, amounts of prizes and approximate odds of winning:

When Any Of YOUR NUMBERS Match Any WINNING NUMBER, Win Prize Shown Under The Matching Number. Win With:	Win:	Approximate Odds Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 7,200,000 Tickets:
\$20 w/ WIN BURST	\$20	25	288,000
\$20	\$20	30	240,000
\$30 w/ WIN BURST	\$30	30	240,000
\$30	\$30	13.64	528,000
\$30 + \$20	\$50	300	24,000
(\$20 w/ WIN BURST) + \$30	\$50	75	96,000
(\$30 w/ WIN BURST) + \$20	\$50	75	96,000

When Any Of YOUR NUMBERS Match Any WINNING NUMBER, Win Prize Shown Under The Matching Number. Win With:	Win:	Approximate Odds Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 7,200,000 Tickets:
\$50 w/ WIN BURST	\$50	37.5	192,000
\$50	\$50	300	24,000
\$20 × 5	\$100	300	24,000
$(\$30 \times 2) + (\$20 \times 2)$	\$100	300	24,000
((\$30 w/ WIN BURST) × 2) + (\$20 w/ WIN BURST) + \$20	\$100	300	24,000
(\$50 w/ WIN BURST) × 2	\$100	300	24,000
\$100 w/ WIN BURST	\$100	100	72,000
\$100	\$100	150	48,000
\$50 × 4	\$200	12,000	600
((\$30 w/ WIN BURST) × 4) + ((\$20 w/ WIN BURST) × 2) + (\$20 × 2)	\$200	12,000	600
(\$100 w/ WIN BURST) + \$50 + \$30 + \$20	\$200	12,000	600
\$200 w/ MONEY ROLL	\$200	171.43	42,000
\$20 w/ 10X	\$200	171.43	42,000
\$200	\$200	12,000	600
ALL w/ (\$20 × 20)	\$400	1,200	6,000
\$100 × 4	\$400	24,000	300
\$200 × 2	\$400	24,000	300
((\$50 w/ WIN BURST) × 4) + (\$20 w/ 10X)	\$400	12,000	600
(\$200 w/ MONEY ROLL) + (\$20 w/ 10X)	\$400	2,000	3,600
(\$200 w/ MONEY ROLL) × 2	\$400	2,400	3,000
\$400 w/ WIN BURST	\$400	24,000	300
\$400	\$400	24,000	300
ALL w/ ((\$30 × 10) + (\$20 × 10))	\$500	8,000	900
ALL w/ ((\$50 × 3) + (\$20 × 16) + \$30)	\$500	8,000	900
ALL w/ ((\$20 × 17) + (\$30 × 2) + \$100)	\$500	8,000	900
\$100 × 5	\$500	120,000	60
(\$200 w/ MONEY ROLL) + (\$20 w/ 10X) + ((\$20 w/ WIN BURST) × 2) + (\$30 × 2)	\$500	120,000	60
\$500 w/ WIN BURST	\$500	120,000	60
\$50 w/ 10X	\$500	24,000	300
\$500	\$500	120,000	60
ALL w/ (\$50 × 20)	\$1,000	24,000	300
ALL w/ $((\$100 \times 6) + (\$50 \times 4) + (\$20 \times 10))$	\$1,000	24,000	300
ALL w/ ((\$200 × 2) + (\$100 × 3) + (\$20 × 15))	\$1,000	24,000	300
\$500 × 2	\$1,000	120,000	60
((\$200 w/ MONEY ROLL) × 3) + (\$30 w/ 10X) + \$100	\$1,000	120,000	60
\$1,000 w/ WIN BURST	\$1,000	120,000	60
\$100 w/ 10X	\$1,000	120,000	60
\$1,000	\$1,000	120,000	60
ALL w/ (\$500 × 20)	\$10,000	1,440,000	5
\$10,000	\$10,000	1,440,000	5
ALL w/ ((\$10,000 × 9) + (\$1,000 × 9) + (\$500 × 2))	\$100,000	1,440,000	5
\$100,000	\$100,000	1,440,000	5

When Any Of YOUR NUMBERS Match Any WINNING NUMBER, Win Prize Shown Under The Matching Number. Win With:	Win:	Approximate Odds Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 7,200,000 Tickets:
WIN-A-MILLION SPOT w/ SERIOUSLY SYMBOL	\$1,000,000	1,440,000	5

Reveal a "WIN Burst" (WINPRZ) symbol, win PRIZE shown under that symbol automatically.

Reveal a "Money Roll" (WIN200) symbol, win \$200 instantly.

Reveal a "10X" (10TIMES) symbol, win 10 TIMES the PRIZE shown under that symbol.

Reveal an "ALL" (WINALL) symbol, win ALL 20 PRIZES shown!

WIN-A-MILLION SPOT: Reveal a "SERIOUSLY" (\$1MILL) symbol, win \$1,000,000 instantly! WIN-A-MILLION SPOT played separately.

Prizes, including top prizes, are subject to availability at the time of purchase.

9. *Retailer incentive awards*: The Lottery may conduct a separate Retailer Incentive Program for retailers who sell \$1 Million? Seriously instant lottery game tickets.

10. Retailer bonus: The Lottery may offer a retailer bonus in connection with the sale of Pennsylvania instant lottery game tickets. If a retailer bonus is offered, a Lottery retailer shall be eligible for a bonus as described in this section. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$100,000 and not exceeding \$500,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$500. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$500,001 and not exceeding \$1,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$5,000. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$1,000,001 and not exceeding \$10,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$10,000. A Lottery retailer is entitled only to the largest bonus for which they qualify on a winning ticket. A bonus will be initiated for payment after the instant ticket is claimed and validated. A bonus will not be awarded to a Lottery retailer that sells a nonwinning Pennsylvania Lottery instant ticket used to enter a Pennsylvania Lottery second-chance drawing or promotion that is subsequently selected to win a prize.

11. Unclaimed prize money: For a period of 1 year from the announced close of \$1 Million? Seriously, prize money from winning \$1 Million? Seriously instant lottery game tickets will be retained by the Secretary for payment to the persons entitled thereto. If no claim is made within 1 year of the announced close of the \$1 Million? Seriously instant lottery game, the right of a ticket holder to claim the prize represented by the ticket, if any, will expire and the prize money will be paid into the State Lottery Fund and used for purposes provided for by statute.

12. Governing law: In purchasing a ticket, the customer agrees to comply with and abide by the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101—3761-314), 61 Pa. Code Part V (relating to State Lotteries) and the provisions contained in this notice.

13. *Termination of the game*: The Secretary may announce a termination date, after which no further tickets from this game may be sold. The announcement will be

disseminated through media used to advertise or promote \$1 Million? Seriously or through normal communications methods.

> PATRICK BROWNE, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-513. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

### **DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE**

#### Pennsylvania Crossword Multiplier Instant Lottery Game 1637

Under the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101— 3761-314) and 61 Pa. Code § 819.203 (relating to notice of instant game rules), the Secretary of Revenue hereby provides public notice of the rules for the following instant lottery game:

1. *Name*: The name of the game is Pennsylvania Crossword Multiplier (hereafter "Crossword Multiplier"). The game number is PA-1637.

2. *Price*: The price of a Crossword Multiplier instant lottery game ticket is \$3.

3. *Play symbols*: Each Crossword Multiplier instant lottery game ticket will feature a "YOUR LETTERS" area, one crossword puzzle play grid and three "MULTIPLIER" spots. The play symbols, located in the "YOUR LET-TERS" area, are: the letters A through and including Z. The play symbols, located in the crossword puzzle play grid, are: the letters A through and including Z. The play symbols, located in the three "MULTIPLIER" spots, are: TRYAGAIN (NOMULT) symbol, TRYAGAIN (NOMULT) symbol, TRYAGAIN (NOMULT) symbol, TRYAGAIN (NOMULT) symbol, 2X (2TIMES) symbol, 3X (3TIMES) symbol, 5X (5TIMES) symbol and a 10X (10TIMES) symbol.

4. *Prizes*: The prizes that can be won in this game, are: \$3, \$5, \$10, \$15, \$30, \$50, \$100, \$150, \$300, \$1,000 and \$50,000. A player can win up to four times on a ticket. Crossword Multiplier contains a feature that can multiply the prize won by the sum of the multiplier symbols revealed in the three "MULTIPLIER" spots. For a complete list of prizes, and how those prizes can be won, see section 7 (relating to number and description of prizes and approximate odds).

5. Approximate number of tickets printed for the game: Approximately 10,800,000 tickets will be printed for the Crossword Multiplier instant lottery game.

#### 6. Determination of prize winners:

(a) Holders of tickets upon which the player completely matches ten entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50,000.

(b) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches nine entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(c) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches eight entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 10X (10TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(d) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches eight entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, a 3X (3TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots and a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(e) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches eight entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 3X (3TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$300.

(f) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches six entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 10X (10TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$300.

(g) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches seven entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, on a single ticket, and upon which a 3X (3TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$150.

(h) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches six entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$150.

(i) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches six entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 3X (3TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots and a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$150.

(j) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches five entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, a 3X (3TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots and a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$150.

(k) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches eight entire words in the play grid, using only

the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(l) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches seven entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(m) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches four entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 10X (10TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(n) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches four entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) symbol appears in two of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(o) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches four entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, a 3X (3TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots and a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(p) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches seven entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(q) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches four entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(r) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches four entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 3X (3TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots and a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(s) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches three entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 10X (10TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(t) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches three entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) symbol appears in two of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(u) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches three entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, a 3X (3TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots and a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50. (v) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches six entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$30.

(w) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches five entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$30.

(x) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches four entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 3X (3TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$30.

(y) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches two entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) symbol appears in two of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$30.

(z) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches two entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, a 3X (3TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots and a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$30.

(aa) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches five entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$15.

(bb) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches three entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 3X (3TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$15.

(cc) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches two entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$15.

(dd) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches two entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 3X (3TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots and a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$15.

(ee) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches four entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10.

(ff) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches three entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, and upon which a 2X (2TIMES) symbol appears in one of the "MULTIPLIER" spots, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10.

(gg) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches three entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$5.

(hh) Holders of tickets where the player completely matches two entire words in the play grid, using only the letters found in the "YOUR LETTERS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$3.

7. Number and description of prizes and approximate odds: The following table sets forth the approximate number of winners, amounts of prizes and approximate odds of winning:

Win With:	<i>"MULTIPLIER"</i> :	<i>"MULTIPLIER"</i> :	<i>"MULTIPLIER"</i> :	Win:	Approximate Odds Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 10,800,000 Tickets:
2 WORDS				\$3	9.09	1,188,000
3 WORDS				\$5	17.54	615,600
3 WORDS	2X			\$10	33.33	324,000
4 WORDS				\$10	166.67	64,800
2 WORDS	3X	2X		\$15	100	108,000
2 WORDS	5X			\$15	100	108,000
3 WORDS	3X			\$15	500	21,600
5 WORDS				\$15	1,000	10,800
2 WORDS	5X	3X	2X	\$30	500	21,600
2 WORDS	5X	5X		\$30	250	43,200
4 WORDS	3X			\$30	500	21,600
5 WORDS	2X			\$30	1,000	10,800
6 WORDS				\$30	1,000	10,800
3 WORDS	5X	3X	2X	\$50	2,400	4,500
3 WORDS	5X	5X		\$50	2,400	4,500
3 WORDS	10X			\$50	2,400	4,500

#### NOTICES

Win With:	<i>"MULTIPLIER"</i> :	<i>"MULTIPLIER"</i> :	<i>"MULTIPLIER"</i> :	Win:	Approximate Odds Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 10,800,000 Tickets:
4 WORDS	3X	2X		\$50	800	13,500
4 WORDS	5X			\$50	1,091	9,900
7 WORDS				\$50	12,000	900
4 WORDS	5X	3X	2X	\$100	6,000	1,800
4 WORDS	5X	5X		\$100	6,000	1,800
4 WORDS	10X			\$100	4,000	2,700
7 WORDS	2X			\$100	6,000	1,800
8 WORDS				\$100	12,000	900
5 WORDS	5X	3X	2X	\$150	24,000	450
6 WORDS	3X	2X		\$150	12,000	900
6 WORDS	5X			\$150	12,000	900
7 WORDS	3X			\$150	24,000	450
6 WORDS	10X			\$300	24,000	450
8 WORDS	3X			\$300	30,000	360
8 WORDS	5X	3X	2X	\$1,000	1,080,000	10
8 WORDS	10X			\$1,000	1,080,000	10
9 WORDS				\$1,000	1,080,000	10
10 WORDS				\$50,000	1,080,000	10

Scratch the YOUR LETTERS to reveal 18 letters. Scratch each matching letter every time it is found in the Crossword GRID. Each letter's square, when scratched gently, will turn white.

When you have matched the letters of two (2) or more entire words in the Crossword GRID, win the corresponding PRIZE shown in the PRIZE KEY. Only the highest PRIZE won in the Crossword GRID will be paid.

MULTIPLIER SPOTS: Multiply any prize won in the PRIZE KEY by the sum of the multiplier(s) revealed across the three MULTIPLIER spots. Any MULTIPLIER spot with a "TRYAGAIN" (NOMULT) symbol does not contribute to the sum of the multipliers.

Prizes, including top prizes, are subject to availability at the time of purchase.

8. *Retailer incentive awards*: The Lottery may conduct a separate Retailer Incentive Program for retailers who sell Crossword Multiplier instant lottery game tickets.

9. Retailer bonus: The Lottery may offer a retailer bonus in connection with the sale of Pennsylvania instant lottery game tickets. If a retailer bonus is offered, a Lottery retailer shall be eligible for a bonus as described in this section. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$100,000 and not exceeding \$500,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$500. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$500,001 and not exceeding \$1,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$5,000. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$1,000,001 and not exceeding \$10,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$10,000. A Lottery retailer is entitled only to the largest bonus for which they qualify on a winning ticket. A bonus will be initiated for payment after

the instant ticket is claimed and validated. A bonus will not be awarded to a Lottery retailer that sells a nonwinning Pennsylvania Lottery instant ticket used to enter a Pennsylvania Lottery second-chance drawing or promotion that is subsequently selected to win a prize.

10. Unclaimed prize money: For a period of 1 year from the announced close of Crossword Multiplier, prize money from winning Crossword Multiplier instant lottery game tickets will be retained by the Secretary for payment to the persons entitled thereto. If no claim is made within 1 year of the announced close of the Crossword Multiplier instant lottery game, the right of a ticket holder to claim the prize represented by the ticket, if any, will expire and the prize money will be paid into the State Lottery Fund and used for purposes provided for by statute.

11. Governing law: In purchasing a ticket, the customer agrees to comply with and abide by the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101-3761-314), 61 Pa. Code Part V (relating to State Lotteries) and the provisions contained in this notice.

12. Termination of the game: The Secretary may announce a termination date, after which no further tickets from this game may be sold. The announcement will be disseminated through media used to advertise or promote

 $Crossword\ Multiplier\ or\ through\ normal\ communication\ methods.$ 

PATRICK BROWNE, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-514. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

### DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

# Pennsylvania King of Dads Instant Lottery Game 1635

Under the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101— 3761-314) and 61 Pa. Code § 819.203 (relating to notice of instant game rules), the Secretary of Revenue hereby provides public notice of the rules for the following instant lottery game:

1. *Name*: The name of the game is Pennsylvania King of Dads (hereafter "King of Dads"). The game number is PA-1635.

2. *Price*: The price of a King of Dads instant lottery game ticket is \$5.

3. *Play symbols*: Each King of Dads instant lottery game ticket will contain one play area featuring a "WINNING NUMBERS" area and a "YOUR NUMBERS" area. The play symbols and their captions, located in the "WINNING NUMBERS" area, are: 1 (ONE), 2 (TWO), 3 (THREE), 4 (FOUR), 5 (FIVE), 6 (SIX), 7 (SEVEN), 8 (EIGHT), 9 (NINE), 10 (TEN), 11 (ELEVN), 12 (TWLV), 13 (THRTN), 14 (FORTN), 15 (FIFTN), 16 (SIXTN), 17 (SVNTN), 18 (EGHTN), 19 (NINTN), 20 (TWENT), 21 (TWYONE), 22 (TWYTWO), 23 (TWYTHR), 24 (TWYFOR), 25 (TWYFIV), 26 (TWYSIX), 27 (TWYSVN), 28 (TWYEGT), 29 (TWYNIN) and 30 (THIRT). The play symbols and their captions, located in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area, are: 1 (ONE), 2 (TWO), 3 (THREE), 4 (FOUR), 5 (FIVE), 6 (SIX), 7 (SEVEN), 8 (EIGHT), 9 (NINE), 10 (TEN), 11 (ELEVN), 12 (TWLV), 13 (THRTN), 14 (FORTN), 15 (FIFTN), 16 (SIXTN), 17 (SVNTN), 18 (EGHTN), 19 (NINTN), 20 (TWENT), 21 (TWYONE), 22 (TWYTWO), 23 (TWYTHR), 24 (TWYFOR), 25 (TWYFIV), 26 (TWYSIX), 27 (TWYSVN), 28 (TWYEGT), 29 (TWYNIN), 30 (THIRT), DAD (DAD) symbol and a KING (WINALL) symbol.

4. *Prize Symbols*: The prize symbols and their captions, located in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area, are:  $$5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL),  $$10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL),  $$20^{.00}$  (TWENTY),  $$30^{.00}$  (THIRTY),  $$50^{.00}$  (FIFTY), \$100 (ONE HUN), \$200 (TWO HUN), \$400 (FOR HUN), \$1,000 (ONE THO), \$5,000 (FIV THO) and \$100,000 (ONEHUNTHO).

5. *Prizes*: The prizes that can be won in this game, are: \$5, \$10, \$20, \$30, \$50, \$100, \$200, \$400, \$1,000, \$5,000 and \$100,000. A player can win up to 12 times on a ticket.

6. Approximate number of tickets printed for the game: Approximately 5,400,000 tickets will be printed for the King of Dads instant lottery game.

#### 7. Determination of prize winners:

(a) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$100,000

(ONEHUNTHO) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100,000.

(b) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$5,000 (FIV THO) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$5,000.

(c) Holders of tickets upon which a DAD (DAD) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$5,000 (FIV THO) appears in the "prize" area under that DAD (DAD) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$5,000.

(d) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$1,000 (ONE THO) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(e) Holders of tickets upon which a DAD (DAD) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$1,000 (ONE THO) appears in the "prize" area under that DAD (DAD) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(f) Holders of tickets upon which a KING (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in four of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $50^{00}$  (FIFTY) appears in two of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $20^{00}$  (TWENTY) appears in four of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $10^{00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in two of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(g) Holders of tickets upon which a KING (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in eight of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of \$50<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTY) appears in four of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(h) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$400 (FOR HUN) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(i) Holders of tickets upon which a DAD (DAD) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$400 (FOR HUN) appears in the "prize" area under that DAD (DAD) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(j) Holders of tickets upon which a KING (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in two of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $20^{.00}$  (TWENTY) appears in ten of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(k) Holders of tickets upon which a KING (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $50^{00}$  (FIFTY) appears in two of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $30^{00}$  (THIRTY) appears in ten of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(l) Holders of tickets upon which a KING (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a

prize symbol of  $$10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in ten of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in one of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in one of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$400.

(m) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(n) Holders of tickets upon which a DAD (DAD) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in the "prize" area under that DAD (DAD) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(o) Holders of tickets upon which a KING (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $$50^{.00}$  (FIFTY) appears in three of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $$5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL) appears in eight of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $$10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in one of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(p) Holders of tickets upon which a KING (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $30^{.00}$  (THIRTY) appears in four of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in eight of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(q) Holders of tickets upon which a KING (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $$20^{.00}$  (TWENTY) appears in five of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $$10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in four of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $$5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL) appears in two of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $$50^{.00}$  (FIFTY) appears in one of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(r) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(s) Holders of tickets upon which a DAD (DAD) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in the "prize" area under that DAD (DAD) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(t) Holders of tickets upon which a KING (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $$20^{.00}$  (TWENTY) appears in two of the "prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $$10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in two of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $$5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL) appears in eight of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(u) Holders of tickets upon which a KING (WINALL) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of \$10<sup>.00</sup> (TEN DOL) appears in eight of the "prize" areas and a prize symbol of \$5<sup>.00</sup> (FIV DOL)

appears in four of the "prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(v) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$50<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTY) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(w) Holders of tickets upon which a DAD (DAD) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $50^{00}$  (FIFTY) appears in the "prize" area under that DAD (DAD) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of 50.

(x) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$30<sup>.00</sup> (THIRTY) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, shall be entitled to a prize of \$30.

(y) Holders of tickets upon which a DAD (DAD) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $330^{.00}$  (THIRTY) appears in the "prize" area under that DAD (DAD) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of 330.

(z) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of  $20^{00}$  (TWENTY) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20.

(aa) Holders of tickets upon which a DAD (DAD) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $$20^{.00}$  (TWENTY) appears in the "prize" area under that DAD (DAD) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20.

(bb) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$10<sup>.00</sup> (TEN DOL) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10.

(cc) Holders of tickets upon which a DAD (DAD) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $10^{00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in the "prize" area under that DAD (DAD) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of  $10^{00}$ .

(dd) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$5<sup>.00</sup> (FIV DOL) appears in the "prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$5.

(ee) Holders of tickets upon which a DAD (DAD) symbol appears in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a prize symbol of  $$5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL) appears in the "prize" area under that DAD (DAD) symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$5.

8. Number and description of prizes and approximate chances of winning: The following table sets forth the approximate number of winners, amounts of prizes and approximate chances of winning:

### 2148

### NOTICES

When Any Of YOUR NUMBERS Match Any WINNING NUMBER, Win Prize Shown Under The Matching Number. Win With:	Win:	Approximate Chances Of Winning Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 5,400,000 Tickets:
\$5 w/ DAD	\$5	13.04	414,000
\$5	\$5	30	180,000
$5 \times 2$	\$10	150	36,000
(\$5 w/ DAD) + \$5	\$10	60	90,000
(\$5 w/ DAD) × 2	\$10	60	90,000
\$10 w/ DAD	\$10	60	90,000
\$10	\$10	150	36,000
$$5 \times 4$	\$20	600	9,000
((\$5 w/ DAD) × 2) + \$10	\$20	150	36,000
(\$5 w/ DAD) × 4	\$20	150	36,000
\$20 w/ DAD	\$20	150	36,000
\$20	\$20	200	27,000
\$10 × 3	\$30	600	9,000
((\$5 w/ DAD) × 4) + \$10	\$30	300	18,000
((\$10 w/ DAD) × 2) + (\$5 × 2)	\$30	300	18,000
(\$20 w/ DAD) + (\$10 w/ DAD)	\$30	300	18,000
\$30 w/ DAD	\$30	600	9,000
\$30	\$30	600	9,000
$5 \times 10$	\$50	600	9,000
$((\$5 \text{ w/ DAD}) \times 5) + (\$5 \times 3) + \$10$	\$50	300	18,000
(\$10 w/ DAD) × 5	\$50	300	18,000
\$50 w/ DAD	\$50	300	18,000
\$50	\$50	600	9,000
KING w/ $((\$10 \times 8) + (\$5 \times 4))$	\$100	750	7,200
KING w/ $((\$20 \times 2) + (\$10 \times 2) + (\$5 \times 8))$	\$100	750	7,200
\$10 × 10	\$100	24,000	225
((\$10 w/ DAD) × 8) + (\$10 × 2)	\$100	6,000	900
(\$50 w/ DAD) + (\$10 × 5)	\$100	6,000	900
\$100 w/ DAD	\$100	6,000	900
\$100	\$100	24,000	225
KING w/ (( $\$20 \times 5$ ) + ( $\$10 \times 4$ ) + ( $\$5 \times 2$ ) + ( $\$50$ )	\$200	4,000	1,350
KING w/ (( $\$30 \times 4$ ) + ( $\$10 \times 8$ ))	\$200	4,000	1,350
KING w/ (( $$50 \times 3$ ) + ( $$5 \times 8$ ) + \$10)	\$200	4,000	1,350
$50 \times 4$	\$200	24,000	225
$((\$50 \text{ w/ DAD}) \times 2) + ((\$10 \text{ w/ DAD}) \times 10)$	\$200	24,000	225
(\$100 w/ DAD) × 2	\$200	24,000	225
\$200 w/ DAD	\$200	120,000	45
\$200	\$200	120,000	45
KING w/ ((\$10 × 10) + \$200 + \$100)	\$400	60,000	90
KING w/ ((\$50 × 2) + (\$30 × 10))	\$400	60,000	90
KING w/ ((\$100 × 2) + (\$20 × 10))	\$400	120,000	45
\$100 × 4	\$400	120,000	45
\$400 w/ DAD	\$400	120,000	45
\$400	\$400	120,000	45
KING w/ (( $\$100 \times 8$ ) + ( $\$50 \times 4$ ))	\$1,000	540,000	10

When Any Of YOUR NUMBERS Match Any WINNING NUMBER, Win Prize Shown Under The Matching Number. Win With:	Win:	Approximate Chances Of Winning Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 5,400,000 Tickets:
KING w/ (( $\$200 \times 4$ ) + ( $\$50 \times 2$ ) + ( $\$20 \times 4$ ) + ( $\$10 \times 2$ ))	\$1,000	540,000	10
\$1,000 w/ DAD	\$1,000	540,000	10
\$1,000	\$1,000	540,000	10
\$5,000 w/ DAD	\$5,000	540,000	10
\$5,000	\$5,000	540,000	10
\$100,000	\$100,000	540,000	10

Reveal a "DAD" (DAD) symbol, win prize shown under that symbol automatically.

Reveal a "KING" (WINALL) symbol, win all 12 prizes shown!

Prizes, including top prizes, are subject to availability at the time of purchase.

9. *Retailer incentive awards*: The Lottery may conduct a separate Retailer Incentive Program for retailers who sell King of Dads instant lottery game tickets.

10. Retailer bonus: The Lottery may offer a retailer bonus in connection with the sale of Pennsylvania instant lottery game tickets. If a retailer bonus is offered, a Lottery retailer shall be eligible for a bonus as described in this section. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$100,000 and not exceeding \$500,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$500. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$500,001 and not exceeding \$1,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$5,000. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$1,000,001 and not exceeding \$10,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$10,000. A Lottery retailer is entitled only to the largest bonus for which they qualify on a winning ticket. A bonus will be initiated for payment after the instant ticket is claimed and validated. A bonus will not be awarded to a Lottery retailer that sells a nonwinning Pennsylvania Lottery instant ticket used to enter a Pennsylvania Lottery second-chance drawing or promotion that is subsequently selected to win a prize.

11. Unclaimed prize money: For a period of 1 year from the announced close of King of Dads, prize money from winning King of Dads instant lottery game tickets will be retained by the Secretary for payment to the persons entitled thereto. If no claim is made within 1 year of the announced close of the King of Dads instant lottery game, the right of a ticket holder to claim the prize represented by the ticket, if any, will expire and the prize money will be paid into the State Lottery Fund and used for purposes provided for by statute.

12. Governing law: In purchasing a ticket, the customer agrees to comply with and abide by the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101—3761-314), 61 Pa. Code Part V (relating to State Lotteries) and the provisions contained in this notice.

13. Termination of the game: The Secretary may announce a termination date, after which no further tickets from this game may be sold. The announcement will be disseminated through media used to advertise or promote King of Dads or through normal communications methods.

PATRICK BROWNE, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-515. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

## DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

#### Automated Red Light Enforcement Transportation Enhancement Grants Program Applications

Under 67 Pa. Code Chapter 233 (relating to transportation enhancement grants from automated red light enforcement system revenues), the Department of Transportation (Department) is inviting city, county and municipal governments and other local boards or bodies with authority to enact laws relating to traffic in this Commonwealth to submit applications in accordance with the parameters delineated in 67 Pa. Code Chapter 233. Preapplication scoping forms are required and will be accepted until April 30, 2023. Applications will be accepted from June 1, 2023, to June 30, 2023.

Additional guidance and information can be found on the Department's Traffic Signal Resource Portal at http:// www.dot.state.pa.us/signals, including a link to the online application. Supporting documents may be attached to the online application. Only the online application and supporting documents attached to the online application will be considered. Paper copies are not required.

Questions related to the Automated Red Light Enforcement Transportation Enhancement Grants Program should be directed to Michael Centi, Bureau of Operations, 400 North Street, 6th Floor, Harrisburg, PA 17120, (717) 787-5313, ARLE@pa.gov.

MICHAEL CARROLL,

Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-516. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

### ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

#### Liberty Township and CEASRA, Inc. v. Department of Environmental Protection and Tri-County Landfill, Permittee; EHB Doc. No. 2023-036-L

Liberty Township and CEASRA, Inc. have appealed the issuance by the Department of Environmental Protection of NPDES Permit No. PA0263664 authorizing discharge from a facility in Liberty Township, Mercer County.

The appeal is filed with the Environmental Hearing Board (Board). The notice of appeal, and other filings related to the appeal, may be reviewed by any interested person through the Board's web site at http:// ehb.courtapps.com. If information concerning this notice is required in an alternative form, contact the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483. TDD users may telephone the Board through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984. A date for the hearing on the appeal has not yet been scheduled.

Petitions to intervene in the appeal may be filed with the Board by interested parties under 25 Pa. Code § 1021.81 (relating to intervention). Copies of the Board's rules of practice and procedure are available online and upon request from the Board.

> STEVEN C. BECKMAN, Chairperson

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-517. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

### FISH AND BOAT COMMISSION

#### Lake Erie Commercial Fishing—2023

The Executive Director of the Fish and Boat Commission (Commission), acting under the authority of 58 Pa. Code § 69.31(b) (relating to seasons), has determined that the 2023 total allowable commercial catch for walleye from the Commonwealth waters of Lake Erie is 4,000 pounds. The commercial fishing season for walleye on Lake Erie is January 1 to March 14 and 12:01 a.m. the first Saturday in May to December 31. This season shall end when the Executive Director determines that 4,000 pounds of walleye probably have been taken by commercial fishing interests fishing in the Commonwealth waters of Lake Erie.

The Executive Director of the Commission, acting under the authority of 58 Pa. Code § 69.31(c), has established that the 2023 total allowable commercial catch for yellow perch from the Commonwealth waters of Lake Erie is 100,000 pounds. The commercial fishing season for yellow perch on Lake Erie is January 1 until the date the Executive Director determines that 100,000 pounds of yellow perch probably have been taken by commercial fishing interests fishing in the Commonwealth waters of Lake Erie.

> TIMOTHY D. SCHAEFFER, Executive Director

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-518. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

### **FISH AND BOAT COMMISSION**

# Lake Erie Creel Limits for Walleye and Yellow Perch—2023

The Executive Director of the Fish and Boat Commission, acting under the authority of 58 Pa. Code § 69.12b (relating to Lake Erie walleye and yellow perch adaptive management for establishing daily limits) has established the daily limits for walleye and yellow perch that are necessary and appropriate for the better protection and management of the fishery. Effective May 1, 2023, the daily limit for yellow perch is 30. Effective May 6, 2023, the daily limit for walleye in Lake Erie is six.

The Executive Director may revise the daily limit for walleye or yellow perch if he determines that conditions so warrant. The daily limits will remain in effect until April 30, 2024, or until the Executive Director establishes new daily limits. Anglers are responsible for obtaining the current daily limits for walleye and yellow perch on Lake Erie including Presque Isle Bay prior to fishing those waters.

> TIMOTHY D. SCHAEFFER, Executive Director

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-519. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

### FISH AND BOAT COMMISSION

#### Public Hearing

The Fish and Boat Commission (Commission) will hold a public hearing to receive comments on proposed rulemaking 48A-343, regarding Commission fees, on Monday, April 24, 2023, at 11:30 a.m. This proposed rulemaking is published at 53 Pa.B. 2048 (April 15, 2023). The public hearing will be held at the Fish and Boat Commission, 1601 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

TIMOTHY D. SCHAEFFER,

Executive Director

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-520. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

### **INSURANCE DEPARTMENT**

#### Appeal of Jenni R. Malloy under the Quality Health Care Accountability and Protection Article; Highmark Wholecare; Doc. No. HC23-03-021

Under Article XXI of The Insurance Company Law of 1921, referred to as the Quality Health Care Accountability and Protection Article (40 P.S. §§ 991.2101— 991.2194), notice is hereby given that the appellant in this action has requested a hearing, in connection with the appellant's managed health care plan. The proceedings in this matter will be governed by 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—508, 561—588 and 701—704 (relating to Administrative Agency Law), 1 Pa. Code Part II (relating to General Rules of Administrative Practice and Procedure) and any other relevant provisions of law.

A prehearing telephone conference initiated by this office is scheduled for May 4, 2023, at 10 a.m. Each party

shall provide the Hearings Administrator a telephone number to be used for the telephone conference on or before May 2, 2023. A date for a hearing shall be determined, if necessary, at the prehearing/settlement conference.

Protests, petitions to intervene or notices of intervention, if any, must be electronically filed on or before April 20, 2023, with the Administrative Hearings Office. The e-mail address to be used for the Administrative Hearings Office is ra-hearings@pa.gov. Answers to protests, petitions to intervene or notices of intervention, if any, will be electronically filed on or before May 2, 2023.

Persons with a disability who wish to attend the previously-referenced administrative hearing and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to participate in the hearing, contact Joseph Korman, (717) 787-4429, jkorman@pa.gov.

MICHAEL HUMPHREYS, Acting Insurance Commissioner [Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-521. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

**INSURANCE DEPARTMENT** 

#### Application for Approval to Acquire Control of Rockwood Casualty Insurance Company and Somerset Casualty Insurance Company

Partners FC II Ltd., an exempted company governed under the laws of Bermuda; Partners FC Ltd., an exempted company governed under the laws of Bermuda; Partners BK Ltd., an exempted company governed under the laws of Bermuda; BAM RE Trustee Ltd., an exempted company governed under the laws of Bermuda; BAM RE Partners Trust, a trust governed under the laws of Bermuda; Brookfield Reinsurance Ltd., an insurance and reinsurance holding company governed under the laws of Bermuda; BAM RE Holdings Ltd., an exempted company governed under the laws of Bermuda; BAMR US Holdings (Bermuda) I Ltd., an exempted company governed under the laws of Bermuda; BAMR US Holdings, LLC, a Delaware domiciled limited liability company; BNRE Triangle Acquisition, Inc., a Delaware domiciled intermediate holding company; Brian Kingston; and James "Bruce" Flatt have filed an application to acquire control of Rockwood Casualty Insurance Company and Somerset Casualty Insurance Company, both Pennsylvania domiciled stock casualty insurance companies. The filings were received on March 21, 2023, and were made under the requirements of Article XIV of The Insurance Company Law of 1921 (40 P.S. §§ 991.1401-991.1414).

Persons wishing to comment on the acquisitions are invited to submit a written statement to the Insurance Department (Department) within 30 days from the date of publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. Each written statement must include the name, address and telephone number of the interested party; identification of the application to which the statement is addressed; and a concise statement with sufficient detail and relevant facts to inform the Department of the exact basis of the statement. Written statements must be e-mailed to Lori Rumpf, lrumpf@pa.gov. Comments received will be part of the public record regarding the filings and will be forwarded to the applicants for appropriate response.

MICHAEL HUMPHREYS,

Acting Insurance Commissioner [Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-522. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

### LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU

#### **Documents Filed But Not Published**

The Legislative Reference Bureau (Bureau) accepted the following documents during the preceding calendar month for filing without publication under 1 Pa. Code § 3.13(b) (relating to contents of *Bulletin*). The Bureau will continue to publish on a monthly basis either a summary table identifying the documents accepted during the preceding calendar month under this subsection or a statement that no documents have been received. For questions concerning or copies of documents filed, but not published, call (717) 783-1530.

#### Executive Board

Resolution No. CB 23-007, Dated March 2, 2023. The Executive Board resolution authorizes the side letter of agreement regarding closure payments for White Haven Center-Extension.

Resolution No. CB 23-008, Dated March 2, 2023. The Executive Board resolution authorizes the side letter of agreement regarding closure payments for Polk Center-Extension.

Resolution No. CB 23-009, Dated March 2, 2023. The Executive Board Resolution authorizes the side letter with AFSCME that provides salary adjustments for clerical assistant series classifications in the independent agencies (Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board, Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission and Pennsylvania Game Commission).

Resolution No. CB 23-010, Dated March 2, 2023. The Executive Board Resolution authorizes the side letter with SEIU, Healthcare Pennsylvania that provides the continuation for closure payments for SEIU represented employees at Polk Center.

Resolution No. CB 23-011, Dated March 2, 2023. The Executive Board Resolution authorizes the side letter with SEIU, Healthcare Pennsylvania that provides the continuation for closure payments for SEIU, HCPA represented employees at White Haven Center.

Resolution No. CB 23-012, Dated March 2, 2023. The Executive Board Resolution authorizes the side letter with OPEIU that provides the continuation for closure payments for OPEIU represented employees at White Haven Center.

Resolution No. CB 23-013, Dated March 2, 2023. This Executive Board Resolution authorizes an increase of two pay scale levels for eligible employees under the classification of Youth Development Staff.

#### Governor's Office

Management Directive No. 245.18—IT Administrator Acceptable Use, Auditing, and Monitoring, Amended March 14, 2023.

Management Directive No. 250.01—Notice and Advertisement of Meetings, Amended March 14, 2023.

Administrative Circular No. 23-09—Closing Instruction No. 2, Fiscal Year 2022-23; Pre-closing, Dated March 16, 2023.

Administrative Circular No. 23-10—Closing Instruction No. 3, Fiscal Year 2022-23; Pending Lapse/Lapse Transactions and Reporting Deadlines, Dated March 16, 2023.

Administrative Circular No. 23-11—Closing Instruction No. 4, Fiscal Year 2022-23; Year-End Processing Deadlines and an Important Reminder about SAP Budget Period Values, Dated March 28, 2023.

> AMY J. MENDELSOHN, Director

Pennsylvania Code and Bulletin [Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-523. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

## PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

#### Natural Gas Service

**A-2023-3039556.** Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc. Application for approval of abandonment of natural gas service by Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc. to 14 active residential premises and 2 inactive residential premises in Franklin County.

Formal protests and petitions to intervene must be filed in accordance with 52 Pa. Code (relating to public utilities) on or before Monday, May 1, 2023. Filings must be made with the Secretary of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, 2nd Floor, Harrisburg, PA 17120, or on the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission's (Commission) web site at www.puc.pa.gov with a copy served on the applicant. The documents filed in support of the application are available for inspection and copying at the Office of the Secretary between 8 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, on the Commission's web site at www.puc.pa.gov and at the applicant's business address. If a filing contains confidential or proprietary material, the filing is required to be submitted by overnight delivery.

Applicant: Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc.

Through and By Counsel: Candis A. Tunilo, Esquire (ID # 89891), 800 North Third Street, Suite 204, Harrisburg, PA 17102, ctunilo@nisource.com; Theodore J. Gallagher, Esquire (ID # 90842), 121 Champion Way, Suite 100, Canonsburg, PA 15317, tjgallagher@nisource.com

ROSEMARY CHIAVETTA,

Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-524. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

### PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

#### Service of Notice of Motor Carrier Applications

The following temporary authority and/or permanent authority applications for the right to render service as a common carrier or contract carrier in this Commonwealth have been filed with the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission). Formal protests, petitions to intervene and answers must be filed in accordance with 52 Pa. Code (relating to public utilities) on or before May 1, 2023. Filings are recommended to be made electronically through eFiling to the Secretary of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120, with a copy served on the applicant by May 1, 2023. Individuals can sign up for a free eFiling account with the Secretary of the Commission through the Commission's eFiling system at https://www.puc.pa.gov/efiling/ Default.aspx. A protest shall indicate whether it applies to the temporary authority application, the permanent authority application, or both. Protests may only be filed if there is evidence that the applicant lacks fitness. Protests based on endangering or impairing operations of an existing carrier will not be honored. The documents filed in support of the application are only available for inspection through the Commission's web site at www.puc.pa.gov by searching under the previously listed docket number or by searching the applicant's web site.

Applications of the following for approval to *begin* operating as *common carriers* for transportation of *persons* as described under each application.

A-2023-3039279. Central PA Medical Transport, LLC (151 Manor Church Road, Columbia, Lancaster County, PA 17512) persons in paratransit service, limited to transportation in wheelchair and stretcher vans, from points in the Counties of Dauphin, Lancaster and York, to points in Pennsylvania, and return.

**A-2023-3039347. Better Care Transportation, LLC** (6259 Mifflin Avenue, Harrisburg, Dauphin County, PA 17111) to transport, as a common carrier, by motor vehicle, persons in paratransit service, from points in the Counties of Cumberland, Dauphin, Lebanon and York, to points in Pennsylvania, and return.

**A-2023-3039477.** Pennsy Line Service, LLC (180 Glencoe Road, Upper Darby, Delaware County, PA 19082) to transport, as a common carrier, by motor vehicle, persons in paratransit service, from points in the County of Delaware and the City and County of Philadelphia, to points in Pennsylvania, and return. *Attorney*: David Temple, Esquire, 111 Buck Road, Building 500, Suite 1, Huntingdon, PA 19006.

Applications of the following for the approval of the right and privilege to *discontinue/abandon* operating as *common carriers* by motor vehicle and for cancellation of the certificate of public convenience as described under each application.

A-2023-3039535. Allegheny Coach Transportation, Inc. (4698 State Route 136, Greensburg, Westmoreland County, PA 15601) for the discontinuance of service and cancellation of its right to transport, as a common carrier, by motor vehicle, persons in limousine service, from points in the Counties of Allegheny, Butler, Washington and Westmoreland, to points in Pennsylvania, and return; excluding service that is under the jurisdiction of the Philadelphia Parking Authority.

**A-2023-3039544. Bernard Annarino** (118 1/2 Clark Street, Punxsutawney, Jefferson County, PA 15767) discontinuance of service and cancellation of its certificate, to transport, as a common carrier, by motor vehicle, at A-2018-3002357, persons in paratransit service, from points in the Counties of Indiana and Jefferson, to points in Pennsylvania, and return.

> ROSEMARY CHIAVETTA, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-525. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

## PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

#### Telecommunications

A-2023-3039560. Verizon Pennsylvania, LLC and Full Service Network, LP, f/k/a Full Service Computing Corporation. Joint petition of Verizon Pennsylvania, LLC and Full Service Network, LP, f/k/a Full Service Computing Corporation for approval of a UNE/ resale forbearance amendment to the interconnection agreement under section 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

Verizon Pennsylvania, LLC and Full Service Network, LP, f/k/a Full Service Computing Corporation, by their counsel, filed on April 5, 2023, at the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission), a joint petition for approval of a UNE/resale forbearance amendment to the interconnection agreement under sections 251 and 252 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

Interested parties may file comments concerning the petition and agreement. Filings must be made electronically through eFiling with the Secretary, Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120. Comments are due on or before 10 days after the date of publication of this notice. The documents filed in support of Verizon Pennsylvania, LLC and Full Service Network, LP, f/k/a Full Service Computing Corporation joint petition are available for inspection at the Commission's web site at www.puc.pa.gov and at the applicant's business web site.

The contact person is Kathryn Sophy, Director, Office of Special Assistants, (717) 787-1827.

ROSEMARY CHIAVETTA,

Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-526. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

## PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

#### Telecommunications

A-2023-3039565. Verizon North, LLC and Full Service Network, LP, f/k/a Full Service Computing Corporation, d/b/a Full Service Network, LP. Joint petition of Verizon North, LLC and Full Service Network, LP, f/k/a Full Service Computing Corporation, d/b/a Full Service Network, LP for approval of an amendment to interconnection agreement under section 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

Verizon North, LLC and Full Service Network, LP, f/k/a Full Service Computing Corporation, d/b/a Full Service Network, LP, by their counsel, filed on April 5, 2023, at the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission), a joint petition for approval of an amendment to interconnection agreement under sections 251 and 252 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

Interested parties may file comments concerning the petition and agreement. Filings must be made electronically through eFiling with the Secretary, Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120. Comments are due on or before 10 days after the date of publication of this notice. The documents filed in support of Verizon North, LLC and Full Service Network, LP, f/k/a Full Service Computing Corporation, d/b/a Full Service Network, LP joint petition are available for inspection at the Commission's web site at www.puc.pa.gov and at the applicant's business web site.

The contact person is Kathryn Sophy, Director, Office of Special Assistants, (717) 787-1827.

ROSEMARY CHIAVETTA,

Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-527. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

### PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

#### Voluntarily Negotiated Interconnection Agreements under 47 U.S.C. § 252(e)(2)

By Final Opinion and Order entered June 16, 2022, at docket number M-2022-3030709, the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) directed that certain voluntarily negotiated interconnection agreements and subsequent amendments would be assigned to a delegated Commission Bureau for resolution. The parties of these interconnection agreements or amendments would be advised of the disposition by means of Secretarial Letter. During the months of January 2023 through March 2023, the following interconnection agreements or amendments have been approved by the Commission by means of Secretarial Letter:

• A-2022-3037170—Joint petition of Armstrong Telephone Company and Barr Tell USA, Inc. for approval of an interconnection agreement under section 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

• A-2022-3037220—Joint petition of Brightspeed of Pennsylvania, LLC, f/k/a The United Telephone Company of Pennsylvania, LLC and Onvoy Spectrum, LLC for approval of an interconnection agreement under section 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

• A-2022-3037242—Joint petition of Verizon Pennsylvania, LLC and Fusion Cloud Services, LLC, f/k/a Birch Communications, Inc. for approval of an amendment to an interconnection agreement under section 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

• A-2022-3037244—Joint petition of Verizon Pennsylvania, LLC and Fusion Cloud USA, LLC, f/k/a Birch Communications, Inc. for approval of an amendment to an interconnection agreement under section 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

• A-2022-3037245—Joint petition of Verizon North, LLC and Fusion Cloud Services, LLC, f/k/a Birch Communications, Inc. for approval of an amendment to an interconnection agreement under section 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

• A-2022-3037247—Joint petition of Verizon North, LLC and Fusion Cloud Services, LLC, f/k/a Birch Communications, Inc. for approval of an amendment to an interconnection agreement under section 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

• A-2023-3037592—Joint petition of Palmerton Telephone Company, Inc. and Teleport Communications America, LLC for approval of an interconnection agreement under section 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

The contact person is Kathryn Sophy, Director, Office of Special Assistants, (717) 787-1827.

ROSEMARY CHIAVETTA,

Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-528. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]

## PHILADELPHIA PARKING AUTHORITY

## Service of Notice of Motor Carrier Applications in the City of Philadelphia

The following permanent authority application to render service as a common carrier in the City of Philadelphia has been filed with the Philadelphia Parking Authority's (PPA) Taxicab and Limousine Division (TLD). Formal protests must be filed in accordance with 52 Pa. Code Part II (relating to Philadelphia Parking Authority) with the TLD's Office of the Clerk, 2415 South Swanson Street, Philadelphia, PA 19148, no later than May 1, 2023. The nonrefundable protest filing fee is \$5,000 payable to the PPA by certified check or money order. The application is available for inspection at the TLD between 9 a.m. and 4 p.m., Monday through Friday (contact TLD Director Peter Carnival at (215) 683-9653 to make an appointment) or may be inspected at the business addresses of the respective applicants or attorneys, or both.

**Doc. No. A-23-03-10. Abdullah Asad Trans, LLC** (3463 Fitler Street, Philadelphia, PA 19114): An application for a medallion taxicab certificate of public convenience to transport, as a common carrier, persons in taxicab service between points within the City of Philadelphia and from points in the City of Philadelphia to points in Pennsylvania, and return. *Attorney for Applicant*: David R. Alperstein, Esq., 314 Cherry Avenue, Voorhees, NJ 08043.

RICH LAZER, Executive Director

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 23-529. Filed for public inspection April 14, 2023, 9:00 a.m.]